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This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the Mgament’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cbadiand Results of
Operations, contains forward-looking statementthiwithe meaning of the Private Securities LitigatReform Act of 1995, that reflect our
views about future events and financial performaki¢een used in this report, the words “may,” “Willshould,” “anticipate,” “estimate,”
“expect,” “plan,” “believe,” “feel,” “predict,” “pioject”, “potential,” “intend” and similar expressis are intended to identify forward-looking
statements, which are generally not historicaldature. Forward-looking statements include, butnatgimited to, financial projections and
estimates and their underlying assumptions; stateswegarding plans, objectives and expectatiots iespect to future operations, products
and services; and statements regarding future qpeafoce. Forward-looking statements are subjechtwvk and unknown risks and
uncertainties, many of which are difficult to pretdand generally beyond our control, that couldseaactual results to differ materially from
those expressed in, or implied or projected by fdinerardiooking information and statements. You are cawibnot to place undue reliance
these forward-looking statements that speak onbf #ise date hereof. You are also urged to carefeNiew and consider the various
disclosures made by us which attempt to advisedsted parties of the factors which affect our bess, including “Risk Factors” set forth in
Part | Item 1A hereof and our reports filed witle thecurities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, i to time. Except to the extent
otherwise required by federal securities laws, waot undertake any obligation to republish revited/ard-looking statements to reflect
events or circumstances after the date hereof @flect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K &témms “we”, “our”, “us”, “WellPoint” or the “Comp any” refer to WellPoint, Inc.,
an Indiana corporation, which name changed fromh&nt, Inc., or Anthem, effective November 30, 2804 its direct and indirect
subsidiaries, as the context requires.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
General

We are the largest health benefits company in tefreemmercial membership in the United States;isgr34.8 million medical
members as of December 31, 2007. We are an indepelicensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield éiasion, or BCBSA, an association
independent health benefit plans. We serve our reesrds the Blue Cross licensee for California anthe Blue Cross and Blue Shield, or
BCBS, licensee for: Colorado, Connecticut, Georgidiana, Kentucky, Maine, Missouri (excluding 38uaties in the Kansas City area),
Nevada, New Hampshire, New York (as BCBS in 10 Nek city metropolitan and surrounding countiesd @s Blue Cross or BCBS
selected upstate counties only), Ohio, Virginiac{eding the Northern Virginia suburbs of WashingtbnC.), and Wisconsin. We also serve
our members throughout the country as UniCare. W digensed to conduct insurance operations iBGbBtates through our subsidiaries.

We offer a broad spectrum of netwdrksed managed care plans to the large and smdbwenpindividual, Medicaid and senior mark:
Our managed care plans include preferred providgrozations, or PPOs; health maintenance orgamirgtor HMOS; point-of-service plans,
or POS plans; traditional indemnity plans and othgirid plans, including consumer-driven healthngleor CDHPs; hospital only and limited
benefit products. In addition, we provide a broedyof managed care services to self-funded custenncluding claims processing,
underwriting, stop loss insurance, actuarial sesjiprovider network access, medical cost manageamelnother administrative services. We
also provide an array of specialty and other prégland services including life and disability irsuce benefits, pharmacy benefit managen
or PBM, specialty pharmacy, dental, vision, behealibealth benefit services, long-term care insceaend flexible spending accounts.

For our insured products, we charge a premium asdrae all or a portion of the health care risk. &freklf-funded and partially insured
products, we charge a fee for services, and théogmpor plan sponsor reimburses us for all or nodshe health care costs. Approximately
93% of our 2007 operating revenue was derived fpoemium income, while approximately 7% was derifredn administrative fees and other
revenues.

Through December 31, 2007, our customer base phniracluded Local Groups with less than 1,000 iblig employees (48% of our
medical members at December 31, 2007) and Indilsdwader age 65 (7% of our medical members as oé@ber 31, 2007). Other major
customer types included National Accounts (gengralliti-state employer groups with 1,000 or moreplayees, accounting for 18% of our
medical members at December 31, 2007), BlueCard (¢osollees of non-owned BCBS plans who receiveelits in our BCBS markets,
accounting for 13% of our medical members at Deaart, 2007), Senior (over age 65 individuals dadoin Medicare Supplement or
Medicare Advantage policies, accounting for 4% wf medical members at December 31, 2007), Statassped Programs (primarily
Medicaid and State Children’s Health Insurance &lancounting for 6% of our medical members at Déw 31, 2007) and Federal
Employee Program, or FEP (United States governempioyees and covered family members, accounting%oof our medical members at
December 31, 2007).

We market our products through an extensive netwbikdependent agents and brokers (primarily folividual and Senior customers,
as well as certain Local Group customers with allememployee base) and through our in-house dafes that are compensated on a
commission basis for new sales and retention daftiexj business (primarily for Local Group customsith a larger employee base). National
Accounts are generally sold through independerkdrsor consultants retained by the customer wgriith our in-house sales force.

The aging of the population and other demographéracteristics and advances in medical technologyirtue to contribute to rising
health care costs. Our managed care plans andqisoahe designed to encourage
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providers and members to participate in qualitgteffective health benefit plans by using the fuliga of our innovative medical managen
services, quality initiatives and financial incerets. Our leading market share and high businesstieh rates enable us to realize the Itemga
benefits of investing in preventive and early détecprograms. Our ability to provide cost-effeetiiealth benefits products and services is
enhanced through a disciplined approach to intezostl containment, prudent management of our sipbgure and successful integration of
acquired businesses.

Our results of operations depend in large partcmuately predicting health care costs and on bilityato manage future health care
costs through adequate product pricing, medicalagament, product design and negotiation of faverpbbvider contracts.

We believe health care is local, and feel that axehthe strong local presence required to undetstad meet local customer needs. Our
local presence and national expertise have cregiedrtunities for collaborative programs that redvahysicians and hospitals for clinical
quality and excellence. We feel that our commitnterttealth improvement and care management proeiddsd value to customers and health
care professionals.

Our vision is to transform health care and becdmeenost valued company in our industry. Our misgdie improve the lives of people
we serve and the health of our communities.

In January 2007, we unveiled a comprehensive pldrelp address the growing ranks of the uninsu@eul.plan is a blend of public and
private initiatives aimed at ensuring universal@age for children and providing new and more etitre options for the uninsured. This plan
is part of our mission to improve the lives of theople we serve and the health of our communiteiirtherance of our plan, we recently
launched an interactive website for the uninsureti@ened community resource centers to assisirtinsured obtain health insurance
coverage.

We also announced the launch3é0° Health a program to integrate all care management pnogjend tools into a centralized,
consumer-friendly resource that assists patientswnigating the health care system, using theilthéenefits and accessing the most
comprehensive and appropriate care available. fadilly, we have collaborated with 19 other Blu®€x and Blue Shield plans to launch the
nation’s largest private database of health cdmrimation. Blue Health Intelligenc®', or BHI, is a unique resource that is designeidhforove
health care quality by providing the most detailezlv available of health care trends, best prasta®l comparative costs through a claims
database of 79 million people. BHI will strengtitae movement toward greater health care transpgismat informed decision making by
employers and, ultimately, providers and consumers.

In addition, we continue to supplement interactiotith customers, brokers, agents, employees aret sthkeholders through web-
enabled technology and enhancing internal opermmitidfe continue to develop our e-business stratetjytiie goal of becoming widely
regarded as an e-business leader in the healtffitséndustry. The strategy includes not only salad distribution of health benefits products
on the Internet, but also implementation of advdnzapabilities that improve service benefiting oustrs, agents, brokers, and partners while
optimizing administrative costs.

WellPoint is a large accelerated filer (as defimeRule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of4,98 amended, or Exchange Act) and
is required, pursuant to Item 101 of Regulation SeKprovide certain information regarding its wigdsind the availability of certain
documents filed with or furnished to the SEC. Queinet website is www.wellpoint.comWe make available free of charge, or through our
Internet website, our Annual Report on Form 10-Kia@erly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports @mF38-K, and amendments to those
reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 18¢al5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 19%&lamended, as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file such matkwith or furnish it to the SEC. We also include our Internet website our Corporate
Governance Guidelines, our Standards of Ethicairi&ss Conduct and the charter of each standing d¢eenof our Board of Directors. In
addition, we
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intend to disclose on our Internet website any ainmemnts to, or waivers from, our Standards of EtiBeesiness Conduct that are required t
publicly disclosed pursuant to rules of the SEC thedNew York Stock Exchange, or NYSE. WellPoint.lis an Indiana corporation
incorporated on July 17, 2001.

As required by NYSE Rule 303A.12, in 2007 we filgith the NYSE the annual chief executive officertifieate with no qualifications,
indicating that the chief executive officer is ureae of any violations of the NYSE corporate goven®astandards. In addition, we are filing
certifications required by Section 302 of the SadsaOxley Act of 2002 as exhibits to this AnnuapBe on Form 10-K.

Significant Transactions

We intend to continue our expansion and earningsipare, or EPS, growth through organic membergtapith, strategic acquisitions
and capital transactions. Listed below are the rsigweificant transactions over the last five years:

We maintain a common stock repurchase programthsrzed by our Board of Directors. Repurchasesrade from time to time
prevailing market prices, subject to certain refiths on volume, pricing and timing. The repurdsaare effected from time to time
in the open market, through negotiated transactmaisthrough plans designed to comply with Rule5i0f) under the Exchange
Act. During the year ended December 31, 2007, mar® of Directors authorized increases of $9.5dpilln our stock repurchase
program, resulting in a total amount availablerfpurchases in 2007 and thereafter of $10.4 bjllidrich included $0.95 billion of
authorization remaining unused at December 31, 2DQ6ing the year ended December 31, 2007, we ciased and retired
approximately 76.9 million shares at an averageepof $79.99, for an aggregate cost of $6.2 billbmerefore, as of December 31,
2007, $4.3 billion remained authorized by our Boafr@®irectors for future repurchases. Subsequebetcember 31, 2007, we
repurchased and retired approximately 15.0 milfibares for an aggregate cost of approximately Killi@n, leaving approximately
$3.1 billion for authorized future repurchasesabfaary 12, 2008. Our stock repurchase progransésetionary as we are under no
obligation to repurchase shares. We repurchaseshacause we believe it is a prudent use of sugalpital.

On August 1, 2007, we completed our acquisitiommwging Management Holdings, LLC, or IMH, whoseesbusiness is tr
holding company parent of American Imaging Managetm@ac., or AIM. AIM is a leading radiology benefnanagement and
technology company and provides services to uselisas other customers nationwide, including nitlteeoBlue Cross and Blue
Shield licensees. The acquisition supports outegsato become the leader in affordable qualitgdarincorporating AIMS service:
and technology for more effective and efficient ofeadiology services by our members. The purclpai®e for the acquisition was
approximately $300.0 million in cas

On December 28, 2005 (December 31, 2005 for aco@uptirposes) we completed our acquisition of WiediiCe, Inc., ol
WellChoice. Under the terms of the merger agreentbatstockholders of WellChoice received consitle@naof $38.25 in cash and
0.5191 of a share of WellPoint common stock fothesttare of WellChoice common stock outstandingddition, WellChoice stock
options and other awards were converted to WellRoirmrds in accordance with the merger agreeméetplirchase price including
cash, fair value of stock and stock awards andnestid transaction costs was approximately $6.mbilWellChoice merged with
and into WellPoint Holding Corp., a direct and wiawned subsidiary of WellPoint, with WellPoint liing Corp. as the surviving
entity in the mergel

On July 11, 2005, we announced that an agreementeaghed with representatives of more than 70Q898icians nationwide
involved in two multi-district classction lawsuits against us and other health benefimpanies. As part of the agreement, we a
to pay $135.0 million to physicians and to conttéb$5.0 million to a not-for-profit foundation whesission is to promote higher
quality health care and to enhance the delivergaoé to the disadvantaged and underserved. Iniaadite
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paid $61.3 million in legal fees, including intef,esn October 6, 2007. As a result of the agreenveatincurred a p-tax expense ¢
$103.0 million during the year ended December 8052 or $0.10 EPS, which represented the findleseéint amount of the
agreement that was not previously accrued. Appealse settlement initially filed by certain phyisins have been resolved. Final
cash payments under the agreement totaling $20@i6mincluding accrued interest, were made oridber 5 and 6, 200!

e OnJune 9, 2005, we completed our acquisition ehémos, Inc., or Lumenos, for approximately $185ilian in cash paid to the
stockholders of Lumenos. Lumenos is recognizedmsreeer and market leader in consu-driven health program

e On April 25, 2005, our Board of Directors approwetivc-for-one split of shares of common stock, which wascééfe in the form o
a 100% common stock dividend. All shareholdersecbrd on May 13, 2005 received one additional shi¥WellPoint common
stock for each share of common stock held on thtgt. @he additional shares of common stock weteilolised to shareholders of
record in the form of a stock dividend on May 3Q032. All applicable historical weighted averagershend per share amounts an
references to stock compensation data and marietspsf our common stock for all periods preseietiis Annual Report on Form
10-K have been adjusted to reflect this -for-one stock split

* On November 30, 2004, Anthem and WellPoint Healgtwrks Inc., or WHN, completed their merger. WHNmyed with and int
Anthem Holding Corp., a direct and wholly-owned sidiary of Anthem, with Anthem Holding Corp. as thaviving entity in the
merger. In connection with the merger, Anthem anredrits articles of incorporation to change its nam#/ellPoint, Inc., or
WellPoint. As a result of the merger, each WHN khmdder received consideration of $23.80 in cash@me share of WellPoint
common stock for each share of WHN common stoctit.Heladdition, WHN stock options and other awasgse converted to
WellPoint awards in accordance with the mergeremgent. The purchase price including cash, fairevafustock and stock awards
and estimated transaction costs was approximaifeéysdbillion.

Industry Overview

The health benefits industry has experienced sagmit change in the last decade. The increasingsfoo health care costs by employers,
the government and consumers has led to the grofnghiernatives to traditional indemnity healthursnce. HMO, PPO and hybrid plans, such
as POS plans and CDHPs, are among the various fifrmanaged care products that have been devel®pedugh these types of products,
insurers attempt to contain the cost of health bgreegotiating contracts with hospitals, physisiand other providers to deliver health care to
members at favorable rates. These products udieallyre medical management and other quality aetiaptimization measures such as pre-
admission review and approval for certain non-emecy services, pre-authorization of outpatient isatgorocedures, network credentialing to
determine that network doctors and hospitals hbeeequired certifications and expertise, and warievels of care management programs to
help members better understand and navigate theeahagistem. In addition, providers may have intestto achieve certain quality measu
may share medical cost risk or have other incegtigaleliver quality medical services in a coseefifve manner. Also, certain plans offer
members incentives for healthy behaviors, suchmakig cessation and weight management. Membershargied periodic, pre-paid
premiums and pay co-payments, coinsurance and tieldsovhen they receive services. While the ditioms between the various types of
plans have lessened over recent years, PPO, POSEHAR products generally provide reduced bendfitoiit-of-network services, while
traditional HMO products generally provide littke ho reimbursement for non-emergency out-of-netwailization. An HMO plan may also
require members to select one of the network pgmare physicians to coordinate their care andagpany specialist or other services.

Recently, economic factors and greater consumeremeas have resulted in the increasing populafipyaducts that offer larger, more
extensive networks, more member choice relatedverage, physicians and
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hospitals, and a desire for greater flexibility émrstomers to assume larger deductibles and co-gragnn return for lower premiums. CDHPs,
which are relatively high deductible PPO productd @hich are often paired with some type of mentiteaith care expenditure account that
can be used at the member’s discretion to help fnechber out-of-pocket costs, help to meet this aein@DHPs also usually incorporate
member education, wellness, and care managemeagrapns, to help customers make better informed inealte decisions. We believe we are
well-positioned in each of our regions to respamthese market preferences.

Each of the BCBS companies, of which there were88pendent primary licensees as of December 317,20@orks cooperatively in a
number of ways that create significant market athges, especially when competing for very largetinstdite employer groups. As a result of
this cooperation, each BCBS company is able to éakentage of other BCBS licensees’ substantialigeo networks and discounts when any
member works or travels outside of the state irctvitheir policy is written. This program is refedr® as BlueCarl, and is a source of
revenue for providing member services in our stiaesmdividuals who are customers of BCBS plansaféliated with us.

Competition

The managed care industry is highly competitiveéhlationally and in our regional markets. Compaticontinues to be intense due to
aggressive marketing, business consolidationsplifgration of new products and increased quahtiaeeness and price sensitivity among
customers.

Health benefits industry participants compete festomers mainly on the following factors:

* price;

e quality of service

* access to provider networks;

» access to care management and wellness prograshgliimg health informatior

* innovation, breadth and flexibility of products anehefits;

» reputation (including National Committee on Qualitysurance, or NCQA, accreditation stati
* brand recognition; and

» financial stability.

Over the last few years, a health plan’s abilitynteract with employers, members and other thadigs (including health care
professionals) via the Internet has become a nmopeitant competitive factor. During the last sel/gemrs, we have made significant
investments in technology to enhance our electriméraction with employers, members and thirdipart

We believe our exclusive right to market productder the most recognized brand in the industry, BAB our most significant markets
provides us with an advantage over our competitioaddition, our provider networks in our regi@rable us to achieve cost-efficiencies and
service levels enabling us to offer a broad rarfgeealth benefits to our customers on a more cffstiéve basis than many of our competitors.
We strive to distinguish our products through pdeviaccess, service, care management, product aatlibrand recognition.

To build our provider networks, we compete withesthealth benefits plans for the best contracth hitspitals, physicians and other
providers. We believe that physicians and othevigers primarily consider member volume, reimbursanrates, timeliness of reimbursem
and administrative service capabilities along wiid reduction of non-value added administrativksaghen deciding whether to contract with
a health benefits plan.
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At the sales and distribution level, we competedfaalified agents and brokers to recommend andflis¢ our products. Strong
competition exists among insurance companies aalihhieenefits plans for agents and brokers withalestrated ability to secure new busir
and maintain existing accounts. We believe thatityuand price of our products, support serviceputation, prior relationships, along with a
reasonable commission structure are the factonsta@ad brokers consider in choosing whether tketaur products. We believe that we
have good relationships with our agents and broleerd that our products, support services and cgsiari structure compare favorably to our
competitors in all of our regions. Typically we dhe lead competitor in each of our markets and thalosely watched target by other
insurance competitors.

Reportable Segments

We revised our reportable segments during thedusarter of 2007 consistent with changes made t@@anizational structure, which
reflected how the chief operating decision makedated the performance of the business beginmingaly 1, 2007. Segment disclosures for
2006 and 2005 have been reclassified to confortine@007 presentation.

Through December 31, 2007, we managed our opesatimaugh three reportable segments: Consumer armdr@rcial Business, or
CCB; Specialty, Senior and State Sponsored BusinegsSB; and Other.

Our CCB segment includes business units which sffailar products and services, including commémizounts and individual
programs. CCB offers a diversified mix of managaregroducts, including PPOs, HMOs, traditionakimaiity benefits and POS plans. CCB
also offers a variety of hybrid benefit plans irdihg CDHPs, hospital only and limited benefit prottu Additionally, CCB provides a broad
array of managed care services to self-funded mets, including claims processing, underwritingpdbss insurance, actuarial services,
provider network access, medical cost managemeho#ier administrative services.

Our 4SB segment is comprised of businesses prayit@alth and specialty products and services ssidhealicare Part D, Medicare
Advantage, Medicare Supplement, Medicaid, life dis@bility insurance benefits, PBM, specialty phacyn dental, vision, behavioral health
benefit services and long-term care insurance. @S& provides network rental and medical manages®mnices to workers compensation
carriers.

The Other segment includes results from our Fed&oakernment Solutions, or FGS, business and otlginbsses that do not meet the
guantitative thresholds for an operating segmeniefised in Statement of Financial Accounting Stadd (FAS) No. 131Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related InformatmmFAS 131, as well as intersegment sales andresgeliminations and corporate expel
not allocated to the other reportable segments. Bi@#ess includes FEP and National Governmenti&aMnc. (which name changed from
AdminaStar Federal, Inc. effective November 17,6)008r NGS, which acts as a Medicare contracteeieral regions across the nation.

For additional information regarding the operatiagults of our segments, see the Management’s 8igmuand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and Note I®utoaudited consolidated financial statements asdffor the year ended December 31,
2007 included in this Form 10-K.

On October 2, 2007, we announced a new organiztgructure with new strategic business unitsoem@ercial Business unit and a
Consumer Business unit that service different gustaypes. The Commercial Business unit includesaL&roup customers, National
Accounts, UniCare and Specialty business operafestal, vision, life and disability and workecmpensation). The Consumer Business
unit includes Senior, State Sponsored and Individusiness. In addition, a new Comprehensive Hezdilations Business unit brings together
our resources focused on optimizing the qualithedlth care and the cost of care management. Thgf@bensive Health Solutions Business
unit includes provider relations, care and diseaaaagement, behavioral health, employee assisfangeams and our PBM business, which
includes NextRx, and our specialty pharmacy, Preigx Specialty Solutions. Our FGS business incdueleP and NGS, which acts as a
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Medicare contractor. This simplified, customer-feed structure builds on the strength of our commakand consumer businesses, and will
create additional opportunities for cross-sellingdical and specialty products. These changes aipba&size our comprehensive approach to
improving the quality, transparency and cost ofithezare for all of our customers. Our chief opergecision maker will assess performance
under this new structure effective January 1, 28@8 accordingly, we expect to revise our repogtaleigments in the first quarter of 2008.

Products and Services
A general description of our products and servisgsovided below:

Preferred Provider Organization. PPO products offer the member an option toecseley health care provider, with benefits reimledrs
by us at a higher level when care is received faoparticipating network provider. Coverage is sabje co-payments or deductibles and
coinsurance, with member cost sharing usually &ohity out-of-pocket maximums.

Consumer-Driven Health Plans. CDHPs provide consumers with increased findmegponsibility, choice and control regarding how
their health care dollars are spent. Generally, EBEombine a high-deductible PPO plan with an eygpttunded and/or employee-funded
personal care account. Some or all of the dollamgaining in the personal care account at year-ande rolled over to the next year for future
health care needs.

Traditional Indemnity. Indemnity products offer the member an optmselect any health care provider for covered sesviCoverage
is subject to deductibles and coinsurance, with bemoost sharing usually limited by out-of-pocketdimums.

Health Maintenance Organization. HMO products include comprehensive managed lvanefits, generally through a participating
network of physicians, hospitals and other provddérmember in one of our HMOs must typically sekeprimary care physician, or PCP,
from our network. PCPs generally are family prémtiers, internists or pediatricians who provideassary preventive and primary medical
care, and are generally responsible for coordigaither necessary health care services. We offeDHilans with varying levels of co-
payments, which result in different levels of pramirates.

Point-of-Service. POS products blend the characteristics of HM@iademnity plans. Members can have comprehemti®-style
benefits through participating network providershaminimum out-of-pocket expenses (co-payments)asa can go directly, without a
referral, to any provider they choose, subjecatnpng other things, certain deductibles and coarsie. Member cost sharing is limited by out-
of-pocket maximums.

Management Services. In addition to fully insured products, we progiadministrative services to large group emplotleas maintain
self-funded health plans. These administrativeisesvinclude underwriting, actuarial services, mablimanagement, claims processing and
administrative services for self-funded employ&walf-funded health plans are also able to use mwigier networks and to realize savings
through our negotiated provider arrangements, wdliaving employers the ability to design certa@atih benefit plans in accordance with
their own requirements and objectives. We also mmdie stop loss insurance for self-funded plans.

BlueCard. BlueCard host members are generally membersregide in or travel to a state in which a WellRasubsidiary is the Blue
Cross and/or Blue Shield licensee and who are eavender an employer sponsored health plan serbig@dnon-WellPoint controlled BCBS
licensee, who is the “home” plan. We perform ceredministrative functions for BlueCard host mensb&r which we receive administrative
fees
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from the BlueCard members’ home plans. Other aditrative functions, including maintenance of enmalht information and customer
service, are performed by the home plan.

Senior Plans. We offer a wide variety of senior plans, proguend options such as Medicare supplement plaadjddre Advantage
(including private fee-for-service plans) and Medee Part D Prescription Drug Plans, or Medicaré BPaMedicare supplement plans typically
pay the difference between health care costs iadlyy a beneficiary and amounts paid by Medicaredibhre Advantage plans provide
Medicare beneficiaries with a managed care altera#b traditional Medicare and often include a Nbade Part D benefit. Medicare Part D
offers a prescription drug plan to Medicare and @éligible (Medicare and Medicaid) beneficiariesioawide. We served as the exclusive p
of sale facilitated enrollment provider as defitgdthe Centers for Medicare & Medicaid ServicesCMS, for 2007 and 2006, and have been
awarded that role again for the 2008 plan year.

Individual Plans. We offer a full range of health insurance plaiith a variety of options and deductibles for induals under age 65
who are not covered by employer-sponsored cove@gme of our products target certain demographiaifadions such as the uninsured,
“young invincibles,” (individuals between the ag#sl9 and 29), or early retirees. Our productsadiered in 14 states and are distributed by
independent brokers and agents, WellPoint salesseptatives and via the Internet.

Medicaid Plans and Other State Sponsored Program#/e have contracts to serve members enrollddeidicaid, State Children’s
Health Insurance Programs and other publicly furtteith care programs for low income and/or higldiced risk individuals. We currently
provide services in California, Colorado, Connadti¢tndiana, Kansas, Massachusetts, Nevada, Newpktare, New York, Ohio, Texas,
Virginia, West Virginia and Wisconsin. We expectegin providing services in South Carolina sometaaring the second quarter of 2008.

Pharmacy Products. We offer pharmacy services and PBM servicemitomembers. Our pharmacy services incorporaterfesisuch
as drug formularies (where we develop lists of gmefd, cost effective drugs), a pharmacy netwotkraaintenance of a prescription drug
database and mail order capabilities. PBM seryicegided by us include management of drug utilmathrough outpatient prescription drug
formularies, retrospective review and drug educatiw physicians, pharmacists and members. Twaiobabsidiaries are also licensed
pharmacies and make prescription dispensing seraeailable through mail order for PBM clientsJuly 2005, we launched Precision Rx
Specialty Solutions, a full service specialty phacyndesigned to help improve quality and cost of tey coordinating a relatively new class of
prescription medications commonly referred to apbarmaceuticals, also known as specialty meditsitio

In September 2005, we were awarded contracts & bfédicare Part D to eligible Medicare benefigarin all 50 states. We began
offering these plans to customers through our hdshefit subsidiaries throughout the country amdiding administrative services for
Medicare Part D offerings through our PBM compawiesanuary 1, 2006.

Life Insurance. We offer an array of competitive individual agiup life insurance benefit products to both daagd small group
customers in conjunction with our health plans. Titeeproducts include term life, accidental deatid dismemberment.

Disability. We offer short-term and long-term disabilitpgrams, usually in conjunction with our health glan

Behavioral Health. We offer specialized behavioral health plang laenefit management. These plans cover mentahhead
substance abuse treatment services on both aneinpahd an outpatient basis. We have implementga@yee assistance and behavioral
managed care programs for a wide variety of busggthroughout the United States. These prograensffared through our subsidiaries and
through third party behavioral health networks.
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Dental. Our dental plans include networks in certaitest in which we operate. Many of the dental bénafie provided to customers
enrolled in our health plans and are offered ot laotinsured and self-funded basis.

Vision Services. Our vision plans include networks within thates we operate. Many of the vision benefits apgiged to customers
enrolled in our health plans and are offered ot lamtinsured and self-funded basis.

Long-Term Care Insurance. We offer long-term care insurance productsuio@alifornia members through a subsidiary. Theylerm
care products include tax-qualified and non-taxifigd versions of a skilled nursing home care pdendl comprehensive policies covering
skilled, intermediate and custodial long-term camd home health services.

Medicare Fiscal Intermediary Operations. Through our National Government Services, subsidiary, we serve as fiscal intermedie
providing administrative services for the Medicpregram, which generally provides coverage for pessvho are 65 or older and for persons
who are disabled or with end-stage renal diseas# APof the Medicare program provides coveragestwices provided by hospitals, skilled
nursing facilities and other health care facilitifart B of the Medicare program provides covefagservices provided by physicians, phys
and occupational therapists and other professipmuaiiders, as well as certain durable medical egeipt and medical supplies. As a fiscal
intermediary, we are compensated for our servidesapily on a cost reimbursement basis.

Customer Types

Our products are generally developed and marketttdan emphasis on the differing needs of variaxsa@mer groups. In particular, our
product development and marketing efforts take atwount the differing characteristics betweenvir@us customer groups served by us,
including individuals, employers, seniors and Medticrecipients, as well as the unique needs ofadhmal and public entities, labor groups,
federal employee health and benefit programs, natiemployers and state-run programs servicingitem@me, high-risk and under-served
markets. Each business unit is responsible foryarodeesign, pricing, enrolling, underwriting andvéeing customers in specific customer
groups. We believe that one of the keys to ouresgbas been the focus on distinct customer gradpeh better enables us to develop ber
plans and services that meet the unique need® afistinct markets.

Overall, we seek to establish pricing and prodesighs to achieve an appropriate level of profiiigtfior each of our customer
categories. Our customer definitions were revisetthé first quarter of 2007 to be consistent witkvtwe manage our business effective
January 1, 2007. Prior periods have been recladdifi conform to the 2007 presentation. As of Ddamm31, 2007, our customer types
included the following categories:

» Local Group includes employer customers with léssit1,000 employees eligible to participate as ebes in one of our heal
plans. In addition, Local Group includes custonweith 1,000 or more eligible employees with lesatb&b of eligible employees
located outside of the headquarter’s state. Thesgpg are generally sold through brokers or coastsdtworking with industry
specialists from our in-house sales force. Localuprcases may be experience rated or sold on-msalied basis. The customer’s
buying decision is typically based upon the size lareadth of our networks, customer service, ttaityuof our medical manageme
services, the administrative cost included in austgd price, our financial stability, reputatiordasur ability to effectively service
large complex accounts. Local Group accounted 88 4f our medical members at December 31, 2

» Individual consists of individual customers undge &5 and their covered dependents. Individuatjediare generally sold through
independent agents and brokers, o-house sales force or via t
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Internet. Individual business is sold on a f-insured basis and is usually medically underwrittethe point of initial issuanc
Individual customers are generally more sensitivproduct pricing and, to a lesser extent, theigandition of the network, and the
efficiency of administration. Account turnover isrgerally higher with individual as compared to log@ups. Individuals accounted
for 7% of our medical members at December 31, 2

« National Accounts are defined as generally r-state employer groups primarily headquarteredWediPoint service area with
1,000 or more eligible employees, with at least&%nore eligible employees located in a servica angside of the headquarter’s
state. Some exceptions are allowed based on brelationships. Service area is defined as the ggbige area in which we are
licensed to sell BCBS products. National Accoumesgenerally sold through independent brokers oscltants retained by the
customer working with our in-house sales force.Wdee a significant advantage when competing foy isge National Accounts
due to the size and breadth of our networks anability to access the national provider networkBGBS companies and take
advantage of their provider discounts in their lonarkets. National Accounts represented 18% ofroedical members at
December 31, 200°

» BlueCard host customers are defined as enrolleBfuef Cross and/or Blue Shield plans not owned gfiint, who receive heal
care services in our BCBSA licensed markets. Blud@@mbership consists of estimated host membérg tise national BlueCard
program. Host members are generally members wlider@sor travel to a state in which a WellPoinbsidiary is the Blue Cross
and/or Blue Shield licensee and who are covere@maa employer-sponsored health plan issued byaMellPoint controlled
BCBSA licensee (i.e., the “home plan”). We perfarartain administrative functions for BlueCard menshé&r which we receive
administrative fees from the BlueCard members’ hptaas. Other administrative functions, includingimenance of enrollment
information and customer service, are performethbyhome plan. Host members are computed usingaguothier things, the
average number of BlueCard claims received per m@itieCard host membership accounted for 13% ofmdical members at
December 31, 200°

» Senior customers are defined as Medi-eligible individual members age 65 and over whoehenrolled in Medicare Advantage
managed care alternative for the Medicare progoamho have purchased Medicare Supplement berwférage. Medicare
Supplement policies are sold to Medicare recipiastsupplements to the benefits they receive flenMedicare program. Rates are
filed with and in some cases approved by state@mae departments. Most of the premium is paicctlirdy the Federal governme
on behalf of the participant who may also be chdugemall premium. Medicare Supplement and Mediéaeantage products are
marketed in the same manner, primarily through pedelent agents and brokers. Senior business aecbiant4% of our medical
members at December 31, 20

» State Sponsored program membership is definedgiBlelmembers with State Sponsored managed cemmatives for the Medica
and State Children’s Health Insurance programswieamnanage. Total State Sponsored program busitessinted for 6% of our
medical members at December 31, 2(

* FEP members consist of United States governmenlogegs and their dependents within our geograplaikets through our
participation in the national contract betweenBI@BSA and the U.S. Office of Personnel ManagenteBR business accounted for
4% of our medical members at December 31, 2

In addition to reporting our medical membershipchgtomer type, we report by funding arrangementralicg to the level of risk that v
assume in the product contract. Our two principatling arrangement categories are fully-insuredsatidfunded. Fully-insured products are
products in which we indemnify our policyholdersaatst costs for health benefits. Self-funded préslace offered to customers, generally
larger employers, who elect to retain some orfalhe financial risk associated with their employdeealth care costs.
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Some customers choose to purchase stop-loss cevierdignit their retained risk. These customersraported with our self-funded business.

The following tables set forth our medical membgrdly customer type and funding arrangement:

December 31

2007 2006
(In thousands)
Customer Type:
Local Group 16,66: 16,76¢
Individual 2,39( 2,48¢
National:
National Account: 6,38¢ 6,13¢
BlueCard 4,56: 4,27¢
Total National 10,95 10,41
Senior 1,25( 1,19:
State Sponsore 2,174 1,88:
FEP 1,38( 1,35i
Total medical membership by customer t 34,80¢ 34,10:
Funding Arrangement:
Self-Fundec 17,737 16,74¢
Fully-Insured 17,07: 17,35¢
Total medical membership by funding arrangen 34,80¢ 34,10:

For additional information regarding the changeniedical membership between years, see the Managisrdescussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations ideldiin this Form 10-K.

Networks and Provider Relations

Our relationships with physicians, hospitals amufgssionals that provide health care services tormmbers are guided by regional and
national standards for network development, reiraioment and contract methodologies.

We attempt to provide market-based hospital reisdment along industry standards. We also seekstarethat physicians in our
network are paid in a timely manner at appropniates. We use multi-year contracting strategiesduding case or fixed rates, to limit our
exposure to medical cost inflation and increasé palictability. In all regions, we seek to mainthroad provider networks to ensure men
choice while implementing programs designed to ouprthe quality of care received by our members.

It is generally our philosophy not to delegate fidkancial responsibility to our physician providen the form of capitation-based
reimbursement. However, in certain markets we bel@apitation can be a useful method to lower castsreduce underwriting risk, and we
therefore have some capitation contracts.

Depending on the consolidation and integrationtgfgician groups and hospitals, reimbursement gfiegesary across markets. Fee-for-
service is our predominant reimbursement methogologphysicians. Physician fee schedules are dpeel at the state level based on an
assessment of several factors and conditions,dmduCMS resource-based relative value system BRYRS, changes, medical practice cost
inflation and physician supply. We utilize CMS RBR¥ee schedules as a reference point for fee sthdduelopment and analysis. The
RBRVS structure was developed and is maintaine@M, and is used by the Medicare program and other
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major payers. In addition, we have implemented@mdinue to expand physician incentive contractimigich recognizes clinical quality and
performance as a basis for reimbursement.

Our hospital contracts provide for a variety obursement arrangements depending on local maykeingics and current hospital
utilization efficiency. Most hospitals are reimbedsa fixed amount per day or per case for inpatiemered services. Some hospitals, primarily
sole community hospitals, are reimbursed on a discfyom approved charge basis for covered servides “per case” reimbursement
methods utilize many of the same attributes coethin Medicare’s Diagnosis Related Groups, or DR@thodology. Hospital outpatient
services are reimbursed by fixed case rates, fesdsites or percent of approved charges. Our hbspitdracts recognize unique hospital
attributes, such as academic medical centers omeonity hospitals, and the volume of care perforfieedur members. To improve
predictability of expected cost, we frequently asaulti-year contracting approach and have be@sitianing to case rate payment
methodologies. Many of our hospital contracts hammbursement linked to improved clinical perforroenpatient safety and medical error
reduction.

Medical Management Programs

Our medical management programs include a broay afractivities that facilitate improvements irethuality of care provided to our
members and promote cost effective medical cares@medical management activities and programadmnénistered and directed by
physicians and trained nurses employed by us. ®tiee@oals of our medical management strategieséssure that the care delivered to our
members is supported by appropriate medical arahsfic evidence.

Precertification. A traditional medical management program ineslassessment of the appropriateness of certgaitddzsmtions and
other medical services prior to the service beamglered. For example, precertification is usecetersnine whether a set of hospital and
medical services is being appropriately applietheomember’s clinical condition, in accordance vetheria for medical necessity as that term
is defined in the membexrbenefits contract. Most of our health plans hiey@emented precertification programs for certaghhcost radiolog
studies, addressing an area of historically sigaift cost trends. As described in Significant Taatisns above, on August 1, 2007, we
completed our acquisition of AIM. We intend to imgorate AIM’s services and technology for more effifee and efficient use of radiology
services by our members.

Concurrent review. Another traditional medical management strat@gyuse is concurrent review, which is based oionally
recognized criteria developed by third-party meldsgeecialists. With concurrent review, the requieerts and intensity of services during a
patient’s hospital stay are reviewed, often by asite skilled nurse professional in collaboratidthwhe hospitak medical and nursing staff,
order to coordinate care and determine the mostife transition of care from the hospital setting

Formulary management. We have developed formularies, which are sielestof drugs based on clinical quality and effemtiess. A
pharmacy and therapeutics committee of physiciaes gcientific and clinical evidence to ensure thiatmembers have access to the
appropriate drug therapies.

Medical policy. A medical policy group comprised of physiciaaders from various areas of the country, workingoioperation with
academic medical centers, practicing community giieyss and medical specialty organizations sudiaf\merican College of Radiology a
national organizations such as the Centers ford3s€ontrol and the American Cancer Society, déesyour national policy for the
application of new medical technologies and treatsie

Quality programs. We are actively engaged with our hospital angsjrian networks to enable them to improve medical surgical
care and achieve better outcomes for our membezseMlorse, encourage and incent hospitals andgidaysito support national initiatives to
improve the quality of clinical care, patient
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outcomes and to reduce medication errors and labgpiections. We have demonstrated our leadelighifgveloping hospital quality prograr

External review procedures. We work with outside experts through a proacdssxternal review to provide our members sciecuify
and clinically, evidenced-based medical care. Wihemeceive member concerns, we have formal appeatgdures that ultimately allow
coverage disputes related to medical necessitgides under the benefits contract to be settleithdgpendent expert physicians.

Service management. In HMO and POS networks, primary care physigsis@rve as the overall coordinators of memberdttheare
needs by providing an array of preventive healthises and overseeing referrals to specialistafqropriate medical care. In PPO networks,
patients have access to network physicians witaqutmary care physician serving as the coordinataare.

Care Management Programs

We recently introduced o®60° Healthsuite of integrated care management programs asl wifered through our wholly-owned
subsidiary, Health Management Corporation, or HIA6D° Healthoffers the following programs, among others, treatéhbeen proven to
increase quality and reduce medical costs for @mbers:

ConditionCareandFutureMomsare care management and maternity management preghat serve as excellent adjuncts to physician
care. A dedicated nurse and added support fronteann of dietitians, exercise physiologists, phatisiachealth educators and other health
professionals help participants understand theidition, their doctor’s orders and how to beconieetier self-manager of their condition.

24/7 NurseLineffers access to qualified, registered nurses gyt his allows our members to make informed decgsabout the
appropriate level of care and avoid unnecessaryyw®his program includes a robust audiotape ljaraccessible by phone, with more than
400 health topics, as well as on-line health edoabpics designed to educate members about syngpémd treatment of many common
health concerns.

ComplexCarés an advanced care management program that reashesparticipants with multiple health care issuvho are at risk for
frequent and high levels of medical care in ordesfter support and assistance in managing theilttheare need€omplexCarddentifies
candidates through claims analysis using predictieeeling techniques, the use of health risk agsestsdata, utilization management reports
and referrals from a physician or one of our offregrams, such as tt2d/7 NurseLine

MyHealth Advantagetilizes integrated information systems and sopfdagtd data analytics to assist our members todugptheir
compliance with evidence-based care guidelinesjigirtg personal care notes that alert members terpial gaps in care, enable more prudent
health care choices, and assist in the realizationember out-of-pocket cost savings.

MyHealth Coactprovides our members with a professional guide tlps them navigate the health care system and better
decisions about their well-beinglyHealth Coaclproactively reaches out to people who are at Bslsérious health issues or have complex
health care needs. Our health coaches help paniipunderstand and manage chronic conditionsJéang health and wellness related
services they need and make smatrt lifestyle choices

HealthyLifestyletielps employees transform unhealthy habits int@tigesones by focusing on behaviors that can hapesitive effect o
their health and their employer’s financial wellfige HealthyLifestyleprograms include smoking cessation, weight managemess
management, physical activity and diet and nufritio
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MyHealth@Anthens our secure web-based solution, complementingrgitograms by reinforcing telephonic coaching arzd
campaigns. The website engages participants inaggassessing their health status, gives themlbfeek about their progress, and tracks
important health measures such as blood presseightiand blood glucose levels.

Health Care Quality Initiatives

Increasingly, the health care industry is abledbrg quality health care based on preventive heatasurements, outcomes of care and
optimal care management for chronic disease. At@ur success has been our ability to work withratwork physicians and hospitals to
improve the quality and outcomes of the health sargices provided to our members. Our abilityranpote quality medical care has been
recognized by the NCQA, the largest and most réefdetational accreditation program for managed bagdth plans.

Several quality health care measures, includindgbalth Plan Employer Data and Information SetlBDIS, have been incorporated
into the oversight certification by NCQA. HEDIS nseises range from preventive services, such asrsageemammography and pediatric
immunization, to elements of care, including desiegithe complications of diabetes and improviegitment for patients with heart disease.
For the HMO and POS plans, NCQA's highest accréditas granted only to those plans that demorstgtels of service and clinical quality
that meet or exceed NCQA's rigorous requirementeémsumer protection and quality improvement. Plkaarning this accreditation level
must also achieve HEDIS results that are in thbdggrange of national or regional performance.tkrefPPO plans, NCQA's highest
accreditation is granted to those plans that hagellent programs for quality improvement and consuprotection and that meet or exceed
NCQA'’s standards. Overall, our managed care plans bese rated “Excellent”, the highest accreditatmnNCQA.

We have committed to measuring our progress inawipg the quality of care that our members andoamummunities receive through ¢
proprietary Member Health Index, or MHI and Stateatth Index, or SHI. The MHI is comprised of 2thaally relevant measures for our
health plan members and combines prevention, caremgement, clinical outcome and patient safetyioseffhe SHI measures the health o
the residents in our states, not just our memlosiag public data from the Centers for Disease f@band Prevention.

Our wholly-owned clinical research and health outcomes relsesantesidiary, HealthCore, has supported biopharotmed manufacturer
health professionals, and health plans by enaltioge effective medical management and increasesigby adherence to evidence based
care, and creating new knowledge on the valueinical therapies, resulting in better care decision

Pricing and Underwriting of Our Products

We price our products based on our assessmentreintinealth care claim costs and emerging health cost trends, combined with
charges for administrative expenses, risk and p\dfe continually review our product designs andipg guidelines on a national and regio
basis so that our products remain competitive amgistent with our profitability goals and stratgi

In applying our pricing to each employer group andtomer, we maintain consistent, competitivectstiderwriting standards. We
employ our proprietary accumulated actuarial datdetermining underwriting and pricing parametgvbere allowed by law and regulation,
we underwrite individual policies based upon thaio@ history of the individual applying for coveie small groups based upon case specific
underwriting procedures and large groups basedoh group’s aggregate claim experience. Also, weleyrcredit underwriting procedures
with respect to our self-funded products.

In most circumstances, our pricing and underwritliegisions follow a prospective rating process lvicl a fixed premium is determined
at the beginning of the contract period. Any deweiatfavorable or unfavorable, from the medicalts@ssumed in determining the premium is
our responsibility. Some of our larger groups
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employ retrospective rating reviews, where posiéxperience is partially refunded to the group, aedative experience is charged against a
rate stabilization fund established from the greupvorable experience, or charged against fuawrerfible experience.

BCBSA License

We have filed for registration of and maintain sevservice marks, trademarks and trade namee détteral level and in various states
in which we operate. We have the exclusive righige the BCBS names and marks for our health heqebducts in California (Blue Cross
only), Colorado, Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana, teky, Maine, Missouri (excluding 30 counties i tkansas City area), Nevada, New
Hampshire, New York (as BCBS in 10 New York Citytnepolitan and surrounding counties, and as Blues€or BCBS in selected upstate
counties only), Ohio, Virginia (excluding the Noetin Virginia suburbs of Washington, D.C.) and Wissio.

Our license agreements require an annual fee paideto the BCBSA. For historical years up to amduding the 2007 calendar year, the
fee was based upon enrollment and net revenuefiaedéy BCBSA. Beginning in 2008, the fee will based on enrollment only. BCBSA i
national trade association of Blue Cross and Bhiel8 licensees, the primary function of whichdagpromote and preserve the integrity of the
BCBS names and marks, as well as provide certairdogmation among the member companies. Each BCB®Adee is an independent legal
organization and is not responsible for obligatiohsther BCBSA member organizations. We have gbtrio market products and services
using the BCBS names and marks outside of thesstatghich we are licensed to sell BCBS products.

We believe that the BCBS names and marks are Meligdntifiers of our products and services inrterketplace. The license
agreements, which have a perpetual term, contafaigeequirements and restrictions regarding garations and our use of the BCBS names
and marks. Upon termination of the license agre¢snere would cease to have the right to use the 86&8mes and marks in one or more of
the states that we are authorized to use the naawkshe BCBSA could thereafter issue licenses éahs BCBS names and marks in those
states to another entity. Events that could causéermination of a license agreement with the BE&B®Ilude failure to comply with minimui
capital requirements imposed by the BCBSA, a charfigentrol or violation of the BCBSA ownership liision our capital stock, impending
financial insolvency, the appointment of a trusteeeceiver or the commencement of any action agaiticensee seeking its dissolution.

The license agreements with the BCBSA contain cereguirements and restrictions regarding our afi@ns and our use of the BCBS
names and marks, including:

e minimum capital and liquidity requiremen

» enrollment and customer service performance reoares;

» participation in programs that provide portabilifymembership between plat

» disclosure to the BCBSA relating to enrollment findncial conditions

» disclosures as to the structure of the BCBS sy#terontracts with third parties and in public staénts;
« plan governance requiremen

e arequirement that at least 80% (or, in the cadddwd Cross of California, substantially all) ofiGensee’s annual combined net
revenue attributable to health benefit plans wiitdérservice area must be sold, marketed, admiedter underwritten under the
BCBS names and mark

e arequirement that at least 66 2/3% of a licensaefgial combined national revenue attributablestdth benefit plans must be sold,
marketed, administered or underwritten under th@8@ames and mark
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a requirement that neither a plan nor any of dsrised affiliates may permit an entity other thautea or a licensed affiliate to obte
control of the plan or the licensed affiliate oramquire a substantial portion of its assets rdlaidicensable service

a requirement that limits beneficial ownership of oapital stock to less than 10% for institutiomadestors and less than 5% for non-
institutional investors

a requirement that we guarantee certain contraandhfinancial obligations of our licensed affiat anc

a requirement that we indemnify the BCBSA against @aims asserted against it resulting from th&teetual and financial
obligations of any subsidiary that serves as afistermediary providing administrative services fedicare Parts A and |

We believe that we and our licensed affiliatesaneently in compliance with these standards. Thadards under the license agreem
may be modified in certain instances by the BCBSA.

Regulation

General

Our operations are subject to comprehensive arallelétstate, federal and international regulatioaghout the jurisdictions in which
we do business. Supervisory agencies, includirtg st@alth, insurance and corporation departmeats hroad authority to:

grant, suspend and revoke licenses to transactdussi
regulate many aspects of our products and sen
monitor our solvency and reserve adequacy; and

scrutinize our investment activities on the basiguality, diversification and other quantitativeteria.

To carry out these tasks, these regulators pedtidiexamine our operations and accounts.

Regulation of Insurance Company and HMO Businesisif\c

The federal government, as well as the governnaritse states in which we conduct our operatioasghadopted laws and regulations
that govern our business activities in various wayese laws and regulations, which vary signifikaby state, may restrict how we conduct
our businesses and may result in additional burdadscosts to us. Areas of governmental regulaticlide but are not limited to:

licensure;

premium rates

underwriting and pricing;
benefits;

eligibility requirements;
service areas

market conduct;

sales and marketing activitie
quality assurance procedures;
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These laws and regulations are subject to amendna@dtchanging interpretations in each jurisdiction
Our Medicare plans, Medicaid plans and other SSatensored programs are subject to extensive fedpedastate laws and regulations.

States generally require health insurers and HMQ@btain a certificate of authority prior to commgry operations. If we were to
establish a health insurance company or an HM@ynjarisdiction where we do not presently operate generally would have to obtain such
a certificate. The time necessary to obtain sucérgficate varies from jurisdiction to jurisdictioEach health insurer and HMO must file
periodic financial and operating reports with tketes in which it does business. In addition, lealsurers and HMOs are subject to state
examination and periodic license renewal. The hd@nefits business also may be adversely impastedurt and regulatory decisions that
expand the interpretations of existing statutesragdlations. It is uncertain whether we can rectlupugh higher premiums or other
measures, the increased costs of mandated bemefitser increased costs caused by potential &gisl, regulation or court rulings.

plan design and disclosures, including mandateeéfiisr

underwriting, marketing and rating restrictions $omall group products;
utilization review activities

prompt payment of claims;

requirements that pharmacy benefit managers passfa@urer’ rebates to customet
member rights and responsibilities;

collection, access or use of protected health imé&tion;

data reporting, including financial data;

provider rates of payment;

surcharges on provider paymer

provider contract forms;

provider access standart

premium taxes and assessments for the uninsurédramtierinsured;

universal health care regulation based on theatiéity to individuals and small groups of a gouaent sponsored health pl

administered by a private contractor and fundethbseased premium taxe
assessments for state run immunization programs;

member and provider complaints and appe
financial arrangements;

financial condition (including reserves and minimaapital or risk based capital requirements andstments)

reimbursement or payment levels for government édnolisiness; and

corporate governance.

HIPAA and Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act

The federal Health Insurance Portability and Acc¢ability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, imposes obligatiofsr issuers of health insurance

coverage and health benefit plan sponsors. Thigsdawires guaranteed health

19



Table of Contents

care coverage for small employers having two te®ployees and for individuals who meet certainilelity requirements. It also requires
guaranteed renewability of health care coveragenfmst employers and individuals. The law limitsles@ons based on preexisting conditions
for individuals covered under group policies to éxéent the individuals had prior creditable cogera

The Administrative Simplification provisions of HNA imposed a number of requirements on coverediestfincluding insurers, HMC
group health plans, providers and clearinghoudémse requirements include uniform standards ofncomelectronic health care transactions;
privacy and security regulations; and unique id@mtrules for employers, health plans and prowsd&ve complied timely with requirements
that have gone into effect, and intend to complihwititure requirements on or before the compliatetes.

Other federal legislation includes the Gramm-LeBtiley Act, which generally placed restrictions the disclosure of non-public
information to non-affiliated third parties, andjegred financial institutions, including insurets,provide customers with notice regarding how
their non-public personal information is used, intthg an opportunity to “opt out” of certain dissloes. State departments of insurance and
certain federal agencies adopted implementing adiguis as required by federal law. The Gramm-Ldgldby Act also gives banks and other
financial institutions the ability to affiliate Witinsurance companies, which may lead to new cdtopetn the insurance and health benefits
fields.

Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974

The provision of services to certain employee weltzenefit plans is subject to the Employee Retmatinincome Security Act of 1974, as
amended, or ERISA, a complex set of laws and réiguksisubject to interpretation and enforcementhieyinternal Revenue Service and the
Department of Labor. ERISA regulates certain agpeftthe relationships between us, the employeis waintain employee welfare benefit
plans subject to ERISA and participants in suclhql&ome of our administrative services and otbgvides may also be subject to regulation
under ERISA. In addition, certain states requicerisure or registration of companies providingtipiarty claims administration services for
benefit plans. We provide a variety of products sed/ices to employee welfare benefit plans thatcarvered by ERISA. Plans subject to
ERISA can also be subject to state laws and thetiueof whether ERISA preempts a state law has teesd will continue to be, interpreted
by many courts.

HMO and Insurance Holding Company Laws

We are regulated as an insurance holding compasha@nsubject to the insurance holding companyddtse states in which our
insurance company and HMO subsidiaries are dordicilbese acts contain certain reporting requiresmastwell as restrictions on transacti
between an insurer or HMO and its affiliates. Thieskeling company laws and regulations generallyiregnsurance companies and HMOs
within an insurance holding company system to tegigith the insurance department of each stateeviey are domiciled and to file with
those states’ insurance departments certain regestsibing capital structure, ownership, financiahdition, certain intercompany transactions
and general business operations. In addition, wanmtice and reporting requirements generallyyafaptransactions between insurance
companies and HMOs and their affiliates within asurance holding company system, depending onzbeaad nature of the transactions.
Some insurance holding company laws and regulatieqsire prior regulatory approval or, in certaircemstances, prior notice of certain
material intercompany transfers of assets as watkatain transactions between insurance compatid€s, their parent holding companies
and affiliates. Among other provisions, state iasiwe and HMO laws may restrict the ability of cegulated subsidiaries to pay dividends.

Additionally, the holding company acts of the ssatewhich our subsidiaries are domiciled resttiet ability of any person to obtain
control of an insurance company or HMO without priegulatory approval. Under those statutes, witlsoich approval (or an exemption), no
person may acquire any voting security of an insceeholding company, which controls an insuraneapgany or HMO, or merge with such a
holding
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company, if as a result of such transaction suckgmewould “control” the insurance holding compat@ontrol” is generally defined as the
direct or indirect power to direct or cause thediion of the management and policies of a peradrisapresumed to exist if a person directly
or indirectly owns or controls 10% or more of thaing securities of another person.

Guaranty Fund Assessments

Under insolvency or guaranty association laws isinstates, insurance companies can be assessaddants paid by guaranty funds
policyholder losses incurred when an insurance @myfpecomes insolvent. Most state insolvency orantg association laws currently
provide for assessments based upon the amounewfiypms received on insurance underwritten withithsstate (with a minimum amount
payable even if no premium is received). Under mafrthese guaranty association laws, assessmegitssagisurance companies that issue
policies of accident or sickness insurance are maitlespectively. The amount and timing of any fatassessments, however, cannot be
reasonably estimated and are beyond our control.

While the amount of any assessments applicabiéetarid health guaranty funds cannot be predictiéld eertainty, we believe that futu
guaranty association assessments for insurer ieisciles will not have a material adverse effect wnliquidity and capital resources.

Risk-Based Capital Requirements

The states of domicile of our regulated subsidgahiave statutory risk-based capital, or RBC, resménts for health and other insurance
companies and HMOs based on the RBC Model Act. @ REC requirements are intended to assess thekagéquacy of life and health
insurers and HMOs, taking into account the riskrabieristics of a company’s investments and pradddie RBC Model Act sets forth the
formula for calculating the RBC requirements, whick designed to take into account asset risksranse risks, interest rate risks and other
relevant risks with respect to an individual compgarbusiness. In general, under these laws, amanse company or HMO must submit a
report of its RBC level to the insurance departnognhsurance commissioner of its state of domitteeach calendar year.

The law requires increasing degrees of regulataeygight and intervention as a company’s RBC deslifhe RBC Model Act provides
for four different levels of regulatory attentiorkending on the ratio of a company’s total adjustguital (defined as the total of its statutory
capital, surplus and asset valuation reserveytigk-based capital. The level of regulatory oigdrisranges from requiring the company to
inform and obtain approval from the domiciling in@ace commissioner of a comprehensive financial fdaincreasing its RBC, to mandatory
regulatory intervention requiring a company to klecpd under regulatory control in a rehabilitatasrdiquidation proceeding. As of
December 31, 2007, the RBC levels of our insuramceHMO subsidiaries exceeded all RBC thresholds.

Employees

At December 31, 2007, we had approximately 41,#8gns employed on a full-time basis. As of Decarlie 2007, a small portion of
employees were covered by collective bargainingements: 145 employees in the Sacramento, Califangia with the Office and
Professional Employees International Union, Lo&I 210 employees in the greater Detroit, Michigeeaawith the International Brotherhood
of Teamsters, Chauffeurs, Warehousemen and Hehpédmnerica, Local No. 614; 12 employees in the N¥ovk city metropolitan area with
the Office and Professional Employees Internatidivdbn, Local 153; and 51 employees in Milwaukeesdnsin with the Office and
Professional Employees International Union, LocaDfr employees are an important asset, and wetsatgvelop them to their full potential.
We believe that our relationship with our employisegood.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

The following factors, among others, could caugaaaesults to differ materially from those contd in forward-looking statements
made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and presgeisewhere by management from time to time. $aatbrs, among others, may have a
material adverse effect on our business, finar@abition, and results of operations and you sheafefully consider them. It is not possible
predict or identify all such factors. Consequengiyu should not consider any such list to be a detagstatement of all our potential risks or
uncertainties. Because of these and other fagiast,performance should not be considered an itialicaf future performance.

Changes in state and federal regulations, or the gication thereof, may adversely affect our busines financial condition and
results of operations.

Our insurance, managed health care and healthenainte organization, or HMO, subsidiaries are stihpeextensive regulation and
supervision by the insurance, managed health cafd® regulatory authorities of each state in whicly are licensed or authorized to do
business, as well as to regulation by federal andllagencies. We cannot assure you that futurdatgy action by state insurance or HMO
authorities or federal regulatory authorities witit have a material adverse effect on the profitgtdr marketability of our health benefits or
managed care products or on our business, finacmmlition and results of operations. In additioecause of our participation in government-
sponsored programs such as Medicare and Medidzatiges in government regulations or policy wittpess to, among other things,
reimbursement levels, and eligibility requiremertld also adversely affect our business, findrdadition and results of operations. In
addition, we cannot assure you that applicatiotheffederal and/or state tax regulatory regime ¢hatently applies to us will not, or future tax
regulation by either federal and/or state goverrtalexuthorities concerning us could not, have aentadverse effect on our business,
operations or financial condition.

Congress and state legislatures continue to fosuwealth care issues. In addition, the candidatethe 2008 presidential election have
focused on health care issues and several of tleee proposed significant reform to the health sgsgtem. A number of states, including
California, Colorado, Connecticut, New York, ancdhRsylvania, are contemplating significant refornthair health insurance markets. These
proposals include provisions affecting both pubpliograms and privately-financed health insurancangements. Broadly stated, these
proposals attempt to increase the number of indoyedising the eligibility levels for public progms and compelling individuals and
employers to purchase health coverage. At the siamee they reform the underwriting and marketinggtices of health plans. As these
proposals are still being debated in the variogislatures, we cannot assure you that, if enactedaw, these proposals would not have a
negative impact on our business, operations onéigh condition. In particular, if Governor Schwaregger’s proposal for universal coverage
in California had been enacted in the format asgdiby the California Assembly in December 200¢hqaroposal could have had a material
adverse effect on our business, operations anddiabcondition. In addition, several states anesidering legislative proposals to require p
regulatory approval of premium rate increases tatdish minimum loss ratio thresholds. If enactbése proposals could have a material
adverse impact on our business, operations ordiahoondition.

From time to time, Congress has considered vafimuss of managed care reform legislation whictadbpted, could fundamentally al
the treatment of coverage decisions under ERISAlithnhally, there have been legislative attempthrhit ERISA’s preemptive effect on state
laws. If adopted, such limitations could increase l@mbility exposure and could permit greatereteggulation of our operations. Other
proposed bills and regulations, including thosatesl to HIPAA standard transactions and code setsumer-driven health plans and health
savings accounts and insurance market reformatg ahd federal levels may impact certain aspdasardousiness, including premium
receipts, provider contracting, claims payments@modessing and confidentiality of health informati While we cannot predict if any of these
initiatives will ultimately become effective or,dhacted, what their terms will be, their enactnoenild increase our costs, expose us to
expanded liability or require us to revise the wisyshich we conduct business. Further, as we naetto implement our
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e-business initiatives, uncertainty surroundingrégulatory authority and requirements in this aregy make it difficult to ensure compliance.

Our inability to contain health care costs, implemat increases in premium rates on a timely basis, niatain adequate reserves for
policy benefits, maintain our current provider agreements or avoid a downgrade in our ratings may advsely affect our business and
profitability.

Our profitability depends in large part on accusafeedicting health care costs and on our abibitynanage future health care costs
through underwriting criteria, medical managempnvduct design and negotiation of favorable provintracts. The aging of the population
and other demographic characteristics and advangasdical technology continue to contribute tangshealth care costs. Government-
imposed limitations on Medicare and Medicaid reinsietnent have also caused the private sector tcabgaater share of increasing health
care costs. Changes in health care practicestiorflanew technologies, the cost of prescriptiomggd:; clusters of high cost cases, changes in the
regulatory environment and numerous other factffexting the cost of health care may adverselycafeir ability to predict and manage he
care costs, as well as our business, financialiiondand results of operations. Relatively sméffledences between predicted and actual health
care costs as a percentage of premium revenuegsalhin significant changes in our results ofragiens. If it is determined that our
assumptions regarding cost trends and utilizatiersagnificantly different than actual results, cuzome statement and financial position cc
be adversely affected.

In addition to the challenge of managing healtte @arsts, we face pressure to contain premium r@igscustomer contracts may be
subject to renegotiation as customers seek to itothtair costs. Alternatively, our customers mayweto a competitor to obtain more favore
premiums. Fiscal concerns regarding the continualility of programs such as Medicare and Medicaaly cause decreasing reimbursement
rates or a lack of sufficient increase in reimbuarent rates for government-sponsored programs ishwive participate. A limitation on our
ability to increase or maintain our premium or reursement levels or a significant loss of membersdsulting from our need to increase or
maintain premium or reimbursement levels could asklg affect our business, financial condition aesults of operations.

The reserves that we establish for health insurpntiey benefits and other contractual rights aaddiits are based upon assumptions
concerning a number of factors, including trendkealth care costs, expenses, general economidticmsdand other factors. Actual experie
will likely differ from assumed experience, andtihe extent the actual claims experience is lessrédote than estimated based on our
underlying assumptions, our incurred losses wautdeiase and future earnings could be adverselgtatfe

In addition, our profitability is dependent uporr ability to contract on favorable terms with hdaps, physicians and other health care
providers. The failure to maintain or to secure mest-effective health care provider contracts megylt in a loss in membership or higher
medical costs. In addition, our inability to comtravith providers, or the inability of providers poovide adequate care, could adversely affect
our business.

Claims-paying ability and financial strength rasngy recognized rating organizations are an impoftctor in establishing the
competitive position of insurance companies andthdenefits companies. Rating organizations camito review the financial performance
and condition of insurers. Each of the rating aigseviews its ratings periodically and there bamo assurance that our current ratings will
be maintained in the future. We believe our stratgngs are an important factor in marketing owdorcts to customers, since ratings
information is broadly disseminated and generadigcuithroughout the industry. If our ratings are dgsmaded or placed under surveillance or
review, with possible negative implications, thewtdgrade, surveillance or review could adverselgetfbur business, financial condition and
results of operations. These ratings reflect eatihg agency’s opinion of our financial strengtpemating performance and ability to meet our
obligations to policyholders and creditors, andrastevaluations directed toward the protectiomaéstors in our common stock.
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A reduction in the enrollment in our health benefis programs could have an adverse effect on our bugss and profitability.

A reduction in the number of enrollees in our Heakenefits programs could adversely affect ourress, financial condition and results
of operations. Factors that could contribute teduction in enroliment include: failure to obtaemncustomers or retain existing customers;
premium increases and benefit changes; our exit figpecific market; reductions in workforce bystixig customers; negative publicity and
news coverage; failure to attain or maintain natilynrecognized accreditations; state and fedelliatory changes; and general economic
downturn that results in business failures.

There are risks associated with contracting with tle Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services to prode Medicare Part C and
Medicare Part D Prescription Drug benefits.

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and &tadation Act of 2003, or MMA, significantly chaed and expanded Medicare
coverage. The MMA added the availability of pregtian drug benefits for all Medicare eligible indluals starting January 1, 2006. We offer
Medicare approved prescription drug plans and Mediddvantage plans to Medicare eligible individuationwide. In addition, we provide
various administrative services for other entitéfering medical and/or prescription drug plansheir Medicare eligible employees and
retirees through our PBM companies and/or othdiaéfd companies. We are also the United Statésutteplan for point of service facilitated
enroliment, as defined by the Centers for MedidaMedicaid Services, or CMS. Risks associated withMedicare Advantage and Medicare
prescription drug plans include potential uncobdlity of receivables resulting from processinglfm verifying enroliment (including
facilitated enrollment), inadequacy of underwriti@gsumptions, inability to receive and processempinformation (including inability due to
systems issues by the federal government, thecayhdi state government or us), uncollectabilitpr@miums from members, increased me:
or pharmaceutical costs, and the underlying sedispofthis business. While we believe we haveqasgely reviewed our assumptions and
estimates regarding these complex and wide-rangiograms under Medicare Part C and D, includinge¢helated to collectability of
receivables and establishment of liabilities, tbial results may be materially different than assumptions and estimates and could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finarcatlition and results of operations.

As a participant in Medicare and Medicaid programs,we are subject to complex regulations. If we fatb comply with these
regulations, we may be exposed to criminal sanctisrand significant penalties.

We participate as a payer or fiscal intermediantlie Medicare and Medicaid programs. The lawsragdlations governing participati
in Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex,estthip interpretation and can expose us to pesdtiienon-compliance. If we fail to
comply with these laws and regulations, we coulddtgect to criminal fines, civil penalties or otlsanctions which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations. In addition, legiskatir regulatory changes to these programs
could have a material adverse effect on our busjrfggncial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to funding risks with respect to regnue received from participation in Medicare and Melicaid programs.

We participate in Medicare Part C (Medicare Advge)aMedicare Part D, Medicare fiscal intermediang Medicaid programs and
receive revenues from the Medicare and Medicaidnaros to provide benefits under these programsees for these programs are
dependent, in whole or in part, upon annual fundiom the federal government and/or applicableesgavernments. Funding for these
programs is dependent upon many factors outsideofontrol including general economic condition¢he federal or applicable state level
and general political issues and priorities. Anxpeeted reduction or inadequate government funfitinghese programs may adversely affect
our revenues and financial results.
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The health benefits industry is subject to negativeublicity, which can adversely affect our businesand profitability.

The health benefits industry is subject to neggpivilicity. Negative publicity may result in incisead regulation and legislative review of
industry practices, which may further increaseaasts of doing business and adversely affect afitability by: adversely affecting our
ability to market our products and services; raqgius to change our products and services; oe&sing the regulatory burdens under which
we operate.

In addition, as long as we use the Blue Cross dud 8Bhield names and marks in marketing our hédwgttefits products and services, any
negative publicity concerning the BCBSA or otherESA licensees may adversely affect us and thec$alar health benefits products and
services. Any such negative publicity could advigraéfect our business, financial condition andutessof operations.

We face competition in many of our markets and cusimers and brokers have flexibility in moving betwee competitors.

As a health benefits company, we operate in a highinpetitive environment and in an industry tisaturrently subject to significant
changes from business consolidations, new stragdiggnces, legislative reform, aggressive marlgepractices by other health benefits
organizations and market pressures brought aboahlgformed and organized customer base, partlgidanong large employers. This
environment has produced and will likely continagotoduce significant pressures on the profitabdithealth benefits companies.

We are dependent on the services of independentsaged brokers in the marketing of our health gaoelucts, particularly with respect
to individuals, seniors and small employer groupnbers. Such independent agents and brokers acaliypnot exclusively dedicated to us
and may frequently also market health care procafobsir competitors. We face intense competitiantti@ services and allegiance of
independent agents and brokers. We cannot assurtagowe will be able to compete successfully @stagurrent and future competitors or
competitive pressures faced by us will not matiriahd adversely affect our business, financialditton and results of operations.

A change in our health care product mix may impacbur profitability.

Our health care products that involve greater gatensk generally tend to be more profitable tteministrative services products and
those health care products where the employer graspume the underwriting risks. Individuals andlsemployer groups are more likely to
purchase our higher-risk health care products tsscauch purchasers are generally unable or ungiidirbear greater liability for health care
expenditures. Typically, government-sponsored f@ogralso involve our higher-risk health care presiug shift of enrollees from more
profitable products to less profitable productsiddave a material adverse effect on our finanmgldition and results of operations.

From time to time, we have implemented price insesan certain of our health care businesses. helee price increases may improve
profitability, there can be no assurance thatwhilsoccur. Subsequent unfavorable changes in ¢tetive profitability between our various
products could have a material adverse effect otiioancial condition and results of operations.

Our PBM companies operate in an industry faced wittea number of risks and uncertainties in addition tothose we face with our
core health care business.

The following are some of the pharmacy benefit Btdurelated risks that could have a material aslyeffect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations:

» the application of federal and state -remuneration laws

« compliance requirements for pharmacy benefit mantgeciaries under ERISA, including compliance lwitduciary obligations
under ERISA in connection with the development emglementation o
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items such as formularies, preferred drug listiaggd therapeutic intervention programs, contraatietyvork practices, specialty dr
distribution and other transactions and potenigdlility regarding the use of pati-identifiable medical informatior

* anumber of federal and state legislative propamadeing considered that could adversely affeetriety of pharmacy benefit
industry practices, including without limitatiomet receipt of rebates from pharmaceutical manufarguthe regulation of the
development and use of formularies, and legislatigposing additional rights to access to drugdridividuals enrolled in managed
care plans

» changes in th“average wholesale pr” industry pricing benchmark for prescription drugs,a consequence of potential cc
approval of a proposed class action settlementvingthe two defendant companies that report datarescription drug price

» the application of federal and state laws and ®guis related to the operation of Internet and-s&ivice pharmacies;

» our inability to contract on favorable terms withgomaceutical manufacturers for, among other thiresates, discounts a
administrative fees

The failure to adhere to these or other relevams land regulations could expose our PBM businesi/ticand criminal penalties. There
can be no assurance that our business will notibject to challenge under various laws and regurator contractual arrangements. Any such
noncompliance or challenge may have a materialragweffect on our business, financial condition esslilts of operations.

As a holding company, we are dependent on dividendsom our subsidiaries. Our regulated subsidiariesare subject to state
regulations, including restrictions on the paymenof dividends and maintenance of minimum levels ofapital.

We are a holding company whose assets includé #ibooutstanding shares of common stock of ousislidries including our
intermediate holding companies and regulated imagrand HMO subsidiaries. As a holding companyde@end on dividends from our
subsidiaries. Among other restrictions, state iasae and HMO laws may restrict the ability of cegulated subsidiaries to pay dividends. Our
ability to repurchase shares or pay dividends énftiture to our shareholders and meet our obligafimcluding paying operating expenses and
debt service on our outstanding and future indetses, will depend upon the receipt of dividendsficur subsidiaries. An inability of our
subsidiaries to pay dividends in the future in aroant sufficient for us to meet our financial obliipns may materially adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of openat

Most of our regulated subsidiaries are subjectB&€Rtandards, imposed by their states of domi€tese laws are based on the RBC
Model Act adopted by the National Association afurance Commissioners, or NAIC, and require ounleegd subsidiaries to report their
results of risk-based capital calculations to tapattments of insurance and the NAIC. Failure tontaa the minimum RBC standards could
subject our regulated subsidiaries to correctiv®agcincluding state supervision or liquidatiorurQegulated subsidiaries are currently in
compliance with the risk-based capital or otherilsimmequirements imposed by their respective stafelomicile. As discussed in more detail
below, we are a party to license agreements watBBBSA which contain certain requirements andigins regarding our operations,
including minimum capital and liquidity requirementvhich could restrict the ability of our regultsubsidiaries to pay dividends.

We face risks related to litigation.

We are, or may be in the future, a party to a Waé legal actions that affect any business, agkbmployment and employment
discrimination-related suits, employee benefitrolgi breach of contract actions, tort claims anellettual property-related litigation. In
addition, because of the nature of our businesar@eubject to a variety of legal actions relatmgur business operations, including the
design, management and
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offering of our products and services. These cindtlide: claims relating to the denial of healthechenefits; claims relating to the rescission
of health insurance policies; medical malpractic&oas; allegations of anti-competitive and unfaiisiness activities; provider disputes over
compensation and termination of provider contragisputes related to self-funded business; disputes co-payment calculations; disputes
related to the PBM business; claims related tddhere to disclose certain business practices;daighs relating to customer audits and
contract performance.

Recent court decisions and legislative activity rimyease our exposure for any of these typesaifngl. In some cases, substantial non-
economic, treble or punitive damages may be soMgatcurrently have insurance coverage for sombexfd potential liabilities. Other
potential liabilities may not be covered by insur@ninsurers may dispute coverage or the amounsafance may not be enough to cover the
damages awarded. In addition, certain types of das)asuch as punitive damages, may not be covgrigglirance, and insurance coverage
all or certain forms of liability may become undahie or prohibitively expensive in the future. Aagiverse judgment against us resulting in
such damage awards could have an adverse effextrarash flows, results of operations and finanoaaidition.

In addition, we are also involved in pending ane#tened litigation of the character incidentath® business transacted, arising out of
our operations and our 2001 demutualization, aadram time to time involved as a party in varigevernmental investigations, audits,
reviews and administrative proceedings. These tigafons, audits and reviews include routine gmecgl investigations by various state
insurance departments, state attorneys generahand.S. Attorney General. Such investigations deabult in the imposition of civil or
criminal fines, penalties and other sanctions. \Wéke that any liability that may result from amye of these actions, or in the aggregate, is
unlikely to have a material adverse effect on aursolidated results of operations or financial possi

For additional information concerning legal actiaffecting us, see Part |, Item 3, Legal Proceesling

We are a party to license agreements with the BCBS#at entitle us to the exclusive and in certain aas non-exclusive use of the
Blue Cross and Blue Shield names and marks in oureggraphic territories. The termination of these liense agreements or changes in
the terms and conditions of these license agreemsrdould adversely affect our business, financial odition and results of operations.

We use the Blue Cross and Blue Shield names anksraaridentifiers for our products and serviceseatidenses from the BCBSA. Our
license agreements with the BCBSA contain cerguirements and restrictions regarding our operatamd our use of the Blue Cross and
Blue Shield names and marks, including: minimumitedpand liquidity requirements imposed by the B@B$&nrollment and customer service
performance requirements; participation in progrémas provide portability of membership betweempgleadisclosures to the BCBSA relating
enroliment and financial conditions; disclosurescathe structure of the Blue Cross and Blue Shsgktem in contracts with third parties an
public statements; plan governance requirememneg@irement that at least 80% (or, in the caselaé Bross of California, substantially all)

a licensee’s annual combined local net revenudefised by the BCBSA, attributable to health benglfins within its service areas must be
sold, marketed, administered or underwritten utideBlue Cross and Blue Shield hames and marleqjirement that at least 663% of a
licensee’s annual combined national net revenudefised by the BCBSA, attributable to health bé@ngéins must be sold, marketed,
administered or underwritten under the Blue CroskBlue Shield names and marks; a requirementiititer a plan nor any of its licensed
affiliates may permit an entity other than a plaradicensed affiliate to obtain control of themlar the licensed affiliate or to acquire a
substantial portion of its assets related to liebles services; a requirement that we guaranteeigerdntractual and financial obligations of our
licensed affiliates; and a requirement that we indi¢éy the BCBSA against any claims asserted ag#imssulting from the contractual and
financial obligations of any subsidiary that seraesa fiscal intermediary providing administratbegvices for Medicare Parts A and B. Failure
to comply with the foregoing requirements couldutes a termination of the license agreements.
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The standards under the license agreements maypdiéied in certain instances by the BCBSA. For eglanfrom time to time there
have been proposals considered by the BCBSA tofgndué terms of the license agreements to restadbus potential business activities of
licensees. These proposals have included, amoeg thtings, a limitation on the ability of a licelesi® make its provider networks available to
insurance carriers or other entities not holdirgjwee Cross or Blue Shield license. To the exteat fuch amendments to the license agreer
are adopted in the future, they could have a nadtadverse effect on our future expansion plangsults of operations.

Upon the occurrence of an event causing terminatiadhe license agreements, we would no longer taeight to use the Blue Cross
and Blue Shield names and marks in one or morein§eographic territories. Furthermore, the BCBSduld be free to issue a license to use
the Blue Cross and Blue Shield names and marksesetstates to another entity. Events that cowlsecthe termination of a license agreement
with the BCBSA include failure to comply with minirm capital requirements imposed by the BCBSA, angbaf control or violation of the
BCBSA ownership limitations on our capital stogkpiending financial insolvency and the appointmédra tsustee or receiver or the
commencement of any action against a licenseerspékidissolution. We believe that the Blue Crasd Blue Shield names and marks are
valuable identifiers of our products and servicethe marketplace. Accordingly, termination of lisense agreements could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condigiod results of operations.

Upon termination of a license agreement, the BCB&AId impose a “Re-establishment Fee” upon us, lwhiould allow the BCBSA to
“re-establish” a Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield pre® in the vacated service area. Through Dece®ih@007 the fee was set at $86.18 per
licensed enrollee. As of December 31, 2007 we tepdd28.3 million Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield dlees. If the Re-establishment Fee was
applied to our total Blue Cross and/or Blue Shaidollees, we would be assessed approximatelyl$#igh by the BCBSA.

Our investment portfolios are subject to varying eonomic and market conditions, as well as regulatianf we fail to comply with
these regulations, we may be required to sell celitainvestments.

The market values of our investments vary from tim#me depending on economic and market conditiior various reasons, we may
sell certain of our investments at prices thatl@se than the carrying value of the investmentsdidition, in periods of declining interest rates,
bond calls and mortgage loan prepayments genénallgase, resulting in the reinvestment of theselduat the then lower market rates. We
cannot assure you that our investment portfolidspmdduce positive returns in future periods. @egulated subsidiaries are subject to state
laws and regulations that require diversificatiéwor investment portfolios and limit the amountimfestments in certain riskier investment
categories, such as below-investment-grade fixednitvasecurities, mortgage loans, real estateaandty investments, which could generate
higher returns on our investments. Failure to cgmmgth these laws and regulations might cause itvests exceeding regulatory limitation:
be treated as non-admitted assets for purposesasumng statutory surplus and risk-based capital, in some instances, require the sale of
those investments.

Regional concentrations of our business may subjeas to economic downturns in those regions.

Most of our revenues are generated in the stat€slifornia, Colorado, Connecticut, Georgia, Indiakentucky, Maine, Missouri,
Nevada, New Hampshire, New York, Ohio, Virginia aifésconsin. Due to this concentration of businesthése states, we are expose
potential losses resulting from the risk of an exuit downturn in these states. If economic condgim these states deteriorate, we may
experience a reduction in existing and new busjnekih could have a material adverse effect onbmsiness, financial condition and results
of operations.

Large-scale medical emergencies may have a mater&dverse effect on our business, financial conditioand results of operations.

Large-scale medical emergencies can take many fami€an cause widespread illness and death. Bor@g, federal and state law
enforcement officials have issued warnings abotegni@l terrorist activity
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involving biological and other weapons. In additioatural disasters such as hurricanes and thatgdtior a wide-spread pandemic of
influenza coupled with the lack of availability appropriate preventative medicines can have afgignt impact on the health of the popula

of wide-spread areas. If the United States weexfeerience widespread bioterrorist or other attalekge-scale natural disasters in our
concentrated coverage areas or a large-scale pandeepidemic, our covered medical expenses cosddand we could experience a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiod results of operations or, in the event ofeextr circumstances, our viability.

We have built a significant portion of our current business through mergers and acquisitions and we g&ct to pursue acquisitions
in the future.

The following are some of the risks associated &@quisitions that could have a material adveriebn our business, financial
condition and results of operations:

» some of the acquired businesses may not achieicpated revenues, earnings or cash fl
* we may assume liabilities that were not disclogedst or which were under-estimated;

* we may be unable to integrate acquired businessegssfully and realize anticipated economic, dfmaral and other benefits in
timely manner, which could result in substantiadtscand delays or other operational, technicalhantial problems

» acquisitions could disrupt our ongoing businesstract management, divert resources and makdfittudifto maintain our currer
business standards, controls and proced

* we may finance future acquisitions by issuing comratck for some or all of the purchase price, Witiculd dilute the ownership
interests of our shareholde

* we may also incur additional debt related to futacquisitions; an

* we would be competing with other firms, some ofethinay have greater financial and other resoutoes;quire attractive
companies

We have substantial indebtedness outstanding and méancur additional indebtedness in the future. As éolding company, we are
not able to repay our indebtedness except throughiddends from subsidiaries, some of which are resicted in their ability to pay such
dividends under applicable insurance law and undegkings. Such indebtedness could also adversely aff@ur ability to pursue
desirable business opportunities.

As of December 31, 2007, we had indebtedness adlisiz of approximately $9.0 billion and had avaléaborrowing capacity of
approximately $0.7 billion under our revolving citefdcility, which expires on September 30, 2011Lr@ebt service obligations require us to
use a portion of our cash flow to pay interest pridcipal on debt instead of for other corporateppses, including funding future expansior
our cash flow and capital resources are insuffidierservice our debt obligations, we may be foriweseek extraordinary dividends from our
subsidiaries, sell assets, seek additional equitebt capital or restructure our debt. Howevezséhmeasures might be unsuccessful or
inadequate in permitting us to meet scheduled skefvice obligations.

As a holding company, we have no operations andependent on dividends from our subsidiaries éshao fund our debt service and
other corporate needs. Our subsidiaries are sepagdl! entities. Furthermore, our subsidiariesnateobligated to make funds available to us,
and creditors of our subsidiaries will have a siggeaiaim to certain of our subsidiaries’ assetsit&insurance laws restrict the ability of our
regulated subsidiaries to pay dividends, and inesstates we have made special undertakings thatimiayhe ability of our regulated
subsidiaries to pay dividends. In addition, ourssdiaries’ ability to make any payments to us wio depend on their earnings, the terms of
their indebtedness, business and tax consideratinth®ther legal
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restrictions. We cannot assure you that our sudusédi will be able to pay dividends or otherwisatdbute or distribute funds to us in an
amount sufficient to pay the principal of or interen the indebtedness owed by us.

We may also incur future debt obligations that mgyibject us to restrictive covenants that couldcafour financial and operational
flexibility. Our breach or failure to comply witing of these covenants could result in a defaulenwdr credit agreements. If we default under
our credit agreements, the lenders could ceasake fiurther extensions of credit or cause all af@ustanding debt obligations under our
credit agreements to become immediately due analpaytogether with accrued and unpaid intereshdfindebtedness under our notes or our
credit agreements is accelerated, we may be utabdpay or finance the amounts due. Indebtedrmdd also limit our ability to pursue
desirable business opportunities, and may affecability to maintain an investment grade ratingdar indebtedness.

The value of our intangible assets may become impad.

Due largely to our past mergers and acquisitionedwill and other intangible assets represent ataabial portion of our assets.
Goodwill and other intangible assets were approtetye$22.7 billion as of December 31, 2007, repnéisg approximately 44% of our total
assets. If we make additional acquisitions itkelly that we will record additional intangible atssen our balance sheet.

In accordance with applicable accounting standavdsperiodically evaluate our goodwill and othdairgible assets to determine whe
all or a portion of their carrying values may nader be recoverable, in which case a charge toregrmay be necessary. This impairment
testing requires us to make assumptions and judignnegarding the estimated fair value of our godidwid intangibles (with indefinite lives).
Such assumptions include the discount factor uselgtermine the fair value of a reporting unit, ethis ultimately used to identify potential
goodwill impairment. Such estimated fair values Imigroduce significantly different results if othrelasonable assumptions and estimates
used.

Any future evaluations requiring an impairment af goodwill and other intangible assets could maligraffect our results of operatio
and shareholders’ equity in the period in whichithpairment occurs. A material decrease in shadshiel equity could, in turn, negatively
impact our debt ratings or potentially impact oampliance with existing debt covenants.

We face intense competition to attract and retainmployees.

We are dependent on retaining existing employedstracting and retaining additional qualified éoyges to meet current and future
needs and achieving productivity gains from ouestments in technology. We face intense competitoqualified employees, and there can
be no assurance that we will be able to attractratain such employees or that such competitionngnpotential employers will not result in
increasing salaries. An inability to retain exigtiemployees or attract additional employees coaicla material adverse effect on our busii
financial condition and results of operations.

An unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confideilal member information could have an adverse efféaon our business,
reputation and profitability.

As part of our normal operations, we collect, psscand retain sensitive and confidential memberinétion. We are subject to various
federal, state and international laws and ruleandigg the use and disclosure of sensitive or dentiial member information, including
HIPAA and the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. Despite thleegrity measures we have in place to ensure conggiith applicable laws and rules,
our facilities and systems, and those of our thady service providers, may be vulnerable to sgchreaches, acts of vandalism, computer
viruses, misplaced or lost data, programming anallonan errors or other similar events. Any secliBach involving the misappropriation,
loss or other unauthorized disclosure of sensiive
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confidential member information, whether by us poe of our vendors, could have a material adveffeet on our business, reputation and
results of operations.

The failure to effectively maintain and upgrade ourinformation systems could adversely affect our busess.

Our business depends significantly on effectiverimfation systems, and we have many different in&tiom systems for our various
businesses. As a result of our merger and acansittivities, we have acquired additional systegng. information systems require an
ongoing commitment of significant resources to rtaimand enhance existing systems and develop ystems in order to keep pace with
continuing changes in information processing tetdmg evolving industry and regulatory standaras] ahanging customer preferences. In
addition, we may from time to time obtain signifi¢gortions of our systems-related or other ses/@efacilities from independent third
parties, which may make our operations vulnerabkuth third parties’ failure to perform adequately

Our failure to maintain effective and efficientanfnation systems, or our failure to efficiently agféectively consolidate our information
systems to eliminate redundant or obsolete appitsitcould have a material adverse effect on asiness, financial condition and results of
operations. If the information we rely upon to ur business were found to be inaccurate or utneliar if we fail to maintain our informatic
systems and data integrity effectively, we couldena decrease in membership, have problems inmdigieg medical cost estimates and
establishing appropriate pricing and reserves, liisfutes with customers and providers, have régylgroblems, have increases in operating
expenses or suffer other adverse consequencesdditiva, as we convert or migrate members to ourenedficient and effective systems, the
risk of disruption in our customer service is ireed during the migration or conversion processsait disruption could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiod results of operations.

We are working towards becoming a premier e-busioeganization by modernizing interactions withtousers, brokers, agents,
providers, employees and other stakeholders thrawghenabling technology and redesigning interparations. We cannot assure you that
we will be able to fully realize our e-businessatis The failure to maintain successful e-busiregmbilities could result in competitive and
cost disadvantages to us as compared to our camgeti

We are dependent on the success of our relationshigth a large vendor for a significant portion of aur information system
resources and certain other vendors for various otbr services.

We have an agreement with International Businesshivies Corporation, or IBM, pursuant to which wesourced a significant portion
of our core applications development as well asraponent of our data center operations to IBM. \Wedependent upon IBM for these
support functions. If our relationship with IBM sggnificantly disrupted for any reason, we may loetable to find an alternative partner in a
timely manner or on acceptable financial termsaAesult, we may not be able to meet the demandsrafustomers and, in turn, our business,
financial condition and results of operations mayhlarmed. The contract with IBM includes severalise level agreements, or SLAS, related
to issues such as performance and job disruptitmsignificant financial penalties if these SLAg &ot met. We also outsource a component
of our data center to another vendor, which coskliene much of the IBM work and mitigate businessugiition should a termination with
IBM occur. We may not be adequately indemnifiediasteall possible losses through the terms anditiond of the agreement. In addition,
some of our termination rights are contingent upayment of a fee, which may be significant.

We have also entered into agreements with largdarsrpursuant to which we have outsourced certaintions such as data entry rel:
to claims and billing processes and call centeratmns for member and provider queries as wetleatain Medicare Part D sales. If these
vendor relationships were terminated for any reag@may not be able to find alternative partnera timely manner or on acceptable
financial terms. As a
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result, we may not be able to meet the full demaridsir customers and, in turn, our business, fitrcondition and results of operations n
be harmed.

Indiana law, and other applicable laws, and our aricles of incorporation and bylaws, may prevent or gscourage takeovers and
business combinations that our shareholders mightomsider in their best interest.

Indiana law and our articles of incorporation agthtvs may delay, defer, prevent or render moreatiff a takeover attempt that our
shareholders might consider in their best interégisinstance, they may prevent our shareholders feceiving the benefit from any premi
to the market price of our common stock offeredallyidder in a takeover context. Even in the absehegtakeover attempt, the existence of
these provisions may adversely affect the prevgifirarket price of our common stock if they are \eevas discouraging takeover attempts in
the future.

We are regulated as an insurance holding compashg@nject to the insurance holding company acteettates in which our insurance
company subsidiaries are domiciled, as well aslairprovisions included in the health statutes aagiilations of certain states where these
subsidiaries are regulated as managed care conpamniéMOs. The insurance holding company acts agdlations and these similar health
provisions restrict the ability of any person tdaib control of an insurance company or HMO withprior regulatory approval. Under those
statutes and regulations, without such approvah(oexemption), no person may acquire any voticgrity of a domestic insurance company
or HMO, or an insurance holding company which calstan insurance company or HMO, or merge with subblding company, if as a result
of such transaction such person would “control”itteirance holding company, insurance company oOHMontrol” is generally defined as
the direct or indirect power to direct or causedfrection of the management and policies of agreend is presumed to exist if a person
directly or indirectly owns or controls 10% or markthe voting securities of another person.

Further, the Indiana corporation law contains beséncombination provisions that, in general, prioffido five years any business
combination with a beneficial owner of 10% or mofeur common stock unless the holder’s acquisitibthe stock was approved in advance
by our Board of Directors. The Indiana corporatiaw also contains control share acquisition pravisithat limit the ability of certain
shareholders to vote their shares unless their@astiare acquisition is approved in advance.

Our articles of incorporation restrict the benefi@wnership of our capital stock in excess of #geownership limits. The ownership
limits restrict beneficial ownership of our votingpital stock to less than 10% for institutionaldstors and less than 5% for non-institutional
investors, both as defined in our articles of ipowation. Additionally, no person may beneficiadhyn shares of our common stock
representing a 20% or more ownership interest.ifThsse restrictions are intended to ensure ouptiante with the terms of our licenses v
the BCBSA. Our articles of incorporation prohibitmership of our capital stock beyond these ownerbimits without prior approval of a
majority of our continuing directors (as definedomr articles of incorporation). In addition, asaissed above in the risk factor describing our
license agreements with the BCBSA, such licenseeagents are subject to termination upon a changerafol and re-establishment fees
would be imposed upon termination of the licenseagents.

Certain other provisions included in our articlésncorporation and bylaws may also have anti-take@ffects and may delay, defer or
prevent a takeover attempt that our shareholdegbtreonsider in their best interests. In particuteur articles of incorporation and bylaws:
permit our Board of Directors to issue one or me@ges of preferred stock; divide our Board of Dices into three classes serving staggered
three-year terms (which is required by our liceagezement with the BCBSA); restrict the maximum banof directors; limit the ability of
shareholders to remove directors; impose restristam shareholders’ ability to fill vacancies om Board of Directors; prohibit shareholders
from calling special meetings of shareholders; isgpadvance notice requirements for shareholdeiopadp and nominations of directors to be
considered at meetings of
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shareholders; impose restrictions on shareholddisity to amend our articles of incorporation dnydaws; and prohibit shareholders from
amending our bylaws.

We also face other risks that could adversely affeour business, financial condition or results of perations, which include:
* any requirement to restate financial results inehent of inappropriate application of accountinigpgiples;

» asignificant failure of our internal control oviarancial reporting;

» failure of our prevention and control systems eab employee compliance with internal polices|uding data security

» provider fraud that is not prevented or detecteatliarpacts our medical costs or those of self-induestomers;

» failure to protect our proprietary information; &

» failure of our corporate governance policies orcprures.
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED SEC STAFF COMMENTS.
None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We have set forth below a summary of our princgdfite space (locations greater than 100,000 scfiesit.

Amount (Square Feet) of
Building Owned or Leased

Location and Occupied by WellPoint Principal Usage
220 Virginia Ave., Indianapolis, IN 557,000 Operations
21555 Oxnard St., Woodland Hills, CA 421,000 Operations
370 Basset Rd., North Haven, €T 418,000 Operations
11 Corporate Woods, Albany, NtY 375,000 Operations
1831 Chestnut St., St. Louis, v 312,000 Operations
DCS, 2015 Staples Mill Rd., Richmond, \ 295,000 Operations
700 Broadway, Denver, C 285,000 Operations
3350 Peachtree Rd., Atlanta, GA 272,000 Operations
9901 Linn Station Rd., Louisville, KY 255,000 Operations
DCN, 2015 Staples Mill Rd., Richmond, V 249,000 Operations
13550 Triton Office Park Blvd., Louisville, KY 234,000 Operations
4241 Irwin Simpson Rd., Mason, OH 224,000 Operations
15 MetroTech Center, Brooklyn, N¥Y 217,000 Operations
4361 Irwin Simpson Rd., Mason, C 213,000 Operations
2000 & 2100 Corporate Center Drive, Newbury Park,'C 211,000 Operations
2 Gannett Dr., South Portland, N 208,000 Operations
400 S. Salina St., Syracuse, NY 203,000 Operations
120 Monument Circle, Indianapolis, NN 202,000 Principal executive office
2221 Edward Holland Drive, Richmond, VA 193,000 Operations
8115-8125 Knue Road, Indianapolis, 1N 184,000 Operations
3000 Goff Falls Rd., Manchester, NH 180,000 Operations
6740 N. High St., Worthington, O 178,000 Operations
85 Crystal Run, Middletown, NY 173,000 Operations
1351 Wm. Howard Taft, Cincinnati, O 167,000 Operations
6737 West Washington St., West Allis, WI 159,000 Operations
5151-5155 Camino Ruiz, Camarillo, CA 149,000 Operations
2357 Warm Springs Rd., Columbus, ( 147,000 Operations
233 S. Wacker Drive, Chicago, IL 143,000 Operations
602 S. Jefferson St., Roanoke, 131,000 Operations
2825 West Perimeter Road, Indianapolis}IN 126,000 Operations
4553 La Tienda Drive, Thousand Oaks, €A 120,000 Operations
3 Huntington Quadrangle, Melville, NY 110,000 Operations

1 Leased property

Our facilities support our various business segmeéfe believe that our properties are adequatesaitable for our business as presently
conducted as well as for the foreseeable future.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.
Litigation

In July 2005, we entered into a settlement agreémigh representatives of more than 700,000 phgsginationwide to resolve certain
cases brought by physicians. The cases resolveslkmemwn as the CMA Litigation, the Shane Litigatittne Thomas LitigatioKenneth
Thomas, M.D., et al. vs. Blue Cross Blue Shield
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Association, et al.and certain other similar cases brought by phys&i&inal monetary payments were made in Octob@s.2Bollowing its
acquisition in 2005, WellChoice was merged with arid a wholly-owned subsidiary of WellPoint. Sinte WellChoice transaction closed on
December 28, 2005, after we reached settlementthétiplaintiffs, WellChoice continues to be a def@nt in the Thomas (how known as Lc
Litigation and is not affected by the prior settEmbetween us and plaintiffs. The Love Litigatadleges that the BCBSA and the Blue Cross
and Blue Shield plans violated the Racketeer Imiteel and Corrupt Organizations Act, or RICO. Onilad#, 2007, we, along with 22 other
Blue Cross and Blue Shield plans and the BCBSApaneced a settlement of the Love Litigation. The i€guanted preliminary approval on
May 31, 2007. A hearing was held on November 10,720 consider final approval. The settlement wilt have a material effect on our
consolidated financial position or results of opierss.

Prior to WHN'’s acquisition of the group benefit ogons, or GBO of John Hancock Mutual Life InswarCompany, or John Hancock,
John Hancock entered into a number of reinsurarre@gements, including with respect to personaidaet insurance and the occupational
accident component of workersdmpensation insurance, a portion of which wasimatgd through a pool managed by Unicover Manadpec:
Under these arrangements, John Hancock assumedhgskreinsurer and transferred certain of ss&s td other companies. Similar
reinsurance arrangements were entered into by Hdahnock following WHN'’s acquisition of the GBO aflin Hancock. These various
arrangements have become the subject of dispuatdading a number of legal proceedings to whichnJdancock is a party. We are currently
in arbitration with John Hancock regarding thesarmgements. The arbitration panel’s Phase | ridihdressed liability. On April 23, 2007, the
arbitration panel issued a Phase Il ruling statirigamount we owe to John Hancock for losses apdreses John Hancock paid through
June 30, 2006. The panel further outlined a proftesgetermining our liability for losses and expes paid after June 30, 2006, which liability
has not yet been determined. We filed a Petitio@dofirm and John Hancock filed an Application tacdte the arbitration rulings, which are
currently pending in federal court. We believe tiat liability that may result from this mattenislikely to have a material adverse effect on
our consolidated financial condition or resultoperations.

In various California state courts, we are defegdimumber of individual lawsuits and four purpdrttass actions alleging the wrongful
rescission of individual insurance policies. Thi#ssname WellPoint as well as Blue Cross of Cafifay or BCC, and BC Life & Health
Insurance Company, or BCL&H, both WellPoint subaittis. The lawsuits generally allege breach ofreattbad faith and unfair business
practices in a purported practice of rescinding imividual members following the submission ofgarclaims. The parties have agreed to
mediate most of these lawsuits and the mediatisrrésulted in the resolution of some of these léaskn addition, the California Department
of Managed Health Care and California Departmenhsfirance are conducting investigations of thegaltions. In February 2007, the
California Department of Managed Health Care isstgefinal report in which it indicated its inteati to impose a monetary penalty against
BCC of $1.0 million. In June 2007, the Californieartment of Insurance issued its final report imiclv it issued a number of citations
alleging violations of fair-claims handling laws.Hile the outcome is currently unknown, we belidvat any liability that may result from this
matter is unlikely to have a material adverse ¢féecour consolidated financial condition or reswif operations.

In various California state courts, several hospitave filed suits against BCC and WHN for paynardlaims denied where the
member was rescinded. These lawsuits are currienthediation or arbitration. In addition, a purpattclass action has been filed against BCC,
BCL&H and WHN in a California state court on behaflfhospitals. This suit also seeks to recovepyment of claims denied where the
member was rescinded. An amended complaint wasttgdded adding the California Medical Associatialong with the California Hospital
Association as new plaintiffs in the suit. We demy wrongdoing and intend to vigorously defend ¢heoceedings. While the outcome is
currently unknown, we believe that any liabilityatrmay result from this matter is unlikely to havenaterial adverse effect on our consolidated
financial condition or results of operations.
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Other Contingencies

From time to time, we and certain of our subsidisudre parties to various legal proceedings, mamhich involve claims for coverage
encountered in the ordinary course of business.IM&eHMOs and health insurers generally, excluegain health care services from cover
under our HMO, PPO and other plans. We are, imthaary course of business, subject to the claifur enrollees arising out of decisions
to restrict or deny reimbursement for uncoveredises. The loss of even one such claim, if it ressinl a significant punitive damage award,
could have a material adverse effect on us. Inteadithe risk of potential liability under punisvdamage theories may increase significantly
the difficulty of obtaining reasonable settlemenftgsoverage claims.

In addition to the lawsuits described above, weadse involved in other pending and threatenegddiion of the character incidental to
our business transacted, arising out of our operatand our 2001 demutualization, and are from tonteme involved as a party in various
governmental investigations, audits, reviews andiaitrative proceedings. These investigationsjtauhd reviews include routine and spe
investigations by state insurance departments atatrneys general and the U.S. Attorney Gen8talh investigations could result in the
imposition of civil or criminal fines, penalties duwother sanctions. We believe that any liabilitgttmay result from any one of these actions, or
in the aggregate, is unlikely to have a materiakaske effect on our consolidated financial positiomesults of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.
We did not submit any matters to a vote of secunitiers during the fourth quarter of 2007.
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Prices

Our common stock, par value $0.01 per share,tedlisn the NYSE under the symbol “WLP”. On Februb2y 2008, the closing price on
the NYSE was $75.88. As of February 12, 2008, there 124,373 shareholders of record of our comstock. The following table presents
high and low sales prices for our common stockhenNY SE for the periods indicated.

High Low

2007

First Quartel $84.1°¢ $73.8¢
Second Quarte 86.2¢ 77.9¢
Third Quartel 83.5¢ 72.9(
Fourth Quarte 89.9¢ 75.0¢
2006

First Quartel $80.3i $71.62
Second Quarte 77.7(C 65.5(
Third Quartel 79.9: 72.1%
Fourth Quarte 79.0% 70.1¢

Dividends

No cash dividends have been paid on our commok.side declaration and payment of future dividewikbe at the discretion of our
Board of Directors and must comply with applicalale. Future dividend
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payments will depend upon our financial conditimsults of operations, future liquidity needs, ptitd acquisitions, regulatory and capital
requirements and other factors deemed relevanubBoard of Directors. In addition, we are a hofdegompany whose primary assets are
100% of the capital stock or other equity instrutmerAnthem Insurance Companies, Inc., Anthem Seash Inc., Anthem Holding Corp.,
WellPoint Holding Corp., WellPoint Acquisition, LLGVellPoint Insurance Services, Inc., ATH Holdingn@pany, LLC and Arcus Financial
Holding Corp. Our ability to pay dividends to otmaseholders, if authorized by our Board of Direstas significantly dependent upon the
receipt of dividends from our insurance subsidgrighe payment of dividends by our insurance sidoséd without prior approval of the
insurance department of each subsidiary’s domigifarisdiction is limited by formula. Dividends excess of these amounts are subject to
prior approval by the respective insurance departse

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The information required by this Item concerningwsdies authorized for issuance under our equitpgensation plans is set forth in or
incorporated by reference into Part Ill Item 12kg§ Form 10-K.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table presents information relatedtw repurchases of common stock for the periodisdtied.

Total Number Approximate
Dollar Value
of Shares of Shares tha
Purchased as
Total Number Average lfuabrlti;; May Yet Be
of Shares Price Paid Announced Purchased
Under the
Period Purchased* per Share Programs? Programs
(In millions, except share and per share data)
October 1, 2007 to October 31, 2C 7,766,64: $ 78.8¢ 7,764,77! $ 15121
November 1, 2007 to November 30, 2( 8,121,47: 79.8¢ 8,120,14 863.¢
December 1, 2007 to December 31, 2 6,654,29! 85.8¢ 6,583,93. 4,298.
22,542,41 22,468,85

1 Total number of shares purchased includes 73,58@stdelivered to or withheld by us in connectidthwmployee payroll tax
withholding upon exercise or vesting of stock asa®tock grants to employees and directors andt &§eued for stock option plans and
stock purchase plans in the consolidated statenoéstzareholders’ equity are shown net of theseeshaurchased.

2 Represents the number of shares repurchased thoaughpurchase program authorized by our Boafdirgctors. During the year end
December 31, 2007, our Board of Directors authdrinereases of $9.5 billion in our stock repurchasegram, resulting in a total
amount available for repurchases in 2007 and tftereaf $10.4 billion, which includes $949.8 millimf authorization remaining unused
at December 31, 2006. During the year ended DeceB81h007, we repurchased approximately 76.9 onilhares at a cost of
$6.2 billion under the program. Therefore, remajranithorization under the program was $4.3 bilisrof December 31, 2007.

Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infaiamacompares the cumulative total return to shalagrs of our common stock for
the period from December 31, 2002 through Decer@bheR007, with the cumulative total return overtsperiod of (i) the Standard & Poor’s
500 Stock Index (the “S&P 500 Index”) (ii) the Mang Stanley Healthcare Payor Index (the “MS Heatd@&ayor Index”) and (iii) the
Standard & Poor’'s Managed Health Care Index (t/P'$Managed Health Care Index”). The graph assumeswestment of $100 on
December 31, 2002 in each of our common stockS&t 500 Index, the MS Healthcare Payor
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Index and the S&P Managed Health Care Index (aeddimvestment of all dividends). The performartv@ is not necessarily indicative of

future performance.

The comparisons shown in the graph below are baséistorical data and we caution that the stoaegrerformance shown in the
graph below is not indicative of, and is not inteddo forecast, the potential future performancewfcommon stock. Information used in the
graph was obtained from D.F. King & Co., Inc., arse believed to be reliable, but we are not resjba for any errors or omissions in such
information. The following graph and related infation shall not be deemed “soliciting materialst@be “filed” with the SEC, nor shall sut
information be incorporated by reference into auyife filing under the Securities Act of 1933 oe fixchange Act, except to the extent tha

specifically incorporate it by reference into stitihg.
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December 31,

2002
WelPaint, Inc. $ 10C
S&P 500 Inde) $ 10C
MS Healthcare Payor Indéx $ 10C
S&P Managed Health Care Index $ 10C

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
$11¢ $ 18z $ 254 $ 25C $ 27¢
$ 12¢ $ 145 $ 15C $ 17z $ 18¢
$ 144 $ 21¢ $ 311 $ 292 $ 33t
$ 141 $21€ $ 30¢ $ 28¢ $ 33¢

* Based upon an initial investment of $100 on Decer8tie 2002 with dividends reinvest
1 We have selected the S&P Managed Health Care ltdeeplace the MS Healthcare Payor Index becawsadty index is more readily
available. We have included both the new and adéxrin the chart above.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The table below provides selected consolidatedhfiz data of WellPoint. The information has beenived from our consolidated
financial statements for each of the years in ithee year period ended December 31, 2007. You shread this selected consolidated financial
data in conjunction with the audited consolidatedrcial statements and notes and Management'sif8gm and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations included is #orm 10-K.

As of and for the Years Ended December 3

20071 2006 20051 20041 2003

(In millions, except where indicated and except @rare data,
Income Statement Date
Total operating revente $60,122.( $56,160. $43,991.: $20,398.: $16,457.(
Total revenué 61,134.. 57,038. 44,614.: 20,752.! 16,751.
Net income 3,345. 3,094.¢ 2,463.¢ 960.1 774.%
Per Share Data
Basic net income per she $ 564 $ 4.9 $ 4.0: $ 3.1t $ 28C
Diluted net income per sha 5.5€ 4.82 3.94 3.0t 2,73
Other Data (unaudited)
Benefit expense rati&’ 82.2% 81.2% 80.1% 81.€% 80.£%
Selling, general and administrative expense ftio 14.5% 15.7% 16.5% 17.(% 18.8%
Income before income taxes as a percentage of

revenue 8.6% 8.€% 8.7% 7.0% 7.2%
Net income as a percentage of total reve 5.5% 5.4% 5.5% 4.6% 4.€%
Medical membershi(ln thousands 34,80¢ 34,10: 33,85¢ 27,72¢ 11,92%
Balance Sheet Dat:
Cash and investments $21,249.¢ $20,812.: $20,336.( $15,792.: $ 7,478.;
Total assetd 52,060.! 51,574.¢ 51,123.¢ 39,663.. 13,408.
Long-term deb# 9,023t 6,493.: 6,324.7 4,289.! 1,662.¢
Total liabilities® 29,069. 26,999.. 26,130.¢ 20,204.. 7,409.(
Total shareholde’ equity 22,990.- 24,575.¢ 24,993.: 19,459.( 5,999.¢

! The net assets for WellChoice, Inc. and the nettagd and results of operations for Imaging Managet Holdings, LLC; Lumenos, In
and WellPoint Health Networks Inc. are includedhirtheir respective acquisition dates of Decembe2R85 (effective December 31,
2005 for accounting purposes), August 1, 2007, 3ur2®05, and November 30, 2004.

2 Operating revenue is obtained by adding premiuchsjigistrative fees and other revenue.

8 Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedhform to the current year presentation.

4 The benefit expense ratio represents benefit exgsess a percentage of premium revenue. The sdflamgral and administrative expense
ratio represents selling, general and adminisgatixpenses as a percentage of total operatingueven

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

References to the terms “we”, “our”, or “us” usédaughout this Management’s Discussion and Analysisinancial Condition and
Results of Operations, or MD&A, refer to WellPoihic. (name changed from Anthem, Inc. effective &lmber 30, 2004), an Indiana
corporation, and unless the context otherwise requits direct and indirect subsidiaries.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifieadhform to current year presentation.

39



Table of Contents

The structure of our MD&A is as follows:
l. Executive Summar
II.  Overview
[ll.  Significant Transaction
IV. Membershi—December 31, 2007 Compared to December 31,
V. Cost of Care
VI. Results of Operatio—Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to the YededDecember 31, 20!
VII. Membershi—December 31, 2006 Compared to December 31,
VIIl. Results of Operatio—Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to the YededEDecember 31, 20!
IX. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimat
X.  Liquidity and Capital Resourct
Xl. Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Secultitiggmtion Reform Act of 199!
I. Executive Summary

We are the largest health benefits company in tefneemmercial membership in the United Statesisgr34.8 million medical
members as of December 31, 2007. We are an indepetlcensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield éission, or BCBSA, an association
independent health benefit plans. We serve our reesrds the Blue Cross licensee for California antha Blue Cross and Blue Shield, or
BCBS, licensee for: Colorado, Connecticut, Georgidiana, Kentucky, Maine, Missouri (excluding 38uaties in the Kansas City area),
Nevada, New Hampshire, New York (as BCBS in 10 Nask City metropolitan and surrounding countiesd as Blue Cross or BCBS
selected upstate counties only), Ohio, Virginiac{eding the Northern Virginia suburbs of WashingtbnC.), and Wisconsin. We also serve
customers throughout the country as UniCare. Wéiagrsed to conduct insurance operations in ata@es through our subsidiaries.

Operating revenue for the year ended December@®)/, @as $60.1 billion, an increase of $4.0 billiony7%, over the year ended
December 31, 2006. Operating revenue increasesianarily driven by premium rate increases in UdGeoup, growth in our State
Sponsored business primarily due to the additiciivefnew states between the third quarter of 288 the first quarter of 2007, growth of our
Medicare Advantage products and increased reimmesein the Federal Employee Program, or FEP.

Our fully-diluted earnings per share, or EPS, was& for the year ended December 31, 2007, whicludged $0.01 per share from net
realized investment gains, and was a 15% increasetioe EPS of $4.82 for the year ended Decembe2@®16, which included $0.04 per share
in tax benefits resulting from a change in stateagportionment factors. Net income for the yeateghDecember 31, 2007 was $3.3 billion, an
8% increase over the year ended December 31, 2006.

Operating cash flow for the year ended DecembeRBQa7 was $4.3 billion, or 1.3 times net incomeef@ing cash flow for the year
ended December 31, 2006 was $4.0 billion, or In@si net income. The increase in operating cashffion 2006 was driven primarily by
higher net income in 2007.

We have successfully executed our strategy to eletim our long-term goal of achieving at least 1gi%wth in EPS. We have
accomplished this by focusing on profitable enreliingrowth with innovative product
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offerings, pricing with discipline, implementingitiatives to optimize the cost of care, continutndeverage administrative costs over a larger
membership base, further penetrating our spedmitynesses and by using our cash flow effectivettuding share repurchases.

We intend to continue expanding through a combamadif organic growth, strategic acquisitions angiited transactions in both existing
and new markets. Our growth strategy is designeshable us to take advantage of the additionalaodes of scale provided by increased
overall membership as well as providing us acoesetv and evolving technologies and products. ditesh, we believe geographic diversity
reduces our exposure to local or regional regwatronomic and competitive pressures and prowvidesith increased opportunities for
growth. While we have achieved strong growth assalt of strategic mergers and acquisitions, westedso achieved organic growth in our
existing markets by providing excellent servicdenhg competitively priced products and effectivelpitalizing on the brand strength of the
Blue Cross and Blue Shield names and marks.

II.  Overview

We revised our reportable segments during thedusarter of 2007 consistent with changes made t@@anizational structure, which
reflected how the chief operating decision makedated the performance of the business beginmgingaly 1, 2007. Segment disclosures for
2006 and 2005 have been reclassified to confortihe@007 presentation.

Through December 31, 2007, we managed our opesatimaugh three reportable segments: Consumer amdr@rcial Business, or
CCB; Specialty, Senior and State Sponsored BusioegsSB; and Other.

Our CCB segment includes business units which sffailar products and services, including commémizounts and individual
programs. CCB offers a diversified mix of managaregroducts, including PPOs, HMOs, traditionakimaiity benefits and POS plans. CCB
also offers a variety of hybrid benefit plans irtihg CDHPs, hospital only and limited benefit protdu Additionally, CCB provides a broad
array of managed care services to self-funded mets, including claims processing, underwritingpdbss insurance, actuarial services,
provider network access, medical cost managemeho#ier administrative services.

Our 4SB segment is comprised of businesses prayitdalth and specialty products and services ssidhealicare Part D, Medicare
Advantage, Medicare Supplement, Medicaid, life dis@bility insurance benefits, pharmacy benefit aggment, or PBM, specialty pharmacy,
dental, vision, behavioral health benefit serviaed long-term care insurance. 4SB also providesar&trental and medical management
services to workers compensation carriers.

The Other segment includes results from our Fed&oakernment Solutions, or FGS, business and otlinbsses that do not meet the
guantitative thresholds for an operating segmeuefised in Statement of Financial Accounting Stadd No. 131Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related InformatmmFAS 131, as well as intersegment sales andresgeliminations and corporate expel
not allocated to the other reportable segments. Bi@®ess includes FEP and National Governmenti&aMnc. (which name changed from
AdminaStar Federal, Inc. effective November 17,800r NGS, which acts as a Medicare contractseiveral regions across the nation.

On October 2, 2007, we announced a new organizdtgtructure with new strategic business unitsoenfercial Business unit and a
Consumer Business unit that service different custaypes (seblembershign this MD&A for a definition of our customer typekscussed
below). The Commercial Business unit includes L&galup customers, National Accounts, UniCare anecfty business operations (dental,
vision, life and disability and workersbmpensation). The Consumer Business unit incl@gesor, State Sponsored and Individual busine
addition, a new Comprehensive Health Solutions iBss unit brings together our resources focusezptimizing the quality of health care ¢
the cost of care management. The ComprehensiveiHgalutions Business unit includes provider reladi care and disease management,
behavioral health,
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employee assistance programs and our PBM busiwesgs) includes NextRx, and our specialty pharm&ugcisionRx Specialty Solutions.
Our FGS business includes FEP and NGS, which ads\edicare contractor. This simplified, custorfoErdsed structure builds on the
strength of our commercial and consumer busineasekwill create additional opportunities for creedling medical and specialty products.
These changes also emphasize our comprehensiveaappo improving the quality, transparency and obsealth care for all of our
customers. Our chief operating decision maker agiess performance under this new structure eféegéinuary 1, 2008 and, accordingly, we
expect to revise our reportable segments in teédinarter of 2008. See Note 19 to our auditedaalteed financial statements as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2007 included in s FA.0-K.

Our operating revenue consists of premiums, adinitige fees and other revenue. Premium revenuessdrom fully-insured contracts
where we indemnify our policyholders against céstsovered health and life benefits. Administratiees come from contracts where our
customers are self-insured, or where the fee ishas either processing of transactions or a peafemetwork discount savings realized.
Additionally, we earn administrative fee revenuesyf our Medicare processing business and from dtéalth-related businesses including
disease management programs. Other revenue isgafigcgenerated from member co-payments and déadestassociated with the maitder
sale of drugs by our PBM companies.

Our benefit expense includes costs of care forthearvices consumed by our members, such as @rtpeare, inpatient hospital care,
professional services (primarily physician cared pharmacy benefit costs. All four components &fecged both by unit costs and utilization
rates. Unit costs include the cost of outpatiendice procedures per visit, inpatient hospital gaee admission, physician fees per office visit
and prescription drug prices. Utilization ratesressgnt the volume of consumption of health servagestypically vary with the age and health
status of our members and their social and lifestyloices, along with clinical protocols and mebractice patterns in each of our markets. A
portion of benefit expense recognized in each tampperiod consists of actuarial estimates ofnataincurred but not yet paid by us. Any
changes in these estimates are recorded in thedpde need for such an adjustment arises.

Our selling expense consists of external brokerrn@sion expenses, and generally varies with premialmme. Our general and
administrative expense consists of fixed and végiabsts. Examples of fixed costs are depreciatdomrtization and certain facilities expen
Other costs are variable or discretionary in natGertain variable costs, such as premium taxey,digectly with premium volume. Other
variable costs, such as salaries and benefitsptieany directly with changes in premium, but arerenaligned with changes in membership.
The acquisition or loss of a significant block afsiness would likely impact staffing levels, anddlassociate compensation expense. Exat
of discretionary costs include professional andsadiing expenses and advertising. Other factordropact our administrative cost structure,
including systems efficiencies, inflation and chasign productivity.

Our cost of drugs consists of the amounts we pgh&smaceutical companies for the drugs we selinad order through our PBM and
specialty pharmacy companies. This amount excltltesost of drugs related to affiliated health ocostrs recorded in benefit expense. Our
cost of drugs can be influenced by the volume egpriptions at our PBM companies, as well as dosihges, driven by prices set by
pharmaceutical companies and mix of drugs sold.

Our results of operations depend in large partwrability to accurately predict and effectively mage health care costs through effec
contracting with providers of care to our membard aur medical management programs. Several ecarfactors related to health care costs,
such as regulatory mandates of coverage, techmalogilvancements and the advancement in the delifenedical services, as well as direct-
to-consumer advertising by providers and pharmaca@lwtompanies, have a direct impact on the volofmeare consumed by our members.
The potential effect of escalating health carecastwell as any changes in our ability to negeti@mpetitive rates with our providers may
impose further risks to our ability to profitablpderwrite our business, and may have a materighd@tngn our results of operations.
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This MD&A should be read in conjunction with ourdited consolidated financial statements for the gealed December 31, 2007
included in this Form 10-K.

lll.  Significant Transactions
Stock Repurchase Program

We maintain a common stock repurchase programthsized by our Board of Directors. Repurchases bregnade from time to time
prevailing market prices, subject to certain restsns on volume, pricing and timing. The repurdsaare effected from time to time in the o
market, through negotiated transactions and thrqleyis designed to comply with Rule 10b&) under the Exchange Act, as amended. Di
the year ended December 31, 2007, our Board otire authorized increases of $9.5 billion in dock repurchase program, resulting in a
total amount available for repurchases in 2007theceafter of $10.4 billion, which included $0.98ibn of authorization remaining unused at
December 31, 2006. During the year ended Decenthe2(®)7, we repurchased and retired approxima&§ fmillion shares at an average
share price of $79.99, for an aggregate cost &f Blion. Therefore, as of December 31, 2007, $ll®n remained authorized for future
repurchases. Subsequent to December 31, 2007 pwechased and retired approximately 15.0 millioarsk for an aggregate cost of
approximately $1.2 billion, leaving approximately.$ billion for authorized future repurchases airiary 12, 2008. Our stock repurchase
program is discretionary as we are under no oliigab repurchase shares. We repurchase sharasseawva believe it is a prudent use of
surplus capital.

Acquisition of Imaging Management Holdings, L

On August 1, 2007, we completed our acquisitiomtdging Management Holdings, LLC, or IMH, whoseesblsiness is the holding
company parent of American Imaging Management, brcAIM. AIM is a leading radiology benefit managent and technology company ¢
provides services to us as well as other custonaisnwide, including nine other Blue Cross andeB&hield licensees. The acquisition
supports our strategy to become the leader inddfe quality care by incorporating AIM’s serviawd technology for more effective and
efficient use of radiology services by our memb@&te purchase price for the acquisition was appnaiely $300.0 million in cash.

Acquisition of WellChoice, In

On December 28, 2005 (December 31, 2005 for acowupurposes), WellPoint completed its acquisittdiWellChoice. The acquisition
of WellChoice strengthened our leadership in priogjchealth benefits to National Accounts and predidis with a strategic presence in New
York City, the headquarters of more Fortune 500 mamnies than any other U.S. city. Under the ternti®imerger agreement, the stockholders
of WellChoice (other than subsidiaries of WellPpiriceived consideration of $38.25 in cash and9lL5if a share of WellPoint common stock
for each share of WellChoice common stock outstamdin addition, WellChoice stock options and otheards were converted to WellPoint
awards in accordance with the merger agreementptitehase price including cash, fair value of stacll stock awards and estimated
transaction costs was approximately $6.5 billion.

Multi-District Litigation Settlement Agreement

On July 11, 2005, we announced that an agreementeaghed with representatives of more than 70Q8§8icians nationwide involve
in two multi-district class-action lawsuits againstand other health benefits companies. As paheoMulti-District Litigation Settlement
Agreement, or the MDL Agreement, we agreed to 858 million to physicians and to contribute $illion to a not-for-profit foundation
whose mission is to promote higher quality headtte@nd to enhance the delivery of care to theld@#aged and underserved. In addition
paid $61.3 million in legal fees, including intet;ezn October 6, 2006. As a result of the MDL
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Agreement, we incurred a pre-tax expense of $1@8I®n during the year ended December 31, 2005010 EPS, which represented the
final settlement amount of the MDL Agreement thasvwot previously accrued. Appeals of the settleénmétially filed by certain physicians
were resolved and final cash payments under theeagent totaling $209.5 million, including accruaterest, were made on October 5 and 6,
2006.

Acquisition of Lumenos, In

On June 9, 2005, we completed our acquisition afiknos, Inc., or Lumenos, for approximately $185illian in cash paid to the
stockholders of Lumenos. Lumenos is recognizedm@sreeer and market leader in consumer-driven hgatigrams.

Two-For-One Stock Split

On April 25, 2005, WellPoint’s Board of Directorpoved a two-for-one split of shares of commomistavhich was effected in the
form of a 100 percent common stock dividend. Akigholders of record on May 13, 2005 received aluitianal share of WellPoint common
stock for each share of common stock held on thtg. d he additional shares of common stock wetteildised to shareholders of record in the
form of a stock dividend on May 31, 2005. All histal weighted average share and per share amaudtall references to stock compensa
data and market prices of our common stock fop@tiods presented in this MD&A have been adjustetfiect this two-for-one stock split.

Merger with WellPoint Health Networks Ir

On November 30, 2004, Anthem, Inc. and WellPoinaltleNetworks Inc., or WHN, completed their mergene merger with WHN
helped us to create the nation’s leading healtlefitsrcompany and the largest holder of Blue Ceos¥or Blue Shield licenses in the country.
Additionally, our merger with WHN increased our ggace in several new strategic markets, most noGélifornia. Under the terms of the
merger agreement, the stockholders of WHN (othemn Subsidiaries of WHN) received consideration28.80 in cash and one share of
Anthem, Inc. common stock for each WHN share ontlitay. In addition, WHN stock options and other edgavere converted to WellPoint,
Inc. awards in accordance with the merger agreeriéet purchase price including cash, fair valusto€k and stock awards and estimated
transaction costs was approximately $15.8 billlnthem, Inc., the surviving corporate parent, wersamed WellPoint, Inc. concurrent with
the merger.

IV.  Membership—December 31, 2007 Compared to Dember 31, 2006

Our customer type definitions were revised in ih&t fjluarter of 2007 to be consistent with how waniaged our business effective
January 1, 2007. Prior periods have been recleddifi conform to the 2007 presentation. As of Ddimm31, 2007, our medical membership
includes seven different customer types: Local Grondividual, National Accounts, BlueCard, Seni8tate Sponsored and FEP.

» Local Group consists of those employer custometis less than 1,000 employees eligible to partieijzet a member in one of ¢
health plans. In addition, Local Group includestoners with 1,000 or more eligible employees wétss| than 5% of eligible
employees located outside of the headgL’s state

* Individual consists of individual customers undge &5 and their covered depende

» National Accounts customers are generally r-state employer groups primarily headquartered\viedlPoint service area with
1,000 or more eligible employees, with at leastd%ligible employees located outside of the headgu's state. Some exceptions
are allowed based on broker relationships. Sewiea is defined as the geographic area in whichrerdicensed to sell BCBS
products

» BlueCard host members represent enrollees of BloesGand/or Blue Shield plans not owned by WellPwimo receive health ca
services in our BCBSA licensed markets. BlueCardchivershig
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consists of estimated host members using the ratigineCard program. Host members are generally lneesnwho reside in ¢

travel to a state in which a WellPoint subsidiaryhe Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield licensee andlavh covered under an employer-
sponsored health plan issued by a non-WellPointrotbed BCBSA licensee (i.e., the “home” plan). \Merform certain

administrative functions for BlueCard members,vitnich we receive administrative fees from the BlaeCmembers’ home plans.
Other administrative functions, including maintecaif enrollment information and customer servére, performed by the home
plan. Host members are computed using, among titheys, the average number of BlueCard claims veckper month

» Senior members are Medic-eligible individual members age 65 and over whoehanrolled in Medicare Advantage, a mana
care alternative for the Medicare program, or wheehpurchased Medicare Supplement benefit cove

» State Sponsored membership represents eligible ersmbth State Sponsored managed care alternatiedicaid and State
Childrer’s Health Insurance progran

» FEP members consist of United States governmentogegs and their dependents within our geograplaidkets through ot
participation in the national contract betweenBI@BSA and the U.S. Office of Personnel Managen

In addition to reporting our medical membershipchgtomer type, we report by funding arrangementralicg to the level of risk that v
assume in the product contract. Our two fundingrazement categories are fully-insured and selfédnéullyinsured products are product:
which we indemnify our policyholders against cdstshealth benefits. Self-funded products are effieto customers, generally larger
employers, who elect to retain most or all of timaficial risk associated with their employees’ tteahre costs. Some self-funded customers
choose to purchase stop-loss coverage to limit te&ined risk.
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The following table presents our medical membergligustomer type, funding arrangement and replersdgment as of December 31,
2007 and 2006. Also included below are key mefrims our Specialty business, including prescriptimiume for our PBM companies and
membership by product. The membership data predéntenaudited and in certain instances includémates of the number of members
represented by each contract at the end of thegeri

December 31

2007 2006 Change % Change
(In thousands)
Medical Membership
Customer Type
Local Group 16,66: 16,76¢ (103) ()%
Individual 2,39( 2,48¢ (989) 4
National Accounts 6,38¢ 6,13¢ 258 4
BlueCard 4,56: 4,27¢ 284 7
Total National 10,95 10,41 537 5
Senior 1,25( 1,19¢ 57 5
State Sponsore 2,17¢ 1,88: 292 16
FEP 1,38( 1,35 23 2
Total medical membership by customer t 34,80¢ 34,10 70€ 2
Funding Arrangement
Self-Funded 17,73: 16,74¢ 992 6
Fully-Insured 17,07 17,35¢ (284) 2
Total medical membership by funding arrangen 34,80¢ 34,10 70€ 2
Reportable Segmen
Commercial and Consumer Busini 30,00¢ 29,66¢ 33€ 1
Specialty, Senior and State Sponsc 3,42¢ 3,07t 34¢ 11
Other 1,38( 1,35 23 2
Total medical membership by reportable segn 34,80¢ 34,10 70€ 2
Specialty Metrics
PBM prescription volumé 391,48( 392,66¢( (1,18¢) —
Behavioral health membersk 20,23( 16,93: 3,29: 19
Life and disability membershi 5,59¢ 5,97(C (372 (6)
Dental membershi 5,014 5,27( (25€) 5)
Vision membershij 2,401 1,53¢ 86& 56
Medicare Part D membership 1,61¢ 1,56¢ 46 3

1 Effective January 1, 2007, we revised our definitid a National Account to include multi-state eoygrs primarily headquartered in our
service area with 1,000 or more eligible employeésyhich at least 5% or more are located in aiserarea outside of the headquarter
state. Previously a National Account was defined auulti-state employer with 5,000 or more eligibleployees.

2 Represents prescription volume for the years efds@mber 31, 2007 and 2006.

3 Membership includes auto-assigned, stand-alonejddiexl Advantage, group waiver and external PBM mamnkvith the prescription
drug plans. Certain of our Medicare Part D memhbegsalso Senior medical members.
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During the twelve months ended December 31, 2@l tmedical membership increased approximatelyOiB or 2%, primarily due to
increases in National, including BlueCard, andé&gponsored business partially offset by declindsocal Group and Individual membership.

Self-funded medical membership increased 992,006%@ primarily due to an increase in self-fundeatibhal Accounts membership
resulting from additional sales and in-group gravglueCard growth and the conversion of 144,000 bemsifrom the Connecticut Medicaid
managed care program from fully-insured to selfdiesh during the fourth quarter of 2007.

Fully-insured membership decreased 284,000, om2¥arily due to Local Group decreases, includingwersions to self-funded
arrangements and in-group changes, as well asodihe tonversion of the Connecticut Medicaid madagee program from fully-insured to
selffunded. These decreases were partially offset tneéses in State Sponsored business, whose gragthdniven by the addition of two ni
states during 2007 and growth in existing markets.

Local Group membership decreased 103,000, or 1¥hapty driven by lapses and unfavorable in-grobjarege in our non-BCBSA
branded business.

Individual membership decreased 98,000, or 4% tdukecreases in certain BCBSA-branded regions #dsaé UniCare due to
competitive pricing pressures and competitive brakenpensation programs in certain regions.

National Accounts membership increased 253,008%arprimarily driven by in-group growth and addit& sales as employers are
increasingly attracted to the benefits of our didive value proposition, which includes extensanel cost-effective provider networks,
wellness and care management programs and a bmdadreovative product portfolio.

BlueCard membership increased 284,000, or 7%, septing increased sales and corresponding claimeiaffiliated BCBSA
licensees’ accounts with members who reside imawet to our licensed area.

Senior membership increased 57,000, or 5%, driyegraowth in Medicare Advantage membership, pastiaffset by a slight decline in
Medicare Supplement membership.

State Sponsored membership increased 292,000%yrdrémarily due to the addition of 172,000 new nbems in two new states during
2007, as well as growth in existing programs.

Our specialty metrics are derived from membershig activity from our specialty products. These pradd are often ancillary to our
health business, and can therefore be impacteddwtly in our medical membership. Prescription vaduimour PBM companies decreased
slightly by 1,188,000, primarily due to lower noafPD utilization in our retail and mailrder PBM, partially offset by higher Part D utdtion

Behavioral health membership increased 3,293,0009%, primarily due to the conversion of 2,882,008mbers from a third-party
vendor in April 2007 and growth in membership do@éw sales of our behavioral health products.

Life and disability membership decreased 372,0069%6, primarily due to a general decrease in hifgrahd accidental death and
disability membership, as well as membership chage large automotive customer.

Dental membership decreased 256,000, or 5%, ptiyrdaure to the loss of the dental component withie of our State Sponsored plans
and lapses due to a very competitive environment.
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Vision membership increased 865,000, or 56%, piilgneue to the conversion of members over thetlastve months from a competing
plan in Virginia to our Blue View Vision product agll as general growth of this new product.

Medicare Part D membership increased 46,000, orp8#barily due to growth in the Medicare Part D bincomponent of our Medicare
Advantage products.

V. Cost of Care

The following discussion summarizes our aggregast of care trends for the rolling 12 months enBedember 31, 2007 for our Local
Group and Individual fully-insured businesses only.

Our cost of care trends are calculated by compdhagear-over-year change in average per membengeth claim costs for which we
are responsible, which excludes member co-paynsentsieductibles. While our cost of care trend &aig geographic location, based on
medical cost trends during the twelve months erglecember 31, 2007, our aggregate 2007 cost ofteard was less than 8%.

Overall, our medical cost trend continues to beetriby unit costs. Inpatient hospital trend ishe midsingle digit range and is related
increases in cost per admission. Cost per admissibigher, due in part to the greater intensitynpftient services as less intensive services
are performed outpatient. Other drivers includeotiated rate increases with hospitals. Howeverhaxge noticed a slowing of the cost per
admission trend in the latter part of 2007 dueubore-contracting and clinical management effddtdlization (admissions per 1,000 members)
has been flat, while average length of hospitgl ated hospital days per 1,000 members have botteased slightly. Cost trend increases for
outpatient services are in the upper-single dagige. Outpatient costs are a collection of diffetgpes of expenses, such as outpatient
facilities, labs, x-rays, emergency room, and oetiopal and physical therapy. The increases areguily driven by higher per visit costs as
more procedures are being performed during eadhteisutpatient providers, particularly emergemogm visits, as well as the impact of price
increases included within certain provider consag¥e are continuing to develop plan designs toerage appropriate utilization of outpati
services and we are seeing the positive impactioérpanding radiology management programs on oygatient trends. These programs are
designed to ensure appropriate use of radiologyicgar by our members. On August 1, 2007, we coragletir acquisition of
AIM. Incorporating their technology will allow us &achieve even greater efficiencies in this higimdrarea while ensuring that consumers
receive the quality tests they need. Physicianisesirend is in the midingle digit range and is about 65% cost driven 36%b utilization. Fe
schedule changes are one of the drivers of theaddr We are collaborating with physicians to imprquality of care through pay-for-
performance programs.

Pharmacy trend is in the upper-single digit ranggkia 60% unit cost (cost per prescription) relaad 40% utilization (prescriptions per
member per year) driven. The increased use of aiedrugs and higher mail order volume by our memalwere primary drivers of the higher
unit cost trend. Specialty drugs, also known asgsiv drugs, are generally higher cost and are heitiged more frequently. In October 2007,
we announced the opening of our new PrecisionRxi8ipe Solutions pharmacy in Indianapolis, Indiandjch manages over 1,000 different
drugs for 14 diseases including hemophilia, mutigtlerosis, rheumatoid arthritis, psoriasis, Heép& and cancer. We have built a
technologically advanced specialty pharmacy staffigl certified pharmacy technicians, registeredsea and clinical pharmacists to better
manage both the quality and cost of care for ounbes. Higher mail order volume contributes to kigtost per prescription as mail order
prescriptions are filled for a 90 day supply veralB0 day supply for retail pharmacy prescriptidiitese increases in unit costs were offset by
increases in our generic usage rates, lower utdzaesulting from higher mail order volume, behpfan design changes, and improved
pharmaceutical contracting. Higher mail order voducontributes to a lower number of prescriptionsras mail order prescription is filled fo
90 day supply versus three 30 day retail presonigti
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In response to cost trends, we continue to pursn&acting and plan design changes, promote anttimgnt performance-based
contracts that reward clinical outcomes and quadityd expand our radiology management, diseasegearent and advanced care
management programs. We continue to ex&68® Health the industry’s first program to integrate alleananagement programs and tools
into a centralized, consumer-friendly resource #saists patients in navigating the health caresysusing their health benefits and accessing
the most comprehensive and appropriate care alailebaddition, we are expanding our specialtyrptecy programs and continuously
evaluate our drug formulary to ensure the mostéffe pharmaceutical therapies are available fomoembers.

VI. Results of Operations—Year Ended December 32007 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Our consolidated results of operations for the yeaded December 31, 2007 and 2006 are discusseegl fiollowing section.

Year Ended December 3:

2007 2006 $ Change % Change

(In millions, except per share data)
Premiums $55,865.( $51,971.¢ $3,893.: 7%
Administrative fee: 3,674.¢ 3,595.¢ 79.2 2
Other revenut 582.2 593.] (10.7) )

Total operating revent 60,122.( 56,160.: 3,961.¢ 7
Net investment incom 1,001.: 878.1 122.¢ 14
Net realized gains (losses) on investme 11.2 (0.9 11.E NM1

Total revenue 61,134.. 57,038. 4,095.! 7
Benefit expens 46,036.: 42,191. 3,844.° 9
Selling, general and administrative exper

Selling expens 1,716.¢ 1,654.! 62.2 4

General and administrative expel 6,984. 7,163.. (178.5 2
Total selling, general and administrative expe 8,701.t 8,817." (116.2) (@)
Cost of drugs 400.z 414.¢ (14.2) 3
Interest expens 447 ¢ 403.t 44.4 11
Amortization of other intangible asst 290.7 297.¢ (6.7) 2

Total expense 55,876. 52,124.. 3,752.( 7
Income before income tax exper 5,257.¢ 4,914.. 343.t 7
Income tax expens 1,912.f 1,819.! 93.( 5
Net income $ 3,345.¢ $ 3,094.¢ $ 250.t 8
Average diluted shares outstand 602.( 642.1 (40.7) (6)%
Diluted net income per sha $ 5.5€ $ 482 $ 0.74 15%
Benefit expense ratid 82.4% 81.2% 12Cbp?3
Selling, general and administrative expense ratio 14.5% 15.7% (12C)bp 3
Income before income taxes as a percentage ofrestahue 8.6% 8.6% Obp 3
Net income as a percentage of total reve 5.504 5.4% 10bp3

Certain of the following definitions are also apgplble to all other results of operations tablethis discussion:

NM = Not meaningfu

Benefit expense ratio = Benefit expense + Premiums.

bp = basis point; one hundred basis points = 1%.

Selling, general and administrative expense raflmtal selling, general and administrative expen3etal operating revenue.

A W N P
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Premiums increased $3.9 billion, or 7%, to $55[Roi in 2007, driven by premium rate increasetacal Group, growth in our State
Sponsored business primarily due to the additiciivefnew states between the third quarter of 28@d the first quarter of 2007, growth in
Medicare Advantage business and increased reimbersdan FEP.

Administrative fees increased $79.2 million, or 2%$3.7 billion in 2007, primarily due to self-fdad membership growth in National,
including BlueCard, and Local Group. Self-fundedmbership growth was driven by successful effortattract large selfunded accounts ar
was attributable to our network breadth, discousgsyice and increased focus on health improverushivellness, as well as the success ¢
BlueCard program.

Other revenue is comprised principally of co-payteemd deductibles associated with the sale of-ardér prescription drugs by our
PBM companies, which provide services to membersuofCCB and 4SB segments and third party cligdtler revenue decreased $10.7
million, or 2%, to $582.4 million in 2007, primayitlue to decreased prescription volume from tharypcustomers in our mail-order PBM
business, partially offset by continued growthpeaalty pharmacy prescription volume.

Net investment income increased $122.4 milliorl4%6, to $1.0 billion in 2007 primarily resultingofn higher yields and growth in
invested assets driven by reinvestments of casérgd from operations. This growth was partiaffget by the use of cash for repurchases of
our common stock.

A summary of our net realized gains (losses) oestments for the years ended December 31, 2002G04lis as follows:

Years Ended
December 31
2007 2006 $ Change
(In millions)
Net realized gains (losses) from the sale of fixedurity securitie: $ 11t $(47.9) $ 59.4
Net realized gains from the sale of equity seas 254.2 98.t 155.7
Otherthar-temporary impairmen—credit relatec (113.9 (32.5) (80.9
Othel-thar-temporary impairmen—interest rate relate (146.9) (23.7) (122.6)
Other realized gain 5.2 5.3 (0.1
Net realized gains (losse $ 11z $ (0.3 $ 11F

Net realized gains on investments in 2007 were grilsndriven by sales of equity securities at anggiartially offset by other-than-
temporary impairments of fixed maturity securitikkge to rising interest rates and impairments oftg@ecurities. Se€ritical Accounting
Policies and Estimatein this MD&A for a discussion of our investment imipment review process.

Net realized losses on investments in 2006 relatigdarily to the sale of fixed maturity securitiasa loss and other-than-temporary
impairments, partially offset by the sale of equEgcurities at a gain.

Benefit expense increased $3.8 billion, or 9%,46.8 billion in 2007, primarily due to higher castthe 4SB segment and medical cost
trend in the CCB segment. Benefit expense for 88 degment increased primarily due to growth ineSgponsored business with the addi
of five new states between the third quarter of&280d the first quarter of 2007, as well as growtbur Medicare Advantage business. Benefit
expense in the CCB segment increased primarilytaueedical cost trend in Local Group business. lyasbntinued increased trend in FEP
business resulted in higher benefit expense, faclhmive are reimbursed for the cost plus a fee.
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Our benefit expense ratio increased 120 basis ptrd2.4% in 2007, primarily related to the mebtimssiness of the 4SB segment ant
a lesser extent, the CCB segment, including a kasimix shift resulting from a decline in Indivilmeembership. The increase in 4SB’s
benefit expense ratio resulted from higher tren8tate Sponsored business and Medicare Advantagebdnefit expense ratio of State
Sponsored business was unfavorably impacted bghehbenefit expense ratio in the Ohio Covered kasn& Children’s Medicaid program
and the Connecticut Medicaid program in 2007 corgbdo the prior year. In January 2008, we notiftesistate of Ohio that we will terminate
participation in the Ohio Medicaid program by Ma&h 2008 as we were unable to reach an agreemsattice these members in a
financially responsible manner. In addition, then@ecticut Medicaid program was fully-insured throidovember 30, 2007 and converted to
self-funded business effective December 1, 200@.cthrent self-funded arrangement with the ConnetMedicaid program will expire on
March 31, 2008 and we are in negotiations withstiaée on extending the contract.

Selling, general and administrative expense deete$i$16.2 million, or 1%, to $8.7 billion, primaritiue to lower salary and benefit
costs including performance-based incentive congténg partially offset by higher costs associatgtth growth of our business. Our selling,
general and administrative expense ratio decreba@dbasis points to 14.5%. This decrease in olingefeneral and administrative expense
ratio was primarily due to growth in operating reme and further leveraging of general and admatist costs over a larger membership b

Cost of drugs decreased $14.2 million, or 3%, @052 million in 2007. This decrease was primarilyilautable to decreased PBM mail-
order prescription volume from our third party amers and higher utilization of generic prescriptivugs, partially offset by higher specialty
pharmacy prescription volume.

Interest expense increased $44.4 million, or 118447.9 million in 2007, primarily due to the iasie of approximately $2.0 billion of
long-term debt in 2007.

Amortization of other intangible assets decreased #illion, or 2%, to $290.7 million in 2007, prarily due to certain intangibles
amortizing on an accelerated amortization scheowée their estimated life, which resulted in gre&epense in earlier periods.

Income tax expense increased $93.0 million, ort&?$1.9 billion in 2007. The effective tax rate lileed 60 basis points to 36.4% in
2007. The 2006 effective tax rate of 37.0% includedduction of 60 basis points due to a $28.0anillax benefit that was recognized in 2006
resulting from lower effective state tax ratesatfdition, the 2007 effective tax rate was favorabipacted by various tax settlements.

Our net income as a percentage of total revenuesveds in 2007 compared to 5.4% in 2006, which oeflé combination of all of the
factors discussed above.

Reportable Segmen

We use operating gain to evaluate the performahoerareportable segments. Effective January 17286ugh December 31, 2007, and
in accordance with FAS 131, our reportable segmeate CCB, 4SB and Other. Operating gain is catedlas total operating revenue less
benefit expense, selling, general and adminiseaixpense and cost of drugs. It does not inclutlemmestment income, net realized gains
(losses) on investments, interest expense, amtiotizaf other intangible assets or income taxeshase items are managed in a corporate
shared service environment and are not the redpbtysof operating segment management. For additianformation, see Note 19 to our
audited consolidated financial statements includetis Form 10K. The discussions of segment results for the yeaded December 31, 20
and 2006 presented below are based on operatingagdescribed above, and operating margin, whichlculated as operating gain divided
by operating revenue. Our definitions of operatjiagn and operating margin may not be comparabsntdarly titled measures reported by
other companies. Our reportable segments’ restitiperations for 2006 have been reclassified tdaromto the 2007 presentation.
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CCB
Our CCB segment’s summarized results of operafionthe year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006sdi@laws:

Year Ended
December 31
2007 2006 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $42,122.( $40,602. $1,519. 4%
Operating gait $ 3,999. $ 3,679.! $ 320.C 9%
Operating margi 9.5% 9.1% 4C0bp

Operating revenue increased $1.5 billion, or 49%%48.1 billion in 2007, primarily due to premiunmteancreases across all lines of
business, partially offset by membership declimelsdcal Group and a shift in the mix of businessrfrfully-insured to self-funded.

Operating gain increased $320.2 million, or 9%$4 billion in 2007 driven by disciplined pricirag operating revenue growth outpa
increased benefit expense, primarily in Local Grdamddition, selling, general and administratéx@ense decreased in 2007 driven by lower
performance-based incentive compensation.

The operating margin in 2007 was 9.5%, a 40 basit increase primarily due to the factors discdisethe preceding two paragraphs.
4SB

Our 4SB segment’s summarized results of operafmmthe year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006sdi@aws:

Year Ended
December 31
2007 2006 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $13,715. $11,553.: $2,162.: 19%
Operating gair $ 9720 $ 1,117.( $ (144.9) (13)%
Operating margil 7.1% 9.7% (26Q)bp

Operating revenue increased $2.2 billion, or 199413.7 billion in 2007, primarily due to growth 8tate Sponsored business including
the addition of five new states between the thirdrter of 2006 and the first quarter of 2007, gfoimtMedicare Advantage and growth in
Medicare Part D.

Operating gain decreased $144.7 million, or 13%9%062.3 million in 2007, primarily due to deteritiom in the performance of the State
Sponsored business and lower profitability in MadéicSupplement, partially offset by growth in oBMPbusiness. The deterioration in the
performance of State Sponsored business was doiwenr Medicaid contracts in Connecticut and Obh®gdiscussed above. The decline in
profitability of our Medicare Supplement productasaprimarily due to the aging of our member popaihain that business.

The operating margin in 2007 was 7.1%, a 260 l@sigt decrease primarily due to the factors dised$s the preceding two paragraphs
coupled with a continuing shift in business mix,iethincludes growth in lower-margin State Sponsdresiness.
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Other

Our summarized results of operations for our Oiegment for the year ended December 31, 2007 20tl&@ as follows:

Year Ended
December 31
2007 2006 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenue from external custon $5,985.: $5,441.¢ 543.¢ 10%
Elimination of intersegment reven (1,700.6 (1,437.) (263.5) (18)%
Total operating revent $ 4,284.¢ $4,004. $ 279.¢ 7%
Operating gain (loss $ 122 $ (59.6) $ 71.€ NM

Operating revenue from external customers incre5d8.4 million, or 10%, to $6.0 billion in 2007;mparily due to higher premiums in
FEP business. The elimination of intersegment regéncreased $263.5 million, or 18%, in 2007, pritjaeflecting additional sales of
pharmacy products by our 4SB segment’'s PBM companieur CCB segment.

Operating gain was $12.2 million in 2007, an inseeaf $71.8 million over the operating loss of $@illion in 2006. This increase was
primarily driven by the non-recurrence of retentimnuses associated with the merger of the fornrméiheim, Inc. and the former WellPoint
Health Networks Inc. along with improved operatgain of our FEP business.
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VIl.  Membership—December 31, 2006 Compared to @ember 31, 2005

The following table presents our medical member$lyipustomer type, funding arrangement and replersggment as of December 31,
2006 and 2005. Also included below are key mefrims our Specialty business, including prescriptimiume for our PBM companies and
membership by product. The membership data predéntenaudited and in certain instances includémates of the number of members
represented by each contract at the end of thegeri

December 31
2006? 20051 Change % Change
(In thousands)
Medical Membership
Customer Type
Local Group 16,76¢ 17,27 (508) 3%
Individual 2,48¢ 2,52¢ (38 2
National Account: 6,13¢ 5,63 504 9
BlueCard 4,27¢ 3,91t 364 9
Total National 10,41 9,547 86¢ 9
Senior 1,19: 1,17¢ 19 2
State Sponsore 1,88 1,99( (20¢) 5)
FEP 1,35i 1,34¢ 12 1
Total medical membership by customer t 34,10 33,85¢ 24k 1
Funding Arrangemerit
Self-Fundec 16,74¢ 16,58¢ 161 1
Fully-Insured 17,35¢ 17,27: 84 —
Total medical membership by funding arrangen 34,10: 33,85¢ 24E 1
Reportable Segme
Commercial and Consumer Busin 29,66¢ 29,347 322 1
Specialty, Senior and State Sponsc 3,07t 3,16¢ (89) 3
Other 1,35i 1,34¢ 12 1
Total medical membership by reportable segn 34,10 33,85¢ 24E 1
Specialty Metrics
PBM prescription volumé 392,66¢( 344,62. 48,047 14
Behavioral health membersk 16,937 15,66¢ 1,26¢ 8
Life and disability membershi 5,97( 5,82¢ 144 2
Dental membershi 5,27( 5,19¢ 75 1
Vision membershi 1,53¢ 81€ 72C 88
Medicare Part D membership 1,56¢ — 1,56¢ NA

1 Medical membership data for 2006 and 2005 has teEdassified to conform to the 2007 presentatiam. @classifications for minimum
premium amendments to fully-insured contracts teduh an increase in self-funded membership acati@sponding decrease in fully-
insured membership in the 2005 information, withimpact on total medical membership. Effective dapu., 2007, we revised our
definition of a National Account to include multiase employers primarily headquartered in our serarea with 1,000 or more eligible
employees, of which at least 5% or more are locetedservice area outside of the headquarter. state

2 Represents prescription volume for the years emsdmber 31, 2006 and 2005.

8 Effective January 1, 2006, we began marketing Madi®art D to eligible Medicare beneficiaries b8l states. Membership includes
auto-assigned, staralene, Medicare Advantage, group waiver and exté?B& members with the prescription drug plans.t&@erof oul
Medicare Part D members are also Senior medicalbraesn
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During the twelve months ended December 31, 2@28l tmedical membership increased approximatelyh or 1%, primarily due to
increases in our National Accounts and BlueCartigibr offset by the loss of 315,000 Local Groupmigers in the state of Georgia, as well as
approximately 95,000 members of another Local Glagount, which was previously disclosed. AlsdDacember 2006, our ownership of a
joint venture in Puerto Rico changed from a 50 getownership of a Medicaid managed care subsidieaysmaller percentage in the jc
venture’s parent company. Accordingly, we no lorigelude the 222,000 members related to this imaest in our reported enrollment.

Local Group membership decreased 508,000, or 3thapity due to the loss of the state of Georgia R®6tract and the other Local
Group account previously disclosed, partially dftsg new sales.

National Accounts membership increased 504,000%rprimarily due to success in attracting new @uetrs as they recognize the va
of the BCBS networks and discounts.

BlueCard membership increased 364,000, or 9%, duhia twelve months ended December 31, 2006, direteased sales by other
BCBSA licensees to accounts with members who renside travel to our licensed areas.

State Sponsored membership decreased 108,000,, gariaarily due to the membership accounting chaetpted to our Puerto Rico
joint venture investment discussed above. Part@flsetting this 222,000 member decrease, we a88&00 new members from t
acquisition of QualChoice Select, Inc. and won temsiness in five states in 2006 due to our comprahie array of health management
services we make available to the nation’s Medicagipients.

Self-funded medical membership increased 161,000%g primarily due to increases in our Nationakéunts and BlueCard businesses
and shifts in the mix of business from fully-insdite self-funded, partially offset by the loss lo¢ tstate of Georgia PPO contract and the other
Local Group contract noted above, as well as thgaohof the Puerto Rico joint venture membershigpanting change. Fully-insured
membership increased by 84,000 members, primauiytd the August 1, 2006 acquisition of QualCh@&egect, Inc.

Our specialty metrics are derived from membershig activity from our specialty products. These prid are often ancillary to our
health business, and can therefore be impacteddwtly in our medical membership.

Prescription volume in our PBM companies incredsed8,047,000, or 14%, during the year ended Deeerdb, 2006, primarily due to
growth in both our retail and mail order operatidnisen by the addition of Medicare Part D.

Behavioral health membership increased 1,268,008%q during the year ended December 31, 2006,grifyndue to a 568,000
membership gain from the acquisition of Behavistahlth Network in New Hampshire in October 2006wadl as 347,000 new members fr
sales of our behavioral health products.

Vision membership increased 720,000, or 88%, dukadntroduction of our Blue View Vision producatchthe associated conversion of
432,000 members of a competing plan in Virginighie new product, as well as new sales in seveaakets.
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VIIl. Results of Operations—Year Ended DecembeB1, 2006 Compared to the Year Ended December 31,05

Our consolidated results of operations for the yesmded December 31, 2006 and 2005 are discusseel fiollowing section.

(In millions, except per share data)
Premiums

Administrative fee:

Other revenus

Total operating revent
Net investment incom

Net realized losses on investme

Total revenues

Benefit expens

Selling, general and administrative exper
Selling expens
General and administrative expel

Total selling, general and administrative
expense
Cost of drugs

Interest expense

Amortization of other intangible
asset:

Total expenses
Income before income tax exper
Income tax expense
Net income
Average diluted shares outstanding
Diluted net income per share
Benefit expense ratib

Selling, general and administrative expens

ratio

Income before income taxes as a percer
of total revenut

Net income as a percentage of total reve

Year Ended
December 31

2006 2005 % Change
$51,971.¢ $40,680.( 28%
3,595.¢ 2,792.( 29
593.1 519.2 14
56,160.: 43,991. 28
878.1 633.1 39
(0.9 (10.2) (97)
57,038.¢ 44,614 28
42,191.: 32,598.¢ 29
1,654.% 1,474.; 12
7,163.: 5,798.! 24
8,817." 7,272 21
414.¢ 387.z 7
403.t 226.2 78
297.4 238.¢ 24
52,124.. 40,723. 28
4,914.. 3,890.: 26
1,819.! 1,426.! 28
$ 3,094.¢ $ 2,463.¢ 26
642.1 625.¢ 3
$ 482 $ 3.94 22
81.2% 80.1% 11Cbp*®
15.7% 16.5% (80)bp*S
8.6% 8.7% (10)bps
5.4% 5.5% (10)bp*

Comparable

Basis12
Year Ended
December 31

2005 $ Change % Change
$ 46,531.. $5,440.¢ 12%
3,397.¢ 197.¢ 6
518.2 74.C 14
50,447.. 5,713.: 11
718. NM?3 NM3
(5.4) NMS3 NM3
51,160.. NM3 NM3
37,649.¢ 4,541 .¢ 12
1,549.¢ 104.¢ 7
6,770.( 393.2 6
8,319.¢ 498.1 6
387.2 NM?3 NM:3
226.2 NM3 NM3
238.¢ NM?3 NM:3
46,821.! NM3 NM3
4,338.¢ NM3 NM3
1,604.¢ NM3 NM3
$ 2,734.( $ NM3 NM3
NM3 NM? NM3
NIYE NM?3 NM?
80.5% 30bp*s
16.5% (80)bps
NM3 NM3
NM3 NM3

Certain of the following definitions are also applble to all other results of operations tablethis discussion:

1 See below for discussion of “comparable basis”rimiation.

2 For certain line items impacted by our acquisitidWellChoice, comparable basis is not meaningiid tb related capitalization and

purchase accounting.
3 NM = Not meaningful
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4 Benefit expense ratio = Benefit expense + Premiums.
5 bp = basis point; one hundred basis points = 1%.
6 Selling, general and administrative expense raflmtal selling, general and administrative expen3etal operating revenue.

We discuss our 2006 and 2005 operations using “eoatgte basis” information, which is presented twvie a more meaningful prior-
year comparison to the current year, due to ouebéer 28, 2005 acquisition of WellChoice. Comparddasis information is not calculatec
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accoumptimgiples, or GAAP, and is not intended to représe be indicative of the results of
WellPoint had the acquisition been completed akofiary 1, 2005. Comparable basis informationHeryear ended December 31, 2005 was
calculated by adding the reclassified historicateshents of income for WellPoint and WellChoice aradudes no intercompany eliminations

or pro forma adjustments.

Year Ended December 31, 2005

WellPoint, Inc.

WellChoice, Inc.

Reclassification:

Reclassification:

WellPoint, Inc.

As As Comparable
Reported 1 Reclassifiec Reported ! Reclassifiec Basis
(In millions)
Premiums $41,216. $ (536.7)  $40,680.( $5,862. $ (11.9 $5,851. $ 46,531.:
Administrative fee: 2,729.¢ 62.1 2,792.( 561.t 44.: 605.¢ 3,397.¢
Other revenue (expen: 566.5 (47.9) 519.2 (1.0 — (1.0 518.2
Total operating
revenue 44,513.: (521.9 43,991.. 6,422.¢ 33.C 6,455.¢ 50,447.:
Net investment incom 633.1 — 633.1 85.€ — 85.€ 718.%
Net realized (losse:
gains on investmen (10.2) — (10.2) 4.8 — 4.8 (5.4
Total revenue 45,136.! (521.9 44,614.: 6,513.: 33.C 6,546.: 51,160.
Benefit expens 33,219.¢ (621.7) 32,598.¢ 5,078.¢ (27.6) 5,050.¢ 37,649.¢
Selling, general and
administrative
expense
Selling expens 1,474.. — 1,474.. — 75.4 75.4 1,549.¢
General ant
administrative
expense 5,798.! — 5,798.! 986.: (14.9) 971.t 6,770.(
Total selling, general
and administrative
expense 7,272." — 7,272 986.: 60.€ 1,046.¢ 8,319.¢
Cost of drug 288.( 99.2 387.2 — — — 387.2
Interest expens 226.2 — 226.2 — — — 226.2
Amortization of other
intangible assel 238.¢ — 238.¢ — — — 238.¢
Total expense 41,245, (521.9 40,723. 6,064." 33.C 6,097." 46,821.!
Income before income
tax expensi 3,890.: — 3,890.! 448.¢ — 448.¢ 4,338.¢
Income tax expens 1,426.! — 1,426. 178. — 178. 1,604.¢
Net income $ 2,463.¢ $ = $ 2,463.¢ $ 270.2 $ = $ 270.C $ 2,734.(
Benefit expense ratid 80.6% 80.1% 86.6% 86.2% 80.%
Selling, general and
administrative
expense rati® 16.5% 16.5% 15.2% 16.2% 16.5%

! To reflect the reclassification of certain histatiamounts to a consistent presentation format.

2 Benefit expense ratio = Benefit expense + Premiums.

8 Selling, general and administrative expense raflmtal selling, general and administrative expen3etal operating revenue.
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The following table shows 2005 comparable basisntaple segment information, including reclasstiimas to the 2007 presentation:

Year Ended December 31, 2005

WellPoint, Inc. WellChoice, Inc. WellPoint, Inc.
Comparable
Reclassified! Reclassified! Basis
(In millions)
Operating Revenue
CCB $ 32,182 $ 5,164.( $ 37,346
4SB 8,427.¢ 949.( 9,376.¢
Other 3,380.¢ 342.¢ 3,723.¢
Total operating revent $ 43,991.. $ 6,455.¢ $ 50,447.:
Operating Gain (Loss)
CCB $ 2,892° $ 289.€ $ 3,182.:
4SB 932.7 80.¢€ 1,013.:
Other (92.9 (22.0 (104.9

1 Reflects the reclassification of certain historigalounts to a consistent presentation format, diegucurrent segment reporting.

Premiums increased $11.3 billion, or 28%, to $4#llon in 2006. On a comparable basis, premiuntseased $5.4 billion, or 12%,
primarily due to premium rate increases acrossustomer types, the addition of the New York spagscription drug contract and new
enroliment in our Medicare Part D products.

Administrative fees increased $803.4 million, 08230 $3.6 billion in 2006. On a comparable basninistrative fees increased $197.6
million, or 6%, primarily due to self-funded memsbkip growth in National Accounts, including Blue@aand rate increases in Local Group
and National Accounts. Self-funded membership gnomeas driven by successful efforts to attract lavgle-funded accounts and was
attributable to our network breadth, discountsyiserand increased focus on health improvemenweaeithess, as well as the popularity of the
BlueCard program.

Other revenue principally includes amounts fromlroader prescription drug sales by our PBM compsnighich provide services to
members of our CCB and 4SB segments and third phetyts. Other revenue increased $73.9 milliorl 4%, to $593.1 million in 2006. On a
comparable basis, other revenue increased $74i®mibr 14%, primarily due to revenue generatedytwth in mail-order prescription
volume from sales to our CCB and 4SB segmentstardiparties. Increased mail-order prescriptioruvo resulted from additional utilization
of our PBM companies’ mail-order pharmacy optiothwthe introduction of Medicare Part D.

Net investment income increased $245.6 millior3@%6, to $878.7 million in 2006 primarily resultifigm invested assets acquired with
the acquisition of WellChoice, growth in investexbets from reinvestment of cash generated fromatipas and higher interest rates. This
growth was partially offset by the use of cashripurchases of our common stock.

58



Table of Contents

A summary of our net realized losses on investmiemtthe years ended December 31, 2006 and 2085 fisllows:

Years Ended
December 31
2006 2005 $ Change
(In millions)
Net realized losses from the sale of fixed matwségurities $(47.9) $(25.9) $ (22.€)
Net realized gains from the sale of equity se@s 98.t 22.C 76.5
Othel-thar-temporary impairmen—credit relatec (32.5) (14.¢) 17.7)
Otherthar-temporary impairmen—interest rate relate (23.9) — (23.9)
Other realized gain 5.3 7. (2.6)
Net realized losse $ (0.3 $(10.2) $ 9¢

Net realized losses in 2006 primarily related toepithan-temporary impairments of investments aedsale of fixed maturity securities
at a loss due to the restructuring of the combjatfolio after our acquisition of WellChoice attlend of 2005. Other-than-temporary
impairments—credit related were primarily due te kangth of time that equity securities’ fair valwas below their cost basis. Other-than-
temporary impairments—interest related were prilpahie to the prevailing interest rate environmamd our intent to hold fixed maturity
securities until their anticipated recovery. $z#ical Accounting Policies and Estimatisthis MD&A for a discussion of our investment
impairment review process. These losses were pridiffiset by realized gains on the sale of eqgsiegurities during 2006.

Net realized losses in 2005 primarily related tbrealized losses on sales of fixed maturity séiesrdue to the restructuring of the
combined portfolio after our merger with WHN at #wd of 2004 and credit-related other-than-temgarapairments of equity and fixed
maturity securities. These realized losses werggligroffset by net realized gains on sales ofiggsecurities and other invested assets.

Benefit expense increased $9.6 billion, or 29%&%48.2 billion in 2006. On a comparable basis, bieegpense increased $4.5 billion, or
12%, primarily due to increased cost of care, whiets driven by higher costs in outpatient and iigpatservices, the addition of the New Y
State prescription drug contract and benefit expdéasour Medicare Part D products.

On a comparable basis, our benefit expense ratie@ased 30 basis points to 81.2% in 2006. Thieaser was primarily related to a
change in business mix, primarily driven by theiadd of the New York State prescription drug caat, growth in FEP and State Sponsored
business, as well as the introduction of Medica B. All of these products have a higher bereeffiense ratio than the WellPoint average.
These increases were partially offset by disciglipacing and the non-recurrence of $35.0 millidlenefit expense recorded in the second
quarter of 2005 related to the mutiistrict litigation settlement agreement, or MDL régment, discussed in Significant Transactionsiwithis
MD&A.

Selling, general and administrative expense ine&4.5 billion, or 21%, to $8.8 billion in 2006n@ comparable basis, selling, general
and administrative expense increased $498.1 mjlbos%. The increase in selling, general and athtnative expense was primarily due to
increases in volume-sensitive costs such as corunggremium taxes and other expenses associdgtednrowth in our business, as well as
additional share-based compensation expense regfitim our January 1, 2006 adoption of StateméRirancial Accounting Standards
No. 123 (revised 2004Share-Based Paymeit, FAS 123R. See Note 12 to our audited consolibifit@ncial statements as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2007 included in this Form 10-K.

On a comparable basis, our selling, general andrastmative expense ratio decreased 80 basis pturit5.7% in 2006, primarily due to
growth in premium income, continued expense cornal further leveraging of general and administeatiosts over a larger membership b
In addition, the 2005 selling, general and admiatste expense ratio was negatively impacted by®6G8llion, or 10 basis points, related to
MDL Agreement.
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Cost of drugs increased $27.2 million, or 7%, t@4:4 million in 2006. This increase was primarityributable to increased mail-order
prescription volume by our PBM companies, partialtiset by higher utilization of generic prescrigstidrugs.

Interest expense increased $177.3 million, or 78%403.5 million in 2006, primarily due to addit@ interest expense on the debt
incurred in conjunction with the acquisition of Wethoice.

Amortization of other intangible assets increasg8.% million, or 24%, to $297.4 million in 2006,imarily due to additional amortizati
expense related to identifiable intangible asséts finite lives resulting from the acquisition @fellChoice.

Income tax expense increased $393.0 million, or,28%1.8 billion in 2006, consistent with the iease in pre-tax income. The effective
tax rate in 2006 and 2005 was 37.0% and 36.7%eotisply. The increase in the effective tax rat@®96 was primarily related to increases in
state taxes due to the addition of operations w Merk following the acquisition of WellChoice.

Reportable Segmer

The discussions of segment results for the yeatedeBecember 31, 2006 and 2005 presented belokaaesl on operating gain and
operating margin, which are calculated as previod&cussed. Our definitions of operating gain apdrating margin may not be comparable
to similarly titled measures reported by other canmips. Our reportable segments’ results of operatior 2006 and 2005 have been
reclassified to conform to the 2007 presentation.

CCB

Our CCB segment’s summarized results of operafionthe year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005sdi@laws:

Comparable
Year Ended Basis
December 31 Year Ended
December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2005 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $40,602.¢ $32,182." 26% $ 37,346. $3,255.¢ 9%
Operating gait $ 3,679.! $ 2,892.° 27% $ 3,182. $ 497.C 16%
Operating margi 9.1% 9.C% 10by 8.5% 60br.

Operating revenue increased $8.4 billion, or 269440.6 billion in 2006. On a comparable basisrafeg revenue increased $3.3
billion, or 9%, primarily due to premium rate inases across all customer types and the addititmedflew York state prescription drug
contract.

Operating gain increased $786.8 million, or 27%$3c7 billion in 2006. On a comparable basis, ofiegagain increased $497.2 million,
or 16%, primarily due to disciplined pricing acradklines of business and continued expense cht® non-recurrence of $97.9 million in
benefit and general and administrative expenseadeddn 2005 related to the MDL Agreement, as welthe addition of the New York state
prescription drug contract. These increases wettiaha offset by the impact of increased sharedabsompensation expense following the
adoption of FAS 123R in 2006.

The operating margin increased by 10 basis pointa ©.0% in 2005 to 9.1% in 2006. On a comparabkd) operating margin increased
60 basis points in 2006. The 2006 operating margiluded the impact of increased share-based cosagien following the adoption of FAS
123R, as well as the impact of a business mix,shiftuding the addition of lower margin governmadriiusiness. The 2005 operating margin
included the impact of the MDL Agreement.
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4SB
Our 4SB segment’s summarized results of operafamthe year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005sdieE|aws:

Comparable

Year Ended Basis

December 31 Year Ended
December 31

2006 2005 % Change 2005 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $11,553.: $8,427.¢ 37% $ 9,376.¢ $2,176.t 23%
Operating gait $ 1,117.( $ 932.% 20% $ 1,013. $ 103.% 1C%
Operating margi 9.7% 11.1% (24C)bp 10.8% (11C)bp

Operating revenue increased $3.1 billion, or 3741t1.6 billion in 2006. On a comparable basisraieg revenue increased $2.2
billion, or 23%, primarily from increased premiugvenue due to the introduction of Medicare ParhD iacreased prescription volume by our
PBM companies including specialty pharmacy, paytialfset by the sale of our workers compensatiosifiess in Wisconsin in 2005.

Operating gain increased $184.3 million, or 20%%1dl billion in 2006. On a comparable basis, ofiegagain increased $103.7 million,
or 10%, primarily due to the introduction of Mediedart D, increased prescription volume by our R&lvhpanies and a change in estimate in
noncurrent reserves for future policy benefitsdaiing the change of experience factors for waifggremium reserves based on a 2006 group
term life mortality study. These increases werdiglly offset by the sale of our workers compermatusiness in Wisconsin in 2005.

Operating margin decreased 140 basis points frad?4.1n 2005 to 9.7% in 2006. On a comparable bagisrating margin decreased
basis points in 2006, primarily due to the facttiscussed in the preceding paragraphs.

Other

Our summarized results of operations for our Otfeggment for the year ended December 31, 2006 0&l&@ as follows:

Comparable
Year Ended Basis
December 31 Year Ended
December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2005 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu
from external
customers $5,441.¢ $ 4,554.° 19% $ 4,897.¢ $544.2 11%
Elimination of
intersegment
revenue (1,437.) (1,173.9 22% (1,173.9 (263.9) 22%
Total operating
revenue $4,004.° $ 3,380.¢ 18% $ 3,723.¢ $ 280.¢ 8%
Operating los: $ (59.9 $ (92.9 (B6)% $ (1049 $ 45: (43)%

Operating revenue from external customers incre$i88d.1 million, or 19%, to $5,441.8 million in 2B00n a comparable basis,
operating revenue from external customers incre®5éd.2 million, or 11%, primarily due to higheeptiums in FEP business. On both a
reported and comparable basis, the eliminatiomtefsegment revenue increased $263.3 million, &,28 2006, reflecting additional sales of
pharmacy products by our 4SB segment’'s PBM compganieur CCB segment.
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Operating loss decreased $33.3 million, or 36%45@.6 million in 2006. On a comparable basis, ojpegdoss decreased $45.3 million,
or 43%, primarily due to lower expenses relaterbtention bonuses and other compensation costsiasbwith the merger between the
former Anthem, Inc. and the former WellPoint Heatbtworks Inc.

IX. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statementsirformity with U.S. generally accepted accounfnigiciples, or GAAP. Application
of GAAP requires management to make estimates ssuhaptions that affect the amounts reported irconsolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes and within this MD&A. We consiseme of our most important accounting policiest tequire estimates and
management judgment to be those policies with gpdiabilities for medical claims payable, incetaxes, goodwill and other intangible
assets, investments and retirement benefits, wariehliscussed below. Our significant accountindgcfas are summarized in Note 2 to our
audited consolidated financial statements as offanthe year ended December 31, 2007 includedignRorm 10-K.

We continually evaluate the accounting policies astimates used to prepare the consolidated fiabstgitements. In general, our
estimates are based on historical experience, atatuof current trends, information from third gaprofessionals and various other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable whdémown facts and circumstances.

Medical Claims Payabli

The most judgmental accounting estimate in our alihested financial statements is our liability foedical claims payable. At
December 31, 2007, this liability was $5.8 billiand represented 20% of our total consolidatedliiegds. We record this liability and the
corresponding benefit expense for incurred butpaid claims including the estimated costs of prsicessuch claims. Incurred but not paid
claims include (1) an estimate for claims thatiaceirred but not reported, as well as claims regabtd us but not yet processed through our
systems, which approximated 98%, or $5.7 billidmur total medical claims liability as of Deceml8dr, 2007; and (2) claims reported to us
and processed through our systems but not yet waidh approximated 2%, or $106.2 million, of tleéai medical claims liability as of
December 31, 2007. The level of claims payablegssed through our systems but not yet paid mayuthte from one period end to the next,
from 1% to 5% of our total medical claims liabilitgue to timing of when claim payments are made.

Liabilities for both claims incurred but not repedtand reported but not yet processed throughysterss are determined in aggregate,
employing actuarial methods that are commonly Uselealth insurance actuaries and meet Actuaraidétrds of Practice. Actuarial
Standards of Practice require that the claim ligddl be adequate under moderately adverse cireunvss. We determine the amount of the
liability for incurred but not paid claims by folldng a detailed actuarial process that entailsgubth historical claim payment patterns as
as emerging medical cost trends to project our ésghate of claim liabilities. Under this procesistorical data of paid claims is formatted
into “claim triangles,” which compare claim incudrdates to the dates of claim payments. This intion is analyzed to create “completion
factors” that represent the average percentagatalfincurred claims that have been paid througtvan date after being incurred. Completion
factors are applied to claims paid through therfoial statement date to estimate the ultimate ckipense incurred for the current period.
Actuarial estimates of incurred but not paid cléimbilities are then determined by subtractingdletual paid claims from the estimate of the
ultimate incurred claims.

For the most recent incurred months (generallyntbst recent two months), the percentage of claians for claims incurred in those
months is generally low. This makes the completamtor methodology less reliable for such monthseréfore, incurred claims for recent
months are not projected from historical completiod payment patterns; rather they are projectezsbgnating the claims expense for those
months based on recent claims expense levels aiith lvare trend levels, or “trend factors”.

62



Table of Contents

Because the reserve methodology is based upomib@étmformation, it must be adjusted for knownsmspected operational and
environmental changes. These adjustments are nyaolér lactuaries based on their knowledge and #stimate of emerging impacts to ben
costs and payment speed. Circumstances to be eoadith developing our best estimate of reserveade changes in utilization levels, unit
costs, mix of business, benefit plan designs, plevieimbursement levels, processing system coioverand changes, claim inventory levels,
claim processing patterns, claim submission pattand operational changes resulting from businesgbmations. A comparison of prior
period liabilities to re-estimated claim liabiliidbased on subsequent claims development is afsidesed in making the liability
determination. In our comparison of prior year, thethods and assumptions are not changed as resgeveecalculated; rather the availability
of additional paid claims information drives ouraciges in the re-estimate of the unpaid claim lighiTo the extent appropriate, changes in
such development are recorded as a change to tpesad benefit expense.

In addition to incurred but not paid claims, thability for medical claims payable includes ressrf@ premium deficiencies, if
appropriate. Premium deficiencies are recognizegnwhis probable that expected claims and admatise expenses will exceed future
premiums on existing medical insurance contractsawit consideration of investment income. Deteritidmaof premium deficiencies for
longer duration life and disability contracts indés consideration of investment income. For purpo$@remium deficiencies, contracts are
grouped in a manner consistent with our methodqtiming, servicing and measuring the profitabitifysuch contracts.

We regularly review and set assumptions regardis) trends and utilization when initially estabirgnclaim liabilities. We continually
monitor and adjust the claims liability and benefipense based on subsequent paid claims activittys determined that our assumptions
regarding cost trends and utilization are signiftbadifferent than actual results, our incomeesta¢nt and financial position could be impacted
in future periods. Adjustments of prior year estiesamay result in additional benefit expense @duction of benefit expense in the period an
adjustment is made. Further, due to the considenaoiability of health care costs, adjustmentslaim liabilities occur each quarter and are
sometimes significant as compared to the net incaoerded in that quarter. Prior period developnentcognized immediately upon the
actuary’s judgment that a portion of the prior pdriiability is no longer needed or that an additibliability should have been accrued. That
determination is made when sufficient informatisravailable to ascertain that the re-estimate efigtbility is reasonable.

While there are many factors that are used astaptre estimation of our medical claims payakd®ility, the two key assumptions
having the most significant impact on our incurbed not paid liability as of December 31, 2007 wire completion and trend factors. As
discussed above, these two key assumptions carflbericed by other operational variables includiggtem changes, provider submission
patterns and business combinations.

There is variation in the reasonable choice of detigm factors by duration for durations of threemnths through 12 months where the
completion factors have the most significant impast previously discussed, completion factors teenlde less reliable for the most recent
months and therefore are not specifically utilif@dmonths one and two. At December 31, 2007, #r@bility in months three to five was
estimated to be between 50 and 120 basis pointke wilonths six through twelve have much lower Maitiey ranging from 20 to 40 basis
points.

Over the period from December 31, 2006 to DecerBheP007, completion factors have decreased. Witisideration of claim paymet
through December 31, 2007, the completion facteezluo determine the incurred but not paid claihility estimate for the December 31,
2006 valuation period have developed slightly lothen those used at December 31, 2006. This resul@pproximately $17.6 million of
deficiency in the December 31, 2006 estimate aitladed in the statement of income for the yeateel December 31, 2007. The decrease in
completion factors has been taken into consideratioen determining the completion factors usedstatdishing the December 31, 2007
incurred but not paid claim liability by choosinactors that reflect

63



Table of Contents

the more recent experience. The difference in cetigal factor assumptions, assuming moderately advexperience, results in variability of
4%, or approximately $217.0 million, in the DecemB&, 2007 incurred but not paid claim liabilityggknding on the completion factors
chosen. It is important to note that the complefamtor methodology inherently assumes that histbgompletion rates will be reflective of 1
current period. However, it is possible that thiiakccompletion rates for the current period wéldlop differently from historical patterns and
therefore could fall outside the possible variagidescribed herein.

Over the period from December 31, 2005 to DecerBligP006, completion factors increased. With caarsition of claim payments
through December 31, 2006, the completion facteezluo determine the incurred but not paid claihility estimate for the December 31,
2005 valuation period have developed higher thasghused at December 31, 2005, primarily becauseeedved claims information from our
providers more timely as a result of increasedtede@ submissions. In addition, we paid claims enquickly once they were received. This
resulted in approximately $113.6 million of redundgin the December 31, 2005 estimate and is irelud the statement of income for the
year ended December 31, 20

Over the period from December 31, 2004 to DecerBtheP005, completion factors increased. With caersition of claims payment
through December 31, 2005, the completion facteezliuo determine the incurred but not paid claihility estimate for the December 31,
2004 valuation period have developed higher thasghused at December 31, 2004, primarily becausseveeceiving claims information frc
our providers more timely as a result of increasledtronic submissions. This resulted in approxétya$194.3 million of redundancy in the
December 31, 2004 estimate and included in therstat of income for the year ended December 315.200

The other major assumption used in the establishofehe December 31, 2007 incurred but not paadhcliability was the trend factors
used in determining the claims expense per mendrempnth for the most recent two incurral monthisD&cember 31, 2007, there was a 690
basis point differential in the high and low trefladtors assuming moderately adverse experiencs.rahge of trend factors would imply
variability of 9%, or approximately $539.0 milliom the incurred but not paid claims liability, éeyling upon the trend factor used. Because
historical trend factors are often not represewntadif current claim trends, the trend experiencédtfe most recent six to nine months, plus
knowledge of recent events likely affecting curreahds, have been taken into consideration irbéskéng the incurred but not paid claim
liability at December 31, 2007. As we look at theas-over-year claim trend for the prior period (Wmber and December 2006) compared to
the current period (November and December 200@)trénd used in our reserve models has decreasegbudr, claim trends observed as of
December 31, 2006 based upon subsequent claimtrumoe lower than anticipated in the assumptiorslde estimate medical claims paye
at December 31, 2006. This difference betweenrtreltassumed in establishing the December 31, 2@@kical claims payable, and the trend
observed based upon subsequent claims runout thtbegwelve months ended December 31, 2007, ezsintapproximately $350.3 million
of redundancy in the December 31, 2006 estimaterarhaided in the statement of income for the yewteel December 31, 2007.

Claim trends observed as of December 31, 2005 hgseu subsequent claim runout were lower than ipatied in the assumptions used
to estimate medical claims payable at Decembe2@05. This decline was due to moderating outpatientice trends and declines in
pharmacy benefit cost trend. This difference betwée trends assumed in establishing the Decenih@0®5 medical claims payable, and the
trend observed based upon subsequent claims rthmough the year ended December 31, 2006, resuli@dproximately $504.1 million of
redundancy in the December 31, 2005 estimate ahalded in the statement of income for the year dridiecember 31, 2006.

Over the period from 2004 to 2005, claim trenddided. Claim trends observed based upon subseglant runout were lower than
anticipated in the assumptions used to estimatecaledaims payable at December 31, 2004. Thisideslas due to moderating outpatient
service trends and declines in pharmacy beneftttomsd. This difference between the trends assumesdtablishing the December 31, 2004
medical
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claims payable, and the trend observed based ugmsegquent claims runout, resulted in approxim&kdl0.6 million of redundancy in the
December 31, 2004 estimate and included in thersttt of income for the year ended December 315.200

As summarized below, Note 10 to our audited codatdid financial statements as of and for the yede@ December 31, 2007 included
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K provides histatiinformation regarding the accrual and paymémuo medical claims liability.
Components of the total incurred claims for eaddr yeclude amounts accrued for current year eséichalaims expense as well as adjustments
to prior year estimated accruals. In Note 10 toaudited consolidated financial statements, thelideled “Net incurred medical claims: Prior
years (redundancie’ accounts for those adjustments made to prior getimates. The impact of any reduction &t incurred medical claim
Prior years (redundancies)” claims may be offsetagstablish the estimate of “Net incurred meditaiims: Current year”. Our reserving
practice is to consistently recognize the actudméast estimate of our ultimate liability for ouaths. When we recognize a release of the
redundancy, we disclose the amount that is ndiérotdinary course of business, if material. Weelvelwe have consistently applied our
methodology in determining our best estimate fqraid claims liability at each reporting date.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakafar medical claims payable for the years endeceber 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005
is as follows:

Years Ended December 3

2007 2006 2005
(In millions)
Gross medical claims payable, beginning of pe $ 5,290.: $ 4,853.¢ $ 4,134.(
Ceded medical claims payable, beginning of pe (51.0 (27.7) (31.9)
Net medical claims payable, beginning of pel 5,239. 4,825." 4,102..
Business combinations and purchase adjustn 15.2 (6.9 784.%
Net incurred medical claim

Current yea 46,366.: 42,613.: 32,865.f

Prior years (redundancie (332.7) (617.7) (644.9)

Total net incurred medical clain 46,033.! 41,995.! 32,220.
Net payments attributable t

Current year medical clain 40,765. 37,486.( 28,997.:

Prior years medical clain 4,795.( 4,089.! 3,284.!

Total net payment 45,560. 41,575.! 32,2814
Net medical claims payable, end of per 5,727.: 5,239.: 4,825.°
Ceded medical claims payable, end of pe 60.7 51.C 27.1
Gross medical claims payable, end of pe $ 5,788.( $ 5,290.! $ 4,853.¢
Current year medical claims paid as a percent okatiyear net incurred medical clail 87.% 88.(% 88.2%
Prior year redundancies in the current period pesreent of prior year net medical clair

payable less prior year redundancies in the cuperiod 6.8% 14.7% 18.7%
Prior year redundancies in the current period jgsreent of prior year net incurred
medical claims 0.8% 1.9% 4.2%

Amounts incurred related to prior years vary fromayiously estimated liabilities as the claims atenately settled. Liabilities at any
period end are continually reviewed and re-estithaginformation regarding actual claims paymemtsunout, becomes known. This
information is compared to the originally
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established year end liability. Negative amoungorted for incurred related to prior years resudtf claims being settled for amounts less
originally estimated. The prior year redundancy$882.7 million shown above for the year ended Ddimm31, 2007 represents an estimate
based on paid claim activity from January 1, 2@DDécember 31, 2007. Medical claim liabilities aswially described as having a “short tail”,
which means that they are generally paid withiresgvmonths of the member receiving service froengtovider. Accordingly, the majority,
approximately 84%, of the $332.7 million redundangates to claims incurred in calendar year 206t the remaining 16% related to claims
incurred in 2005 and prior.

The ratio of current year medical claims paid gercent of current year net medical claims incumed 87.9% for 2007, 88.0% for 20
and 88.2% for 2005. Comparison of the 2007 rati®9% and the 2006 ratio of 88.0% indicates faidpsistent payment patterns between
2007 and 2006. Comparison of the 2006 ratio of ®8ahd the 2005 ratio of 88.2% reflects a moderatdine due to system conversions and
integration activity that impacted the 2006 ratio.

We calculate the percentage of prior year redundaric the current period as a percent of prior yed incurred claims payable less p
year redundancies in the current period in ordeletmonstrate the development of the prior yearveseThis metric was 6.8% for 20(
14.7% for 2006, and 18.7% for 2005. As discussedipusly, the 790 basis point decline in 2007 d@l400 basis point decrease in this m«
for 2006 were caused by actual completion factotsdaim trends differing from the assumptions ueslupport our best estimate of the
incurred but not paid claim liability of the priperiods.

We calculate the percentage of prior year redunidaric the current period as a percent of prior yed incurred medical claims to
indicate the percentage of redundancy includetiérpreceding year calculation of current year metiired medical claims. We believe this
calculation indicates the reasonableness of oor gdar estimation of incurred medical claims dmel¢onsistency of our methodology. This
metric was 0.8% for 2007, 1.9% for 2006, and 4.2%2005. This ratio is calculated using the redmegiaof $332.7 million, shown above,
which represents an estimate based on paid cldimtadrom January 1, 2007 to December 31, 2007e 2006 ratio was impacted by having
no net incurred medical claims for the former Walb@e, Inc. in 2005. If the former Wellchoice, It@ad been included for the full year 2005,
this ratio would have been approximately 1.6%. 2865 ratio was impacted by having only one monthetfincurred medical claims for
WHN in 2004. If WHN had been included for the fydlar 2004, estimated prior year net incurred médieéms would have been $30,819.1
million, and the adjusted ratio would have beerraximately 2.1% for the year ended December 315200

The following table shows the variance between t¢aincurred medical claims as reported in thevattable for each of 2006 and 2005
and the incurred claims for such years had it l[setarmined retrospectively (computed as the diffeeecbetween “net incurred medical
claims—current year” for the year shown and “neuimed medical claims—prior years (redundancies)tfie immediately following year):

Years Ended December 3.

2006 2005
(In millions)
Total net incurred medical claims, as repol $41,995.! $32,220.
Retrospective basis, as described at 42,280.! 32,247
Variance $ (285.C $ (272
Variance to total net incurred medical claims,egorted (0.9% 0.)%

Given that our business is primarily short tailéd variance to total net incurred medical claiassteported above, is used to assess the
reasonableness of our estimate of ultimate incumedical claims for a given calendar year withlibaefit of one year of experience. We
expect that substantially all of the developmerthef2007 estimate of medical claims payable vélkbhown during 2008.
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The 2005 variance of $(27.2) million and varianzéatal incurred medical claims, as reported of )% was impacted by having no
WellChoice, Inc. activity in the total incurred @ported during 2005 and full development of attifiom the former WellChoice, Inc. in the
retrospective basis amount. The adjusted variamédibe approximately $(175.2) million and the gare to total incurred would be
approximately (0.5)% if the impact of WellChoicesm@moved. The 2006 variance of $(285.0) milliccréased from the 2005 variance of
$(27.2) million as a result of the addition of W&Hloice in December 2005. The 2006 variance to tmtincurred medical claims, as reported
of (0.7)% is fairly consistent with the adjusted30atio.

These small variances to total net incurred medieans, adjusted for the impact of WellChoice,stibat our estimates of this liability
have approximated the actual experience for thesydepicted.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with N&S109,Accounting for Income Taxe§his standard requires, among other things,
the separate recognition of deferred tax assetslefedred tax liabilities. Such deferred tax asaets deferred tax liabilities represent the tax
effect of temporary differences between finanagglarting and tax reporting measured at tax ratasted at the time the deferred tax asset or
liability is recorded. A valuation allowance must bstablished for deferred tax assets if it is ‘@rlikely than not” that all or a portion may be
unrealized. Our judgment is required in determirangappropriate valuation allowance.

At each financial reporting date, we assess thquaty of the valuation allowance by evaluating eafobur deferred tax assets based on
the following:
» the types of temporary differences that createdidierred tax asset;

» the amount of taxes paid in prior periods and abddl for a carr-back claim;
» the forecasted future taxable income, and therehtedy future deduction of the deferred tax iteamd

» any significant other issues impacting the likedglization of the benefit of the temporary diffezes.

As discussed in the New Accounting Pronouncemertdasure included in this MD&A, we adopted Finadldhccounting Standards
Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 48¢counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an iptetation of FASB Statement No. 108 FIN 48,
effective January 1, 2007.

During 2007 and 2006, the valuation allowance ckdrgy $(0.4) million and $0.5 million, respectivekhis resulted from realized and
unrealized capital losses of subsidiaries, whiehrent included in our consolidated tax return

During the third quarter of 2006, we decreasedstate deferred tax liability by $43.0 million, rétng in a tax benefit, net of federal
taxes, of $28.0 million, or $0.04 per basic andteid share, for the year ended December 31, 2008 r@sulted from a lower effective tax rate
due to changes in our state apportionment factdi®fing the WellChoice acquisition.

During 2005, a refund claim we filed in 2003 wagigved by the Congressional Joint Committee on fi@xaThe claim related to
initially disallowed losses on the sale of certsibsidiaries in the late 1990s. A tax benefit &.82nillion related to this claim was recorded in
the first quarter of 2005. Net income related is tiaim was $0.04 per basic and diluted shar¢hferyear ended December 31, 2005.

We, like other companies, frequently face challenfgem tax authorities regarding the amount of sackee. These challenges include
guestions regarding the timing and amount of dedustthat we have taken on our tax returns. Inuatalg any additional tax liability
associated with various positions taken in ourréurn filings, we record additional liabilitiesrfpotential adverse tax outcomes. Based on our
evaluation of our tax positions, we believe we happropriately accrued for uncertain tax benefitsthe extent we prevail in matters we have
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accrued for, our future effective tax rate wouldrééuced and net income would increase. If weegaired to pay more than accrued, our
future effective tax rate would increase and nebine would decrease. Our effective tax rate andheetne in any given future period could
materially impacted.

In the ordinary course of business, we are reguartlited by federal and other tax authorities, faoch time to time, these audits resul
proposed assessments. We believe our tax posgamply with applicable tax law and intend to defennl positions vigorously through the
Internal Revenue Service, or IRS, appeals proteshelieve we have adequately provided for anyoreasle foreseeable outcome related to
these matters. Accordingly, although their ultimasolution may require additional tax paymentsdeeot anticipate any material impact to
earnings from these matters. As of December 317 20@ IRS had completed its examination of our@X year. Our 2006, 2005 and 2004
tax years are being examined by the IRS. The IRSmated us to join the Compliance Assurance Raogror CAP, for 2007, and we have
accepted the invitation. The objective of CAP isdduce taxpayer burden and uncertainty while asgtine IRS of the accuracy of tax returns
prior to filing, thereby reducing or eliminatingetmeed for posfiting examinations. Various tax examinations amdgeedings also continue 1
certain subsidiaries for tax years prior to beimgluded in our consolidated tax return.

For additional information, see Note 14 to our &nficonsolidated financial statements as of anthiyear ended December 31, 2007
included in this Form 10-K.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Our consolidated goodwill at December 31, 2007 $&&4 billion and other intangible assets were $8libn. The sum of goodwill and
intangible assets represented 44% of our totalalmlzged assets and 99% of our consolidated shitetsd equity at December 31, 2007.

We follow FAS 141Business Combinationsand FAS 142Goodwill and Other Intangible AssetEAS 141 specifies the types of
acquired intangible assets that are required t@begnized and reported separately from goodwilldér FAS 142, goodwill and other
intangible assets (with indefinite lives) are notaatized but are tested for impairment at leasuafip. We completed our annual impairment
tests of existing goodwill and other intangibleeasgwith indefinite lives) for each of the yeamsled December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 and
based upon these tests we have not incurred argriaiampairment losses related to any goodwill atfter intangible assets (with indefinite
lives).

While we believe we have appropriately allocategighrchase price of our acquisitions, this allasatequires many assumptions to be
made regarding the fair value of assets and lt@slacquired. In addition, the impairment testieguired under FAS 142 requires us to make
assumptions and judgments regarding the estimateddiue of our goodwill and intangibles (with efihite lives). Such assumptions include
the discount factor used to determine the faire@aliia reporting unit, which is ultimately useddentify potential goodwill impairment. Such
estimated fair values might produce significanif§edent results if other reasonable assumptiorsestimates were to be used. If we are ur
to support a fair value estimate in future annwaldyvill impairment tests or if significant impairmteindicators are noted relative to other
intangible assets subject to amortization, we meayelguired to record impairment losses againstdutcome.

For additional information, see Note 4 to our aeditonsolidated financial statements as of anthfoyear ended December 31, 2007
included in this Form 10-K.

Investments

Current and long term available-for-sale investnssmurities were $17.7 billion at December 31, 280d represented 34% of our total
consolidated assets at December 31, 2007. In amgcoedvith FAS 115Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Bg8iecuritiespur
fixed maturity and equity securities are classifed
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“available-for-sale” or “trading” and are reportatfair value. We classify our investments in aafalié-for-sale fixed maturity securities as
either current or noncurrent assets based onc¢batractual maturity. Certain investments, whichimtend to sell within the next twelve
months, are carried as current without regard é@r ttontractual maturities. Additionally, certaimvestments used to satisfy contractual,
regulatory or other requirements are classifielbag-term, without regard to contractual maturitiie unrealized gains or losses on both
current and long-term available-for-sale fixed migguand equity securities are included in accurtadaother comprehensive income as a
separate component of shareholders’ equity, utiesdecline in value is deemed to be other-tharpteary and we do not have the intent and
ability to hold such securities until their full stocan be recovered, in which case the securitees/dtten down to fair value and the loss is
charged to income. Investment income is recordeglvearned, and realized gains or losses, deterrbinedecific identification of
investments sold, are included in income when #raisties are sold.

We maintain various rabbi trusts to account foradhsets and liabilities under certain deferred amaation plans. Under these deferred
compensation plans, the participants can defeaicetitpes of compensation and elect to receiveuarr®n the deferred amounts based on the
changes in fair value of various investment optigmsnarily a variety of mutual funds. We also geally purchase corporate-owned life
insurance policies on participants in the defeo@ehpensation plans. The cash surrender value attporate-owned life insurance policies is
reported in “Other invested assets, long-term’him tonsolidated balance sheets. The change irscasinder value is reported as an offset to
premium expense of the policies, classified as g¢@ad administrative expense.

In addition to available-for-sale investment setiessi we held other long-term investments of $75@ilon, or 1% of total consolidated
assets, at December 31, 2007. These long-termtmeass consist primarily of real estate, cash sulee value of corporate-owned life
insurance policies and certain other investment® 0 their less liquid nature, these investmergkassified as long-term.

An impairment review of securities to determindetlines in fair value below cost are other-thangerary is subjective and requires a
high degree of judgment. We evaluate our investraeatrrities on a quarterly basis, using both qtegtivieé and qualitative factors, to determine
whether a decline in value is other-than-tempor8nch factors considered include the length of tame the extent to which a security’s
market value has been less than its cost, finanoradition and near term prospects of the isseegmmendations of investment advisors, and
forecasts of economic, market or industry trenflany declines are determined to be other-than-tearp, we charge the losses to income
when that determination is made. We have a comenittade up of certain accounting and investmentéges and management responsible
for managing the impairment review process. Theetureconomic environment and recent volatilitgefurities markets increase the
difficulty of assessing investment impairment alnel same influences tend to increase the risk @iel impairment of these assets. We
recorded charges for other-than-temporary impaitroésecurities of $259.7 million, $56.2 millioma$14.8 million, respectively, for the
years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005t-than-temporary impairments on investments in 289F 2006 primarily related to our
intent to hold fixed maturity securities that warean unrealized loss position due to the prevagilitterest rate environment, as well as other-
than-temporary impairments of equity securities tial been in an unrealized loss position for dareded period of time. Impairments
recorded in 2005 were primarily the result of thatmued credit deterioration on specific issuarthie bond and equity markets.

We believe we have adequately reviewed our investisecurities for impairment and that our investthegrturities are carried at fair
value. However, over time, the economic and magketronment may provide additional insight regagdine fair value of certain securities,
which could change our judgment regarding impainméhis could result in realized losses relatingtioer-than-temporary declines being
charged against future income.
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A summary of available-for-sale investments witheatized losses as of December 31, 2007 alongthéthelated fair value, aggregated
by the length of time that investments have beemdontinuous unrealized loss position, is as fadlo

Less than Twelve Months
Twelve Months or More Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Fair Fair
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(In millions)
Fixed maturity securitie $2,502.. $ (73.7) $2,254.( $ (36.6 $4,756.. $ (110.5)
Equity securitie: 498.1 (69.9) — — 498. (69.29)
Total $3,000.¢ $ (142.9) $2,254.( $ (36.6 $5,254.¢ $ (179.)

Our fixed maturity investment portfolio is senséito interest rate fluctuations, which impact thie ¥alue of individual securities.
Unrealized losses reported above were primarilgeduiby the effect of a rising interest rate enviment on certain securities with stated
interest rates currently below market rates. Weetuly have the ability and intent to hold theseusities until their full cost can be recovered.
Therefore, we do not believe the unrealized losspgesent an other-than-temporary impairment &eckmber 31, 2007.

A primary objective in the management of the fixedturity and equity portfolios is to maximize totaturn relative to underlying
liabilities and respective liquidity needs. In ahing this goal, assets may be sold to take adgarddmarket conditions or other investment
opportunities as well as tax considerations. Salkgenerally produce realized gains and lossesgiry the year ended December 31, 2007
sold $8.1 billion of fixed maturity and equity seities which resulted in gross realized losses8%.4 million. In the ordinary course of
business, we may sell securities at a loss fomaben of reasons, including, but not limited to:dfijfanges in the investment environment;

(i) expectation that the fair value could deteaiwrfurther; (iii) desire to reduce exposure tessaer or an industry; (iv) changes in credit
quality; or (v) changes in expected cash flow. Bgrihe year ended December 31, 2006, we sold $ichiof fixed maturity and equity
securities resulting in gross realized losses & B@nillion. Subsequent to the acquisition of Wéli@e, during 2006, we restructured our
investment portfolios to align the merged portfsligith our overall investment guidelines. The migjoof the sales of fixed maturity securities
resulted in realized losses due to the prevailimerest rate environment. For equity securities 2006 sales to restructure the merged
portfolios primarily resulted in realized gainsnfiiarly, subsequent to the merger with WHN, durd@5, we restructured our investment
portfolios to align the merged portfolios with aurerall investment guidelines. The majority of #ates of fixed maturity securities resulted in
realized losses due to the prevailing interesteatéronment. For equity securities, the 2005 stdesstructure the merged portfolios primarily
resulted in realized gains.

We participate in securities lending programs whgmarketable securities in our investment portfalie transferred to independent
brokers or dealers based on, among other things,dfeditworthiness in exchange for collateraliaby equal to at least 102% of the market
value of the securities on loan and is thereaft@ntained at a minimum of 100% of the market valfithe securities loaned. The market value
of the securities on loan to each borrower is nowad daily and the borrower is required to delizgditional collateral if the market value of
the collateral falls below 100% of the market vaddi¢he securities on loan. The market value ofdbiéateral amounted to $854.1 million and
$904.7 million, which represented 103% and 103%efcarrying value at December 31, 2007 and 2@&pectively. Under guidance provic
in FAS 140,Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets and Extinguishments of Liabilitiege recognize the collateral as an
asset, which is reported as “securities lendintataial” on our balance sheet and we record a sporeding liability for the obligation to return
the collateral to the borrower, which is reported'securities lending payable”. The securitiesaanlare reported in the applicable investment
category on the balance sheet.

Through our investing activities, we are exposefinancial market risks, including those resultingm changes in interest rates and
changes in equity market valuations. We managentimixet risks through our
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investment policy, which establishes credit qudlityits and limits of investments in individual issrs. Ineffective management of these risks
could have an impact on our future earnings arahfiral position.

We have evaluated the impact on the fixed matyatgfolio’s fair value considering an immediate 100 basiatpgiange in interest rat
A 100 basis point increase in interest rates woeddlt in an approximate $656.9 million decreaskinvalue, whereas a 100 basis point
decrease in interest rates would result in an aqpete $613.7 million increase in fair value. Annmadiate 10% decrease in each equity
investment’s value, arising from market movemertuld result in a fair value decrease of $193.9iarill Alternatively, an immediate 10%
increase in each equity investment’s value, attable to the same factor, would result in a falugancrease of $193.9 million.

For additional information, see Part Il, Item 7Aydptitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MaRisk, of this Form 10-K, and Note
5 to our audited consolidated financial statemastsf and for the year ended December 31, 200@dedlin this Form 10-K.

Retirement Benefit:
Pension Benefits

We sponsor defined benefit pension plans for oyslepees. These plans are accounted for in accoedaith FAS 87 Employers’
Accounting for Pensior, which requires that amounts recognized in finalngtiatements be determined on an actuarial basigermitted by
FAS 87, we calculate the value of plan assets testbelow. Further, the difference between oueesqd rate of return and the actual
performance of plan assets, as well as certainggsaim pension liabilities, are amortized over fatperiods.

We will adopt the measurement date provisions c5AA8 on December 31, 2008, using the alternataresition method. In lieu of re-
measuring plan assets at the beginning of 200&ltamative transition method allows for the utéhe September 30, 2007 measurement date
with net periodic benefit costs for the period fr@utober 1, 2007 to December 31, 2008 allocatepfgtmnately between an adjustment of
retained earnings (for the period from Octoberd72to December 31, 2007) and net periodic beneét for 2008 (for the period from
January 1, 2008 to December 31, 2008).

An important factor in determining our pension exgeis the assumption for expected long-term redarplan assets. As of our
September 30, 2007 measurement date, we seletdagd-géerm rate of return on plan assets of 8.00f@lfigplans, which is consistent with our
prior year assumption of 8.00%. We use a totalfplstreturn analysis in the development of ounuasption. Factors such as past market
performance, the long-term relationship betweeadirmaturity and equity securities, interest ratétation and asset allocations are considered
in the assumption. The assumption includes an agtiwf the additional return expected from actianagement of the investment portfolio.
Peer data and historical returns are also revidaregppropriateness of the selected assumptioneXpected long-term rate of return is
calculated by the geometric averaging method, wbatbulates an expected multi-period return, réfgcvolatility drag on compound returns.
We believe our assumption of future returns iseaable. However, if we lower our expected long-teetaurn on plan assets, future
contributions to the pension plan and pension exgerould likely increase.

This assumed longerm rate of return on assets is applied to a tatled value of plan assets, which recognizes chsaimgihe fair value ¢
plan assets in a systematic manner over three,y@axucing the expected return on plan assetsgfatiuded in the determination of pension
expense. The difference between this expectedrana the actual return on plan assets is defamddimortized over the average remaining
service of the workforce as a component of pensigrense. The net deferral of past asset gainssesdoaffects the calculated value of plan
assets and, ultimately, future pension expense.

The discount rate reflects the current rate at Wwktie pension liabilities could be effectively &dtat the end of the year based on our
most recent measurement date (September 30, 2l selected discount rate for
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all plans is 6.00% (compared to a discount rate.@®% for 2007 expense recognition), which was ibgesl using a yield curve approach.
Using yields available on high-quality fixed matyrsecurities with various maturity dates, the gielirve approach provides a “customized”
rate, which is meant to match the expected casVsflaf our specific benefit plans. The net effectiofinges in the discount rate, as well as the
net effect of other changes in actuarial assumgtéomd experience, have been deferred and amoaizacomponent of pension expense in
accordance with FAS 87.

In managing the plan assets, our objective is ta tEsponsible fiduciary while minimizing financi&@k. Plan assets include a diversified
mix of investment grade fixed maturity securitieguity securities and alternatives across a rahgeators and levels of capitalization to
maximize the longerm return for a prudent level of risk. In addititm producing a reasonable return, the investsteategy seeks to minimi:
the volatility in our expense and cash flow. A©af September 30, 2007 measurement date, we haoxapptely 60% of plan assets invested
in equity securities, 36% in fixed maturity sedastand 4% in other assets. No plan assets weeste in WellPoint common stock as of the
measurement date.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, no contoibsitivere necessary to meet the Employee Retirdmesre Securities Act of 1974,
as amended, or ERISA, required funding levels; h@renve made discretionary contributions totali8gesmillion during the year ended
December 31, 2007. For the year ending Decembe2(®)8, we do not expect any required contributiomder ERISA; however, we may elect
to make discretionary contributions up to the maximamount deductible for income tax purposes.

At December 31, 2007, our consolidated net prepaition asset was $411.7 million. We also hadliiiegsi of $62.0 million for certain
supplemental plans. For the years ended Decemb@08%, 2006, and 2005, we recognized consolidatetdix pension (credit) expense of
$(12.9) million, $32.6 million, and $48.6 milliorgspectively.

Other Postretirement Benefits

We provide most associates with certain life, maldicision and dental benefits upon retirement. e various actuarial assumptions
including a discount rate and the expected trerftealth care costs to estimate the costs and heddfjations for our retiree benefits. We
recognized a postretirement benefit liability oD$57 million at December 31, 2007.

We recognized consolidated pre-tax other postragreg expense of $36.3 million, $42.1 million and $million for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

At our September 30, 2007 measurement date, thetsdldiscount rate for all plans was 6.10% (coeghéw a discount rate of 5.90% for
2007 expense recognition). We developed this rsitegla yield curve approach as described above.

The assumed health care cost trend rates usedasunecthe expected cost of other benefits at opteS&er 30, 2007 measurement dates
was 8.50% for 2008 with a gradual decline to 5.08#the year 2015. These estimated trend rateubject to change in the future. The health
care cost trend rate assumption has a signifidéedteon the amounts reported. For example, areas® in the assumed health care cost trend
rate of one percentage point would increase thagtosment benefit obligation as of December I 2by $40.0 million and would increase
service and interest costs by $1.9 million. Conelgrsa decrease in the assumed health care codtriage of one percentage point would
decrease the postretirement benefit obligation38/&million as of December 31, 2007 and would ease service and interest costs by $1.6
million.

For additional information regarding retirement éf#s, see Note 17 to our audited consolidatedhfired statements as of and for the y
ended December 31, 2007 included in this Form 10-K.
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New Accounting Pronouncemen

In July 2006, FASB issued FASB Interpretation N®, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an iptetation of FASB Statement
109, or FIN 48. Among other things, FIN 48 provides guidance tdrads uncertainty in tax positions and clarifies alscounting for income
taxes by prescribing a minimum recognition thredhwhich income tax positions must achieve befoiadeecognized in the financial
statements. In addition, FIN 48 requires expandeuial disclosures, including a rollforward of treginning and ending aggregate
unrecognized tax benefits as well as specific teghkited to tax uncertainties for which it is reaably possible the amount of unrecognized tax
benefit will significantly increase or decreasehiittwelve months We adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, and recaadeduction of
retained earnings of $1.6 million effective Januhr007. The amount of unrecognized tax benefits funcertain tax positions at January 1,
2007 was $884.0 million. See Note 2 and Note ldutoaudited consolidated financial statements andffor the year ended December 31,
2007 included in this Form 10-K.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. Fait, Value Measurementor FAS 157. FAS 157 defines fair value, estalelésh
framework for measuring fair value in accordancthwienerally accepted accounting principles, argheas disclosures about fair value
measurements. This statement does not requireemyair value measurements; rather, it applies uotleer accounting pronouncements that
require or permit fair value measurements. FAS\W&3 effective for us on January 1, 2008. The adapif FAS 157 did not have a material
impact on our financial position or operating résul

In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. TH®% Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal Liabilities—Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement , or FAS 159. FAS 159 allows entities to measureyrfamancial instruments and certain other assets a
liabilities at fair value on an instrument-by-ingtrent basis under the fair value option. FAS 158 eféective for us on January 1, 2008. The
adoption of FAS 159 did not have a material immacour financial position or operating results.

In December 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 1Ai&iness Combinationor FAS 141R, and FAS No. 188pncontrolling Interests i
Consolidated Financial Statementan amendment of ARB No. 51, or FAS 160. These stawdards will significantly change the accounting
for and reporting of business combinations and anftrolling (minority) interest transactions comgleétafter January 1, 2009. FAS 141R and
FAS 160 are required to be adopted simultaneouslyaae effective for us beginning January 1, 2@28ly adoption is prohibited. We do not
expect the adoption of FAS 141R and FAS 160 to lvienpact on the consolidated financial statemdmwever, the adoption will impact
the accounting for any business combinations comglafter January 1, 2009.

There were no other new accounting pronouncemssitied during the year ended December 31, 200Talles material impact on our
financial position, operating results or disclosure

X.  Liquidity and Capital Resources
Introduction

Our cash receipts result primarily from premiuntimaistrative fees, investment income, other reegmuoceeds from the sale or
maturity of our investment securities, proceedsflbrrowings, and proceeds from exercise of st@tlons and our employee stock purchase
plan. Cash disbursements result mainly from clgmgnents, administrative expenses, taxes, purclodsesestment securities, interest
expense, payments on long-term borrowings, capipénditures and repurchases of our common stagh Gutflows fluctuate with the
amount and timing of settlement of these transastiény future decline in our profitability woulikély have some negative impact on our
liquidity.
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We manage our cash, investments and capital steustuwe are able to meet the short and long-téligaiions of our business while
maintaining financial flexibility and liquidity. Wéorecast, analyze and monitor our cash flows ebéninvestment and financing within the
overall constraints of our financial strategy.

A substantial portion of the assets held by ouulagd subsidiaries are in the form of cash antl egsivalents and investments. After
considering expected cash flows from operatingvaigts, we generally invest cash that exceeds ear term obligations in longer term
marketable fixed maturity securities, to improve ouerall investment income returns. Our investngtrategy is to make investments
consistent with insurance statutes and other regylaequirements, while preserving our asset base.investments are generally available-
for-sale to meet liquidity and other needs. Exaagstal at our subsidiaries is paid annually bysédiries in the form of dividends to their
respective parent companies for general corporsgeas permitted by applicable regulations.

The availability of financing in the form of deht equity is influenced by many factors including quofitability, operating cash flows,
debt levels, debt ratings, contractual restrictioagulatory requirements and market conditions.Halee access to a $2.5 billion commercial
paper program supported by a $2.5 billion senieditifacility, which allows us to maintain furtheperating and financial flexibility.

Liquidity—Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year Hridecember 31, 2006

During 2007, net cash flow provided by operatintivittes was $4,344.6 million, compared to $4,04¢hiflion in 2006, an increase of
$300.4 million. This increase resulted from imprévest income in 2007.

Net cash flow used in investing activities was $864illion in 2007, compared to $457.3 million @fst used in 2006. The table below
outlines the increase in cash flow used in investictivities of $311.6 million between the two jpeis:

Change in
Cash Used it
Investing
Activities
(In millions)
Decrease in net purchases of investm $ 167.¢
Increase in securities lending collate (434.¢
Increase in net purchases of subsidie (273.])
Increase in net purchases of property and equip (77.2)
Decrease in other, n 305.F
Net increase in cash used in investing activ $ (311.¢

On August 1, 2007, we completed our acquisitioAldfl for which we paid approximately $300.0 million cash.
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Net cash flow used in financing activities was $8,9 million in 2007 compared to cash used in fawag activities of $3,725.0 million
2006. The table below outlines the decrease in gast in financing activities of $315.1 million ixeen the two periods:

(In millions)

Increase in net proceeds from commercial papeoldngs

Increase in net proceeds from l-term borrowings

Decrease in securities lending paye

Decrease in bank overdra

Increase in repurchases of common s

Increase in proceeds from exercise of employe&siptions and employee stock purch
plan

Increase in excess tax benefits from s-based compensatic

Net decrease in cash used in financing activ

Liquidity—Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Bridecember 31, 2005

Change in
Cash Used il

Financing
Activities

$ 808.¢
962.F
434.¢
(531.9)
(1,601.9)

225.(
16.€

$ 315.1

During 2006, net cash flow provided by operatintivittes was $4,044.2 million, compared to $3,13ilion in 2005, an increase of
$908.7 million. This increase resulted from impréygemium collections, and higher net income, iditlg the impact of the acquisition of

WellChoice, partially offset by higher tax payments

Net cash flow used in investing activities was $85willion in 2006, compared to $5,151.6 millionazsh used in 2005. The table below

outlines the decrease in cash flow used in invgstitivities of $4,694.3 million between the twaipds:

(In millions)

Decrease in net purchases of investm
Decrease in securities lending collate

Decrease in net purchases of subsidie

Increase in net purchases of property and equip
Increase in other, ni

Net decrease in cash used in investing activ

Change in
Cash Used il

Investing
Activities

$ 1,441
1,216.¢
2,471

(35.9)
(399.7)

The decrease in net purchases of investments edsuttm the portfolio restructure in 2005 followittge WHN merger, with lower
amounts of restructuring in 2006 following the V@ibice acquisition. The decrease in securitiesitendollateral is consistent with the
decrease in amounts outstanding under this programoffset to the reduction of securities lendintjateral is a reduction of securities
lending payable, which is reported with cash usefihiancing activities. The decrease in net puretidsubsidiaries resulted from the
WellChoice acquisition in 2005, with no correspamglacquisition during 2006. The increase in othet,includes the purchase of corporate-

owned life insurance policies on participants im deferred compensation plans.
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Net cash flow used in financing activities was £5.D million in 2006 compared to cash providedibgricing activities of $3,299.1
million in 2005. The table below outlines the irese in cash used in financing activities of $7,024illion between the two periods:

Change in
Cash Used it
Financing
Activities
(In millions)
Decrease in net proceeds from commercial papeowargs $(1,114.9
Decrease in net proceeds from I-term borrowings (1,038.9
Decrease in securities lending paye (1,216.¢
Increase in bank overdral 293.1
Increase in repurchases of common s (4,216.9
Increase in proceeds from exercise of employe&siptions and employee stock purchase 130.Z
Increase in excess tax benefits from s-based compensatic 136.5
Decrease in other, n 2.5
Net increase in cash used in financing activi $ (7,024.)

The decrease in net proceeds from commercial gapeowings reflects repayment of commercial pap#éofving our offering of senior
unsecured notes in January 2006 as compared tssnances of commercial paper in 2005 used togligrtund the WellChoice acquisition.
The decrease in net proceeds from long-term bormgswvas impacted by issuance of the bridge lo&1af00.0 million in 2005, as compared
to 2006 activity including our issuance of seninsecured notes of $2,700.0 million in January 2088ayment of the bridge loan in January
2006 and scheduled debt maturity of $450.0 millioduly 2006.

On January 10, 2006, we issued $700.0 million @06% notes due 2011; $1,100.0 million of 5.250%eaatue 2016; and $900.0 million
of 5.850% notes due 2036 under a registrationretéfiled on December 28, 2005. The proceeds flosndebt issuance were used to repay a
bridge loan of $1,700.0 million and approximately®0.0 million in commercial paper borrowed totdlly fund the December 28, 2005
WellChoice acquisition.

Our securities lending payable declined during 208fecting reduced amounts outstanding undeptbgram. The offset to this is
included in cash used in investing activities above

The increase in bank overdrafts reflects an inerédashecks issued but outstanding at Decembe2®¥g as compared to December 31,
2005.

We increased our common stock repurchases durid@, 20mpleting an additional $4,216.8 million in0B0as compared to 2005.
Financial Condition

We maintained a strong financial condition anditiéy position, with consolidated cash, cash egl@rts and investments, including
longterm investments, of $21.2 billion at DecemberZ107. Since December 31, 2006, total cash, caskagnts and investments, includi
long-term investments, increased by $437.6 milisrtash generated from operations was used foepliechase of our common stock.

Many of our subsidiaries are subject to variousaegoninent regulations that restrict the timing anaant of dividends and other
distributions that may be paid to their respecpigeent companies. In addition, we have agreedrtainaundertakings to regulatory authorities,
including the requirement to maintain certain cagivels in our California and Georgia subsidisirie
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At December 31, 2007, we held at the parent compapyoximately $2.2 billion of cash, cash equivedeand investments, which is
available for general corporate use, including gtwent in our businesses, acquisitions, share endrdpurchases and interest payments.

Our consolidated debt-to-total capital ratio (cédted as the sum of debt divided by the sum of gl shareholders’ equity) was 28.2%
as of December 31, 2007 and 22.2% as of Decemh@088, which increased as a result of our $61®hibf common stock repurchases
during 2007.

Our senior debt is rated “A-" by Standard & Poot’s;” by Fitch, Inc., “Baal” by Moody’s Investor ®¢éce, Inc. and “a-" by AM Best
Company, Inc. We intend to maintain our senior diestment grade ratings. A significant downgradeur debt ratings could adversely
affect our borrowing capacity and costs.

Future Sources and Uses of Liquidity

On August 21, 2007, we issued zero coupon notaitivate placement transaction exempt from regfistn. Gross proceeds to us were
$500.0 million. The notes have a final maturitybafgust 22, 2022, and were issued with a yield toumity of 5.264% and a final amount dut
maturity of $1,090.0 million. The notes have a featture that allows a note holder to require ugpairchase the notes at certain dates in the
future. The proceeds of this debt issuance wergdaeral corporate purposes, including, but noitdidito, repurchasing shares of our common
stock. The notes have initially been classifietbag-term debt on our balance sheet, and will btassified to current portion of lortgrm deb
beginning one year prior to the date we may beireduo repurchase the notes.

On December 28, 2005, we filed a shelf registratiith the SEC to register an unlimited amount of aambination of debt or equity
securities in one or more offerings. Specific infiation regarding terms and securities being offerdidoe provided at the time of an offering.
Proceeds from future offerings are expected todael fior general corporate purposes, includingdpayment of debt, capitalization of our
subsidiaries or the financing of possible acquissior business expansion. On June 8, 2007, wedsk700.0 million of 5.875% notes due
2017 and $800.0 million of 6.375% notes due 203feutthe shelf registration statement. The procéeds this debt issuance were for work
capital and for general corporate purposes, inolydbut not limited to, repurchases of our commntoclks The notes have a call feature that
allows us to repurchase the notes anytime at aiimropnd a put feature that allows a note holdeetpire us to repurchase the notes upon the
occurrence of both a change of control event atiovengrade of the notes.

On November 29, 2005, we entered into a seniorvangcredit facility, or the facility, with certailenders for general corporate
purposes. We amended the facility on Septembe2@16. The facility, as amended, provides creditau$2.5 billion (reduced for any
commercial paper issuances) and matures on Sept@&®p2011. The interest rate on this facility &éd on either (i) the LIBOR rate plus a
predetermined percentage rate based on our cegitigyrat the date of utilization, or (ii) a basteras defined in the facility agreement. Our
ability to borrow under this facility is subject tompliance with certain covenants. There weremoumts outstanding under this facility as of
December 31, 2007 or during the year then ende®e&ember 31, 2007, we had $0.7 billion availalmear this facility.

We have Board of Directors’ approval to borrow ag$®.5 billion under our commercial paper progr&mceeds from any issuance of
commercial paper may be used for general corpprajgoses, including the repurchase of our debtcantmon stock. Commercial paper notes
are short-term senior unsecured notes, with a banot to exceed 270 days from date of issuandeeMissued, the notes bear interest at the
then current market rates. There were $1.8 biltibborrowings outstanding under this commercialgygpogram as of December 31, 2007.
Commercial paper borrowings outstanding at DecerBbeP007 are classified as long-term debt as mctige and intent is to replace short-
term commercial paper outstanding at expiratiom\additional short-term commercial paper for amtarrupted period extending for more
than one year or with borrowings under our seniedit facility.
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As discussed in “Financial Condition” above, maffipor subsidiaries are subject to various goverrtmegulations that restrict the
timing and amount of dividends and other distribngi that may be paid. Based upon these requirenveatare currently estimating
approximately $3.3 billion of dividends to be p&idthe parent company during 2008. During 2007 reeeived $4.4 billion of dividends from
our subsidiaries.

We maintain a common stock repurchase programthsiézed by our Board of Directors. Repurchases bregnade from time to time
prevailing market prices, subject to certain restsns on volume, pricing and timing. The repurdsaare effected from time to time in the o
market, through negotiated transactions and thrqleyis designed to comply with Rule 10b&) under the Exchange Act, as amended. Di
the year ended December 31, 2007, our Board otire authorized increases of $9.5 billion in dock repurchase program, resulting in a
total amount available for repurchases in 2007theceafter of $10.4 billion, which included $0.98ibn of authorization remaining unused at
December 31, 2006. During 2007, we repurchasedetitdd approximately 76.9 million shares at anrage per share price of $79.99, for an
aggregate cost of $6.2 billion. Therefore, as oféeber 31, 2007, we had $4.3 billion of authoraatiemaining under this program.
Subsequent to December 31, 2007, we repurchasecttiredl approximately 15.0 million shares for ggi@gate cost of approximately $1.2
billion, leaving approximately $3.1 billion for éadrized future repurchases at February 12, 2008 sf@uk repurchase program is discretior
as we are under no obligation to repurchase sh&fesepurchase shares because we believe it isdemruse of surplus capital.

Our current pension funding strategy is to fundaamount at least equal to the minimum required fogdis determined under ERISA v
consideration of maximum tax deductible amounts.tke year ended December 31, 2007, no contribsitieere necessary to meet ERISA
required funding levels; however we made tax deblgctliscretionary contributions totaling $8.6 naifi during 2007.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Our estimated contractual obligations and commitsias of December 31, 2007 are as follows:

Payments Due by Perioc

More than
Less than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
(In millions)
Long-term debt, including capital leases $14,483.! $2,206.. $1,115. $2,565.¢ $8,596.(
Operating lease commitmer 888.( 150.5 244 ( 177.¢ 315.7
Projected other postretirement bene 923.t 41.2 188.< 189.¢ 503.¢
Purchase obligation
IBM outsourcing agreements 829.¢ 181.2 362.¢ 286.( —
Other purchase obligatiofs 424.¢ 86.1 144.( 142.5 52.C
Other lon¢-term liabilities 921.1 — 357.¢ 343.¢ 219.¢
Venture capital commitmen 169.4 86.1 80.F 2.8 —
Total contractual obligations and commitme $18,639.¢  $2,751.¢ $2,492.. $3,708.. $9,687.!
1 Includes estimated interest expense.

2 Relates to agreements with International Busineashimes Corporation, or IBM, to provide informati@echnology infrastructure
services. See Note 18 to the audited consolid&teddial statements for the year ended Decembe2@®I7, for further information.
3 Includes obligations related to non-IBM informatithnology service agreements and telecommunicatatracts.

The above table does not contain $815.3 milliogross liabilities for uncertain tax positions fohish we cannot reasonably estimate the
timing of the resolutions with the respective taxauthorities. See Note 14 to the audited cons@litiinancial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2007 for further information.
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In addition to the contractual obligations and cdtnmants discussed above, we have a variety of athetractual agreements related to
acquiring materials and services used in our ojmeratHowever, we do not believe these other agee¢sicontain material noncancelable
commitments.

We believe that funds from future operating casw§, cash and investments and funds available undesredit agreement or from
public or private financing sources will be suféiot for future operations and commitments, andégmital acquisitions and other strategic
transactions.

For additional information on our debt and leaseeitments, see Notes 7 and 16, respectively, tmodited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 200&eat in this Form 10-K.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In connection with an investment in a joint ventto@evelop and operate a well-being center infQalia, we may be required, based on
specific targets, to make additional capital cdnttions up to $18.0 million. Approximately $8.3 hiwh has been funded through December
2007. The well-being center was completed and beganations during December 2006.

For additional information on this off-balance shagangement, see Note 18 to our audited congetidinancial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2006 included in this Form 10-K.

Risk-Based Capital

Our regulated subsidiaries’ states of domicile hete¢utory risk-based capital, or RBC, requiremémtdiealth and other insurance
companies largely based on the NAIC's RBC Model. Attese RBC requirements are intended to measpilcadequacy, taking into
account the risk characteristics of an insureng#tments and products. The NAIC sets forth thenéda for calculating the RBC requirements,
which are designed to take into account asset, fiisggrance risks, interest rate risks and othewraat risks with respect to an individual
insurance company’s business. In general, undett, an insurance company must submit a repdts ®BC level to the state insurance
department or insurance commissioner, as apprepaathe end of each calendar year. Our risk-beapital as of December 31, 2007, which
was the most recent date for which reporting wgsired, was in excess of all mandatory RBC thraefhdh addition to exceeding the RBC
requirements, we are in compliance with the liquidind capital requirements for a licensee of t&BBA and with the tangible net worth
requirements applicable to certain of our Califarsiibsidiaries.

Xl.  Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Segities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

This document contains certain forward-looking miation about WellPoint that is intended to be eedeby the safe harbor for
“forward-looking statements” provided by the PrieaSecurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forwdwdking statements are statements-
are not generally historical facts. Words such aggect(s)”, “feel(s)”, “believe(s)”, “will”, “may”, “anticipate(s)”, “intend”, “estimate”,
“project” and similar expressions are intended ttentify forward-looking statements, which generallg not historical in nature. These
statements include, but are not limited to, finahprojections and estimates and their underlyisgumptions; statements regarding plans,
objectives and expectations with respect to futyrerations, products and services; and statemesganding future performance. Such
statements are subject to certain risks and unéits, many of which are difficult to predict agenerally beyond the control of WellPoint,
that could cause actual results to differ mategidiom those expressed in, or implied or projedigdthe forward-looking information and
statements. These risks and uncertainties incltidese discussed and identified in public filinggwihe U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC, made by WellPoint; increaseeggonent regulation of health benefits, manage@ @rd PBM operations; trends in
health care costs and utilization rates; our alyilib secure sufficient premium rate increases;ahility to contract with providers consistent
with past practice; competitor pricing below markestnds of increasing costs; reduced enrolimentyel as a
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negative change in our health care product mixksiand uncertainties regarding the Medicare Pa@r@ Medicare Part D Prescription Drug
benefits programs, including potential uncollectipiof receivables resulting from processing amd/erifying enroliment (including facilitate
enrollment), inadequacy of underwriting assumptjanability to receive and process correct inforimat uncollectability of premium from
members, increased medical or pharmaceutical castd the underlying seasonality of the businesipwngrade in our financial strength
ratings; litigation and investigations targetedtaalth benefits companies and our ability to resditigation and investigations within
estimates; our ability to meet expectations regagdiepurchases of shares of our common stock; fgndsks with respect to revenue received
from participation in Medicare and Medicaid prograpmor-compliance with the complex regulations imposed/edicare and Medicaid
programs; events that result in negative publiéitythe health benefits industry; failure to effeety maintain and modernize our informati
systems and e-business organization and to maigtzia relationships with third party vendors fofdmmation system resources; events that
may negatively affect our license with the BluesSrand Blue Shield Association; possible impairnoétie value of our intangible assets if
future results do not adequately support goodwilll @ther intangible assets; intense competitioattact and retain employees; unauthori:
disclosure of member sensitive or confidentialrimfation; changes in the economic and market coolitj as well as regulations, applicable
our investment portfolios; possible restrictionglie payment of dividends by our subsidiaries awedeiases in required minimum levels of
capital and the potential negative affect from substantial amount of outstanding indebtednessegdmisks associated with mergers and
acquisitions; various laws and our governing docatsamay prevent or discourage takeovers and busicesbinations; future bio-terrorist
activity or other potential public health epidemiesid general economic downturns. Readers are oaat not to place undue reliance on
these forward-looking statements that speak onlyfdlse date hereof. Except to the extent otherveigaired by federal securities law, we do
not undertake any obligation to republish revisedMard-ooking statements to reflect events or circumstarafter the date hereof or to refl
the occurrence of unanticipated events. Readersigeurged to carefully review and consider theaas disclosures in our SEC reports.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK.

As a result of our investing and borrowing actasti we are exposed to financial market risks, dioly those resulting from changes in
interest rates and changes in equity market valostiPotential impacts discussed below are baseul sgnsitivity analyses performed on our
financial position as of December 31, 2007. Acteallts could vary from these estimates. Our piynohjectives with our investment portfo
are to provide safety and preservation of cagstaficient liquidity to meet cash flow requiremeritse integration of investment strategy with
the business operations and an attainment of a efitinp after-tax total return.

Investments
Our investment portfolio is exposed to three prigrasurces of risk: credit quality risk, interesteraisk and market valuation risk.

The primary risks associated with our fixed magusiecurities are credit quality risk and interegémisk. Credit quality risk is defined as
the risk of a credit downgrade to an individuakfixmaturity security and the potential loss attdbie to that downgrade. Credit quality risk is
managed through our investment policy, which efghbk credit quality limitations on the overall ffolio as well as diversification and
percentage limits on securities of individual issud@he result is a well-diversified portfolio akéd maturity securities, with an average credit
rating of approximately AA. Interest rate risk isfithed as the potential for economic losses ordfixaturity securities due to a change in
market interest rates. Our fixed maturity portfaidnvested primarily in U.S. government secusitieorporate bonds, asset-backed bonds,
mortgage-related securities and municipal bondfabhich represent an exposure to changes itetied of market interest rates. Interest rate
risk is managed by maintaining asset duration withband based upon our liabilities, operatinggrerdnce and liquidity needs. Additionally,
we have the capability of holding any security tatamity, which would allow us to realize full paalue.
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Our portfolio includes corporate securities (apjpmately 36% of the total fixed maturity portfolid Becember 31, 2007), which are
subject to credit/default risk. In a declining eooric environment, corporate yields will usuallyiease prompted by concern over the abilit
corporations to make interest payments, thus cgusithecrease in the price of corporate securdiges the decline in value of the corporate
fixed maturity portfolio. This risk is managed thgh fundamental credit analysis, diversificationssuers and industries and an average credit
rating of the corporate fixed maturity portfolio approximately A-.

Our equity portfolio is comprised of large capitalion and small capitalization domestic equitiesgign equities and index mutual
funds. Our equity portfolio is subject to the vdit inherent in the stock market, driven by comeeover economic conditions, earnings and
sales growth, inflation, and consumer confidendesE systematic risks cannot be managed throughsification alone. However, more
routine risks, such as stock/industry specificgjskre managed by investing in a diversified equitstfolio.

As of December 31, 2007, approximately 89% of ouatilable-for-sale investments were fixed maturggrities. Market risk is
addressed by actively managing the duration, dilmcand diversification of our investment porttolWe have evaluated the impact on the
fixed maturity portfolios fair value considering an immediate 100 basiatpddiange in interest rates. A 100 basis poinease in interest rat
would result in an approximate $656.9 million desein fair value, whereas a 100 basis point deergsinterest rates would result in an
approximate $613.7 million increase in fair vallhile we classify our fixed maturity securities“asailable-for-sale” for accounting
purposes, we believe our cash flows and duratiauoportfolio should allow us to hold securitiesmaturity, thereby avoiding the recognition
of losses should interest rates rise significantly.

Our available-for-sale equity securities portfols, of December 31, 2007, was approximately 11&upfnvestments. An immediate
10% decrease in each equity investment’s valusingrirom market movement, would result in a failue decrease of $193.9 million.
Alternatively, an immediate 10% increase in eaadlitggnvestment’s value, attributable to the saim&dr, would result in a fair value increase
of $193.9 million.

Long-Term Debt

Our total long-term debt at December 31, 2007 v&a8 Billion, and included $1.8 billion of commergmaper. The carrying value of the
commercial paper approximates fair value as thedyidg instruments have variable interest ratanatket value. The remainder of the del
subject to interest rate risk as these instrumigante fixed interest rates and the fair value isctéfd by changes in market interest rates.

At December 31, 2007, we had $7.1 billion of seniosecured notes with fixed interest rates. Thesesnat par value, included $300.0
million at 4.25% due 2009, $700.0 million at 5.000%e 2011, $350.0 million at 6.375% due 2012, $80dllion at 6.80% due 2012, $500.0
million at 5.00% due 2014, $1,100.0 million at D26 due 2016, $700.0 million at 5.875% due 2017 0§Bmnillion at 5.260% due 2022,
$500.0 million at 5.950% due 2034, $800.0 millidar6875% due 2037 and $900.0 million at 5.850% 2M@&6. These notes had combined
carrying and estimated fair value of $7.1 billioxd&7.1 billion, respectively, at December 31, 2007

Our subordinated debt includes surplus notes isbyemhe of our insurance subsidiaries. Par valuengdunts outstanding at
December 31, 2007 included $42.0 million of 9.12&%plus notes due 2010 and $25.1 million of 9.060%plus notes due 2027. Any payrr
of interest or principal on the surplus notes mayrtade only with the prior approval of the Indi@epartment of Insurance. The combined
carrying value of the surplus notes was $66.7 amillind $66.6 million at December 31, 2007 and 20&¥pectively. The estimated fair value
of the surplus notes exceeded the carrying valugliy5 million and $13.6 million at December 3102@nd 2006, respectively.

Should interest rates increase or decrease irutheef the estimated fair value of our fixed ragbtdwvould decrease or increase
accordingly.
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Derivatives

We use derivative financial instruments, specificalterest rate swap agreements, to hedge expasimterest rate risk on our
borrowings. Our derivative use is generally limitechedging purposes and we generally do not useadi®e instruments for speculative
purposes.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we entstedwo fair value hedges with a total notionalue of $440.0 million. The first
hedge is a $240.0 million notional amount interagt swap agreement to receive a fixed 6.800%aradgpay a LIBOR-based floating rate and
expires on August 1, 2012. The second hedge i9@.§2nillion notional amount interest rate swapeagnent to receive a fixed 5.000% rate
and pay a LIBOR-based floating rate and expireBecember 15, 2014.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we entstedwo fair value hedges with a total notionalue of $660.0 million. The first
hedge is a $360.0 million notional amount interag swap agreement to exchange a fixed 6.800%aatel IBOR-based floating rate and
expires on August 1, 2012. The second hedge i9a.@3nillion notional amount interest rate swapeggnent to exchange a fixed 5.000% rate
for LIBOR-based floating rate and expires Deceniier2014.

Changes in interest rates will affect the estimé&a@dvalue of these swap agreements. As of Dece®hbe?007, we recorded an asset of
$41.0 million and a liability of $2.3 million, thestimated fair value of the swaps at that date hdle evaluated the impact on the interest rate
swap’ fair value considering an immediate 100 basiatpdiange in interest rates. A 100 basis poingase in interest rates would result ir
approximate $54.2 million decrease in fair valubeveas a 100 basis point decrease in interestwatglsl result in an approximate $54.2
million increase in fair value.

The unrecognized loss for all cash flow hedgesuhet] in accumulated other comprehensive incomeat@ber 31, 2007 was $8.0
million. As of December 31, 2007, the total amoofhamaortization over the next twelve months foraash flow hedges will increase interest
expense by approximately $0.8 million.
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

Shareholders and Board of Directors
WellPoint, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of WellPoint, Inc. (the “Company”) aPetember 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
related consolidated statements of income, shatelsilequity, and cash flows for each of the thyea&rs in the period ended December 31,
2007. Our audits also included the financial staenschedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a).sEhénancial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupaasibility is to express an opinion on these foiahstatements and schedule based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of WellPoint,
Inc. at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the catadeli results of its operations and its cash flmveach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.Sagally accepted accounting principles. Also, in opinion, the related financial statem
schedule, when considered in relation to the fasgmcial statements taken as a whole, presentyg faiall material respects the information
set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrste&ements, during 2007, the Company changedeétsod of accounting for the recognition
of income tax positions. Also, during 2006, the @amy changed its method of accounting for the reitioy of share-based compensation
expense and the recognition of the funded statits dkfined benefit pension and postretirememsla

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), WellPoint, Inc.’s
internal control over financial reporting as of [@etber 31, 2007, based on criteria establishedtérial Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission and our report datdauzey 13, 2008 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & Y OUNGLLP

Indianapolis, Indiana
February 13, 2008
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(In millions, except share data)

Assets
Current asset
Cash and cash equivalel
Investments availak-for-sale, at fair value
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $1,81and $481.5
Equity securities (cost of $1,732.7 and $1,66
Other invested assets, curr
Accrued investment incorr
Premium and se-funded receivable
Other receivable
Income tax receivabl
Securities lending collater
Deferred tax assets, r
Other current asse
Total current asse
Long-term investments availal-for-sale, at fair value
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $12,83and $15,004.¢
Equity securities (cost of $43.4 and $8:
Other invested assets, lc-term
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill
Other intangible asse
Other noncurrent asse
Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Policy liabilities:
Medical claims payabl
Reserves for future policy benef
Other policyholder liabilitie!
Total policy liabilities
Unearned incom
Accounts payable and accrued expet
Income taxes payab
Security trades pending payal
Securities lending payab
Current portion of lon-term debt
Other current liabilitie:
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current porti
Reserves for future policy benefits, noncurt
Deferred tax liability, ne
Other noncurrent liabilitie
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenc—Note 18
Shareholders’ equity

Preferred stock, without par value, shares autac—100,000,000; shares issued and outsta—none
Common stock, par value $0.01, shares authc—900,000,000;shares issued and outstanding: 55624.2nd 615,500,8€

Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Accumulated other comprehensive incc

Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.

WellPoint, Inc
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

2007 2006
2,767.¢ $ 2,602
1,832.¢ 465.
1,893.] 1,984.1
40.2 72.€
165.¢ 157.2
2,870.. 2,335.
996.2 1,172.
0.¢ =
854.1 904.7
559.¢ 642.¢
1,050.¢ 1,284.1
13,0314 11,6214
13,917.: 14,972.
45.1 86.
752.¢ 628.¢
995.¢ 988.¢
13,435. 13,383.!
9,220.¢ 9,396.;
660.¢ 497
52,060 $ 51,574.
5788.( $ 5,290.
63.7 76.2
1,832.; 2,055,
7,683.¢ 7,422.
1,114 987.¢
2,909.¢ 3,242.;
— 538.:
50.€ 124.¢
854.1 904.7
20.4 521.(
1,755.( 1,397«
14,388. 15,138.!
9,023.t 6,493.;
661.¢ 646.¢
3,004.c 3,350.;
1,991.¢ 1,370
29,069.( 26,999,
5.6 6.1
18,441 19,863.!
4,387. 4,656..
156.1 50.1
22,990. 24,575,
52,060 $ 51,574.
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(In millions, except per share data)

Revenues

Premiums

Administrative fee:

Other revenui

Total operating revent

Net investment incom

Net realized gains (losses) on investm:
Total revenue

Expenses

Benefit expens

Selling, general and administrative exper
Selling expens
General and administrative expel

Total selling, general and administrative expe
Cost of drugs

Interest expens

Amortization of other intangible ass¢

Total expense

Income before income tax expens
Income tax expens
Net income

Net income per share

Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes.

WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Income

Years ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
$55,865.(  $51,971.(  $40,680.(
3,674.¢ 3,595.¢ 2,792.(
582. 593.1 519.;
60,122.(  56,160.: 43,991
1,001.. 878.7 633.1
11.2 (0.3) (10.2)
61,134..  57,038.f 44,614.
46,036  42,191. 32,598.
1,716.¢ 1,654.1 1,474.;
6,984.; 7,163.; 5,798.!
8,701.f 8,817 7,272
400.: 4142 387.:
447 403.E 226.
290.7 297. 238.¢
55,876  52,124. 40,723.
5,257.¢ 4,914 3,890.
1,912.F 1,819.F 1,426.F
$ 3,345 $ 3,094 $ 2,463.
$ 56/ $ 49¢ $  4.0¢
$ 556 $ 48 $ 3.9
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WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In millions) Years ended December 31
2007 2006 2005
Operating activities
Net income $ 3,345. $ 3,094.¢ $ 2,463.¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Net realized (gains) losses on investm (11.2) 0.3 10.z
Loss on disposal of ass¢ 11.2 1.7 2.7
Deferred income taxe (105.5) 273.7 (102.¢)
Amortization, net of accretio 466.( 471.¢ 437.¢
Depreciation expens 120.2 133.( 118.%
Sharebased compensatic 177.1 246.¢ 81.2
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic (153.9) (136.5 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of business combinatior
Receivables, ne (448.6) (627.9) (230.9)
Other invested assets, curr: 26.¢ 234.¢ —
Other asset 174.¢ (362.9) (165.6€)
Policy liabilities 257. 852.¢ 46.2
Unearned incom 125.t (69.5) (38.2)
Accounts payable and accrued expel (235.9) (91.9) 188.€
Other liabilities 176.5 134.: (136.7)
Income taxe: 447.% (112.0 459.¢
Other, ne (29.9) — —
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,344 ¢ 4,044.; 3,135.F
Investing activities
Purchases of fixed maturity securit (8,512.() (11,198.1) (17,457.1)
Proceeds from fixed maturity securiti
Sales 6,709.( 9,630.: 14,391
Maturities, calls and redemptio 1,618. 721.€ 1,344t
Purchase of equity securiti (1,389.9) (2,434 (4,530.6
Proceeds from sales of equity securi 1,411.° 2,950.¢ 4,480.(
Changes in securities lending collate 50.€ 485.2 (731.9
Purchases of subsidiaries, net of cash acq (298.5 (25.9) (2,589.7)
Proceeds from sales of subsidiaries, net of cask — — 92.¢
Purchases of property and equipm (322.0 (2193.9 (161.9)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn 57.& 6.4 10.Z
Other, ne (94.9) (399.9) —
Net cash used in investing activitie (768.9) (457.9) (5,151.6
Financing activities
Net proceeds from (repayments of) commercial phpaowings 502.¢ (306.0) 808.2
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings 1,978.: 2,668.: 1,700.(
Repayment of lor-term borrowings (509.%) (2,162.) (155.7)
Changes in securities lending pays (50.€) (485.2) 731.¢
Changes in bank overdra (217.0) 414.: 121.2
Repurchase and retirement of common s (6,151.9) (4,550.7) (333.9
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock optiodseamployee stock purchase p 784.% 559.t 429.c
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic 153.c 136.5 —
Other, ne — — (2.5
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activitie (3,409.9 (3,725.0 3,299.!
Change in cash and cash equivalt 165.¢ (238.)) 1,283.(
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 2,602.. 2,740.. 1,457..
Cash and cash equivalents at end of yei $2,767.¢ $ 2,602.: $ 2,740.:

See accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

(In millions)

January 1, 200

Net income

Change in net unrealized gains on investm

Change in net unrealized gains on cash flow he

Change in additional minimum pension liabil

Comprehensive incorr

Issuance of common stock and conversion of stotkmpin
connection with WellChoice, Inc., net, of issuetsand
elimination of subsidiary held stock and other nase
accounting adjustmen

Repurchase and retirement of common s

Issuance of common stock under employee stock pretof
repurchases under stock-for-stock option exercigssiicted
stock amortization and related tax bene

Two-for-one stock spli

December 31, 20C

Net income

Change in net unrealized losses on investr

Change in net unrealized losses on cash flow he

Change in additional minimum pension liabil

Comprehensive incorr

Repurchase and retirement of common s

Reclassification of unearned share-based compensati
connection with adoption of FAS 12!

Issuance of common stock under employee stock preatof
related tax benef

Adoption of FAS 158, net of te

December 31, 20C

Net income

Change in net unrealized gains on investm

Change in net unrealized losses on cash flow he

Change in net periodic pension and postretiremests

Comprehensive incomr

Repurchase and retirement of common s

Issuance of common stock under employee stock pretof
related tax benef

Adoption of FIN 48

December 31, 20C

See accompanying notes.

Common Stock

Accumulated

Additional Other ) Total
Retainec Unearned Comprehensive Shareholders
Number Paid-in Share-Based
of Share: Par Value Capital Earnings Compensatior Income (Loss) Equity

302.¢ $ 3.0 $ 17,433. $ 1,960.: $ 835 $ 145.¢ $ 19,459.(
— — — 2,463.¢ — — 2,463.¢
— — — — — (157.%) (157.%)
— — — — — 9.9 9.7
— — — — — 0.8 0.8
2,297.
42.7 04 2,953.: — — — 2,953.
(3.9 — (146.€) (186.€) — — (333.9)
12.C 0.1 675.2 (60.5) 14 — 616.:

307.( 3.1 — (3.2 — — —
660.< 6.6 20,915. 4,173k (82.7) (20.3) 24,993.
— — — 3,094.¢ — — 3,094.¢
— — — — — 180.2 180.2
— — — — — (5.6 (5.6
— — — — — 4.7 (%)
3,264.¢
(60.7) (0.€) (1,937.9) (2,612.9) — — (4,550.%)

— — (82.3) — 82.1 — —
15.€ 0.1 967.5 — — — 967.¢
— — — — — (99.5) (99.5)
615.£ 6.1 19,863.! 4,656.. — 50.1 24,575.4
— — — 3,345.. — — 3,345.¢
— — — — — 2.2 2.2
— — — — — (2.4) (2.4)
— — — — — 106.2 106.2
3,451.
(76.9) 0.8 (2,538.9) (3,612.9) — — (6,151.¢)
17.€ 0.3 1,115.¢ — — — 1,116.:
— — — (1.6) — — (1.€)
556.. $ 56 $18441. $4387¢ $ — $ 156.1 $  22,990.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2007
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data)
1. Organization

References to the terms “we”, “our”, “us”, “WellPi or the “Company” used throughout these Note€dosolidated Financial
Statements refer to WellPoint, Inc., an Indiangoaeation, which name changed from Anthem, IncAlthem, effective November 30, 2004,
and unless the context otherwise requires, itctard indirect subsidiaries.

We are the largest health benefits company in t@freemmercial membership in the United Statesjisgr34.8 million medical
members as of December 31, 2007. We offer a brpacteim of network-based managed care plans tiatge and small employer,
individual, Medicaid and senior markets. Our mambcgere plans include preferred provider organiratior PPOs; health maintenance
organizations, or HMOs; point-of-service, or PO&ngl, traditional indemnity plans and other hybiahg, including consumer-driven health
plans, or CDHPs; hospital only and limited bengft@ducts. In addition, we provide a broad arraynahaged care services to self-funded
customers, including claims processing, undervgijtstop loss insurance, actuarial services, providevork access, medical cost manager
and other administrative services. We also prosit@rray of specialty and other products and seswtich as life and disability insurance
benefits, pharmacy benefit management, or PBM.,iglhg@harmacy, dental, vision, behavioral heakiméfits services, long-term care
insurance and flexible spending accounts. We aemdied to conduct insurance operations in all&@sthrough our subsidiaries.

We are an independent licensee of the Blue Crad8are Shield Association, or BCBSA, an associatbmdependent health benefit
plans, and serve our members as the Blue Crossséecfor California and as the Blue Cross and Bhield licensee for: Colorado,
Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Maine, #digri (excluding 30 counties in the Kansas Cityaardlevada, New Hampshire, New Y1
(as Blue Cross Blue Shield in 10 New York City metlitan and surrounding counties and as Blue Goo83ue Cross Blue Shield in selected
upstate counties only), Ohio, Virginia (excluditng tNorthern Virginia suburbs of Washington, D.Gjl &Visconsin. We also serve customers
throughout various parts of the country as UniCare.

2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies

Basis of PresentationThe accompanying consolidated financial statemiatade the accounts of WellPoint and its subsid&and
have been prepared in conformity with U.S. gengiadicepted accounting principles, or GAAP. All sfipant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of consolidated financial statemé@ntonformity with GAAP requires us to make esties and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported irtonsolidated financial statements and accompanyatgs. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Two-for-One Stock SplitOn April 25, 2005, our Board of Directors approwetivo-for-one split of shares of common stock, whias
effected in the form of a 100 percent common sttieldend. All shareholders of record on May 13, 208ceived one additional share of
WellPoint common stock for each share of commooksheld on that date. The additional shares of comstock were distributed to
shareholders of record in the form of a stock dividl on May 31, 2005. All historical weighted averafpare and per share amounts and all
references to share-based compensation data akdtmparces of WellPoint's common stock for all pet$ presented have been adjusted to
reflect this two-for-one stock split.
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2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

Investments:n accordance with Statement of Financial Accountitandards (FAS) No. 11B¢ccounting for Certain Investments in D
and Equity Securitiesur fixed maturity and equity securities are clfsdias “available-for-sale” or “trading” and amported at fair value.
We classify our investments in available-for-s@ed maturity securities as either current or norent assets based on their contractual
maturities. Certain investments which we intendeb within the next twelve months are carried @sent without regard to their contractual
maturities. Additionally, certain of our investmsnivhich are used to satisfy contractual, regwatorother requirements, continue to be
classified as long-term, without regard to contnattaturity. The unrealized gains or losses oh bat current and long-term fixed maturity
and equity securities classified as available-fde-sire included in accumulated other compreherisomme as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity, unless the decline in vadugeiemed to be other-than-temporary and we doawat the intent and ability to hold such
securities until their full cost can be recoveliedyhich case such securities are written dowratovfalue and the loss is charged to realized
losses in current operations. We evaluate our tnvest securities for other-than-temporary declin@sed on quantitative and qualitative
factors.

We maintain various rabbi trusts to account forahsets and liabilities under certain deferred eamation plans. Under these plans, the
participants can defer certain types of compensatia elect to receive a return on the deferrecuamsdased on the changes in fair value of
various investment options, primarily a varietynafitual funds. Rabbi trust assets were previousigsified as noncurrent available-for-sale
investments. Effective January 1, 2006 and in cotime with a restructuring of the plans, we changadclassification for the majority of su
securities from available-for-sale to trading, whare reported in other invested assets, curreheigonsolidated balance sheet. The change in
the fair value of the trading portfolio rabbi tr@stsets during 2007 and 2006, which together vathinvestment income from trading portfolio
rabbi trust assets, totaled $2.4 and $44.2, reispdctis classified in general and administrat@ense in the consolidated statement of
income, consistent with the related increase iemefl compensation expense.

During December 2006, we initiated a program whgree generally purchase corporate-owned life inscegolicies on participants in
the deferred compensation plans. The cash surrematier of the corporate-owned life insurance pe$ids reported in other invested assets,
long-term in the consolidated balance sheet. Th@gh in cash surrender value is reported as aetaffshe premium expense of the policies
and is classified as general and administrativeese.

We use the equity method of accounting for investisien companies in which our ownership interestbdes us to influence the
operating or financial decisions of the investempany. Our proportionate share of equity in nebine of these unconsolidated affiliates is
reported with net investment income.

For asset-backed securities included in fixed nitgtsecurities, we recognize income using an efffectield based on anticipated
prepayments and the estimated economic life o$d¢arrities. When estimates of prepayments chahgeftective yield is recalculated to
reflect actual payments to date and anticipatagtéupayments. The net investment in the secuigtiadjusted to the amount that would have
existed had the new effective yield been appliadesthe acquisition of the securities. Such adjaestsiare reflected in net investment income.

All securities sold resulting in investment gaimsl dosses are recorded on the trade date. Regj&érd and losses are determined on the
basis of the cost or amortized cost of the spes#iurities sold.

We participate in securities lending programs whgmarketable securities in our investment porntfalie transferred to independent
brokers or dealers based on, among other things,dteditworthiness in exchange
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2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

for collateral initially equal to at least 102 pent of the market value of the securities on laadhia thereafter maintained at a minimum of 100
percent of the market value of the securities Idaii@e market value of the securities on loan thdsrrower is monitored daily and the
borrower is required to deliver additional collatef the market value of the collateral falls b&l@00 percent of the market value of the
securities on loan. The fair value of the collataraounted to $854.1 and $904.7, which represeéd8pércent and 103 percent of the market
value of the securities on loan at December 317 200 2006, respectively. In accordance with FAG, 2&¢counting for Transfers and
Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishmehftgabilities , we recognize the collateral as an asset, whickpisrted as “securities lending
collateral” on our balance sheet and we recordrieesponding liability for the obligation to retutime collateral to the borrower, which is
reported as “securities lending payable.” The sdearon loan are reported in the applicable inwestt category on the consolidated balance
sheet.

Cash EquivalentsAll highly liquid investments with maturities of e months or less when purchased are classifiedsdsequivalents.

Derivative Financial Instrumentsin accordance with FAS 133ccounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities, all
investments in derivatives are recorded at fain@al derivative is typically defined as an instembwhose value is “derived” from an
underlying instrument, index or rate, has a nofi@maount, requires little or no initial investmeartd can be net settled. We typically invest in
the following types of derivative financial instremts: interest rate swaps, call options, embeddadalives and warrants. Derivatives
embedded within non-derivative instruments (sucbh@®ns embedded in convertible fixed maturityusé®s) are bifurcated from the host
instrument when the embedded derivative is notlglead closely related to the host instrument.

Our derivatives are reported as other current assdiabilities or other noncurrent assets oriliads, as appropriate, with the exception
of embedded derivative instruments not subjeciftordation, which are reported together with tHedst instrument. If certain correlation,
hedge effectiveness and risk reduction criterianaeg a derivative may be specifically designated aedge of exposure to changes in fair
value or cash flow. The accounting for changes@fair value of a derivative depends on the intenglse of the derivative and the nature of
any hedge designation thereon.

Any amounts excluded from the assessment of heffigtieeness, as well as the ineffective portioritaf gain or loss, are reported in
results of operations immediately. If the derivatis not designated as a hedge, the gain or lesfirgy from the change in the fair value of the
derivative is recognized in results of operatianthie period of change.

Our accounting for changes in the fair value ofvdgives is as follows:

Nature of Hedge Designation: _ Derivative’s Change in Fair Value Reflected In:
No hedge designatic Realized investment gains or los:
Fair value hedg Realized investment gains or losses, along witiciange in the fair value of the hedged assetobililly
Cash flow hedg Other comprehensive income, with subsequent réfitag®n to earnings when the hedged transac

asset or liability impacts earnin

We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively whisndetermined that one of the following has aced: (i) the derivative is no long
highly effective in offsetting changes in the fe@lue or cash flows of a
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2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

hedged item; (ii) the derivative expires or is soétminated or exercised; (iii) the derivativairgdesignated as a hedge instrument because it i
unlikely that a forecasted transaction will ocdir) a hedged firm commitment no longer meets tefinition of a firm commitment; or (v) we
determine that the designation of the derivativa Aedge instrument is no longer appropriate.

If hedge accounting is discontinued, the derivatisecontinue to be carried in our consolidatedanae sheet at its fair value. When
hedge accounting is discontinued because the di@evao longer qualifies as an effective fair vahezlge, the related hedged asset or liability
will no longer be adjusted for fair value chandg&fhen hedge accounting is discontinued becausgibisable that a forecasted transaction will
not occur, the accumulated unrealized gains arsgtomcluded in accumulated other comprehensivaieowill be recognized immediately in
results of operations. When hedge accounting odisnued because the hedged item no longer meetdefinition of a firm commitment, any
asset or liability that was recorded pursuant &fttm commitment will be removed from the balasteet and recognized as a gain or loss in
current period results of operations. In all othigwations in which hedge accounting is discontihwhanges in the fair value of the derivative
are recognized in current period results of openasti

Our use of derivatives is limited by statutes agglitations promulgated by the various regulatojié®to which we are subject, and by
our own derivative policy.

Credit exposure associated with nperformance by the counterparties to derivativerimsents is generally limited to the uncollaterad
fair value of the asset related to instrumentsgazed in the consolidated balance sheets. We pttemmitigate the risk of non-performance
by selecting counterparties with high credit rasimgnd monitoring their creditworthiness and by diifging derivatives among multiple
counterparties.

We have exposure to economic losses due to intexestisk arising from changes in the level oratitity of interest rates. We attempt to
mitigate our exposure to interest rate risk throagtive portfolio management, which includes rebeilag our existing portfolios of assets and
liabilities, as well as changing the characterssti€investments to be purchased or sold in theéutn addition, derivative financial
instruments are used to modify the interest ragmsure of certain liabilities or forecasted tratisas. These strategies include the use of
interest rate swaps and forward contracts. Thesaiments are generally used to lock interest m@tés hedge (on an economic basis) interest
rate risks associated with variable rate debt. Aestused these types of instruments as designatiegbs against specific liabilities.

The contractual or notional amounts for derivatiges used to calculate the exchange of contrapaahents under the agreements and
are not representative of the potential for gaitoss on these instruments. Interest rates andyeppices affect the fair value of derivatives.
The fair values generally represent the estimateauats that we would expect to receive or pay upamination of the contracts at the
reporting date. Dealer quotes are available fostauttially all of our derivatives. For derivativestruments not actively traded, fair values are
estimated using values obtained from independécihgrservices, costs to settle or quoted markieeprof comparable instruments.

Premium and Self-Funded ReceivableBremium and self-funded receivables include thelected amounts from insured and self-
funded groups, and are reported net of an allowércdgoubtful accounts of $132.2 and $120.8 at Demer 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is based ototical collection trends and our judgment regagdime ability to collect specific accounts.
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2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

Other ReceivablesOther receivables include proceeds due from brakeisvestment trades, government programs, pharseles,
reinsurance, claim recoveries and other miscellamemounts due to us. These receivables are rdpmtef an allowance for uncollectible
amounts of $141.4 and $118.0 at December 31, 2002@06, respectively, which is based on histogcéiection trends and our judgment
regarding the ability to collect specific amounts.

Our PBM companies contract with pharmaceutical eturers, some of whom provide rebates based @wfuhe manufacturers’
products by our PBM companies’ affiliated and ndiiliated clients. We accrue rebates receivabl@anonthly basis based on the terms of the
applicable contracts, historical data and currstitreates. The PBM companies bill these rebatelseartanufacturers on a quarterly basis. We
record rebates attributable to affiliated clierdsaaeduction to benefit expense. Rebates atthbrita non-affiliated clients are accrued as
rebates receivable and a corresponding payabtédaxmounts of the rebates to be remitted to nfiliegdd clients in accordance with their
contracts is also recorded. We generally receibates between two to five months after billing.

Property and EquipmentProperty and equipment is recorded at cost, natafimulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
principally by the straight-line method over esttethuseful lives ranging from 15 to 39 years foitdings and improvements, three to seven
years for furniture and equipment, and three te figars for computer software. Leasehold improvésarme depreciated over the term of
related lease. Certain costs related to the denedapor purchase of internal-use software are aligatd and amortized in accordance with
AICPA Statement of Position 98-Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Dmpe or Obtained for Internal Use

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset$Ve follow FAS 141 Business Combinationsand FAS 142Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets. FAS 141 requires business combinations to bewsded for using the purchase method of accountinbitealso specifies the types of
acquired intangible assets that are required tetegnized and reported separately from goodwildér FAS 142, goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite lives are not aimed but are tested for impairment at least atyw@oodwill represents the excess of cost of
acquisition over the fair value of net assets aegliOther intangible assets represent the vaksgreed to subscriber bases, provider and
hospital networks, Blue Cross and Blue Shield tmaalks, licenses, nocempete and other agreements. Goodwill and oth@ngible assets a
allocated to reportable segments based on thgdhie of the components of the businesses acqutethermore, goodwill and other
intangible assets are allocated to reporting unitecordance with FAS 142 for purposes of the ahimipairment test.

Retirement BenefitsPension benefits are recorded in accordance with FAEmployers’ Accounting for Pensioris. September 2006,
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)assFAS 158Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiad &ther
Postretirement Pla—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 1064,32(R). FAS 158 retains the previous measurement and
disclosure requirements of FAS 87. In addition, FISB requires the recognition of the funded stafysension and other postretirement
benefit plans on the consolidated balance sheethé&mwnore, for fiscal years ending after Decemlier2D08, FAS 158 requires fiscal-year-end
measurements of plan assets and benefit obligatingnating the use of earlier measurement dedeently permissible. We will adopt the
measurement date provisions of FAS 158 on Decethe2008, using the alternative transition methodieu of re-measuring plan assets at
the beginning of 2008, the alternative transitiogtimod allows for the use of the September 30, 200asurement date with net periodic ber
costs for the period from October 1, 2007 to Decendi, 2008 allocated proportionately between gnsamhent of retained earnings (for the
period from October 1, 2007 to December 31, 200d)reet
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2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

periodic benefit cost for 2008 (for the period frdamuary 1, 2008 to December 31, 2008). Effectiil the adoption of the recognition
provisions of FAS 158 on December 31, 2006, preslipunrecognized actuarial gains or losses and petvice cost were recognized on the
balance sheet within accumulated other compreheisoome, net of any resulting deferred tax balanthe adoption of FAS 158 decreased
accumulated other comprehensive income by $9T®eémber 31, 2006. Prepaid pension benefits represepaid costs related to defined
benefit pension plans and are reported with otbecarrent assets. Postretirement benefits represgstanding obligations for retiree medical,
life, vision and dental benefits. Liabilities foepsion and other postretirement benefits are regavith current and noncurrent liabilities based
on the amount by which the actuarial present vafueenefits payable in the next 12 months incluidetthe benefit obligation exceeds the fair
value of plan assets.

Medical Claims Payablet iabilities for medical claims payable include esdited provisions for incurred but not paid claimsan
undiscounted basis, as well as estimated provigmmexpenses related to the processing of cldinesirred but not paid claims include (1) an
estimate for claims that are incurred but not regzhras well as claims reported to us but not yetgssed through our systems; and (2) claims
reported to us and processed through our systetmobyet paid.

Liabilities for both claims incurred but not repadtand reported but not yet processed throughysterss are determined in aggregate
employing actuarial methods that are commonly useklealth insurance actuaries and meet Actuaréaidstrds of Practice. Actuarial
Standards of Practice require that the claim litdsl be adequate under moderately adverse ciremtss. We determine the amount of the
liability for incurred but not paid claims by folldng a detailed actuarial process that entailsgubisth historical claim payment patterns as
as emerging medical cost trends to project our ésghate of claim liabilities.

We regularly review and set assumptions regardis) trends and utilization when initially estabirgclaim liabilities. We continually
monitor and adjust the claims liability and benefipense based on subsequent paid claims activityr assumptions regarding cost trends
and utilization are significantly different thantaal results, our income statement and financialtfpm could be impacted in future periods.

Premium deficiencies are recognized when it is pbbdthat expected claims and administrative exgendll exceed future premiums on
existing medical insurance contracts without comgition of investment income. Determination of premdeficiencies for longer duration li
and disability contracts includes consideratiome&stment income. For purposes of premium defaies) contracts are deemed to be either
short or long duration and are grouped in a manaesistent with our method of acquiring, servicamgl measuring the profitability of such
contracts. Once established, premium deficiengiesedeased commensurate with actual claims expegiever the remaining life of the
contract.

Reserves for Future Policy BenefitReserves for future policy benefits include ligi@k for life and long-term disability insurance
policy benefits based upon interest, mortality ematbidity assumptions from published actuarialéabmodified based upon our experience.
Future policy benefits also include liabilities fosurance policies for which some of the premiueteived in earlier years are intended to pay
anticipated benefits to be incurred in future yektgure policy benefits are continually monitosed reviewed, and when reserves are
adjusted, differences are reflected in benefit azpe

The current portion of reserves for future poli@nbfits relates to the portion of such reserveswesexpect to pay within one year. We
believe that our liabilities for future policy bdite, along with future
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2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

premiums received are adequate to satisfy our atérbenefit liability; however, these estimatesiaherently subject to a number of variable
circumstances. Consequently, the actual resultisl abffier materially from the amounts recorded ur gonsolidated financial statements.

Other Policyholder Liabilities:Other policyholder liabilities include rate stab#tion reserves associated with retrospectivebdrat
insurance contracts as well as certain case-speeserves. Rate stabilization reserves representhaulated premiums that exceed what
customers owe us based on actual claim experiertara paid based on contractual requirements.

Revenue RecognitionPremiums for fully-insured contracts are recogniaedevenue over the period insurance coveragevided.
Premiums applicable to the unexpired contractue¢rage periods are reflected in the accompanyingaaated balance sheets as unearned
income. Premiums include revenue from retrospelgtinaded contracts where revenue is based on tiraaed ultimate loss experience of the
contract. Premium revenue includes an adjustmemefoospectively rated refunds based on an estimfaincurred claims. Premium rates for
certain lines of business are subject to approydhbé Department of Insurance of each respectate st

Administrative fees include revenue from certaiougr contracts that provide for the group to besitfor all, or with supplemental
insurance arrangements, a portion of their clairpggence. We charge these self-funded groups lauinétrative fee, which is based on the
number of members in a group or the group’s claipeeence. In addition, administrative fees incliagdeounts received for the administration
of Medicare or certain other government progranredéd our self-funded arrangements, revenue is rezed as administrative services are
performed. All benefit payments under these prograre excluded from benefit expense.

Other revenue principally includes amounts fromlroeder prescription drug sales, which are recogghias revenue when we ship
prescription drug orders.

Federal Income TaxesWe file a consolidated income tax return. Defeiresbme tax assets and liabilities are recognizedeimporary
differences between the financial statement anddaxn bases of assets and liabilities based aoted tax rates and laws. The deferred tax
benefits of the deferred tax assets are recogmiztte extent realization of such benefits is niikkedy than not. Deferred income tax expense
or benefit generally represents the net changefierced income tax assets and liabilities durirgytéar. Current income tax expense repre:
the tax consequences of revenues and expensentbutagable or deductible on various income tawmes for the year reported.

In July 2006, FASB Interpretation No. 48counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an iptetation of FASB Statement 1@9,FIN
48, was issued. Among other things, FIN 48 createsdel to address uncertainty in tax positionsaaufies the accounting for income taxes
by prescribing a minimum recognition threshold, evhall income tax positions must achieve beforadpeecognized in the financial
statements. In addition, FIN 48 requires expandeuial disclosures, including a rollforward of treginning and ending aggregate
unrecognized tax benefits as well as specific tegthited to tax uncertainties for which it is reaably possible the amount of unrecognized tax
benefit will significantly increase or decreasehiittwelve months. FIN 48 was effective for us anuary 1, 2007. The cumulative effect of
the adoption of FIN 48 was recorded as a redudtia@ur beginning retained earnings of $1.6 at Jagnia2007.
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2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

Share-Based CompensatiorOur compensation philosophy provides for sHzased compensation, including stock options arndctsd
stock awards, as well as an employee stock purgilase Stock options are granted for a fixed nundfeshares with an exercise price at least
equal to the fair value of the shares at the ditieeogrant. Restricted stock awards are issuégeafair value of the stock on the grant date.
Through December 31, 2007, the employee stock psechlan allowed for a purchase price per sharehwki85% of the lower of the fair
value of a share of common stock on (i) the firatling day of the plan quarter, or (ii) the lasting day of the plan quarter. Beginning
January 1, 2008, the employee stock purchase ptamsafor a purchase price per share which is 85%h@fair value of a share of common
stock on the last trading day of the plan quafterough December 31, 2005, we accounted for shaseebcompensation using the intrinsic
value method under Accounting Principles Board @pirNo. 25,Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees APB 25, and, accordingly,
recognized no compensation expense related to sftakns and employee stock purchases. For gréméeswicted stock unearned
compensation equivalent to the fair value of thereb at the date of grant was recorded as a semamaponent of shareholders’ equity and
subsequently amortized to compensation expensetloweward’s vesting period. We have historica#iyarted pro forma results under the
disclosure-only provisions of FAS 128¢counting for Stock-Based Compensatias amended by FAS 148ccounting for Stock-Based
Compensation—Transition and Disclosure

On December 16, 2004, FAS 123 (revised 208hgare-Based Paymeimt, FAS 123R, was issued. FAS 123R is a revisioRAS 123,
supersedes APB 25 and amends FASSiatement of Cash Flow&enerally, the approach in FAS 123R is similath approach described in
FAS 123. However, FAS 123R requires all share- dasgments to employees, including grants of eng#atock options and discounts
associated with employee stock purchases, to lgnéed as compensation expense in the incomerstatedased on their fair values. Pro
forma disclosure of compensation expense is nogloag alternative. Additionally, excess tax besefithich result from actual tax benefits
exceeding deferred tax benefits previously recaghlzased on grant date fair value, are recognigediditional paid-in-capital and are
reclassified from operating cash flows to financoagh flows in the consolidated statement of closinst

We adopted FAS 123R on January 1, 2006, using tdsfied prospective transition method. Under thedified prospective transition
method, fair value accounting and recognition psimris of FAS 123R are applied to share-based avggeadded or modified subsequent to the
date of adoption and prior periods presented areestated. In addition, for awards granted priothie effective date, the unvested portion of
the awards are recognized in periods subsequdimé tadoption based on the grant date fair valuerahéhed for pro forma disclosure purposes
under FAS 123.

Our share-based employee compensation plans amchpiigns are described in Note 12.
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2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

The following table illustrates the effect on owtimcome and earnings per share for the year ebdedmber 31, 2005 if we had applied
the fair value recognition provisions of FAS 123tare-based employee compensation:

Reported net incomr $2,463.¢
Add: Shar-based employee compensation expense for reststiiel and stock awards included in reported netrive (net o

tax) 52.¢
Less: Total sha-based employee compensation expense determined fairdealue based method for all awards (net gf (175.9)
Pro forma net incom $2,341.°

Basic earnings per shai

As reportec $ 4.0

Pro forma 3.8¢
Diluted earnings per shat

As reportec $ 3.9

Pro forma 3.72

Earnings per ShareEarnings per share amounts, on a basic and dih#isid, have been calculated based upon the weightrdge
common shares outstanding for the period.

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution andrispaited by dividing income available to common shatders by the weightesiverage
number of common shares outstanding for the pebBddted earnings per share includes the dilutiffeat of stock options and restricted stc
using the treasury stock method. The treasury stoethod assumes exercise of stock options anchgestirestricted stock, with the assumed
proceeds used to purchase common stock at thegeverarket price for the period. The difference letwthe number of shares assumed
issued and number of shares assumed purchasedaetsr¢he dilutive shares.

Advertising costs We use print, broadcast and other advertising @mpte our products. The cost of advertising is aspd as incurred
and totaled $219.5, $223.7, and $143.9 for thesyeaded December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, resglgctiv

ReclassificationsCertain prior year amounts have been reclassifiewdhform to the current year presentation.
3. Business Combinations
Acquisition of Imaging Management Holdings, LL(

On August 1, 2007, we completed our acquisitiomtdging Management Holdings, LLC, or IMH, whoseesbusiness is the holding
company parent of American Imaging Management, bicAIM. AIM is a leading radiology benefit managent and technology company t
provides services to us as well as other customaisnwide, including nine other Blue Cross andeB&hield licensees. The acquisition of
AIM supports our strategy to become the leadeffordable quality care by incorporating AIM’s sezes and technology for more effective
and efficient use of radiology services by our mersb
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3. Business Combinations (continued)

The purchase price for the acquisition was appratéty $300.0 in cash. The acquisition was accoufatedsing the purchase method of
accounting. The results of operations for AIM areluded in our consolidated financial statementg#riods following August 1, 2007. In
accordance with FAS 14Business Combinationghe purchase price was allocated to the fairevaluAIM assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, including identifiable intangible assé$1d 1.5, and the excess of purchase price oveathgalue of net assets acquired resulted in
$216.4 of non-tax deductible goodwill, which wasamled in our Commercial and Consumer Busines§GB, segment. Of the $111.5 of
acquired intangible assets, $80.0 was assigneastormer relationships with an average life of 1arge$16.2 to a trade name with a life of 13
years, $11.1 to completed technology with an awelifg of six years, and $4.2 to provider networlth a life of five years. The purcha
price allocation is preliminary and additional refiments may occur.

The pro forma effects of this acquisition were matterial to our consolidated results of operations.
Acquisition of WellChoice, Inc

On December 28, 2005, we completed our acquisi@iffavellChoice, Inc., or WellChoice. The acquisitimas accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting, and was deemedieffézecember 31, 2005 for accounting purposesoitingly, the operating results of
WellChoice are included in our consolidated finahstatements in periods following December 31,5200

Under the merger agreement, WellChoice stockholdmmsived thirty-eight dollars and twenty-five ce($38.25) in cash and 0.5191 of a
share of WellPoint common stock for each share elfl@hoice common stock outstanding. The value eftthnsaction is estimated to be
approximately $6,463.9, including cash of $3,12€hé,issuance of 42.4 shares of common stock valtu§8,180.8, 0.3 shares of WellChoice
restricted stock and stock units converted to WhtlPstock valued at $19.8, WellChoice stock opiconverted to WellPoint stock options
valued at $113.4, and $23.5 of transaction costs.fair value of common stock issued was based7drB$ per share, which represents the
average closing price of our common stock for the frading days ranging from two days before to tays after September 27, 2005, the
the merger was announced.

In accordance with FAS 141 the purchase price Wasaded to the fair value of WellChoice assetsufiegl and liabilities assumed,
including identifiable intangible assets. The escebpurchase price over the fair value of nettassequired resulted in $3,450.4 of non-tax
deductible goodwill which was recorded in the C@graent.

The fair values of WellChoice assets acquired &tilities assumed at the date of the acquisitaljisted for final purchase price
allocations, are summarized as follows:

Current assel $4,284.:
Goodwill 3,450.¢
Other intangible asse 1,729.!
Other noncurrent asse 186.¢
Total assets acquire 9,650.
Current liabilities 2,482.¢
Noncurrent liabilities 703.¢
Total liabilities assume 3,186.¢
Net assets acquire $6,463.¢
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3. Business Combinations (continued)

Of the $1,729.5 of acquired intangible assets,38was assigned to Blue Cross and Blue Shieli#tnarks, which are not subject to
amortization due to their indefinite life. The reimiag acquired intangible assets consist of $568 ibscriber base with an average life of 15
years and $13.5 of provider contracts with a 2@ jita

The pro forma effects of this acquisition were matterial to our consolidated results of operations.
Acquisition of Lumenos, Inc

On June 9, 2005, we completed our acquisition ahénos, Inc., or Lumenos, a market leader in conswitieen health programs. The
total consideration for the acquisition was appmeadiely $185.0 in cash paid to the stockholderswhénos. The acquisition was accounted for
using the purchase method of accounting, and wamee effective June 1, 2005 for accounting purposesordingly, the results of operatic
for Lumenos are included in our consolidated finalhstatements for periods following June 1, 2d@%ccordance with FAS 141, the purch
price was allocated to the fair value of Lumenasetsacquired and liabilities assumed, includimgpiifiable intangible assets, and the exce
purchase price over the fair value of net assejsieed resulted in $119.3 of non-tax deductibledyaitl, which was recorded in the CCB
segment.

The pro forma effects of this acquisition were matterial to our consolidated results of operations.
4. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

A summary of the change in the carrying amountaafdyvill by reportable segment (see Note 19) for280d 2006 is as follows:

CCB 4sB Total

Balance as of January 1, 2C $11,569.1 $1,899.¢ $13,469.(
Goodwill acquirec — 34.2 34.2
Purchase price allocation adjustme (102.6) (17.7) (119.9)
Balance as of December 31, 2( 11,467.( 1,916. 13,383.!
Goodwill acquirec 216.¢ — 216.
Purchase price allocation adjustme (136.9 (27.9) (164.9
Balance as of December 31, 2( $11,546.! $1,888.¢ $13,435.

For a period of time after the consummation of ageeor acquisition, the initial fair values alléed to net assets acquired may be
subject to change as these fair value estimategfined. Changes in these fair value estimatesesm@ded as adjustments to goodwiill.
Subsequent to the purchase allocation period,iadditchanges to fair value of net assets acquaredecorded in current operations, excef
certain adjustments related to income taxes, engglégrmination and other exit activities, which thmme to be adjusted to goodwill.

Goodwill acquired in 2007 included $216.4 relatedite AIM acquisition. Goodwill adjustments in 20@¢luded a reduction of $39.8
related to the tax benefit on the exercise of stymtions issued as part of the WellChoice, WellPbiealth Networks, Inc., or WHN, and
Trigon Healthcare, Inc., or Trigon, acquisition@d@will adjustments for 2007 also included a deseeat $97.0 due to tax adjustments
resulting from tax
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4. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (continued)

refunds to preacquisition companies, a decrease of $13.5 aault otdgeleasing acquisition exit cost accruals arréduction of $14.3 related
other purchase accounting adjustments.

Goodwill acquired in 2006 included $34.2 relatednigcellaneous acquisitions deemed not materialitaconsolidated financial
statements. Goodwill adjustments in 2006 includeeldaiction of $54.5 related to the tax benefitloméxercise of stock options issued as part
of the WellChoice, WHN and Trigon acquisitions. @wdll adjustments for 2006 also included an inceeak$86.5 related to employee
termination and other exit costs and a reductio$38.9 for other purchase accounting adjustmetaseceto the WellChoice acquisition.
Deferred tax allocation adjustments resulted iadaction of $120.9 to goodwill in 2006.

The following table represents a summary of empdgemination and other exit costs recorded in eotian with the WHN merger and
WellChoice acquisition:

Employge
Termination Other
Exit
Costs Activities Total

Initial WHN-related accrual at November 30, 2( $ 252.( $ — $ 252.(
Purchase accounting adjustments to initial W-related accrue 44t 27.€ 72.1
Payments and costs charged against liak (261.9) (27.€) (289.0)
Initial WellChoice-related accrual at December 31, 2¢ 3.3 — 3.3
Accrued costs December 31, 2( 38.4 — 38.4
Purchase accounting adjustments to initial WellCé-related accrue 29.€ 56.¢ 86.t
Payments and costs charged against liak (48.€) (8.0 (56.€)
Accrued costs December 31, 2( 19.2 48.¢ 68.1
Payments and costs charged against liak (24.9) (20.7) (25.0
Purchase accounting adjustments to the accruatde (3.5) (10.0) (13.5
Accrued costs December 31, 2( 1.4 $ 28.2 $ 29.€

The components of other intangible assets as oémber 31 are as follows:

2007 2006
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

Intangible assets with finite live

Subscriber bas $3,195.( $ (937.f $2,257.. ¢ 3,102« $ (661.]) $2,441.

Provider and hospital networ 158.1 (39.2) 118.¢ 154.1 (30.2) 123.¢

Other 27.€ (8.6) 19.C 11.F (6.9 5.1
Total 3,380." (985.6) 2,395.; 3,268.: (697.7) 2,570.
Intangible assets with indefinite lif

Blue Cross and Blue Shield and other tradem 6,296." — 6,296." 6,296." — 6,296.

Provider relationship 271.( — 271.( 271.( — 271.(

Licenses 258.( — 258.( 258.( — 258.(
Total 6,825." — 6,825." 6,825." — 6,825."
Other intangible asse $10,206.« $ (985.€)  $9,220.8 $10,093.¢ $ (697.7)  $9,396..
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4. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (continued)

As required by FAS 142, we completed our annuakbiinmpent tests of existing goodwill and other intdnhg assets with indefinite lives
during the fourth quarters of 2007, 2006 and 200fese tests involved the use of estimates relatétetfair value of the reporting unit to
which the goodwill and other intangible assets witthefinite lives are allocated. FAS 142 also reggithat goodwill and other intangible assets
with indefinite lives be reassigned to the repartimits affected between annual tests if an ergityganizes its reporting structure. As a result,
we completed a re-allocation of goodwill basedlonrelative fair values of the reporting units amdmpairment test of existing goodwiill
during the first quarter of 2007 following our clganin reportable segments effective January 1, 2ZD0&e were no material impairment los
recorded during 2007, 2006 and 2005.

As of December 31, 2007, estimated amortizatioreegp for each of the five years ending Decembeis3s follows: 2008, $284.0;
2009, $264.4; 2010, $242.2; 2011, $223.5; and 26224.8.

5. Investments

A summary of current and long-term investmentsjlalske-for-sale, is as follows:

Gross Gross Unrealized Losses
Cost or Unrealized
Amortized Less than Greater than Estimated
Cost Gains 12 Months 12 Months Fair Value
December 31, 200:
Fixed maturity securities
United States Government securi $ 251.¢ $ 88 $ — $ = $ 260.¢
Government sponsored securit 531.¢ 4.5 — (0.7 536.:
States, municipalities and political subdivisi—tax-exempt 3,769.. 53.1 (9.9 (7.3 3,805.!
Corporate securitie 5,594.; 68.7 (44.6) (17.¢) 5,600.!
Options embedded in convertible debt secur 81.¢ — — — 81.¢
Mortgage-backed securitie 5,418.! 78.2 (19.9) (11.6) 5,465.
Total fixed maturity securitie 15,647.: 213.3 (73.7) (36.€) 15,749.!
Equity securitie: 1,776.. 231.¢ (69.2) — 1,938.¢
Total investments, availat-for-sale $17,423.. $ 445.C $ (1429 $ (36.9 $17,688.
December 31, 200:
Fixed maturity securities
United States Government securi $ 497.¢ $ 1.8 $ (2.0) $ (1.2 $ 496.(
Government sponsored securit 758.2 2.3 (0.8 (7.2) 752.¢
States, municipalities and political subdivisi—tax-exempt 3,426.¢ 24.5 (3.€) (19.6) 3,428..
Corporate securitie 5,200.: 39.¢ (15.2) (35.5) 5,189.1
Options embedded in convertible debt secur 40.€ — — — 40.€
Mortgage-backed securitie 5,562.¢ 15.2 (7.2 (39.9 5,5631.;
Total fixed maturity securitie 15,486.: 83.¢ (28.¢) (103.9) 15,437.
Equity securitie: 1,752. 334.2 (15.9) (0.6) 2,070.
Total investments, availat-for-sale $17,238.! $ 418.( $ (44 $ (103.9) $17,508.!
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5. Investments (continued)

The following table summarizes for fixed maturigcsrities and equity securities in an unrealized jposition at December 31, the
aggregate fair value and gross unrealized lossfyth of time those securities have been contiyausn unrealized loss position.

2007 2006
Gross Gross
Number of Unrealized Number of Unrealized
Securities Fair Value Loss Securities Fair Value Loss
( Securities are whole amount:
Fixed maturity securities
12 months or les 1,142 $2,502.. $ (73.79) 1,62¢ $3,884.. $ (28.9)
Greater than 12 montl 1,86 2,254.( (36.9) 3,06¢ 5,306.¢ (103.9
Total fixed maturity securitie 3,004 4,756.: (110.5) 4,69¢ 9,190.! (132.])
Equity securities
12 months or les 2,23 498.7 (69.29) 1,10z 234.¢ (15.9
Greater than 12 montl — — — 1 21.C (0.6)
Total equity securitie 2,23 498.7 (69.2) 1,10/ 255.¢ (15.9)
Total fixed maturity and equity securiti 5241  $5,254.¢ $ (179.% 5800 $9,446.. $ (148.0

Our fixed maturity investment portfolio is senséito interest rate fluctuations, which impact thie ¥alue of individual securities.
Accordingly, unrealized losses on fixed maturitgigdties reported above were generally caused &etfect of a rising interest rate
environment on certain securities with stated eggerates currently below market rates. Based omesmiew of various factors, we do not

believe the unrealized losses represent an otlaa~trmporary impairment as of December 31, 2007.

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed matusiggurities at December 31, 2007, by contractualinty, are shown below. Expected
maturities may be less than contractual maturitexzsause the issuers of the securities may hawégtiteto prepay obligations without

prepayment penalties.

Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or le: $ 6901 $ 690.(
Due after one year through five ye. 4,093.: 4,111.:
Due after five years through ten ye 3,011.: 3,043.¢
Due after ten yeai 2,434 2,439.¢
Mortgage-backed securitie 5418.! 5,465.
Total availabl-for-sale fixed maturity securitie $15,647..  $15,749.!
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5. Investments (continued)

The major categories of net investment incomehentears ended December 31 are as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Fixed maturity securitie $ 852.¢ $767.5 $570.¢
Equity securitie: 59.C 43.¢ 33.¢
Cash and cash equivalel 128.¢ 94.1 47.€
Other invested assets, I-term (2.€) 2.3 3.4
Investment incom 1,038.( 907.7 655.¢
Investment expens (36.9) (29.0 (22.7)
Net investment incom $1,001.: $878.7 $633.1

Net realized investment gains (losses) and netgghanunrealized appreciation (depreciation) irestments for the years ended
December 31, were as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Net realized investment gains (loss¢
Fixed maturity securities

Gross realized gains from sa $ 71t $ 38. $ 90.¢

Gross realized losses from sa (60.0 (86.2) (116.2)

Gross realized losses from ot-thar-temporary impairment (154.)) (26.9) (7.3

Net realized losses on fixed maturity securi (142.¢) (74.%) (32.€)
Equity securitiet

Gross realized gains from sa 277.€ 108.( 43.€

Gross realized losses from sa (23.9 (9.5 (21.9)

Gross realized losses from ot-thar-temporary impairment (105.6) (29.9) (7.5

Net realized gains on equity securit 148.¢ 68.7 14.5
Other realized investment gai 5.2 5.3 7.9
Net realized investment gains (loss 11.2 (0.9 (20.2
Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciafiomvestments
Fixed maturity securitie 151.1 67.4 (244.2)
Equity securitiet (155.6) 231.5 1.3
Total net change in unrealized (depreciation) agipt®n in investment (4.5 299.1 (242.9
Deferred income tax benefit (expen 6.7 (118.9 85.7

Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciatiomvestment: 2.2 180.2 (157.2)

Net realized gains (losses) and change in unrebippreciation (depreciatio
in investmentt $ 13.4 $179.¢ $(167.9

During the year ended December 31, 2007, we sqlt$87 of fixed maturity and equity securities whiesulted in gross realized losses

of $83.4. In the ordinary course of business, wg s&l securities at a loss for a number of reasactuding, but not limited to: (i) changes in
the investment environment; (ii) expectation tinat tair value could deteriorate further; (iii) desio reduce exposure to an issuer or an
industry; (iv) changes in credit quality; or (v)aiges in expected cash flow. During 2006, subsedadhe acquisition of WellChoice, we

restructured our investment portfolios to align therged portfolios with our overall investment glides.
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5. Investments (continued)

The majority of the sales of fixed maturity sedestresulted in realized losses due to the premgititerest rate environment. For equity
securities, the 2006 sales to restructure the ndgrgetfolios primarily resulted in realized gai@milarly, subsequent to our merger with
WHN, during 2005, we restructured our investmentfpbos to align the merged portfolios with ourerall investment guidelines. The
majority of the sales of fixed maturity securitiesulted in realized losses due to the prevailinerest rate environment. For equity securities,
the 2005 sales to restructure the merged portfolimsarily resulted in realized gains. Impairmergsorded in 2007, 2006 and 2005 were
primarily the result of the continued credit deteation on specific issuers in the bond marketsaanthin equity securitiegair value remainin
below cost for an extended period of time.

A primary objective in the management of the fixedturity and equity portfolios is to maximize totaturn relative to underlying
liabilities and respective liquidity needs. In aohing this goal, assets may be sold to take adgardmarket conditions or other investment
opportunities as well as tax considerations. Salkgenerally produce realized gains and losses.

Investment securities are exposed to various rigks) as interest rate, market and credit. Dubedetvel of risk associated with certain
investment securities and the level of uncertaiatgted to changes in the value of investment &#esirit is possible that changes in these risk
factors in the near term could have an adverseriabt@pact on our results of operations or shalddis’ equity.

A significant judgment in the valuation of investmt®is the determination of when an other-ttemporary decline in value has occurt
We follow a consistent and systematic processnigairing securities that sustain other-thiamporary declines in value. We have establist
committee responsible for the impairment reviewcpss. The decision to impair a security incorparateh quantitative criteria and qualitat
information. The impairment review process congdenumber of factors including, but not limited (@) the length of time and the extent to
which the fair value has been less than book vgh)ethe financial condition and near term prosp@dtthe issuer, (c) our intent and ability to
retain impaired investments for a period of timéisient to allow for any anticipated recovery ialue, (d) whether the debtor is current on
interest and principal payments and (e) generaket@onditions and industry or sector specific dast For securities that are deemed to be
other-than-temporarily impaired, the security ifuated to fair value and the resulting losses ecegnized in realized gains or losses in the
consolidated statements of income. The new cos$ béthe impaired securities is not increasedtiture recoveries in fair value.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, no investments ditizer investments in U.S. government agency séesigixceeded 10% of
shareholders’ equity.

The carrying value of fixed maturity investmentattdid not produce income during 2007 and 2006%@8 and $6.9 at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively.

As of December 31, 2007 we had committed approxin&t169.4 to future capital calls from variougdhparty investments in exchange
for an ownership interest in the related entity.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, securities withyagrvalues of approximately $270.2 and $342.3eetvely, were deposited by our
insurance subsidiaries under requirements of régylauthorities.

During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we entered into seeatiénding programs. Securities on loan are ireduid the investment captions
shown on the accompanying consolidated balanceshéeder these programs, brokers
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5. Investments (continued)

and dealers who borrow securities are requireclivet substantially the same security upon conigpiedf the transaction. The fair value of
securities on loan as of December 31, 2007 and 2@865831.5 and $879.7, respectively. Income easneskcurity lending transactions for
the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 20082v2s$1.9 and $1.6, respectively.

6. Derivative Financial Instruments

A summary of the aggregate contractual or notianabunts and estimated fair values related to dér&véinancial instruments at
December 31 is as follows:

2007 2006
Contractual/ Estimated Contractual/ Estimated
Fair Value Fair Value
Notional Notional
Amount Asset (Liability) Amount Asset (Liability)
Swaps $ 1,100.( $ 41 $ (2.9 $ 1,640.( $ 174 $  (29.0
Equity warrants 1.0 0.t — 0.6 4.3 —
Options embedded in convertible debt
securities 367.5 81.¢ — 149.¢ 40.€ —
Futures — 1.C — — 1.9 —
Total $ 1,468.! $ 124.¢ $ (2.9 $ 1,790.( $ 64.C $  (29.0

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 ar] 2@0recognized realized gains related to dexiedtnancial instruments of $10.4,
$13.3 and $1.5, respectively.

Fair Value Hedge:

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we entetedwo fair value hedges with a total notionalue of $440.0. The first hedge is a
$240.0 notional amount interest rate swap agreetoaeteive a fixed 6.800% rate and pay a LIBORebdtoating rate and expires on
August 1, 2012. The second hedge is a $200.0 radtanount interest rate swap agreement to receiixe@5.000% rate and pay a LIBOR-
based floating rate and expires on December 15.201

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we entstedwo fair value hedges with a total notionalue of $660.0. The first hedge is a
$360.0 notional amount interest rate swap agreetoakchange a fixed 6.800% rate for a LIBOR-bdkeating rate and expires on August 1,
2012. The second hedge is a $300.0 notional amotanest rate swap agreement to exchange a fixd80% rate for LIBOR-based floating
rate and expires December 15, 2014.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we entetec $300.0 notional amount interest rate swapement to exchange a fixed
3.750% rate for a LIBOR-based floating rate. Thapwgreement expired December 14, 2007.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 ark] 2@0recognized (expense) income of $(10.8), $jldnd $0.5, respectively, from
these swap agreements, which were recorded ar@pdse) reduction of interest expense.
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6. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)
Cash Flow Hedges

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we enteted floating to fixed rate cash flow hedge watkotal notional value of $480.0.
The purpose of this hedge was to offset the vditilof the cash flows due to the rollover of owariable-rate one-month commercial paper
issuance. In December 2006, the total notionalevalas reduced to $240.0. This swap agreement expir@arious dates in December 2007.
During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2@0@ain or loss from hedged ineffectiveness wasrtkxd in earnings.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we entstedorward starting pay fixed swaps with an aggate notional amount of $875.0.
The objective of these hedges was to eliminateréiniability of cash flows in the interest paymeatsthe debt securities to be issued to par
fund the cash portion of the WellChoice acquisitibhese swaps were terminated in January 2006yarmhid a net $24.7, the net fair value at
the time of termination. In addition, we recordedumrealized loss of $16.0, net of tax, as accuradlather comprehensive income. Following
the January 10, 2006 issuance of debt securitiesrinection with the WellChoice acquisition, thexonortized fair value of the forward start
pay fixed swaps included in accumulated other cemgnsive income began amortizing into earningandacrease to interest expense, over
the life of the hedged debt securities.

The unrecognized loss for all cash flow hedgesuhet] in accumulated other comprehensive incomesaél@ber 31, 2007 was $8.0. As
of December 31, 2007, the total amount of amoitinadver the next twelve months for all cash flomdges will increase interest expense by
approximately $0.8.
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7. Long-Term Debt

The carrying value of long-term debt at Decembec@&isists of the following:

2007 2006
Senior unsecured note
3.500%, face amount of $200.0, due 2 $ — $ 198.c
3.750%, face amount of $300.0, due 2 — 294 ¢
4.250%, face amount of $300.0, due 2 298.¢ 298.¢
5.000%, face amount of $700.0, due 2 696.( 694.¢
6.375%, face amount of $350.0, due 2 365.7 369.1
6.800%, face amount of $800.0, due 2! 820.¢ 793.k
5.000%, face amount of $500.0, due 2 507.¢ 484.:
5.250%, face amount of $1,100.0, due 2 1,089.¢ 1,088.*
5.875%, face amount of $700.0, due 2 690.2 —
5.264%, face amount of $1,090.0, due 2 500.( —
5.950%, face amount of $500.0, due 2 494.: 494.1
5.850%, face amount of $900.0, due 2! 888.7 888.4
6.375%, face amount of $800.0, due 2 788.¢ —
Surplus notes
9.125%, face amount of $42.0, due 2! 41.¢ 41.¢
9.000%, face amount of $25.1, due 2! 24.¢ 24.¢
Variable rate deb
Commercial paper progra 1,798.: 1,295.¢
Capital leases, stated or imputed rates from 1.8®027.480% due through 20 38.€ 48.2
Total debi 9,043.¢ 7,014.:
Current portion of dek (20.9 (521.0)
Long-term debt, less current portii $9,023.! $6,493..

On September 1, 2007, we repaid $200.0 of our 34606tes, which matured on that date. On Decembe2d@¥, we repaid $300.0 of
our 3.750% notes, which matured on that date.

On August 21, 2007, we issued zero coupon notagiivate placement transaction exempt from regisin. Gross proceeds to us were
$500.0. The notes have a final maturity date ofusi@2, 2022, and were issued with a yield to niigtof 5.264% and a final amount due at
maturity of $1,090.0. The notes have a put feathaeallows a note holder to require us to repwsettae notes at certain dates in the future.
The proceeds of this debt issuance were for generpbrate purposes, including, but not limitedrépurchasing shares of our common stock.
The notes are classified as long-term debt on alange sheet, and will be reclassified to curremntign of long-term debt beginning one year
prior to the date we may be required to repurchizsaotes.

On June 8, 2007, we issued $700.0 of 5.875% nate@817 and $800.0 of 6.375% notes due 2037 unsleelfregistration statement
filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comioisor SEC, on December 28, 2005. The proceeds fhis debt issuance were for
working capital and for general corporate purposesuding, but not limited to, repurchasing shas&ésur common stock. The notes have a
call feature that allows us to repurchase the naxbg§ime at our option and a put feature that alewote holder to require us to repurchase the
notes upon the occurrence of both a change of@oetent and a downgrade of the notes.
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7. Long-Term Debt (continued)

On January 10, 2006, we issued $700.0 of 5.000%srdhie 2011; $1,100.0 of 5.250% notes due 2016$20@d.0 of 5.850% notes due
2036, under a shelf registration statement filetthwhe SEC on December 28, 2005. The proceedsthiznaebt issuance were used to repay a
bridge loan of $1,700.0 and to repay approxima$dlp)00.0 of commercial paper, which were both otet@dito partially fund the December 28,
2005 WellChoice acquisition.

On November 29, 2005, we entered into a senioiitdiality, or the facility, with certain lendeffsr general corporate purposes. We
amended this facility in September 2006. The fgcprovides credit for up to $2,500.0 (reduceddny commercial paper issuances) and
matures on September 30, 2011. The interest ratei®facility is based on either, (i) the LIBORe®lus a predetermined percentage rate
based on our credit rating at the date of utilaatior (ii) a base rate as defined in the facdigyeement. Our ability to borrow under the facility
is subject to compliance with certain covenantan@itment fees for the facility were $1.8 and $22007 and 2006, respectively, and there
are no conditions that are probable of occurringesnnwhich the facility may be withdrawn. There waeamounts outstanding under the
facility as of December 31, 2007 or December 3D62@r during the years then ended. At Decembe307, we had $701.8 available under
this facility.

Surplus notes are unsecured obligations of Anthesarance Companies, Inc., or Anthem Insurance,dlybwned subsidiary, and are
subordinate in right of payment to all of Anthensunance’s existing and future indebtedness. Anyrneay of interest or principal on the
surplus notes may be made only with the prior aygdrof the Indiana Department of Insurance, or ID&id only out of capital and surplus
funds of Anthem Insurance that the IDOI determitoelse available for the payment under Indiana iaisce laws.

We have an authorized commercial paper progranp @b $2,500.0, the proceeds of which may be useddneral corporate purposes.
The weighted-average interest rate on commercigipaorrowings at December 31, 2007 and 2006 vE¥band 5.42%, respectively.
Commercial paper borrowings have been classifiddraggterm debt at December 31, 2007 and 2006donrdance with FAS 8Classification
of Short-Term Obligations Expected to be Refinan@sdour practice and intent is to replace shom-sommercial paper outstanding at
expiration with additional short-term commerciappafor an uninterrupted period extending for mthi@n one year or with borrowings under
the senior credit facility described above.

Interest paid during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $4%843.0 and $238.7, respectively.
We were in compliance with all applicable covenamtder our outstanding debt agreements.

Future maturities of debt, including capital leases as follows: 2008, $1,818.6; 2009, $308.502845.7; 2011, $700.0; 2012,
$1,187.1; and thereafter, $4,984.0.

8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, we invest inotarifinancial assets, incur various financial litibs and enter into agreements
involving derivative securities.

Fair values are disclosed for all financial instamts for which it is practicable to estimate fafue, whether or not such values are
recognized in the consolidated balance sheets.ti&mpt to obtain quoted market prices for theseldssires. Where quoted market prices are
not available, fair values are estimated usingegaregalue or other valuation techniques. Thesenigdles are significantly affected by our
assumptions,
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8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)

including discount rates and estimates of futushdiows. Potential taxes and other transactiotsdusve not been considered in estimating
values. The estimates presented herein are nosseadg indicative of the amounts that we wouldigzeain a current market exchange.

Non-financial instruments such as real estate,gntg@and equipment, other current assets, defémoeane taxes and intangible assets,
and certain financial instruments such as poliahilities are excluded from the fair value disclesu Therefore, the fair value amounts cannot
be aggregated to determine the underlying econaaliee of WellPoint.

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidatddrize sheets for cash and cash equivalents, acenestment income, premium and
self-funded receivables, other receivables, sdesriénding collateral, unearned income, accouaysiple and accrued expenses, income taxes
payable, security trades pending payable and oesther current liabilities approximate fair valoecause of the short term nature of these
items. These assets and liabilities are not listete following table.

The following methods and assumptions were usedtimate the fair value of each class of finanicistrument:

Current and long-term investments, available-folesat fair value:The carrying amount approximates fair value, baseduoted marki
prices, where available. For securities not actitelded, fair values were estimated using valltgioed from independent pricing services or
guoted market prices of comparable instruments.

Other invested assets, curre@ther invested assets, current include securiébih rabbi trusts that are classified as tradirtge
carrying amount approximates fair value, basedumtegl market prices, where available. For secauriti@ actively traded, fair values were
estimated using values obtained from independécihgrservices or quoted market prices of comparaidtruments.

Other invested assets, long-ter®ther invested assets, long-term include primarilr investments in limited partnerships, joinhttees
and other non-controlled corporations, as welttas cash surrender value of corporate-owned Igari@nce policies. Investments in limited
partnerships, joint ventures and other non-corgdodorporations are carried at our share in thiéesitundistributed earnings, which
approximates fair value. The carrying value of cogbe-owned life insurance policies are the castesder value as reported by the respective
insurer.

Long-term debt—notes and capital leas@&se fair value of notes is based on quoted maykees for the same or similar debt, or, if no
guoted market prices were available, on the cumatet estimated to be available to us for dektroflar terms and remaining maturities.
Capital leases are carried at the unamortized preséue of the minimum lease payments, which axiprates fair value.

Long-term debt—commercial papéihe carrying amount for commercial paper approx@sdair value as the underlying instruments
have variable interest rates at market value.

Derivatives—interest rate swapbhe fair value of the interest rate swaps are basdtie quoted market prices by the financial ingtin
that is the counterparty to the swap.
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8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments (continued)

Derivatives—equity warrant§he fair value of equity warrants are based onepliatarket prices, where available. For warrants not
actively traded, fair values were estimated usialges obtained from independent pricing servicastefl market prices of comparable
instruments, or independent pricing models.

The carrying values and estimated fair values offimancial instruments at December 31 are as\ialo

2007 2006
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Assets:
Investments availak-for-sale:
Fixed maturity securitie $15,749.¢  $15,749.¢ $15,437.. $15,437.
Equity securitie: 1,938.¢ 1,938.¢ 2,070.° 2,070.°
Other invested assets, curr 40.2 40.2 72.¢ 72.¢
Other invested assets, I-term 752.¢ 752.¢ 628.¢ 628.¢
Interest rate swaps and equity warrants (reporigdather noncurrent asse 41.F 41.F 21.7 21.7
Liabilities:
Debt:
Commercial pape 1,798.: 1,798.: 1,295.¢ 1,295.¢
Notes and capital leas 7,245, 7,184. 5,718.¢ 5,752.;
Interest rate swaps (reported with other noncuiiabilities) 2.3 2.3 29.C 29.C

In September 2006, the FASB issued FAS No. Fait, Value Measurementd=AS 157 defines fair value, establishes a frantkviar

measuring fair value in accordance with generatlyeated accounting principles, and expands dismgsabout fair value measurements. This
statement does not require any new fair value nrea®nts; rather, it applies under other accourgimogouncements that require or permit fair
value measurements. FAS 157 was effective for utaonary 1, 2008. The adoption of FAS 157 did raseha material impact on our financial

position or operating results.

In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. TH®% Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fingl Liabilities—Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement . FAS 159 allows entities to measure many finariostfruments and certain other assets and liadslai fai
value on an instrument-by-instrument basis undefdir value option. FAS 159 was effective for msJanuary 1, 2008. The adoption of FAS
159 did not have a material impact on our finanp@dition or operating results.
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9. Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment at Decembéds 3% follows:

2007 2006

Land and improvemen $ 521 $ 601
Building and componen 383.1 469.¢
Data processing equipment, furniture and otherpmant 689.2 709.4
Computer software, purchased and internally deesl 897.¢ 782.<
Leasehold improvemen 157.¢ 138.7

2,179.¢ 2,160.
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (1,183.) (1,171.9
Property and equipment, r $ 995.« $ 988.¢

Property and equipment includes assets purchagstat noncancelable capital leases of $59.9 and &84D@cember 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Total accumulated amortization osdgbassets at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was &#D$30.1, respectively. Depreciation
expense for 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $120.2, $ERI$118.7, respectively. Amortization expenseeaiséd assets, computer software and
leasehold improvements for 2007, 2006 and 20053446.7, $137.4 and $109.9, respectively, whichuides amortization expense on
computer software, both purchased and internalxgldped, for 2007, 2006 and 2005 of $130.2, $128®$101.9, respectively. Capitalized
costs related to the internal development of saftved $561.6 and $470.5 at December 31, 2007 affl,28spectively, are reported with
computer software.

10. Medical Claims Payable

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakstor medical claims payable is as follows:

Years Ended December 3

2007 2006 2005
Gross medical claims payable, beginning of pe $ 5,290.! $ 4,853.¢ $ 4,134.(
Ceded medical claims payable, beginning of pe (51.0 (27.7) (31.9
Net medical claims payable, beginning of pel 5,239.1 4,825." 4,102..
Business combinations and purchase adjustn 15.2 (6.4) 784.%
Net incurred medical claim

Current yea 46,366.: 42,613.: 32,865.t

Prior years (redundancie (332.7) (617.7) (644.9)
Total net incurred medical clain 46,033.! 41,995.! 32,220
Net payments attributable t

Current year medical clain 40,765. 37,486.( 28,997.:

Prior years medical clain 4,795.( 4,089.! 3,284."
Total net payment 45,560. 41,575.! 32,281
Net medical claims payable, end of per 5,727.: 5,239.: 4,825.7
Ceded medical claims payable, end of pe 60.7 51.C 27.1
Gross medical claims payable, end of pe $ 5,788.( $ 5,290.! $ 4,853.
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10. Medical Claims Payable (continued)

Amounts incurred related to prior years vary frorayiously estimated liabilities as the claims atenately settled. Liabilities at any ye
end are continually reviewed and re-estimated fasrimation regarding actual claims payments becdknesvn. This information is compared
to the originally established year end liabilityedative amounts reported for incurred related itor yrears result from claims being settled for
amounts less than originally estimated. The faverdbvelopment in medical claims payable for thaergeended December 31, 2007, 2006, and
2005 is primarily attributable to actual claim pagmh patterns and cost trends differing from thaseimed at the time the liability was
established.

11. Reinsurance

We reinsure certain risks with other companiesasslime risk from other companies. We remain priynkable to policyholders under
ceded insurance contracts and are contingentlielfalb amounts recoverable from reinsurers in trenéthat such reinsurers do not meet their
contractual obligations.

We evaluate the financial condition of our reinsar@nd monitor concentrations of credit risk agsirom similar geographic regions,
activities, or economic characteristics of the saners to minimize our exposure to significant éssBom reinsurer insolvencies.

A summary of direct, assumed and ceded premiunttewrand earned for the years ended December 34 fidlows:

2007 2006 2005

Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned
Direct $56,021. $55,957.! $52,143.: $52,061.! $40,776.( $40,829.
Assumec 47.2 47.5 63.4 63.4 22.2 41.c
Cedec (135.6 (140.0 (154.9 (153.0 (169.9 (190.%)
Net premiums $55,933.: $55,865.( $52,052.: $51,971.¢ $40,628.! $40,680.(
Percentage of amount assumed to net prem 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% 0.1% — % 0.1%

A summary of net premiums written and earned byrssd (see Note 19) for the years ended Decembisréifollows:

2007 2006 2005
Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned
Reportable segment
CCB $ 39,044.¢ $ 38,984.¢ $ 37,538.. $ 37,526." $ 30,260. $ 30,090.
4SB 11,372.. 11,342.. 9,529.! 9,482.¢ 6,323.: 6,386.¢
Other 5,5616.: 5,637.¢ 4,984.¢ 4,962." 4,044.¢ 4,202.:
Net premiums $ 55,933.0 $ 55,865.( $ 52,052.: $ 51,971.¢ $ 40,628.8. $ 40,680.!
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11. Reinsurance (continued)

The effect of reinsurance on benefit expense fery#ars ended December 31 is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Direct $46,144. $42,293.: $32,753.:
Assumec 29.¢ 43.1 8.5
Ceded (138.9) (144.9) (163.0)
Benefit expens $46,036.: $42,191.. $32,598.!
The effect of reinsurance on certain assets abdifias at December 31 is as follows:
2007 2006
Policy liabilities, assume $98.2 $106.2
Unearned income, assum 0.1 0.1
Premiums payable, ced 54.% 35.2
Premiums receivable, assurnr 7.4 11.€

12. Capital Stock
Stock Incentive Plars

Our 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, or the 2001 StoePAs amended and restated on January 1, 200®isrEbus plan, which allowed for
the grant of stock options, stock, restricted st@tiantom stock, stock appreciation rights andgeerdnce awards to eligible employees and
non-employee directors. On March 15, 2006, our BadDirectors adopted the WellPoint 2006 IncentB@anpensation Plan, or the 2006
Incentive Plan, which was approved by our shararsldn May 16, 2006. The 2006 Incentive Plan allthesflexibility to grant or award stoc
options, stock appreciation rights, restricted lsimwards, restricted stock units, performance aw#rds, performance share awards, dzesdec
awards and other share-based awards to eligibs®perFollowing approval of the 2006 Incentive RdlarMay 16, 2006, no new awards have
been or will be made under the 2001 Stock PlantHeuawards outstanding under the 2001 Stock Pihnemain in effect in accordance with
their terms.

The 2006 Incentive Plan allows us to grant shasethéncentive awards to employees, non-employeetdirs and consultants covering a
total of up to 20.0 shares of our common stocks 7.0 shares of our common stock, as previoagfyroved by our shareholders, but not
underlying any outstanding options or other awami$er the 2001 Stock Plan, and (ii) any additiahares of our common stock subject to
outstanding options or other awards under the Z6tk Plan that expire, are forfeited or othervteseninate unexercised on or after March
2006, less 0.1 shares of our common stock gramtddrithe 2001 Stock Plan between March 15, 2006viayd16, 2006.

In connection with the WellChoice acquisition, wesamed the WellChoice, Inc. 2003 Omnibus Incerfilaa, which provided for the
granting of stock options to employees and non-eyg# directors. WellChoice stock options were coegeto WellPoint stock options using
the option exchange ratio as defined in the mesigezement. The converted stock options were redatithe acquisition date as additional
paid-in capital and valued at $113.4 using a bibaitice model. The following weighted-averagewmptions were used for the conversion:
risk-free interest rate of 4.32%; volatility factoff 22.00%; expected dividend yield of 0.00%; argexted option life of three years.
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12. Capital Stock (continued)

Stock options are granted for a fixed number ofehavith an exercise price at least equal to thievédue of the shares at the grant date.
The stock options granted in 2007, 2006 and 200&mgdly vest over three years in equal semi-animsshllments and have a term of ten years
from the grant date. Beginning in 2008, stock amigranted will generally have a term of sevenyé&am the grant date.

Certain option grants contain provisions wherelgygmployee continues to vest in the award subsétuégrmination due to retirement.
Prior to the adoption of FAS 123R, our expensetaittion methodology did not consider such vestimyjsions and the fair value of the
awards was amortized over the stated vesting perBifiective with the adoption of FAS 123R, we afjaeh our attribution method for newly
granted awards and now consider all vesting anergtovisions, including retirement eligibility, @etermining the requisite service period
over which the fair value of the awards will beagnized.

Restricted stock awards are issued at the fairevalihe stock on the grant date. The restrictlapse in three equal annual installments.
Beginning with the 2007 grants, restricted stoclals also include a performance measure that neusigh for the restricted stock award to
vest. Prior to the adoption of FAS 123R, unearr@dpensation for grants of restricted stock equivaie the fair value of the shares at the
of grant was recorded as a separate componenadtsbiders’ equity and subsequently amortized topensation expense over the awards’
vesting period. In accordance with FAS 123R, shaldehs’ equity is credited commensurate with thegmition of compensation expense. All
unamortized unearned compensation at January &, 286 reclassified to additional paid-in capital.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 ark] 2@0recognized share-based compensation cod7Gt 8 $246.9 and $81.2,
respectively, as well as related tax benefits & $6$89.9 and $28.5, respectively.

In addition to the higher compensation cost unde® E23R, the adoption of FAS 123R resulted in &@igiumber of diluted shares
outstanding for purposes of calculating dilutech@ags per share due to a change in the calculafidilutive stock options under the treasury
method.

A summary of stock option activity for the year edddecember 31, 2007 is as follows:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number of Option Contractual
Price Life Intrinsic
Shares per Share (Years) Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2C 35.2 $ 48.1¢
Granted 6.4 80.7¢
Exercisec (7.3 42.4;
Forfeited or expirel (1.6 73.7¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 22.¢ 59.7¢ 6.4 $ 640.(
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 14.€ 49.6¢ 5.8 $ 555.¢

The intrinsic value of options exercised during years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 detbin$609.6, $482.1 and
$490.5, respectively. We recognized tax benefits240.3, $168.5 and $199.1 in 2007, 2006 and 2@3pectively, from option exercises and
disqualifying dispositions. The total fair valuegifares vested during the years ended Decemb2081, 2006 and 2005 was $72.3, $105.3
and $59.5, respectively. During the years endeceBer 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 we received cash2#.$, $505.2 and $417.2,
respectively, from exercises of stock options.

114



Table of Contents

WellPoint, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

12. Capital Stock (continued)

A summary of the status of nonvested restrictedksaativity, including restricted stock units, fiee year ended December 31, 2007 is as
follows:

Weighted-
Average

Grant

Restricted Date

Stock Share Fair

Value
And Units per Share
Nonvested at January 1, 20 2.C $ 68.7¢
Granted 1.C 80.6¢
Vested (0.9 81.4:
Forfeited (0.9 74.9(
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 1.t 75.4%

As of December 31, 2007, the total remaining ungaczed compensation cost related to nonvested stptiéns and restricted stock
amounted to $66.8 and $40.6, respectively, whidhbgiamortized over the weightederage remaining requisite service periods of bhths

As of December 31, 2007, there were 22.3 sharesrafnon stock available for future grants under2®@6 Incentive Plan.
Fair Value

As described in Note 2, we adopted FAS 123R onalgrl, 2006, using the modified prospective tramsitnethod. The pro forma
information regarding net income and earnings parespresented in Note 2 has been determinedassatcounted for our stock-based
compensation using the fair value method.

We use a binomial lattice valuation model to estarthe fair value of all future stock options gehtExpected volatility assumptions
used in the binomial lattice model are based oarelysis of implied volatilities of publicly tradexptions on our stock and historical volatility
of our stock price. The risk-free interest ratdasived from the U.S. Treasury strip rates at itme tof the grant. The expected term of the
options was derived from the outputs of the bindhaitice model, which incorporates post-vestingdaure assumptions based on an analysis
of historical data. The dividend yield was basedonestimate of future dividend yields. Similaogps of employees that have dissimilar
exercise behavior are considered separately foiatiah purposes. We utilize the “multiple-grant’papach, as described in FAS 123R, for
recognizing compensation expense associated with sgparately vesting portion of the share-baseddw

The following weightedaverage assumptions were used to estimate theafaies of options granted during the years endestDber 31

2007 2006 2005
Risk-free interest rat 4.5€% 4.5% 4.0%
Volatility factor 22.0(% 26.0(% 28.0(%
Dividend yield — — —
Weightec-average expected li 4.4 year 5.1 year 3.9 year
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12. Capital Stock (continued)

The following weighted-average fair values weresd@ined for the years ending December 31:

2007 2006 2005
Options granted during the ye $21.8¢ $24.5:  $19.71
Restricted stock and stock awards granted duriegyéar 80.64 76.3: 65.71
Employee stock purchases during the ) 14.7: 12.32 13.2]

The binomial lattice option-pricing model requitée input of highly subjective assumptions inclglithe expected stock price volatility.
Because our stock option grants have characterisigmificantly different from those of traded apts, and because changes in the subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the falugaestimate, in our opinion, existing models domecessarily provide a reliable single
measure of the fair value of our stock option ggant

Employee Stock Purchase Ple

We have registered 6.0 shares of common stockh&Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or the Stock Bsechlan, which is intended to
provide a means to encourage and assist employeesjiiring a stock ownership interest in WellPod employee will be permitted to
purchase more than $25,000 (actual dollars) wdrgtazk in any calendar year, based on the famevalf the stock at the beginning of each
plan quarter. Employees become participants bytieepayroll deductions from 1% to 15% of gross pemsation. Payroll deductions are
accumulated during each quarter and applied totrergurchase of stock on the last trading day ol earter. Once purchased, the stock is
accumulated in the employasdhvestment account. Through December 31, 20@7etployee stock purchase plan allowed for a pgecpace
per share which is 85% of the lower of the faineabdf a share of common stock on (i) the firstitrgaiay of the plan quarter, or (i) the last
trading day of the plan quarter. Beginning Jandar8008, the employee stock purchase plan allowa faurchase price per share which is ¢
of the fair value of a share of common stock onlaéisétrading day of the plan quarter. During 208006, and 2005, 0.9, 0.9, and 1.0 shares of
common stock, respectively were purchased undestitiek Purchase Plan, resulting in $13.3, $11.6%4rd8 of related compensation cost,
respectively. As of December 31, 2007, there wppr@&imately 1.6 shares of common stock availabtessuance under the Stock Purchase
Plan.

Stock Repurchase Progral

Under our Board of Directors’ authorization, we main a common stock repurchase program. Repursimaag be made from time to
time at prevailing market prices, subject to certaistrictions on volume, pricing and timing. Tlepurchases are effected from time to time in
the open markets through negotiated transactiotisranugh plans designed to comply with Rule 1068-tinder the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended. During the year ended Dece®ih@007, our Board of Directors authorized insesaof $9,500.0 in our stock repurct
program, resulting in a total amount availablerfspurchases in 2007 and thereafter of $10,449.Bhwhcludes $949.8 of authorization
remaining unused at December 31, 2006. During 2@@#epurchased and retired approximately 76.%sharan average per share price of
$79.99, for an aggregate cost of $6,151.4. Thesets of December 31, 2007, $4,298.4 remained amgloby our Board of Directors for
future repurchases. During 2006, we repurchasededitdd approximately 60.7 shares at an averagepaw share of $74.91 for an aggregate
cost of $4,550.2. During 2005, we repurchased aticed approximately 5.1 shares at an averagepevsthare of $64.92 for an aggregate cost
of $333.4. The excess of cost of the repurchasackstover par value is charged on a pro rata basadditional paid-in capital and
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12. Capital Stock (continued)

retained earnings. Subsequent to December 31, 280 purchased and retired approximately 15.0estfar an aggregate cost of
approximately $1,203.1, leaving approximately $3,8%or authorized future repurchases at Februan2@08. Our stock repurchase program
is discretionary as we are under no obligatiorefmurchase shares. Shares are repurchased ungeognem because we believe it is a prudent
use of capital.

Shares Issued for the WellChoice Acquisitit

On December 28, 2005, as partial consideratioherWellChoice acquisition, we issued 0.5191 ofaetof WellPoint common stock {
each share of WellChoice common stock outstandesylting in additional outstanding shares of apipnately 42.7. The $3,200.6 fair value
of the common shares issued was determined bas®®40®7 per share, which represents the averagaglprice of our common stock for the
five trading days ranging from two days beforewo tays after September 27, 2005, the date thdsitign was announced. Transaction costs
of $11.6 reduced the aggregate fair value and $3)18as recorded as par value of common stock dditi@nal paid-in capital.

13. Earnings per Share
The denominator for basic and diluted earningsshare at December 31 is as follows:

2007 2006 2005

Denominator for basic earnings per s—weightecaverage share 593.2 627.¢ 610.¢
Effect of dilutive securities

Employee and director stock options and non vesstiicted stock awarc 8.6 14z 14¢
Denominator for diluted earnings per sh 602.C 642.] 625.¢

During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 20€i§hted average shares related to certain stowdrspof 4.8 and 5.3, respectively,
were excluded from the denominator for diluted &ays per share because the stock options werelduiive. There were no anti-dilutive
stock options during the year ended December 315.20
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14. Income Taxes

The components of deferred income taxes at Decefibare as follows:

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets relating
Pension and postretirement bene $ 210.C $ 255.
Accrued expense 462.4 418.%
Alternative minimum tax and other cred 2.C 2.C
Insurance reserve 269.% 192.%
Net operating loss carryforwar 47.¢ 64.t
Bad debt reserve 75.¢ 83.¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 14.£ 24
State income ta 107.: 105.4
Deferred compensatic 147.¢ 169.¢
Other 103.¢ 57.3
Total deferred tax asse 1,441.. 1,373.:
Valuation allowanct (22.9 (22.)
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allas: 1,418.° 1,350.t
Deferred tax liabilities relating t
Unrealized gains on securiti 100.¢ 103.1
Acquisition related
Goodwill and conversio 35.2 50.4
Trademarks and software developm 2,678.¢ 2,676.
Subscriber base, provider and hospital netw 888.¢ 962.(
Other 11.% 18.€
Investment basis differen: 5.2 51.C
Pension benefit 139.¢ 120.t
Other 3.C 76.1
Total deferred tax liabilitie 3,863.! 4,058.!
Net deferred tax liabilit $(2,444.9 $(2,707.9
Deferred tax ass—current $ 559.¢ $ 642.¢
Deferred tax liabilit—noncurren (3,004.9) (3,350.9
Net deferred tax liabilit $(2,444.9 $(2,707.9

The net change in the valuation allowance for 280d 2006 was $(0.4) and $0.5, respectively. Thagémresulted from realized and
unrealized capital losses of subsidiaries not ghetlin our consolidated tax return. The remainialyation allowance is primarily attributable
to the uncertainty of alternative minimum tax cte@nd net operating loss carryforwards. As defeta® assets related to these types of
deductions are recognized in the tax return, theatimn allowance is no longer required and is oedi
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14. Income Taxes (continued)

Significant components of the provision for incotares for the years ended December 31, consibedbtlowing:

2007 2006 2005
Current tax expens:
Federal $1,963.: $1,397.¢  $1,401.t
State and loce 116.¢ 133.¢ 113.%
Total current tax expen: 2,080.( 1,531.¢ 1,515.:
Deferred tax (benefit) expen (167.5) 287. (88.7)
Total income tax expen: $1,912.! $1,819.f $1,426.%

A reconciliation of income tax expense recordethaconsolidated statements of income and amoomguated at the statutory federal
income tax rate for the years ended December 3 fsllows:

2007 2006 2005
Amount Perceni Amount Perceni Amount Percen

Amount at statutory rai $1,840.1 35.%  $1,720.( 35.(% $1,361. 35.(%
State and local income taxes net of federal tax
benefit 86.2 1.6 84.€ 1.7 61.C 1.€
Tax exempt interest and dividends recei

deductior (49.7) (0.9 (41.5) (0.9 (29.0) (0.7
Other, ne 35.7 0.7 56.4 1.1 32.¢ 0.8
Total income tax expen: $1,912.! 36.4%  $1,819.! 37.(% $1,426.t 36.7%

The 2007 effective tax rate was favorably impadtgdarious tax settlements.

During the third quarter of 2006, we decreasedstate deferred tax liability by $43.0, resultinggimax benefit, net of federal taxes, of
$28.0, or $0.04 per basic and diluted shareshiyear ended December 31, 2006. This resulted értower effective tax rate due to changes
in our state tax apportionment factors following iWellChoice acquisition.

During the first quarter of 2005, a refund claimedi by us in 2003 was approved by the Congressitriat Committee on Taxation. The
claim relates to initially disallowed losses on #ate of certain subsidiaries in the late 1990&Abenefit of $28.4 related to this claim was
recorded in the first quarter of 2005. Net incoree lpasic and diluted share related to this claire 8204 for the year ended December 31,
2005.

In July 2006, FASB issued FASB Interpretation N®, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an iptetation of FASB
Statement 109r FIN 48. Among other things, FIN 48 provides guidance tdrads uncertainty in tax positions and clarifies dlocounting fc
income taxes by prescribing a minimum recognittmeshold which income tax positions must achievferieebeing recognized in the financial
statements. We adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 20@/rexorded a reduction of retained earnings @ $ffective January 1, 2007. The amount
of unrecognized tax benefits from uncertain taxigpmss at January 1, 2007 was $884.0.
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14. Income Taxes (continued)

The change in the carrying amount of gross unreizedrtax benefits from uncertain tax positionstfar year ended December 31, 2007
is as follows:

Balance at January 1, 20 $727.1
Additions for tax positions related t
Current yea 19.C
Prior years 17.2
Reductions related t
Tax positions of prior yee (88.0)
Settlements with taxing authoriti (2.5)
Lapses of applicable statute of limitatic (25.9
Balance at December 31, 2C $647.(

The table above excludes accrued interest, neflated tax benefits, treated as income tax exp@mder our accounting policy. The
amount excluded is $196.1 and $168.3 as of Jariy&907 and December 31, 2007, respectively. Tieedast is included in the amounts
described in the following paragraph.

As of December 31, 2007, $512.3 of unrecognizedmnefits, if recognized, would affect our effeetiax rate. Included in the
December 31, 2007 balance is $116.8 of tax posit#ising from business combinations that, if rexped, ultimately would be recorded as
adjustment to goodwill and would not affect oureetive tax rate. Also included is $8.2 that wouddrbcognized as an adjustment to additional
paid-in capital and would not affect our effecttea rate. The December 31, 2007 balance includ@2.81of tax positions for which ultimate
deductibility is highly certain but for which theiuncertainty about the timing of such dedudtiilExcluding the impact of interest and
penalties, the disallowance of the shorter dedilityilperiod would not affect our effective tax eatout would accelerate the payment of cash to
the taxing authority to an earlier period.

As of December 31, 2007, as further described betertain of our tax years remain subject to exatiom by the Internal Revenue
Service, or IRS, and various state and local aittesr In addition, we continue to discuss certagustry issues with the IRS. As a result of
these examinations and discussions, we have retardeunts for uncertain tax positions. It is ap@téed that the amount of unrecognized tax
benefits will change in the next 12 months duedssjble settlements of audits and changes in teampdems. However, the ultimate
resolution of these items is dependent on a numibfctors, such as completion of negotiations watking authorities, the outcome of
litigation and settlement of industry issues. Witlile amount that may change is dependent upon uméactors, the possible range may be
$0.0 to $(160.0).

We recognize interest and, if applicable, penaltibich could be assessed related to unrecognizdoktzefits in income tax (benefit)
expense. For the years ended December 31, 2008 ,a2@D2005, we recognized approximately $(27.8),8%and $23.2 in interest,
respectively. The interest in 2007 is comprisethtdrest recorded in the income statement of $18t6rest reclassified to a liability account of
$(3.4) and interest that is recorded against gob@wtihe amount of $(44.3). We had accrued appmately $168.3 and $196.1 for the payment
of interest at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respbygti

As of December 31, 2007, our 2006, 2005 and 2004ears are being examined by the IRS. In additimhave several tax years for
which there are ongoing disputes. For 2007, theitiRRBed us to join in the Compliance AssurancegPam, or CAP, and we accepted. The
objective of CAP is to reduce taxpayer burden
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14. Income Taxes (continued)

and uncertainty while assuring the IRS of the amcyiiof tax returns prior to filing, thereby redugior eliminating the need for post-filing
examinations.

During 2007, pre-acquisition tax litigation for tiiear 1987 was settled favorably to us. As a redite settlement, we were also able to
settle with the IRS for the years 1991-2003. We akstled with the IRS in another pre-acquisiti@araination for the years 199899. In bott
cases, the resultant tax and pre-acquisition istevere recorded as an adjustment to goodwill.

In certain states, we pay premium taxes in liestafe income taxes. Premium taxes are reportedgeitkeral and administrative expense.

At December 31, 2007, we had unused federal tanpeating loss carryforwards of approximately $03@ offset future taxable
income. The loss carryforwards expire in the y@8@8 through 2024. During 2007, 2006, and 2005rfddecome taxes paid totaled $1,587.4,
$1,553.3, and $994.0, respectively.

15. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

A reconciliation of the components of accumulatéteo comprehensive income (loss) at December 84 fsllows:

2007 2006
Investments
Gross unrealized gail $ 445.2 $418.(
Gross unrealized loss (179.%) (148.0)
Net pretax unrealized gai 265.F 270.C
Deferred tax liability (101.5 (108.2)
Net unrealized gains on investme 164.( 161.¢
Cash flow hedge:
Gross unrealized loss (12.5 (8.5
Deferred tax asst 4.5 2.9
Net unrealized loss on cash flow hed (8.0 (5.6)
Defined benefit pension plar
Reclassification of additional minimum pension iidp — (10.¢)
Deferred net actuarial gain (los 3.5 (98.6)
Deferred net actuarial gain (los 3.5 (109.2)
Deferred prior service credits (cos 8.2 (7.0
Deferred tax (liability) ass¢ (4.5 45.2
Net unrecognized period benefit costs for defineddfit pension plan 7.2 (71.0
Postretirement benefit plar
Deferred net actuarial lo: (124.¢ (87.0
Deferred prior service credi 112.¢ 29.€
Deferred tax asst 4.6 22.F
Net unrecognized period benefit costs for poseetgnt benefit plan (7.0) (35.])
Accumulated other comprehensive inca $ 156.1 $ 50.1
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15. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Lossgdntinued)

Other comprehensive income (loss) reclassificatidjnstments for the years ended December 31 dodi@ss:

2007 2006 2005
Investments
Net holding (loss) gain on investment securitiesiag during the period, net of tax (benefit) expef
$(10.6), $118.9, and $(89.4), respectiv $ (5.1) $180.f $(163.9)
Reclassification adjustment for net realized ghiisg) on investment securities, net of tax expefise
$3.9, $0.0, and $3.6, respectiv: 7.3 (0.9 6.6
Total reclassification adjustment on investme 2.2 180.2 (157.2)
Cash flow hedges
Holding loss, net of tax benefit of $(1.6), $(2.8hd $(5.2), respective (2.9 (5.6) 9.7
Other:
Net change in additional minimum pension liabilitgt of tax (benefit) expense of $0.0, $(3.0), 6!,
respectively — 4.7 0.8
Net change in unrecognized period benefit costslédined benefit pension and postretirement be
plans, net of tax expense of $67.4, $0.0, and $6dpectively 106.2 — —
Net gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensigerme, net of tax expense (benefit) of $59.1, &1,18h¢
$(90.6) , respectivel $106.( $169.¢ $(166.7)
16. Leases

We lease office space and certain computer anteceéuipment using noncancelable operating leas¢d3ecember 31, 2007, future
lease payments for operating leases with initiakaraining noncancelable terms of one year or roonsisted of the following:

2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
Thereaftel

Total minimum payments requirt

$150.%
135.

We have certain lease agreements that containmnggamti payment provisions. Under these provisiogspay contingent amounts in
addition to base rent, primarily based upon anobahges in the consumer price index. The schedthaleeacontains estimated amounts for

potential future increases in lease payments basélde contingent payment provisions.
Lease expense for 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $19488,& and $140.0, respectively.
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17. Retirement Benefits
We sponsor various non-contributory employee definenefit plans through certain subsidiaries.

The WellPoint Cash Balance Pension Plan, or the, faich name changed from the Anthem Cash BalBectsion Plan effective
January 1, 20086, is a cash balance pension plarssperl by ATH Holding Company, LLC covering certaligible employees. The Plan was
sponsored by Anthem Insurance prior to December 2Bfiective January 1, 2006, the plan sponsoraded the benefits under the Plan. As a
result, most participants’ accounts no longer aegay credits, but do continue to earn interestplByees hired on or after January 1, 2006 are
not eligible to participate in the Plan. Certaimtiggpants were “grandfathered” based on age amdsyef service. Grandfathered participants
continue to accrue pay credits under the Plan ftanmWe recorded a curtailment gain of $4.6 durlmgyear ended December 31, 2006.

Through June 30, 2006, Anthem Holding Corp. spaettine WellPoint Health Networks Inc. Pension Acalation Plan, or the WHN
Plan, a defined benefit pension plan which covetagble employees of WHN and certain WHN subsiiguprior to its merger with Anthem.
Effective January 1, 2004, the plan sponsor ceddienefits under the WHN Plan, with the result thast participants’ accounts no longer
accrued pay credits, but do continue to earn isteEemployees of WHN hired after December 31, 2088 not eligible to participate in the
WHN Plan, except for certain employees covereddilective bargaining agreements. Certain partidipavere “grandfathered” based on age
and years of service. Grandfathered participamsiruee to accrue pay credits under the WHN Plamida. Effective June 30, 2006, the WHN
Plan was merged into the Plan.

Through December 31, 2006, WellPoint Holding Cegmonsored the Empire Blue Cross and Blue Shielth Batance Pension Plan, or
the Empire Plan, a cash balance defined benefit\ptdch covered eligible employees of WellChoice arrtain of its subsidiaries prior to our
acquisition of WellChoice. The Empire Plan was neergto the Plan on December 31, 2006. Effectiveidey 1, 2007, the plan sponsor
curtailed benefits under the Empire Plan. As altesost participants’ accounts no longer accrug gradits, but continue to earn interest.
Employees hired on or after January 1, 2007 areligible to participate in the Plan. Certain papgants were “grandfathered” based on age
and years of service in the former Empire Plann@fathered participants continue to receive pagitseinder the Empire Plan formula. There
was no curtailment gain or loss associated wittctiréailment of benefits under the Empire Plan.

The UGS Pension Plan is a defined benefit pendam pvhich covers eligible employees (includingtaer employees covered by a
collective bargaining agreement) of National Goweent Services, Inc., which name changed from AdBtaaFederal, Inc. effective
November 17, 2006, who were formerly employed bytéthGovernment Services, LLC, or UGS. Effectivaulay 1, 2004, the plan spon:
curtailed benefits under the UGS Pension Planjtiegun most non-bargained participants’ accourddonger accruing pay credits but
continuing to earn interest. Employees subjecboltective bargaining, as well as certain non-bargdiemployees who were “grandfathered”
based on age and years of service, continue toveepay credits. Non-bargained employees of UGEBdhafter December 31, 2003 are not
eligible to participate in the UGS Pension Plan.

The Employees’ Retirement Plan of Blue Cross off@alia, or the BCC Plan, provides retirement béseb eligible employees of Blue
Cross of California who are covered by a collechaegaining agreement. Effective January 1, 209 ptan sponsor curtailed benefits under
the BCC Plan by providing that no Blue Cross ofifdatia employees hired after December 31, 2006eHgible to participate in the BCC
Plan. There was no curtailment gain or loss assatiaith the curtailment of benefits under the BEl@n.
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17. Retirement Benefits (continued)

All of the plans’ assets consist primarily of cormrgiocks, fixed maturity securities, investmentdsiand short-term investments. The
funding policies for all plans are to contribute@amts at least sufficient to meet the minimum fuigdiequirements set forth in the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amende&RISA, and the Pension Protection Act of 2008 im accordance with income tax
regulations, plus such additional amounts as acessary to provide assets sufficient to meet thefits to be paid to plan participants.

In addition, we offer certain employees postretieatrbenefits including certain life, medical, visiand dental benefits upon retirement.
There are several postretirement benefit plansghwtiiffer in amounts of coverage, deductiblesyeeticontributions, years of service and
retirement age. We may fund certain benefit cdstsugh discretionary contributions to a Voluntamoyees’ Beneficiary Association, or
VEBA, trust. Other costs are accrued, with thereetipaying a portion of the costs. Postretiremént pssets held in the VEBA trust consist
primarily of bonds and equity securities.

We currently use a September 30 measurement dadetiermining benefit obligations and fair valueptgn assets and will adopt the
fiscal-year-end measurement requirements of FASohSBecember 31, 2008 using the alternative tramsitethod. In lieu of re-measuring
plan assets at the beginning of 2008, the altermatansition method allows for the use of the 8etiter 30, 2007 measurement date with net
periodic benefit costs for the period from OctobeP007 to December 31, 2008 allocated proportepdtetween an adjustment of retained
earnings and net periodic benefit cost for 2008.

The following tables disclose consolidated “pendienefits”, which include the defined benefit pemsplans described above, and
consolidated “other benefits”, which include otpestretirement benefits described above. Calculatieere computed using assumptions at
the relevant measurement dates. The effect of sitiguis on the consolidated benefit obligation plfah assets is reflected through the busi
combination lines of the tables below.

The reconciliation of the benefit obligation isfalows:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $1,816." $1,966.( $603.¢ $603.2
Service cos 36.€ 60.1 7.2 12.1
Interest cos 102.¢ 102.2 33.¢ 31.1
Plan amendmen (8.9 10.2 (88.7) (20.2)
Actuarial (gain) los: 16.C (140.9) 47.C (6.3
Benefits paic (202.9) (183.5 (42.9) (35.9
Business combinatior — 1.8 — 19.2
Benefit obligation at end of ye $1,761.( $1,816." $560.5 $603.¢
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17. Retirement Benefits (continued)

The changes in the fair value of plan assets afellasvs:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $1,987 .- $1,911.¢ $ 39.5 $41.¢
Actual return on plan asse 281.: 150.4 8.8 (0.7)
Employer contribution: 8.€ 108.¢ 42.2 33.8
Benefits paic (196.7) (183.5) (43.9) (35.2)
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $2,081.: $1,987.¢ $ 46.5 $ 39.c

The reconciliation of the funded status to theamount included in the consolidated balance sheets follows:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
Funded statu $320.2 $170.7  $(514.9 $(564.5)
Contributions made after the measurement 29.t 1.5 13.5 10.1
Net amount at December : $349.7  $172.2  $(500.7)  $(554.9)
The net amount included in the consolidated balaheets is as follows:
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
Noncurrent asse $411.% $274.1 $ — $ —
Current liabilities (2.2 (6.9 — (19.)
Noncurrent liabilities (59.€) (95.0) (500.7) (535.9)
Net amount at December : $349.7  $172.2 $(500.7)  $(554.9

The net amounts included in accumulated other cehgrsive (income) loss that have not been recogimige&omponents of net period
benefit costs are as follows:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2007 2006 2007 2006
Net actuarial (gain) los $ (3.5 $109.2 $124.¢ $87.C
Prior service cost (credi (8.2) 7.C (112.9 (29.6)
Net amount at December : $(11.9 $116.2 $ 115 $57.4

The estimated net actuarial loss and prior semice (credit) for the defined benefit pension pléreg will be amortized from
accumulated other comprehensive income into nébgierbenefit costs over the next fiscal year &d%nd $(0.8) respectively. The estimated
net actuarial loss and prior service cost (crdditpostretirement benefit plans that will be arread from accumulated other comprehensive
income into net periodic benefit costs over thetfisgal year are $5.3 and $(9.8), respectively.
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The accumulated benefit obligation for the defibedefit pension plans was $1,756.7 and $1,803&e¢mber 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2007, certain pension plansaecadmulated benefit obligations in excess of pksets. For those same plans, the
projected benefit obligation was also in excesglaif assets. Such plans had a combined projecteibebligation, accumulated benefit
obligation and fair value of plan assets of $9%%).5 and $0.0, respectively.

The assumptions used in calculating the benefigatbns for all plans are as follows:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

2007 2006 2007 2006
Discount rate 6.00% 5.9(% 6.1(% 5.9(%
Rate of compensation incree 4.50% 4.5(% 4.5(% 4.5(%
Expected rate of return on plan as 8.00% 8.0(% 7.25% 7.11%

The components of net periodic benefit (credit} dosluded in the consolidated statements of incaneeas follows:

2007 2006 2005
Pension Benefits
Service cos $ 36.€ $ 60.1 $ 59.C
Interest cos 102.t 102.4 78.5
Expected return on asst (153.29) (144.¢ (102.¢)
Recognized actuarial lo: 0.t 17.¢ 17.c
Amortization of prior service co: 0.2 1.4 (3.6)
Curtailment loss (gair 0.2 (4.€) —
Net periodic benefit (credit) co $ (12,9 $ 32.¢ $ 48.€
Other Benefits
Service cos $ 7.2 $ 12.1 $ 8.1
Interest cos 33.€ 31.1 25.C
Expected return on asst (3.3 (2.9 (2.7)
Recognized actuarial lo: 3.¢ 4.2 0.4
Amortization of prior service co: (5.9 (2.5) (4.0
Net periodic benefit co: $ 36.c $ 42.1 $ 26.¢
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17. Retirement Benefits (continued)

The assumptions used in calculating the net paribenefit cost for all plans are as follows:

2007 2006 2005

Pension Benefits

Discount rate 5.9(% 5.31% 5.8%
Rate of compensation incree 4.5(% 4.3%% 4.3/%
Expected rate of return on plan as 8.0(% 8.0(% 8.16%
Other Benefits

Discount rate 5.9(% 5.2¢% 5.87%
Rate of compensation incree 4.5% 4.42% 4.26%
Expected rate of return on plan as 7.11% 6.95% 6.05%

The assumed health care cost trend rates to befarseext year to measure the expected cost of dibeefits is 8.50% with a gradual
decline to 5.0% by the year 2015. These estimaésdi trates are subject to change in the future hElaéth care cost trend rate assumption |
significant effect on the amounts reported. Fomeaie, an increase in the assumed health carereost tate of one percentage point would
increase the postretirement benefit obligationfd3exzember 31, 2007 by $40.0 and would increasecgeand interest costs by $1.9.
Conversely, a decrease in the assumed health astrérend rate of one percentage point would deeré@e postretirement benefit obligatior
$33.8 as of December 31, 2007 and would decreagesand interest costs by $1.6.

An important factor in determining our pension expeis the assumption for expected long-term ratetorn on plan assets. We use a
total portfolio return analysis in the developmehbur assumption. Factors such as past marketnqpesihce, the long-term relationship
between fixed maturity and equity securities, iegtrrates, inflation and asset allocations areidered in the assumption. The assumption
includes an estimate of the additional return etgubfrom active management of the investment pliotf@eer data and historical returns are
also reviewed for appropriateness of the selectedraption. The expected long-term rate of retunaisulated by the geometric averaging
method, which calculates an expected multi-peratdrn, reflecting volatility drag on compound retsir

In managing the plan assets, our objective is ta tEsponsible fiduciary while minimizing financi&@k. In addition to producing a
reasonable return, the investment strategy seakénimize the volatility in employer expense angltélow.

Plan assets include a diversified mix of investngrate fixed maturity securities, equity securiiesl alternatives across a range of
sectors and levels of capitalization to maximize ltng-term return for a prudent level of risk. #g¢he measurement date, our targeted asset
allocation and actual allocation by asset categoeyas follows:

Target Actual Allocation
Allocation Pension Other Benefit
Benefit Assets Assets

for All

Plans 2007 200¢ 200i 200¢
Equity securitie: 54% 60% 67% 62% 66%
Fixed maturity securitie 35 36 32 36 33
Other 11 _ 4 1 2 1
Total 10%  10(%  10(%  10(%  10(%
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17. Retirement Benefits (continued)

Our current funding strategy is to fund an amouméast equal to the minimum required funding agmeined under ERISA with
consideration of maximum tax deductible amounts.riég elect to make discretionary contributionsathe maximum amount deductible for
income tax purposes. For the year ended Decembh@0BY, no contributions were necessary to meeSBRéquired funding levels; however,
we made tax deductible discretionary contributitmaling $8.6 to the defined benefit pension pl&mployer contributions related to other
benefits represent payments to retirees for cubyenéfits. Contributions to the VEBA are generaldy material.

Our estimated future payments for pension benafitspostretirement benefits, which reflect expetidate service, as appropriate, are
as follows:

Pension Other

Benefits Benefits
2008 $183.< $ 414
2009 154.2 41.2
2010 162.1 41.4
2011 152.c 41.¢
2012 154.¢ 42.L
2013-2017 811.t 213.5

In addition to the defined benefit plans, we mdmtae WellPoint 401(k) Retirement Savings Planjoliiname changed from the Anth
401(k) Long Term Savings Investment Plan effecBezember 31, 2005, a qualified defined contribupitan covering substantially all
employees. Voluntary employee contributions arechid by us subject to certain limitations. Contiifxs made by us totaled $95.2, $85.2,
and $74.6 during 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively

18. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

In July 2005, we entered into a settlement agreémith representatives of more than 700,000 phgsginationwide to resolve certain
cases brought by physicians. The cases resolveslkmemwn as the CMA Litigation, the Shane Litigatittne Thomas LitigatioKenneth
Thomas, M.D., et al. vs. Blue Cross Blue Shielaéiation, et al.Jand certain other similar cases brought by physgi&inal monetary
payments were made in October 2006. Followingdtgusition in 2005, WellChoice was merged with @md a wholly-owned subsidiary of
WellPoint. Since the WellChoice transaction closadDecember 28, 2005, after we reached settlemigmthre plaintiffs, WellChoice
continues to be a defendant in the Thomas (now kres\Love) Litigation and is not affected by thimpsettlement between us and plaintiffs.
The Love Litigation alleges that the BCBSA and Biee Cross and Blue Shield plans violated the Ragkdnfluenced and Corrupt
Organizations Act, or RICO. On April 27, 2007, vadgng with 22 other Blue Cross and Blue Shield pland the BCSBA, announced a
settlement of the Love Litigation. The Court grahpeeliminary approval on May 31, 2007. The setdetrwill not have a material effect on
our consolidated financial position or results pémtions.

Prior to WHN'’s acquisition of the group benefit ogigons, or GBO, of John Hancock Mutual Life Inguza Company, or John Hancock,
John Hancock entered into a number of reinsurame@gements, including with respect to personaidaett insurance and the occupational
accident component of workersdmpensation insurance, a portion of which wasimatgd through a pool managed by Unicover Managjecs
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18. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Under these arrangements, John Hancock assumedsskreinsurer and transferred certain of sg&ls to other companies. Similar
reinsurance arrangements were entered into by Hdahnock following WHN'’s acquisition of the GBO aflin Hancock. These various
arrangements have become the subject of dispatdading a number of legal proceedings to whicmJdlancock is a party. We are currently
in arbitration with John Hancock regarding thesarrgements. The arbitration panel's Phase | ridiidressed liability. On April 23, 2007, the
arbitration panel issued a Phase Il ruling statirgamount we owe to John Hancock for losses apdreses John Hancock paid through

June 30, 2006. The panel further outlined a profm@sgetermining our liability for losses and expea paid after June 30, 2006, which liability
has not yet been determined. We filed a Petitio@daofirm and John Hancock filed an Application tacéte the arbitration rulings, which are
currently pending in federal court. We believe tiat liability that may result from this mattemnislikely to have a material adverse effect on
our consolidated financial condition or resultopgrations.

In various California state courts, we are defegdimumber of individual lawsuits and four purpdrtdass actions alleging the wrongful
rescission of individual insurance policies. Thi#ssname WellPoint as well as Blue Cross of Cafifar or BCC, and BC Life & Health
Insurance Company, or BCL&H, both WellPoint subsiiis. The lawsuits generally allege breach ofremtbad faith and unfair business
practices in a purported practice of rescinding imividual members following the submission ofgarclaims. The parties have agreed to
mediate most of these lawsuits and the mediatisrrémsulted in the resolution of some of these lawsin addition, the California Department
of Managed Health Care and California Departmenhsfirance are conducting investigations of thegaltions. In February 2007, the
California Department of Managed Health Care isstgefinal report in which it indicated its inteati to impose a monetary penalty against
BCC of $1.0. In June 2007, the California Departtraé#rinsurance issued its final report in whicisgued a number of citations alleging
violations of fair-claims handling laws. While tbatcome is currently unknown, we believe that aaility that may result from this matter is
unlikely to have a material adverse effect on aumrsolidated financial condition or results of opienas.

In various California state courts, several hospit@ve filed suits against BCC and WHN for paynadridlaims denied where the
member was rescinded. These lawsuits are currignthediation or arbitration. In addition, a purgamttclass action has been filed against BCC,
BCL&H and WHN in a California state court on behaflfhospitals. This suit also seeks to recovepyment of claims denied where the
member was rescinded. An amended complaint wasttgdged adding the California Medical Associatialong with the California Hospital
Association as new plaintiffs in the suit. We demy wrongdoing and intend to vigorously defend ¢heoceedings. While the outcome is
unknown, we believe that any liability that mayukdrom this matter is unlikely to have a mateaalerse effect on our consolidated financial
condition or results of operations.

Other Contingencies

From time to time, we and certain of our subsi@isidre parties to various legal proceedings, mamhih involve claims for coverage
encountered in the ordinary course of business.IM&EHMOs and health insurers generally, excluegain health care services from cover
under our HMO, PPO and other plans. We are, imtbmary course of business, subject to the claihwur enrollees arising out of decisions
to restrict or deny reimbursement for uncoveredises. The loss of even one such claim, if it ressinl a significant punitive damage award,
could have a material adverse effect on us. Intadithe risk of potential liability under punitv\damage theories may increase significantly
the difficulty of obtaining reasonable settlemenftgoverage claims.
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18. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

In addition to the lawsuits described above, weadse involved in other pending and threatenedditbn of the character incidental to
our business transacted, arising out of our opTatand our 2001 demutualization, and are from torténe involved as a party in various
governmental investigations, audits, reviews andiaitrative proceedings. These investigationsjtauhd reviews include routine and spe
investigations by state insurance departments at&trneys general and the U.S. Attorney Gen8talh investigations could result in the
imposition of civil or criminal fines, penalties @other sanctions. We believe that any liabilitgtttnay result from any one of these actions, or
in the aggregate, is unlikely to have a materigeaske effect on our consolidated financial positomesults of operations.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

We have entered into certain agreements with latemal Business Machines Corporation, or IBM, tovide information technology
infrastructure services. These services were pusiygerformed in-house. Our remaining commitmerdar these contracts at December 31,
2007 is approximately $829.8 over a five year geride have the ability to terminate these agreesngpon the occurrence of certain events,
subject to certain early termination fees.

In connection with an investment in July 2004 jjoiat venture to develop and operate a well-beiagter in California, we may be
required to make an additional capital contributdmp to $18.0 during the first three years thatwell-being center is in operation if cash
flows and room nights generated by us do not exspedified targets. Approximately $8.3 of this ®lBas been funded through December 31,
2007. The well-being center began operations dubiegember 2006.

Vulnerability from Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subjectaisancentrations of credit risk consist primarifycash equivalents, investment securit
premium receivables and instruments held througlying activities. All investment securities are raged by professional investment
managers within policies authorized by our Boar®@wéctors. Such policies limit the amounts thatrba invested in any one issuer and
prescribe certain investee company criteria. Cotnagans of credit risk with respect to premiume®@bles are limited due to the large nun
of employer groups that constitute our customee liashe geographic regions in which we conductriass. As of December 31, 2007, there
were no significant concentrations of financialtfioments in a single investee, industry or geodralattation.

19. Segment Information

We revised our reportable segments during thedusarter of 2007 consistent with changes made t@@anizational structure, which
reflected how the chief operating decision makedated the performance of the business beginmingaly 1, 2007. Segment disclosures for
2006 and 2005 have been reclassified to confortihne@007 presentation.

Through December 31, 2007, we managed our opesatimaugh three reportable segments: Consumer amdr@rcial Business, or
CCB; Specialty, Senior and State Sponsored BusinegsSB; and Other.

CCB segment includes business units, which offeilar products and services, including commeraigloaints and individual programs.
CCB offers a diversified mix of managed care praduiocluding PPOs,
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19. Segment Information (continued)

HMOs, traditional indemnity benefits and POS pla®&B also offers a variety of hybrid benefit plamsluding CDHPs, hospital only and
limited benefit products. Additionally, CCB provisla broad array of managed care services to salfiefii customers, including claims
processing, underwriting, stop loss insurance,a@liservices, provider network access, medical otanagement and other administrative
services.

4SB segment is comprised of businesses providiafithand specialty products and services such aliddles Part D, Medicare
Advantage, Medicare Supplement, Medicaid, life dis@bility insurance benefits, PBM, specialty phacyn dental, vision, behavioral health
benefit services and long-term care insurance. @S& provides network rental and medical manages®mnices to workers compensation
carriers.

The Other segment includes results from our Fed&oakernment Solutions, or FGS, business and otlinbsses that do not meet the
guantitative thresholds for an operating segmenefised in FAS 131Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise andt&elnformation
as well as intersegment sales and expense elimirsadind corporate expenses not allocated to tlee mportable segments. FGS business
includes the Federal Employee Program, or FEPNatishnal Government Services, Inc. (which name gedrfrom AdminaStar Federal, Inc.
effective November 17, 2006), or NGS, which acta &dedicare contractor in several regions across#tion.

As a result of organizational changes during 20@6recorded general and administrative expens$5mB for employee termination
costs. We made payments of $3.7 during 2006 retatétese termination costs and as of Decembe2(16, a liability of $51.6 remained for
future payments of termination costs. During 200¢ accrued an additional $10.5, released unusedas®f $3.4 and made payments of
$58.1 related to these termination costs. A ligbdf $0.6 remained at December 31, 2007 for fupagments of termination costs.

Through our participation in various federal goveemt programs, we generated approximately 17%, &68411% of our total
consolidated revenues from agencies of the U.Semgovent for the years ended December 31, 2007, 20@62005, respectively. These
revenues are contained in the 4SB and Other segment

We define operating revenues to include premiurorime, administrative fees and other revenues. Gpgregvenues are derived from
premiums and fees received primarily from the salé administration of health benefit products. @peg expenses are comprised of benefit
expense, selling expense, general and administratipense and cost of drugs. We calculate operg#imgor loss as operating revenue less
operating expenses.

The accounting policies of the segments are camdistith those described in the summary of sigaiftcaccounting policies in Note 2
except that certain shared administrative expefmse=ach segment are recognized on a pro ratasééiddasis, which in aggregate
approximates the consolidated expense. Any differdretween the allocated expenses and actual abetsol expense is included in other
expenses not allocated to reportable segmentsségment sales and expenses are recorded atrmo®iminated in the consolidated financial
statements. We evaluate performance of the redersalgments based on operating gain or loss asedefibove. We evaluate investment
income, interest expense, amortization expensérmothe taxes, and asset and liability details coresolidated basis as these items are
managed in a corporate shared service environnmehari@ not the responsibility of segment operatiragagement.
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19. Segment Information (continued)

Financial data by reportable segment for the yeaded December 31 is as follows:

Other and
CCB 4SB Eliminations Total

Year ended December 31, 20C

Operating revenue from external custorr $42,122.( $12,014.& $ 5,985.C $60,122.(
Intersegment revenu — 1,700.¢ (2,700.6 —
Operating gait 3,999.° 972.< 12.2 4,984..
Depreciation and lease amortization expe — — 266.¢ 266.¢
Year ended December 31, 20C

Operating revenue from external custorr 40,602. 10,116.( 5,441.¢ 56,160.
Intersegment revenu — 1,437.: (1,437.) —
Operating gain (loss 3,679. 1,117.( (59.6€ 4,736.¢
Depreciation and lease amortization expe — — 270.¢ 270.¢
Year ended December 31, 20C

Operating revenue from external custorr 32,182 7,253.¢ 4,554, 43,991..
Intersegment revenu — 1,173.¢ (1,173.9 —
Operating gain (loss 2,892.° 932.7 (92.9 3,732.!
Depreciation and lease amortization expe 4.4 04 224.( 228.¢

The major product revenues from external custorfogrsach of the reportable segments for the yezile@ December 31, are as follows:

2007 2006 2005
CCB
Managed care produc $39,067.(  $37,721.. $29,964.
Managed care servic 3,055.( 2,881. 2,218.(
Total CCB 42,122.( 40,602.1 32,182.
4SB
Managed care produc 10,069.( 8,136.¢ 5,304.
Managed care servic 32.: 31.1 10.3
Dental/Vision products and servic 840.7 804.7 738.
Pharmacy products and servit 640.¢ 691.2 598.t
Other 431.¢ 452.¢ 601.¢
Total 4SB 12,014.¢ 10,116.( 7,253.¢
Other
Government service 5,945.¢ 5,392.¢ 4,497 ..
Other 39.4 48.¢ 57.€
Total Other 5,985.: 5,441.¢ 4,554.
Total revenues from external custom $60,122.(  $56,160..  $43,991..
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The classification between managed care productsreamaged care services in the above table primdistinguishes between the level
of risk assumed. Managed care products represamtaince products where we bear the insurancewlsieas managed care services repr
product offerings where we provide claims adjudaagtnd other administrative services to the custotout the customer principally bears the
insurance risk.

Asset and equity details by reportable segment hatbeen disclosed, as we do not internally repach information.

A reconciliation of reportable segment operatingereies to the amounts of total revenues includelderconsolidated statements of
income for the years ended December 31, is asisilo

2007 2006 2005
Reportable segments operating rever $60,122.(  $56,160. $43,991..
Net investment incom 1,001.: 878.1 633.]
Net realized gains (losses) on investme 11.2 (0.3 (10.2)
Total revenue $61,134.: $57,038.¢ $44,614.:

A reconciliation of reportable segment operatindndga income before income taxes included in thesctidated statements of income for
the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2007 2006 2005
Reportable segments operating ¢ $4,984.. $4,736.¢ $3,732.!
Net investment incom 1,001.: 878.7 633.1
Net realized gains (losses) on investm: 11.2 0.3 (10.2)
Interest expens (447.9 (403.5) (226.2)
Amortization of other intangible asst (290.7) (297.9 (238.9
Income before income tax $5,257.¢ $4,914. $3,890.!

On October 2, 2007, we announced a new organiztgtructure with new strategic business unitsoem@ercial Business unit and a
Consumer Business Unit that service different austotypes. The Commercial Business unit includesalLGroup customers, National
Accounts, UniCare and Specialty business operafierstal, vision, life and disability and workecgimpensation). The Consumer Business
unit includes Senior, State Sponsored and Individusiness. In addition, a new Comprehensive Hezdilations Business unit brings together
our resources focused on optimizing the qualitiiedlith care and the cost of care management. Thp@bensive Health Solutions Business
unit includes provider relations, care and diseaaeagement, behavioral health, employee assisfangeams and our PBM business, which
includes NextRx, and our specialty pharmacy, Preigx Specialty Solutions. Our FGS business incdueleP and NGS, which acts as a
Medicare contractor. This simplified, customer-feed structure builds on the strength of our commakand consumer businesses, and will
create additional opportunities for cross-sellingdical and specialty products. These changes aipba&size our comprehensive approach to
improving the quality, transparency and cost ofithezare for all of our customers. Our chief opergecision maker will assess performance
under this new structure effective January 1, 2898 accordingly, we expect to revise our repogtaligments in the first quarter of 2008.
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20. Related Party Transaction

WellPoint Foundation, Inc., or the Foundation, whitame changed from Anthem Foundation, Inc. effeciuly 1, 2006, is an Indiana
non-profit organization exempt from federal taxati;mder Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal RevenadeC The Foundation was formed to
conduct, support and assist charitable, healtheg|@&ducational, and other community-based prog/i@md projects. Effective July 1, 2006,
WellPoint Foundation, a Section 501(c)(3) non-grofganization previously formed to improve theltteand well-being of individuals in
communities served by the former WHN, was mergéaltimle Foundation. The officers and directors effloundation are also our officers.
These officers and directors receive no compensétion the Foundation for the management serviegfopned for the Foundation but may
be reimbursed by the Foundation for any cash expeed incurred on behalf of the Foundation. Wesheed $0.6 from the Foundation for
administrative services provided by our associet@907. The Foundation is not a subsidiary of @ms the financial results of the Foundation
are not consolidated with our financial statemeNtscontributions were made to the Foundation if72@006 or 2005. We have no current
legal obligations for future commitments to the Rdation.

21. Statutory Information

Our insurance and HMO subsidiaries report theipants in conformity with accounting practices présed or permitted by state
insurance regulatory authorities, or statutory,althiary in certain respects from GAAP. Typical difnces of GAAP reporting as compared to
statutory reporting are the inclusion of unrealigaghs or losses relating to fixed maturity sedesitn shareholders’ equity, recognition of all
assets including those that are non-admitted &utdry purposes and recognition of all deferredatssets without regard to statutory limits.
The National Association of Insurance Commissioner&NAIC, developed a codified version of the gtaty accounting principles, designe:
foster more consistency among the states for a¢cmuguidelines and reporting.

Our insurance and HMO subsidiaries are domiciledhiious jurisdictions. These subsidiaries pregaiutory financial statements in
accordance with accounting practices prescribgrbomnitted by the respective jurisdictions’ insuramegulators. Prescribed statutory
accounting practices are set forth in a varietguflications of the NAIC as well as state laws utatjons and general administrative rules.

Our ability to pay dividends and credit obligatiossignificantly dependent on receipt of dividefidsn our subsidiaries. The paymen
dividends to us by our insurance and HMO subsielawiithout prior approval of the insurance depantsief each subsidiary’s domiciliary
jurisdiction is limited by formula. Dividends in egss of these amounts are subject to prior apphyvtile respective state insurai
departments.

Our insurance and HMO subsidiaries are subjedskshased capital requirements. Risksed capital is a method developed by the N
to determine the minimum amount of statutory cawifgropriate for an insurance company or HMO topsut its overall business operations
in consideration of its size and risk profile. Tlemula for determining the amount of risk-basefitz specifies various factors, weighted
based on the perceived degree of risk, which gpoéeapto certain financial balances and financadty. Below minimum risk-based capital
requirements are classified within certain levets;h of which requires specified corrective actismof December 31, 2007 and 2006, all of
our regulated subsidiaries exceeded the minimukabdsed capital requirements.

Statutory-basis capital and surplus for our insceaand HMO subsidiaries was $7,642.8 and $7,98 D@éeember 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Statutory-basis net income of ouniasce and HMO subsidiaries was $3,119.9, $2,93h@ $2,385.1 for 2007, 2006, and 2005,
respectively. Statutory-basis net income includesl@hoice statutory results for the full year en@atember 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.
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22. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Selected quarterly financial data is as follows:

2007

Total revenue

Income before income tax
Net income

Basic net income per she
Diluted net income per sha

2006

Total revenue

Income before income tax
Net income

Basic net income per she
Diluted net income per sha
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For the Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3( December 3
$15,079.. $15,259.¢ $ 15,233.¢ $15,561.
1,246.¢ 1,317.: 1,371.¢ 1,322.¢
783.1 835.2 868.( 859.1
1.2¢ 1.37 1.47 1.52

1.2¢ 1.3 1.4t 1.51
$13,838.! $14,171.: $ 14,449. $14,579.
1,172, 1,203.: 1,254.¢ 1,283.¢
731.¢ 751.2 810.¢ 801.1
1.17 1.2C 1.31 1.3C

1.0¢ 1.17 1.2¢ 1.2¢
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

There have been no changes in or disagreement®witindependent registered public accounting filmaccounting or financial
disclosures.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation as of December 317 200der the supervision and with the participatbour management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officef the effectiveness of the design and operaifosur disclosure controls and procedure
defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Excleafigt of 1934. Based upon that evaluation, the {Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that our disclosure controls pnatedures are effective in timely alerting thenmiaterial information relating to us
(including our consolidated subsidiaries) requiteethe disclosed in our reports under the Secuifitiehange Act of 1934. In addition based on
that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer andeErinancial Officer concluded that our disclosaoatrols and procedures were effective in
ensuring that information required to be disclobgdis in the reports that we file or submit under Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is
accumulated and communicated to our managemehiding the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fina©fficer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management, under the supervision and with théqigation of the principal executive officer andrmuipal financial officer, of
WellPoint, Inc., or the Company, is responsibledstablishing and maintaining effective internaitcol over financial reporting, or Internal
Control, as such term is defined in Exchange AdeR3a-15(f). The Company’s Internal Control isigaed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of our financial repomgimnd the preparation of financial statements %éem@al reporting purposes in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, AAB. The Company’s Internal Control includes thpsédicies and procedures that (i) pertain
to the maintenance of records that in reasonaltégl decurately and fairly reflect the transacti@msl dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (i) provide reasonable assurance thas#aieétions are recorded as necessary to permitrat&paof financial statements in
accordance with GAAP, and that receipts and experedi of the Company are being made only in acemeavith authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; andiiiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventibtmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the Companysessthat could have a material effect on the firdstatements.

Because of inherent limitations in any Internal €okno matter how well designed, misstatementstduerror or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Accordingly, even effective Inééi@ontrol can provide only reasonable assurangardéng the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with GAAP.

Management, under the supervision and with theqgjaation of the principal executive officer andrmipal financial officer, assessed "
effectiveness of the Company’s Internal ControbBecember 31, 2007. Management’s assessmentagasl lon criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byGloenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission.

Based on management’s assessment, managemeninkagled that the Company’s Internal Control wasdfie as of December 31,
2007 to provide reasonable assurance regardinghkiagility of financial reporting and the prepacsatt of financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with GAAP.
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Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered pubtcounting firm, has audited the consolidatedrfaial statements of the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2007, and hassaised an audit report dated February 13, 200&heeffectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Bewer 31, 2007, which is included in this Annuap&e on Form 10-K.

/s/ ANGELAF. BRALY Is/ WAYNE S. DEV EYDT
President and Executive Vice President and
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Office

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our Internal Cotttadloccurred during the three months ended Dece81he007 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf, our Internal Control.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindgrirm

Shareholders and Board of Directors
WellPoint, Inc.

We have audited WellPoint’s internal control ovieahcial reporting as of December 31, 2007, basecriteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Caossion, (the “COSO criteria”).
WellPaint, Inc.’s management is responsible forntaining effective internal control over financiaporting, and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financigboeting included in the accompanying ManagemeRg&port on Internal Control Over Financ
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an mpiron the Company’s internal control over finahegporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigifenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etéstig and evaluating the design and operatifeg@feness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsreg considered necessary in the circumstanceseliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablezassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thagi€ithin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company'’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.
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In our opinion, WellPoint, Inc. maintained, in alaterial respects, effective internal control diiresincial reporting as of December 31,
2007, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of WellPoint, Incf&ecember 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related tidased statements of income,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each eftkitee years in the period ended December 31, 20@7our report dated February 13, 2008
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & Y OUNGLLP
Indianapolis, Indiana
February 13, 2008
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE.

The information required by this Item concerning Buecutive Officers, Directors and nominees forebtor, Audit Committee members
and financial expert and concerning disclosureatihduent filers under Section 16(a) of the ExcheAgt and concerning our Standards of
Business Conduct is incorporated herein by referémm our definitive Proxy Statement for its 200@nual Meeting of Shareholders, which
will be filed with the SEC pursuant to RegulatiohAlwithin 120 days after the end of our last fisgaar.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this Item concerninmtmeration of our Executive Officers and Directonsiterial transactions involving
such Executive Officers and Directors and Compaéms&ommittee interlocks, as well as the Compensaliommittee Report, are
incorporated herein by reference from our defieitiRroxy Statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting ddr8holders, which will be filed with the
SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 daysrdfie end of our last fiscal year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by this Item concerning ftock ownership of management and five percemgfimal owners and securities
authorized for issuance under equity compensatamsgs incorporated herein by reference from @finitive Proxy Statement for our 2008
Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which will be fileith the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within H2§s after the end of our last fiscal
year.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by this Item concerningt@@ relationships and related person transactmlsdirector independence is
incorporated herein by reference from our defieitiRroxy Statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting ddr8holders, which will be filed with the
SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A within 120 daysrdfie end of our last fiscal year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

The information required by this Item concerningpipal accounting fees and services is incorparagzein by reference from our
definitive Proxy Statement for our 2008 Annual Megtof Shareholders, which will be filed with th&S pursuant to Regulation 14A within
120 days after the end of our last fiscal year.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) 1. Financial Statements:
The following consolidated financial statementshaf Company are set forth in Part Il, Iten

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEimm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&@02006
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearse@iecember 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2007, 20@6200%
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradled December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedule:
The following financial statement schedule of the@®any is included in Item 15(¢
Schedule —Condensed Financial Information of Registrant (Ra@ompany Only)

All other schedules for which provision is madehie applicable accounting regulations of the SECnat required under the
related instructions, are inapplicable, or the megliinformation is included in the consolidatedincial statements, and therefore
have been omitted.

3. Exhibits:

A list of exhibits required to be filed as parttbfs report is set forth in the Index to Exhibitd)ich immediately precedes st
exhibits, and is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Exhibits

The response to this portion of Item 15 is submitie a separate section of this report.
(c) Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule Il—Condensed Financial Information of Regght (Parent Company Only).
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant

WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Balance Sheets

(In millions, except share dat

Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Investments availak-for-sale, at fair value
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $5dn8l $26.9
Equity securities (cost of $290.3 and $29¢
Other invested assets, curr
Other receivable
Income taxes receivab
Net due from subsidiarie
Securities lending collater
Deferred tax assets, r
Other current asse
Total current asse
Long-term investments available for sale, at fair va
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $1,638d $1,153.€
Equity securities (cost of $8.0 and $11
Other invested assets, I-term
Property and equipme
Deferred tax asset, net, non curr
Investment in subsidiarie
Other noncurrent asse

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders equity

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expet
Income taxes payab
Securities lending payab
Current portion of lon-term debt
Other current liabilitie:

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxe

Other noncurrent liabilitie

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenc—Note 6

Shareholder¢ equity

Preferred stock, without par value, shares autedAz100,000,000;
shares issued and outstan—none

Common stock, par value $0.01, shares authorize®;800,000;
shares issued and outstanding: 556,212,038 B,&00,86¢

Additional pait-in capital

Retained earning

Accumulated other comprehensive inca

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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December 31

2007 2006

$ 2756 $ 203.]
54.7 26.¢
326.F 323.(
9.c 30.¢
15.2 27.L

75. —
400.7 185.¢
208. 278.
2. 2,583,
108.1 103.
1,476." 3,761."
1,552.¢ 1,142.¢
8.C 8.3
425.: 385.(
5.3 5.€

371.( —
29,053  29,847.
41.( 17.2
$32,932.°  $35,168.:
$ 1856 $ 266.
— 513.(
208. 278.
— 493.:
108.: 93.
502. 1,645.
8,572.¢ 6,037.;
— 2,468.
867.( 442.(
9,942..  10,592.!
5.€ 6.1
18,441..  19,863.!
4,387.¢ 4,656.:
156.1 50.1
22,990  24,575.i
$32,932.°  $35,168.:
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Statements of Income

(In millions)

Revenues

Net investment incom

Net realized losses on investme
Other revenui

Total revenue

Expenses
General and administrative expel
Interest expens

Total expense

Loss before income tax credits and equity in net tome of subsidiaries
Income tax credit

Equity in net income of subsidiari

Net income

See accompanying notes.
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Years ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
$ 1102 $ B8l€ $ 77.€
(18.9) (17.9) (3.1)
0.4 0.4 0.4
91.¢ 64.€ 74.¢
183. 208.: 95.¢
415 327.¢ 185.¢
599. 535.¢ 281.7
(507.4) (471.9) (206.)
(179.9) (161.9) (46.4)
3,673.f 3,404, 2,624.
$3,345«  $3,094.0  $2,463.¢




Table of Contents

Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In millions)

Operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Distributed (undistributed) earnings of subsidia
Net realized losses on investme
Deferred income taxe
Amortization, net of accretio
Depreciatior
Shar-based compensatic
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of business combinatior
Receivables, ne
Other invested assets, curn
Other asset
Amounts due from subsidiarir
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Other liabilities
Income taxe:

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Purchases of investmer

Proceeds from sales, maturities and redemptioimssetments
Redemption of subsidiary surplus na

Capitalization of subsidiarie

Change in securities lending collate

Purchases of subsidiaries, net of cash acq

Other, ne

Net cash used in investing activitie

Financing activities

Net proceeds (payment) from commercial paper bangs
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings

Repayment of lor-term borrowings

Changes in securities lending pays

Change in bank overdral

Repurchase and retirement of common s

Proceeds from exercise of employee stock optiodsearployee stock purchase p
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic

Other, ne

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activitie
Change in cash and cash equivalt

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of yei

See accompanying notes.
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Year ended December 31

2007 2006 2005
$3,345¢  $3,094.¢ $2,463.
772.¢ (1,059.) 398.¢
18.€ 17.4 3.1
(136.9) (58.€) 32.C
16.€ 6.5 10.1
0.3 0.3 0.3
177.1 149.C 75.¢
(153.9) (136.5) —
12. (2.0) (25.1)
21.: (30.9) —
(32.5) (114.0 6.6
(155.5) (3.0) (94.0)
(33.6) 45.7 32.(
(55.4) 443.7 (18.9)
58.¢ (103.9) 443.
3,856.¢ 2,250.; 3,327.
(1,704.)  (2,095.)  (3,538.9
1,275.¢ 2,346. 1,774.
— 432.¢ —
(12.7) (34.5) —
69.¢ (278.9) —
— — (3,505.9)
(40.2) (411.6) —
(411.9) (40.§  (5,270.)
502.¢ (306.0) 808.:
1,978. 2,668. 1,700.(
(500.0  (1,700.0) (150.0)
(69.9) 278. —
(70.5) 190.7 —
(6,151.9  (4,550.) (333.9)
784.F 550.F 429
153.2 136.F —
— — (2.5)
(3,372  (2,722.9 2,451.¢
72.E (513.0 508.¢
203.1 716.1 207.:
$ 2756 $ 2031 $ 716.1
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements

December 31, 2007
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data)

1. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountingolicies

On November 30, 2004, Anthem, Inc., or Anthem, AredlPoint Health Networks Inc., or WHN, completéir merger. WHN merged
with and into Anthem Holding Corp., a direct andoMrowned subsidiary of Anthem, with Anthem Holdi€orp. as the surviving entity in
the merger. In connection with the merger, Antheneaded its articles of incorporation to changa@me to WellPoint, Inc., or WellPoint. In
addition, the ticker symbol for Anthem’s commoncétdisted on the New York Stock Exchange was chdngeWLP”. WHN’s operating
results are included in WellPoint's consolidatethficial statements for the period following Novemg@ 2004.

In WellPoint’'s parent company only financial statarts, WellPoint’'s investment in subsidiaries idexdaat cost plus equity in
undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries. WeltPsishare of net income of its unconsolidated glidges is included in income using the
equity method of accounting.

Certain amounts presented in the parent comparyfio@incial statements are eliminated in the cadatéd financial statements of
WellPoint.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedhform to the current year presentation.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrstegements, during 2006, WellPoint adopted Steterof Financial Accounting
Standards (FAS) No. 123 (revised 20(hare-Based Paymenand FAS 158Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiod ®&ther
Retirement Plar-an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 1D&32(R).

WellPoint’'s parent company only financial statensestiould be read in conjunction with WellPoint'sli@d consolidated financial
statements and the accompanying notes includédsifrorm 10-K.

2. Subsidiary Transactions
Dividends

WellPoint received cash dividends from subsidiacie$4,446.4, $2,346.4, and $3,023.1 during 200062 and 2005, respectively.
Investment in Subsidiarie

On December 28, 2005, WellPoint completed its agitjon of WellChoice, Inc., or WellChoice and puasked 100% of the outstanding
common stock of WellChoice. As a result of the asitjon, each WellChoice stockholder received $38r2cash, without interest, and 0.5191
shares of WellPoint common stock for each shai&elfChoice common stock held. The purchase price $6463.9 and included cash of
$3,126.4, the issuance of 42.4 shares of WellRmintmon stock valued at $3,180.8, 0.3 shares ofGHelke restricted stock and stock units
converted to WellPoint stock valued at $19.8, Weetiice stock options converted to WellPoint stockiays and other stock awards valued at
$113.4, and $23.5 of transaction costs.
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements

2. Subsidiary Transactions (continued)

The fair value of common stock issued was base®l7drO7 per share, which represents the averageglpsce of WellPoint's common stock
for the five trading days ranging from two daysdrefto two days after September 27, 2005, thettatenerger was announced.

On June 9, 2005, WellPoint completed its acquisitbLumenos, Inc., or Lumenos. The total consiti@ngfor the acquisition was
approximately $185.0 in cash paid to stockholdétsumenos.

Capital contributions to subsidiaries were $1218%8, and $60.1 during 2007, 2006, and 2005, céisedy. The contributions in 2006
included non-cash amounts of $133.0. The 2005 itanitons were non-cash.

Amounts Due to and From Subsidiarie

During December 2006, Anthem Insurance Companies rédeemed surplus notes at par value, and ¢&&t88.9 was received by
WellPoint.

At December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005 WellPoint meplo$250.7, $185.8, and $175.9 due from subs@tiarespectively. These amounts
consisted principally of administrative expensed are routinely settled, and as such, are cladsifiecurrent assets.

3. Long-Term Debt

The carrying value of long-term debt at Decembec@&isists of the following:

December 31

2007 2006
Senior unsecured note
3.500%, face amount of $200.0, due 2 $ — $ 198.c
3.750%, face amount of $300.0, due 2! — 294 ¢
4.250%, face amount of $300.0, due 2! 298.¢ 298.¢
5.000%, face amount of $700.0, due 2 696.( 694.¢
6.800%, face amount of $800.0, due 2/ 820.¢ 793.k
5.000%, face amount of $500.0, due 2! 507.¢ 484.:
5.250%, face amount of $1,100.0, due 2 1,089.¢ 1,088.*
5.875%, face amount of $700.0, due 2! 690.2 —
5.264%, face amount of $1,090.0, due 2 500.( —
5.950%, face amount of $500.0, due 2 494.: 494.1
5.850%, face amount of $900.0, due 2/ 888.7 888.4
6.375%, face amount of $800.0, due 2! 788.¢ —
Variable rate deb
Commercial paper progra 1,798.. 1,295.i
Total debi 8,572.¢ 6,530.!
Current portion of dek — (493.2
Long-term debt, less current porti $8,572.¢  $6,037.:

145



Table of Contents

Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements

3. Long-Term Debt (continued)

On September 1, 2007, we repaid $200.0 of our 34606tes, which matured on that date. On Decembe2d@¥, we repaid $300.0 of
our 3.750% notes, which matured on that date.

On August 21, 2007, we issued zero coupon notagiivate placement transactions exempt from negish. Gross proceeds to us were
$500.0. The notes have a final maturity date ofusi@2, 2022, and were issued with a yield to nitgtof 5.264% and a final amount due at
maturity of $1,090.0. The notes have a put feathameallows a note holder to require us to repwsettae notes at certain dates in the future.
The proceeds of this debt issuance were for generpbrate purposes, including, but not limitedrégurchasing shares of our common stock.
The notes have initially been classified as longatdebt on our balance sheet, and will be recliasstb current portion of long-term debt
beginning one year prior to the date we may beireduo repurchase the notes.

On June 8, 2007, we issued $700.0 of 5.875% nate2d17 and $800.0 of 6.375% notes due 2037 ursleeldregistration statement
filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comioissn December 28, 2005. The proceeds from tHis idsuance were for working capital
and for general corporate purposes, includingnbtitimited to, repurchasing shares of our comnmonks The notes have a call feature that
allows us to repurchase the notes anytime at dimropnd a put feature that allows a note holdeetire us to repurchase the notes upon
occurrence of both a change of control event adovengrade of the notes.

On January 10, 2006, we issued $700.0 of 5.000%srdhie 2011; $1,100.0 of 5.250% notes due 2016$20@d.0 of 5.850% notes due
2036, under a shelf registration statement filetthwhe U.S. Securities and Exchange Commissioneseber 28, 2005. The proceeds from
this debt issuance were used to repay a bridgedb&h,700.0 and to repay approximately $1,000.6ocofimercial paper, which were both
obtained to partially fund the December 28, 2003I@t®ice acquisition.

On November 29, 2005, we entered into a senioiitdiality, or the facility, with certain lendeffsr general corporate purposes. We
amended this facility in September 2006. The fgcprovides credit for up to $2,500.0 (reduceddny commercial paper issuances) and
matures on September 30, 2011. The interest ratei®facility is based on either (i) the LIBORegilus a predetermined percentage rate t
on our credit rating at the date of utilization (idy a base rate as defined in the facility agreatmWellPoint’s ability to borrow under the
facility is subject to compliance with certain coamts. Commitment fees for the facility were $h&007 and $2.4 in 2006 and there are no
conditions that are probable of occurring undercitihe facility may be withdrawn. There were no ants outstanding under the facility as of
December 31, 2007 or December 31, 2006 or duriagydar then ended. At December 31, 2007, we hatl. $&Vailable under this facility.

We have an authorized commercial paper progranp @b $2,500.0, the proceeds of which may be useddneral corporate purposes.
The weighted-average interest rate on commerciziplaorrowings at December 31, 2007 and 2006 wé@b and 5.42%, respectively.
Commercial paper borrowings have been classifiddraggterm debt at December 31, 2007 and 2006donrdance with FAS 8Classification
of Short-Term Obligations Expected to be Refinan@our practice and intent is to replace shom-sommercial paper outstanding at
expiration with additional short-term commerciappafor an uninterrupted period extending for mthi@n one year or with borrowings under
the senior credit facility described above.

Interest paid during 2007, 2006, and 2005 was $38293.0, and $181.6, respectively.
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements

3. Long-Term Debt (continued)
We were in compliance with all applicable covenamtder our outstanding debt agreements.

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follo2@08, $1,798.2; 2009, $298.9; 2010, $0.0; 20126%8G 2012, $820.6; and thereafter,
$4,959.2.

4. Derivative Financial Instruments

The information regarding derivative financial inshents contained in Note 6 of the Notes to Codatdid Financial Statements of
WellPoint and its subsidiaries is incorporated lebg reference.

5. Capital Stock

The information regarding capital stock containe®bte 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financiatédhents of WellPoint and its
subsidiaries is incorporated herein by reference.

6. Commitments and Contingencies

The information regarding commitments and contirmgesicontained in Note 18 of the Notes to Const#idi&kinancial Statements of
WellPoint and its subsidiaries is incorporated lebg reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

W ELL POINT, I NC.

By: /s/ ANGELAF. BRALY

Angela F. Braly
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: February 21, 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/  ANGELAF. BRALY President and Chief Executive Officer ¢ February 21, 200
Angela F. Braly Director (Principal Executive Office
/sl WAYNE S. DEV EYDT Executive Vice President and Chief Financial =~ February 21, 2008
Wayne S. DeVeydt Officer (Principal Financial Officer
/s/ JAMIE S. MILLER Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting February 21, 2008
Jamie S. Miller Officer and Controller (Chief Accounting
Officer)
/s/ L ARRYC. GLASSCOCK Chairman of the Boar February 21, 200
Larry C. Glasscock
/s/ LENoxD. BAKER, JR., M.D. Director February 21, 200
Lenox D. Baker, Jr., M.D.
/s/ SusanB. B AYH Director February 21, 200
Susan B. Bayh
/s/ SHEILA P. BURKE Director February 21, 2008
Sheila P. Burke
/s/ WiLLiam H.T. BusH Director February 21, 2008
William H.T. Bush
/s/ JuLeA.HiL Director February 21, 2008
Julie A. Hill
/sl WARRENY. JOBE Director February 21, 2008
Warren Y. Jobe
/s/ VICTORS. Liss Director February 21, 200
Victor S. Liss
/s/  WiLLIAM G. M AYS Director February 21, 200
William G. Mays
/s/ RaMIRO G. PERU Director February 21, 200

Ramiro G. Peru
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Signature
/s/  JANE G. PisaNO

Jane G. Pisano

/s/  SENATORD oNALD W. RIEGLE, JR.

Senator Donald W. Riegle, Jr.

/s/ WiLLIAM J. RYAN

William J. Ryan

/ s/ GEORGEA. S CHAEFER, JR.

George A. Schaefer, Jr.

/sl JAckiE M. W ARD

Jackie M. Ward

/s/ JOHNE. ZuccotTl

John E. Zuccotti

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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February 21, 200
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Exhibit

Number

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Megfective as of October 26, 2003, among WellPdimd, (the
“Company”), Anthem Holding Corp. and WellPoint Hi#saNetworks Inc., incorporated by reference to Apfie A to the

Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Redisn No. 333-110830) (exhibits thereto will herfished
supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Casion upon request

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May @528mong the Company, Light Acquisition Corp. &adhenos, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to the @any’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the queeteded June 30,
2005.

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Septe@ihet005, among the Company, WellPoint HoldingpgCand
WellChoice, Inc., incorporated by reference to Bith2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8l&d on September
30, 2005.

Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amehdfective May 17, 2007, incorporated by referetacExhibit 3.1 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on May 18, 2007

By-Laws of the Company, amended and restated eféebtay 16, 2007, incorporated by reference to Bittd.2 to the
Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on May 18, 2007

Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amehd#ective May 17, 2007 (Included in
Exhibit 3.1).

By-Laws of the Company, amended and restated effebtaye16, 2007 (Included in Exhibit 3.Z

Specimen of Certificate of the Compi's common stock, $0.01 par value per share, incatpdiby reference to Exhibit 4
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form(Befjistration
No. 33:-120851).

Indenture, dated as of July 31, 2002, between tmpgany and The Bank of New York, as trustee, inoated by referenc
to Exhibit 4.13 to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

(@) First Supplemental Indenture, dated as lgf Ji, 2002, between the Company and The Bank @f Nerk, Trustee
establishing 4.875% Notes due 2005 and 6.800% Nhte®012, incorporated by reference to Exhibit4dlthe
Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

(b) Form of 6.800% Note due 2012 (Included imibi 4.4(a)), incorporated by reference to Exhibt4 to the Compar's
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of JB@08&, by and between WellPoint Health Networks (as predecess
by merger to Anthem Holding Corp., “WellPoint Hééljtand The Bank of New York, as trustee, incorpedaby reference
to Exhibit 4.3 to WellPoint Heal’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on June 12, 200:

(a) First Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofddtber 30, 2004, between Anthem Holding Corp. amel Bank of New
York, as trustee, incorporated by reference to kikHil1(a) to the Company’s Annual Report on FAOK for the
year ended December 31, 20

(b) Form of Note evidencing WellPoint Health'3/6 % Notes due 2012, incorporated by reference toldixil to
WellPoint Healtl's Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 16, 200
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Exhibit

Number

4.6

4.7

4.8

10.1*

Exhibit

Indenture, dated as of December 9, 2004, betwee@dmpany and The Bank of New York Trust Company.Nas trustee,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the @am’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on December 15, 200

(@) Form of the Compa’s 4.250% Notes due 2009 (included in Exhibit 4

(b) Form of the Compar’s 5.000% Notes due 2014 (included in Exhibit 4

(c) Form of the Compa's 5.950% Notes due 2034 (included in Exhibit 4

Indenture, dated as of January 10, 2006, betwee@dimpany and The Bank of New York Trust Company.Nas trustee
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the @am’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 11, 200

(8) Form of 5.00% Notes due 2011, incorporatedeference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Curieaport on Form 8-K
filed on January 11, 200

(b) Form of 5.25% Notes due 2016, incorporatgdefierence to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Curfi®aport on Form 8-K
filed on January 11, 200

(c) Form of 5.85% Notes due 2036, incorporatedeference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s CuriRaport on Form 8-K
filed on January 11, 200

(d) Form of 5.875% Notes due 2017, incorporégdeference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K
filed on June 8, 200°

(e) Form of 6.375% Notes due 2037, incorporatedeference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K
filed on June 8, 200°

Upon the request of the Securities and Exchangen@ssion, the Company will furnish copies of anyestmstrument:
defining the rights of holders of lo-term debt of the Company or its subsidiar

Anthem 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, amended andtesktes of January 1, 2003, incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.1(iii)
to the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

(@) Form of Stock Incentive Plan General Stogki@h Grant Agreement as of March 1, 2006, incoafent by reference to
Exhibit 10.1(b) to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

(b) Form of Stock Incentive Plan Stock Optiora@rAgreement with Larry Glasscock as of MarchQ&, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) to the Comp’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

(c) Form of Stock Incentive Plan General RewdcStock Award Agreement as of March 1, 2006, iporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1(c) to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

(d) Form of Stock Incentive Plan Restricted tAavard Agreement for Annual Bonus over two timasgyet as of March -
2006, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1¢the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qttier quarter
ended March 31, 200

(e) Form of Stock Incentive Plan Restricted 8tAward Agreement with Larry Glasscock as of Mat¢t2006, incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.1(e) to the Com[’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20
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Exhibit
Number

10.2*

10.z*

10.4*

Exhibit

WellPoint 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan, incoagexd by reference to Exhibit 10.58 to the Com|'s Current Report ¢
Form &K filed on May 18, 2006

(@)
(b)

(©

(d)

()

(f)
(@)
(h)
@)
()
(k)

First Amendment to the WellPoint 2006 IneemtCompensation Plan, effective as of Decemb@066, incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.2(h) to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan NondigaliStock Option Award Agreement, incorporatedréference to
Exhibit 10.58(a) to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan NondigaliStock Option Award Agreement for Larry C. Glasck,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.58 (b)ite Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgharter ended
June 30, 200¢

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Restd$tock Award Agreement; incorporated by refergndexhibit 10.5¢
(c) to the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Regtd&@tock Award Agreement for Annual Bonus over tintes target,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.58 (d)ite Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgharter ended
June 30, 200¢

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan RettdcStock Award Agreement with Larry C. Glasscookprporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.58(e) to the Comg’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

Form of No-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement, incorpocaly reference to Exhibit 10.58(f) to the Comg’s
Current Report on Formr-K filed on November 2, 200t

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreementoiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.58(g) to@mnpany’s Current
Report on Form -K filed on November 2, 200t

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan RestdcStock Unit Award Agreement, incorporated byrefce to Exhibit
10.2(i) to the Compar's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Nondigal Stock Option Award Agreement, incorporatedrbference to
Exhibit 10.2(j) to the Compars Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Nondieai Stock Option Award Agreement for 20(

Anthem Annual Incentive Plan, effective Januarg0dQ3, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3theoCompan’'s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

Anthem Employee Stock Purchase Plan, incorporaggéference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Comp’s Registration Stateme
on Form &1 (Registration No. 3:-67714).

@)

(b)

Amendment No. 1 to Anthem Employee StoclcRase Plan, dated July 2, 2002, incorporated leyee€e to Exhibi
10.2(i) to the Compar's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

Amendment No. 2 to Anthem Employee StockcRase Plan, dated July 29, 2002, incorporatedfleyarce to Exhibit
10.2(ii) to the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
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Exhibit
Number

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8*

10.9*

10.10*

10.11*

Exhibit

WellPoint, Inc. Comprehensive N-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan, effectivefa®ecember 31, 2005, incorporated
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

WellPoint, Inc. Executive Agreement Plan, amendadi r@stated effective October 1, 2007, with certdiver effective date:
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.41 to tleenPany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the teraended September
30, 2007

WellPoint, Inc. Executive Salary Continuation Pé&ffective January 1, 2006, incorporated by refeeendExhibit 10.59 to the
Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

WellPoint Directed Executive Compensation Planpiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Canys Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

WellPoint, Inc. Board of Directors Compensationd?eon, approved February 2, 2005, incorporated feyeace to Exhibit
99.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed on February 8, 200!

WellPoint Board of Directors’ Deferred CompensatiRian, as amended and restated effective Janu@g0%, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(@) First Amendment to the WellPoint Board ofdators’ Deferred Compensation Plan, dated as oc&Eber 7, 2006,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10(a) ® @ompany’s Annual Report on Form KCoer the year ended Decem
31, 2006.

WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 1999 Stock Incent®lan (as amended through December 6, 2000), incagd by referenc
to Exhibit 10.37 to WellPoint Heal's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(a) Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 198®&ck Incentive Plan Notice of Grant of Stock Optand Stock Optio
Agreement, revised December 2001, incorporatecference to Exhibit 10.01 to WellPoint Health’'s @ady Report on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

(b) Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 199fck Incentive Plan Notice of Grant of Stock Optamd Stock Option
Agreement, revised September 2003, incorporategfeyence to Exhibit 10.02 to WellPoint Hea#tlQuarterly Report ¢
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

(c) Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 1998bck Incentive Plan Restricted Share Right GragreAment (No-
Officers), as of January 26, 2004, incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 10.05 to WellPoint Health'sapierly Report on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

(d) Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 199fck Incentive Plan Restricted Share Right Gragre@ment (Officers), &
of January 26, 2004, incorporated by referencextulit 10.06 to WellPoint Health’s Quarterly Report Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2(

(e) Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 198&ck Incentive Plan Notice of Automatic Grant 6é¢&k Option, Notice of
Annual Automatic Grant of Stock Option, Notice ofa@t of Stock Option and Automatic Stock Option égment for
Non-Employee Directors, incorporated by referemcEsthibit 10.09 to WellPoint Health’s Quarterly Repon Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
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Exhibit
Number

10.1%2

10.1%

10.14

10.1%

10.1¢*

10.1

10.1&

10.1¢*

10.2(>

10.2F

10.22

Exhibit

WellPoint Health Networks Inc. Officer Change-int@ml| Plan (As amended and restated through Deceh2901) (as
revised in October 2003), incorporated by referandexhibit 10.13 to WellPoint Health's Quarterlgport on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2!

WellPoint Health Networks Inc. Supplemental ExeeaifRetirement Plan (As restated effective Decemb2001) (As
amended October 24, 2003), incorporated by referem&xhibit 10.14 to WellPoint Health’s QuarteRgport on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2!

Form of letter agreement, dated February 2004, dmtvVellPoint Health and executive officers of Welht Health,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.83 to Weill? Health’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theayended December
31, 2003

RightCHOICE Managed Care, Inc. Supplemental Exgeletirement Plan as restated effective Octobg2Q@1,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.06 to Weil? Health’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for therter ended March
31, 2002

Employment Agreement by and between WellPoint, &mal Larry C. Glasscock, dated as of December @@5,dncorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Employment Agreement between WellPoint, Inc. angdéa F. Braly, dated as of February 24, 2007, ipo@ted by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Comp’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on February 26, 200

Employment Agreement by and between Anthem Insgr&uampanies, Inc. and Samuel R. Nussbaum, M.Deddzd of
January 2, 2001 (with respect to Section 5(c) grimgorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to@@mpany’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration

No. 33-67714).

(@) Form of Employment Agreement between the @amy and each of the following: Mark L. Boxer; RahBrown;
Randall Lewis; and, Samuel R. Nussbhaum, M.D., ipeated by reference to Exhibit 10.43 to the Corg{saAnnual
Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(b) Form of Employment Agreement between the gamy and each of the following: Ken R. Goulet; Jafi Miller; and
Wayne S. DeVeydt, incorporated by reference to Bikhi.6 to the Company’s Annual Report on FornKlfdr the
year ended December 31, 2006 (See Exhibi

(c) Form of Employment between the Company auhef the following: Dijuana Lewis; and, Bradley Muegel,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27(c) te @ompany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for tharter ended
September 30, 2007 (see Exhibit.

Description of agreement between the Company aiw &Al. Rosenblatt, dated August 21, 2007, incotiedray reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on August 27, 2007

Agreement between the Company and Joan E. Herrataq &eptember 28, 2007, incorporated by referenEghibit 10.1 tc
the Compan’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on October 2, 200°

Blue Cross License Agreement by and between BlossIBlue Shield Association and the Company, inotydevisions, if
any, adopted by the Member Plans through Novembg2d05 meeting, incorporated by reference to Bkhih45 to the
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C
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Exhibit
Number

*

10.2:

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.27

10.2¢

10.2¢*
21
23
31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

Exhibit
Blue Shield License Agreement by and between Bles£Blue Shield Association and the Company, ghioly revisions, if

any, adopted by the Member Plans through Novembg2d05 meeting, incorporated by reference to Bkhih46 to the
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Undertakings to California Department of Insurardaged November 8, 2004, delivered by WellPointlthe®C Life,
Anthem, Inc. and Anthem Holding Corp., incorporabgdreference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s €atReport on Form
8-K filed on November 10, 200.

Undertakings to California Department of ManagedltheCare, dated November 23, 2004, delivered biiRmt Health,
Blue Cross of California, Anthem, Inc. and Anthemlding Corp., incorporated by reference to Exh@@it2 to the Compang’
Current Report on Forr-K filed on November 30, 200.

Undertakings to California Department of ManagedltteCare, dated November 23, 2004, delivered biiRigimt Health,
Golden West, Anthem, Inc. and Anthem Holding Campprporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to thenpany’s Current
Report on Form -K filed on November 30, 200

Undertakings, dated July 31, 1997, by WellPointIthed@lue Cross of California and WellPoint Califiset Services, Inc. to tt
California Department of Corporations, incorporagdeference to Exhibit 99.12 to WellPoint HeadtiCurrent Report on
Form ¢-K filed on August 5, 1997

Settlement Agreement, dated as of July 11, 2005ndyamong the Company, the Representative Pfairttie Signatory
Medical Societies and Class Counsel, incorporayeiterence to Exhibit 10.58 to the Company’s QardytReport on Form
1C-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

2007 Annual Salary Information for Chief Execut®éicer and Named Executive Officel
Subsidiaries of the Compar
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a) and Rule 1:-14(a) of the Exchange Act Rules, as ado|
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a) and Rule 1:-14(a) of the Exchange Act Rules, as ado|
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdioBed06 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdtioBe906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Indicates management contracts or compensatorg plaarrangement
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Participant:
Company:

Notice:

Plan:

Grant:

Exercisability:

Expiration Date:

Rejection:

Exhibit 10.2(k)
Schedule A
Notice of Option Grant
[—]
WellPoint, Inc.

You have been granted the following nonqualifieztktoption to purchase shares of common stockeoCtbmpany ir
accordance with the terms of the Plan and thetadthblonqualified Stock Option Award Agreeme

WellPoint 2006 Incentive Compensation P
Grant Date: — ]

Option Price per Share: — ]

Number of Shares under Optior— ]

Subject to the terms of the Plan and this Agreemenir Option will become exercisable on and atterdates indicated
below as to the number of Shares set forth belgposite each such date, plus any Shares as to wbichOption could
have been exercised previously but was not so meet:

Shares Date

In the event that a Change of Control (as definetthé Plan} occurs before your Termination, your Option willrain
subject to the terms of this Agreement, unlesstloeessor company does not assume your Optiosué@essor company
does not assume your Option, then your Option émaflediately become fully exercisab

Your Option will expire seven years from the GrBuatte, subject to earlier termination as set fantthie Plan and this
Agreement

If you do not want to accept your Option, pleagamethis Agreement, executed by you on the lagep this Agreemen
at any time within sixty (60) days after the Graxtte to WellPoint, Inc., 120 Monument Circle, Intig@olis, Indiana
46204, Attention: Stock AdministratioBo not return a signed copy of this Agreement if yw accept your Option. If
you do not return a signed copy of this Agreemaittiiw sixty (60) days after the Grant Date, youlWwdve accepted yoi
Option and agreed to the terms and conditionsostt in this Agreement and the terms and conditafrtbe Plan

@ For stock option grants to Angela F. Bre*Change in Contr” is defined in her Employment Agreement with the @any datec
February 24, 2007 Employment Agreeme”) and this paragraph contains the appropriate refeseto her Employment Agreeme

Stock Option Agreemel



Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement

This Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement ttigreement”) dated as of the Grant Date (the tB@ate”)set forth in the Notic
of Option Grant attached as Schedule A hereto“@rant Notice”) is made between WellPoint, Inc.gttCompany”) and the Participant set
forth in the Grant Notice. The Grant Notice is imd#d in and made part of this Agreement.

1. Grant of the OptionSubject to the provisions of this Agreement drelgrovisions of the Plan, the Company hereby gramthe
Participant, pursuant to the Plan, the right antibagthe “Option”) to purchase all or any parttbé number of shares of common stock of the
Company (“Shares”) as set forth in the Grant Noéitan Option Price (“Option Pricepler share and on the other terms as set fortteiGtan
Notice. This Option is intended to be a nonqualifitock option for federal income tax purpos

2. Method of Exercise of the Option

(a) The Participant may exercise the Option, toetktent then exercisable, by delivering a notickheoCompany’s captive broker in
a form specified or accepted by the captive brokeecifying the number of Shares with respect tlthe Option is being exercised.

(b) At the time the Participant exercises the Qpttbe Participant shall pay the Option Price ef 8hares as to which the Option is
being exercised and applicable taxes (i) in Un@&ates dollars by personal check, bank draft orepamder; (ii) subject to such terms,
conditions and limitations as the Compensation Catamof the Board of Directors of the Company (h@uittee”) may prescribe, by
tendering (either by actual delivery or attestgtionencumbered Shares previously acquired by théPant having an aggregate Fair Market
Value at the time of exercise equal to the totdi@pPrice of the Shares for which the Option iggercised; (iii) subject to such terms,
conditions and limitations as the Committee magpribe, a cashless (brokassisted) exercise that complies with all appliedés; or (iv) b
a combination of the consideration provided fothia foregoing clauses (i), (ii) and (iii).

3. Termination The Option shall terminate upon the Participafgsmination for any reason and no Shares may dlfterebe purchased
under the Option except as provided below. Notwathding anything contained in this Agreement, tipgi@ shall not be exercisable after the
Expiration Date.

(a) Retirementlf the Participant’s Termination is due to Retirathfor purposes of this Agreement, defined asRasicipant’s
Termination after attaining age fifty-five (55) Wwitt least ten (10) completed years of service)Qption shall continue to become exercisable
according to the schedule set forth in the Grarntddpprovidedthat the Option shall terminate on the five-yeanieersary of the date of the
Participant’s Retirement but not later than theitatpn Date noted on the attached Schedulpravided, furtherthat if the Participant’s
Termination is due to Retirement during the caleryagar of the Grant Date, the Option shall be imiatedly terminated on a pro-rata basis,
measured by the number of months in that calenelar guring which the Participant was employed leyGlompany or an Affiliate (e.g., if the
Participant’s Retirement occurs in September, 2668(12) of the Option shall be immediately ternt@t, and the non-terminated portion of
the Option shall continue to become exercisableraiitg to the schedule set forth in the Grant Nofic

(b) Death and Disabilitylf the Participant’s Termination is due to the Répant’'s death or Disability (for purposes of this
Agreement, as defined in the applicable WellPownd-Term Disability Plan), the Option shall immedig become fully exercisable and shall
terminate on the five-year anniversary of the a@dtsuch Termination but not later than the ExpmatDate noted on the attached Schedul A.

(c) Termination without Causélnless Section 3(e) is applicable, if the PartiotfgTermination is by the Company or an Affiliate
without Cause (for purposes of this Agreement,riefias a violation of a “work guideline” as sucitmtés defined in the WellPoint Associate
Handbook) or voluntarily by the Participant, thetiop, to the extent exercisable as of the dateiof Sermination, shall thereafter only be

2 Deleted in non-annual retention grants; paragramleieted from Angela F. Braly’s stock option gsant

3 For grants to Angela F. Braly, “Disability” is daéd in her Employment Agreement and this sectioriains the appropriate reference to her
Employment Agreemen
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exercisable for a period of forty-five (45) daysrr the date of such Termination., but not latenttee Expiration Date noted on the attached
Schedule A?

(d) Cauself the Participant Termination is for Cause, even if on the dateush Termination the Participant has met the déjim
of Retiremen® or Disability, then the portion of the Option thets not been exercised shall immediately terminate.

(e) Termination after Change in Contrdf.after a Change in Control the Participant’s Taration is (i) by the Company or an
Affiliate without Cause or (ii) if the Participaparticipates in the Executive Agreement Plan, gyRharticipant for Good Reason (as defined in
the Executive Agreement Plan), the Option shall edrately become fully exercisable and shall tertgmman the five-year anniversary of the
date of such Termination but not later than theiation Date noted on the attached Schedulé A.

(H Clawback ProvisionNotwithstanding any other provisions of this Agresmnto the contrary, in the event that the Pardictps
an Executive (as defined by the Company) at the tifrthe Participant’s Termination, the Option slramediately terminate if the Participant
breaches any provision of Section 3.6 or 3.10 efWrellPoint, Inc. Executive Agreement Plan (the féement Plan”), regardless of whether
the Participant is then a participant in such Agreet Plan, in which case the Participant shalluigest to the “Return of Consideration”
provision contained in Section 3.7 of the Agreent&an.’

4. Transferability of the OptionThe Option shall not be transferable or assignaplthe Participant except as provided in thigiSee!
and the Option shall be exercisable, during théid®aant’s lifetime, only by him/her or, during peds of legal disability, by his guardian or
other legal representative. No Option shall beextip execution, attachment, or similar procegg Farticipant shall have the right to appoint
any individual or legal entity in writing, on a Dgsation of Beneficiary form as his/her beneficiémyreceive any Option (to the extent not
previously terminated or forfeited) under this Agmeent upon the Participant’s death. Such desigmatigler this Agreement may be revoked
by the Participant at any time and a new benefjaiaaly be appointed by the Participant by execuioth submission to the Company, or its
designee, of a revised Designation of Beneficiarynfto this Agreement. In order to be effectiveleaignation of beneficiary must be
completed by the Participant on the DesignatioBexfeficiary form and received by the Company, ®diesignee, prior to the date of the
Participant’s death. If the Participant dies withsuch designation, the Option may be exercised lmnkhe executor or administrator of the
Participant’s estate or by a person who shall leegiired the right to such exercise by will or bg taws of descent and distribution.

5. Taxes and WithholdingsAt the time of receipt of Shares upon the exerofsall or any part of the Option, the Participahall pay to
the Company in cash (or make other arrangemenggdordance with Article XVIII of the Plan, for tisatisfaction of) any taxes of any kind
required by law to be withheld with respect to s&ttaresprovided, however, that pursuant to any procedures, and subjeatytdimitations
as the Committee may prescribe and subject tocgipgé law, the Participant may elect to satisfywyhrole or in part, such withholding
obligations by (a) withholding Shares otherwisewadghble to the Participant pursuant to the Op(iprovided, howevetthat the amount of ar
Shares so withheld shall not exceed the amountseacgto satisfy required Federal, state, localramdUnited States withholding obligations
using the minimum statutory withholding rates fedEral, state, local and/or non-U.S. tax purpdsehljding payroll taxes, that are applicable
to supplemental taxable income) and/or (b) tendetirnthe Company Shares owned by the ParticiparihéParticipant and the Participant’s
spouse jointly) based, in each case, on the Faikéld/alue of the Shares on the payment date &srdeted by the Committee. Any such
election made by the Participant must be irrevagailade in writing, signed by the Participant, ahdll be subject to any restrictions or
limitations that the Committee, in its sole dis@et deems appropriate.

4 For grants to Angela F. Braly, “Cause” is definecher Employment Agreement and this section costtia appropriate reference to her
Employment Agreemen

5 The reference to “Retirement” is deleted for graaténgela F. Braly and for non-annual retentioargs.

6 For grants to Angela F. Bral“Change in Contr” is defined in her Employment Agreement and thisisecontains the appropria
reference to her Employment Agreeme

7 For grants to Angela F. Braly, restrictive covesaamd clawback provisions are included in her Egrplent Agreement and this section
contains the appropriate reference to her Employmgreement
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6. No Rights as a ShareholdeMeither the Participant nor any other personldfedome the beneficial owner of the Shares suljettte
Option, nor have any rights to dividends or otlights as a shareholder with respect to any sucheShantil the Participant has actually
received such Shares following the exercise ofap8on in accordance with the terms of the PlantaiglAgreement.

7. No Right to Continued Employmenieither the Option nor any terms contained is thgreement shall confer upon the Participant
any express or implied right to be retained ingh®loyment or service of the Company or any Affdiéor any period, nor restrict in any way
the right of the Company, which right is hereby regsly reserved, to terminate the Participant’sleympent or service at any time with or
without Cause. The Participant acknowledges aneeagthat any right to exercise the Option is eaomdyg by continuing as an employee of
Company or an Affiliate at the will of the Compamysuch Affiliate, or satisfaction of any other &pable terms and conditions contained in
the Plan and this Agreement, and not through thefdmeing hired, being granted the Option or adggiShares hereunder.

8. The Plan This Agreement is subject to all the terms, mimris and conditions of the Plan, which are incoagea herein by reference,
and to such regulations as may from time to timeadgpted by the Committee. Unless defined hereijpitalized terms are as defined in the
Plan. In the event of any conflict between the gions of the Plan and this Agreement, the prouisiof the Plan shall control, and this
Agreement shall be deemed to be modified accorgdifidie Plan and the prospectus describing the ¢darbe found on the Company’s HR
intranet. A paper copy of the Plan and the progseshall be provided to the Participant upon théiddant’s written request to the Company
at WellPoint, Inc., 120 Monument Circle, Indianapplndiana 46204, Attention: Corporate Secret8hareholder Services Department.

9. Compliance with Laws and Regulatians

(a) The Option and the obligation of the Compangdth and deliver Shares hereunder shall be suinjett respects to (i) all
applicable Federal and state laws, rules and régosaand (i) any registration, qualification, appals or other requirements imposed by any
government or regulatory agency or body which tben@ittee shall, in its discretion, determine tonleeessary or applicable. Moreover, the
Option may not be exercised if its exercise, orrdeeipt of Shares pursuant thereto, would be aonto applicable law. If at any time the
Company determines, in its discretion, that thinlig registration or qualification of Shares upty national securities exchange or under any
state or Federal law, or the consent or approvahgfgovernmental regulatory body, is necessadgesirable, the Company shall not be
required to deliver any certificates for Sharethw Participant or any other person pursuant ®Algreement unless and until such listing,
registration, qualification, consent or approvad baen effected or obtained, or otherwise provfdedree of any conditions not acceptable to
the Company.

(b) The Shares received upon the exercise of th@®ghall have been registered under the Secaitat of 1933 (“Securities
Act”). If the Participant is an “affiliate” of th€ompany, as that term is defined in Rule 144 utiieSecurities Act (“Rule 144"), the
Participant may not sell the Shares received exoegimpliance with Rule 144. Certificates représgnShares issued to an “affiliate” of the
Company may bear a legend setting forth such ctisins on the disposition or transfer of the Shaethe Company deems appropriate to
comply with Federal and state securities laws.

(c) If at the time of exercise of all or part oktption, the Shares are not registered underaberties Act, and/or there is no
current prospectus in effect under the Securitieswith respect to the Shares, the Participant sixalcute, prior to the delivery of any Shares
to the Participant by the Company pursuant toAlgiseement, an agreement (in such form as the Coynpay specify) in which the
Participant represents and warrants that the Raatitis purchasing or acquiring the shares acduireler this Agreement for the Participant’s
own account, for investment only and not with awte the resale or distribution thereof, and repnés and agrees that any subsequent off
sale or distribution of any kind of such Sharedldfemade only pursuant to either (i) a registrattatement on an appropriate form under the
Securities Act, which registration statement haobee effective and is current with regard to thar8h being offered or sold, or (ii) a specific
exemption from the registration requirements of$leeurities Act, but in claiming such exemption Baeticipant shall, prior to any offer for
sale of such Shares, obtain a prior favorable @ritipinion, in form and substance satisfactorhéoG@ompany, from counsel for or approved
by the Company, as to the applicability of suchnegiion thereto.

10. Notices All notices by the Participant or the Particigamtssignees shall be addressed to WellPoint, 120, Monument Circle,
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204, Attention: Stock Adisiration, or such
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other address as the Company may from time to sipeeify. All notices to the Participant shall belebsed to the Participant at the
Participant’s address in the Company'’s records.

11. Other PlansThe Participant acknowledges that any incomevddrirom the exercise of the Option shall not dffee Participant’s
participation in, or benefits under, any other Bigqpdan or other contract or arrangement maintdibg the Company or any Affiliate.

WELLPOINT, INC.

By:
Printed William J. Ryan
Its: Chairman, Compensation Commit
WellPoint, Inc. Board of Directot
| DO NOT accept this Option:
Signature: Date

Printed Name

Stock Option Agreement



SALARY INFORMATION FOR CEO, CFO
AND NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Exhibit 10.2¢

The following table sets forth as of February 18)&, the current annual salary of WellPoint, In¢tfse
“Company”) Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financi@fficer and each of the other “Named Executivaec@fs” who
were employed by the Company as of December 317, 2380determined for the Company’s Proxy Staterfoents
2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which was thasetotal compensation for 2006 (less the amoti@hange in
Pension Value and Nonqualified Deferred Compensdiiarnings) as required by the Instructions to [##(a)(3) of
Regulation S-K. The Company has not yet determihecamount of non-equity incentive plan compensdio 2007
and therefore the identities of the other Namedchtree Officers for the Company’s Proxy Statementifs 2008

Annual Meeting of Shareholders are not yet known.

Named Executive Officer

Salary

Angela F. Braly $1,100,00(¢
Wayne S. DeVeyc $600,00C
Joan E. Herma $710,00C
Alice F. Rosenblai $570,00C
John S. Watts, J: N/A

1 Mr. Watts resigned as of December 31, 2007; immsial salary immediately prior to his resignatiomsv§740,000.



SUBSIDIARIES OF WELLPOINT, INC.

A s oFD ECeMBER 31, 2007

Company Name
Affiliated Healthcare, Inc

Affiliated Provider Systems, In

AHI Healthcare Corporatio

American Imaging Management Connecticut, L.L
American Imaging Management East, L.L
American Imaging Management Services, L.L
American Imaging Management, Ir

American Managing Compar

Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield Partnership Plan,
Anthem Blue Cross Life and Health Insurance Comg
Anthem Credentialing Services, Ir

Anthem Financial, Inc

Anthem Health Insurance Company of Nev
Anthem Health Plans of Kentucky, Ir

Anthem Health Plans of Maine, Ir

Anthem Health Plans of New Hampshire, |
Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, In

Anthem Health Plans, In

Anthem HMO of Nevad

Anthem Holding Corp

Anthem Insurance Companies, i

Anthem Life & Disability Insurance Compal
Anthem Life Insurance Compal

Anthem Southeast, In

Anthem UM Services, Inc

Arcus Enterprises, In

Arcus Financial Holding Corg

ARCUS Financial Services, In

ARCUS HealthyLiving Services, In

Arison Insurance Services, Ir

Associated Group, In

ATH Holding Company, LLC

Atlanta Healthcare Partners, It

Exhibit 21

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Texas

Texas

Texas
Delaware (LLC)
Delaware (LLC)
Delaware (LLC)
lllinois

Texas

Ohio

California
Delaware
Delaware
Nevads
Kentucky
Maine

New Hampshire
Virginia
Connecticui
Nevads
Indiana

Indiana

New York
Indiana

Indiana

Indiana
Delaware
Indiana

Indiana

Indiana
Kentucky
Indiana
Indiana (LLC)
Georgia



BCCHolding Corporatiol

Behavioral Health Network, In

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Georgia, |

Blue Cross Blue Shield Healthcare Plan of Geolgia,
Blue Cross Blue Shield of Wiscons

Blue Cross of Californi

Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan, |

CC Holdings, LLC

Cerulean Companies, Ir

Claim Management Services, It

Community Insurance Compa

Compcare Health Services Insurance Corporz
Comprehensive Integrated Marketing Services,
Crossroads Acquisition Cor

CSRA Healthcare Partners, It

Diversified Life Insurance Agency of Missouri, Ir
EHC Benefits Agency, Inc

Empire HealthChoice Assurance,

Empire HealthChoice HMO, Ini

Empire Medicare Services, Ir

Forty-Four Fort-Four Forest Park Redevelopment C¢
Golden West Health Plan, In

Government Health Services, LL

Greater Georgia Life Insurance Compi

Group Benefits of Georgia, In

Group Benefits Plus, In

Health Core, Inc

Health Initiatives, Inc

Health Management Corporati

Health Ventures Partner, LL

HealthKeepers, Inc

HealthLink HMO, Inc.

HealthLink, Inc.

HealthReach Services, Ir

Healthy Alliance Life Insurance Compar
Healthy Homecomings, In

Highway to Health, Inc

California

New Hampshire
Georgia
Georgia
Wisconsin
California
California
Wisconsin (LLC)
Georgia
Wisconsin
Ohio
Wisconsin
California
Delaware
Georgia
Missouri

New York

New York

New York

New York
Missouri
California
Wisconsin (LLC)
Georgia
Georgia
California
Delaware

New Hampshire
Virginia

Illinois (LLC)
Virginia
Missouri

lllinois
Connecticui
Missouri
Missouri

Delaware



HMO Colorado, Inc

HMO Missouri, Inc.

HTH Re, Ltd.

Imaging Management Holdings, L.L.
Imaging Providers of Texe
IMASIS, L.L.C.

Insurance4 Agency, In
Landmark Solutions, LL(

Lease Partners, In

Machigonne, Inc

Matthew Thornton Health Plan, In
MCS Holdings, Inc

Meridian Resource Company, LL
Monticello Service Agency, In
National Capital Health Plan, In

National Capital Preferred Provider Organizatioc.

National Government Services, It
NextRx, Inc.

NextRx, LLC

NextRx Services, Inc

OneNation Benefit Administrators, In
OneNation Insurance Compa

Park Square Holdings, In

Park Square I, Inc

Park Square Il, Inc

Peninsula Health Care, Ir

Preferred Health Plans of Missouri, li
Priority Health Care, Inc

Priority Insurance Agency, In

Priority, Inc.

R & P Realty, Inc

Reliance Safeguard Solutions, |
RightCHOICE Insurance Compa
RightCHOICE Managed Care, Ir
Rocky Mountain Health Care Corporati
Rocky Mountain Hospital and Medical Service, |

SellCore, Inc

Colorado
Missouri
Bermuda
Delaware (LLC)
Texas
Delaware (LLC)
Delaware

New Hampshire (LLC
Delaware
Maine

New Hampshire
Puerto Ricc
Wisconsin
Virginia
Virginia
Maryland
Indiana
Delaware

Ohio (LLC)
New York

Ohio

Indiana
California
California
California
Virginia
Missouri
Virginia
Virginia
Virginia
Missouri

New York
lllinois
Delaware
Delaware
Colorado

Delaware



Southeast Services, Ir

Summit Administrative Services, L.L.¢

Texas Managed Care Administrative Services,
The WellPoint Companies, In

TrustSolutions, LLC

UNICARE Health Benefit Services of Texas, |
UNICARE Health Insurance Company of Te:
UNICARE Health Insurance Company of the Midw
UNICARE Health Plan of Kansas, Ir
UNICARE Health Plan of South Carolina, Ir
UNICARE Health Plan of West Virginia, In
UNICARE Health Plans of Texas, Ir
UNICARE Health Plans of the Midwest, Ir
UNICARE lllinois Services, Inc

UniCare Life & Health Insurance Compa
UNICARE National Services, Ini

UNICARE of Texas Health Plans, Ir
UNICARE Specialty Services, In

United Government Services, LL

UtiliMed IPA, Inc.

WellChoice Holdings of New York, In
WellChoice Insurance of New Jersey, |
WellPoint Acquisition, LLC

WellPoint Behavioral Health, Ini

WellPoint California Services, In

WellPoint Dental Services, In

WellPoint Development Company, Ir
WellPoint Holding Corp

WellPoint Insurance Services, Ir

WellPoint Partnership Plan, LL

WellPoint Pharmacy IPA, In

WPMI (Shanghai) Enterprise Consulting and ServioelGd.
WPMI, LLC

Virginia
Missouri (LLC)
Texas

Indiana
Wisconsin (LLC)
Texas

Texas

lllinois

Kansas

South Caroling
West Virginia
Texas

lllinois

lllinois

Indiana
Delaware
Texas
Delaware
Wisconsin (LLC)
New York
New York
New Jerse)
Indiana (LLC)
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Hawaii

lllinois (LLC)
New York
China (LLC)
Delaware (LLC)



EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ifdllewing Registration Statements:

Form &8 No. 33-73516 and Form-8 No. 33:-110503 pertaining to the Anthem 2001 Stock IncenEan;

Form &8 No. 33:-84690 pertaining to the Anthem Employee Stock PaselPlan

Form £-8 No. 33:-84906 and Form -8 No. 33:-129334 pertaining to the WellPoint 401(k) Retirem&avings Plan (former
Anthem 401(k) Lon-term Savings Investment Plai

Form S-8 No. 333-97423 pertaining to the Trigon Itheare, Inc. 1997 Stock Incentive Plan; Trigon lttezare, Inc. NorEmployet
Directors Stock Incentive Plan; and Certain OptiGnanted to Consultants to Trigon Healthcare, |

Form S-8 No. 333:20851 pertaining to the WellPoint Health Netwohks. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan; WellPoint Healthtiarks
Inc. 2000 Employee Stock Option Plan; WellPoint kealetworks Inc. Comprehensive Executive NQoalified Retirement Pla
Cobalt Corporation Equity Incentive Plan; RightCHXBl Managed Care, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plagh®HOICE Manage
Care, Inc. 1994 Equity Incentive Plan; RightCHOIMEBnaged Care, Inc. Nonemployee Direc’ Stock Option Plan

Form £-8 No. 33121596 pertaining to the 2005 Comprehensive ExeeMNbr-Qualified Retirement Plat

Form £-8 No. 33:-130743 pertaining to the WellChoice, Inc. 2003 Opusilncentive Plar

Form £-8 No. 33:-134253 pertaining to the WellPoint 2006 Incentivarensation Plan; ar

Form &3 No. 33-130736 pertaining to the WellPoint, Inc. automatielf registratior

of our report dated February 13, 2008, with respethe consolidated financial statements and sdeeaf WellPoint, Inc., and our report da
February 13, 2008, with respect to the effectiveraddgnternal control over financial reporting oféiPoint, Inc. included in this Annual Rep
(Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2007.

/s ERNST& Y OUNGLLP

February 19, 200
Indianapolis, Indian



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND RULE 15d-14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT RULES,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Angela F. Braly, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Weiht, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioretny untrue statement of a material fact or dnfitate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec

this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théeport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as define:
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) arefriat control over financial reporting (as definadExchange Act Rules 13E5(f) anc
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

c)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurdse tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidatibsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahegorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardeng the reliability of financial reporting arile preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtinis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls arstentures, as of the end of the period covered sy rdport based on st
evaluation; ant

disclosed in this report any change in the regi¢'s internal control over financial reporting thattoored during the registre’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registranfburth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abrver financial reportini
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEregistrant’s board of directors (or persongquening the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significdatin the registrand’
internal control over financial reportin
Date: February 21, 2008 /s/ ANGELAF. BRALY

President and Chief Executive Offi



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND RULE 15d-14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT RULES,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Wayne S. DeVeydt, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Weiht, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioretny untrue statement of a material fact or dnfitate a material fact necessary to r
the statements made, in light of the circumstanceter which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period coverec

this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtg,other financial information included in théeport, fairly present in all material respt
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegas presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as define:
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) arefriat control over financial reporting (as definadExchange Act Rules 13E5(f) anc
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

c)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurdse tdesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidatibsidiaries, is made known tc
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finahegorting to be designed un
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurangardeng the reliability of financial reporting arile preparation of financ
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtinis report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls arstentures, as of the end of the period covered sy rdport based on st
evaluation; ant

disclosed in this report any change in the regi¢'s internal control over financial reporting thattoored during the registre’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registranfburth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbm® that has materially affected, o
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abrver financial reportini
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEregistrant’s board of directors (or persongquening the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significdatin the registrand’
internal control over financial reportin
Date: February 21, 2008 /s/ WAYNE S. DEV EYDT

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial €xf



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WellPoilrtc. (the “Company”) on Form 1B-for the period ended December 31, 2007 as filad
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the lteieof (the “Report”)], Angela F. Braly, President and Chief Executivifider of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135(dapted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley#2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly pnets, in all material respects, the financial cbodiand results of operations
the Company

/s/ ANGELAF. BRALY
Angela F. Braly
President and Chief Executive Offic
February 21, 200




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WellPoilrtc. (the “Company”) on Form 1B-for the period ended December 31, 2007 as filad
the Securities and Exchange Commission on thetdatof (the “Report”)l, Wayne S. DeVeydt, Executive Vice President ahée€CFinancia
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 IC.S§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of thea®as-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly pnets, in all material respects, the financial cbodiand results of operations
the Company

/s/ WAYNE S. DEV EYDT
Wayne S. DeVeyc

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial €xf
February 21, 200




